
               
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION 38-431 THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD AN OPEN MEETING IN THE
SUPERVISORS’ AUDITORIUM, 1400 EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE OR MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY
PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV). ANY
MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC IS WELCOME TO ATTEND THE MEETING VIA ITV WHICH IS HELD AT 610 E. HIGHWAY 260,
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ CONFERENCE ROOM, PAYSON, ARIZONA. THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

REGULAR MEETING - MONDAY, AUGUST 15, 2011 - 10 A.M.
               

 
1 Call to Order - Pledge of Allegiance – Invocation  
 

2 REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A Information/Discussion/Action to receive Gila County supervisorial and
community college redistricting mapping alternatives from the Redistricting
Advisory Committee (RAC) and to dissolve the Committee.  (Linda
Eastlick/Roberto Sanchez, Chairman of the RAC)

 

 

B Information/ Discussion/Action to authorize the Chairman's signature on
the APS Landlord Tenant Rider between Gila County and Gila Community
College. (Don McDaniel )

 

 

C (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and convene
as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors.)   
Information/Discussion/Action to approve an agreement between Gila
County Library District and Creative Empire, LLC. d/b/a Mango Languages
for the provision of a Library Premium Subscription for a Full Language
Package, for three years, beginning on September 1, 2011, through August
30, 2014, at the rate of $3,142 per year.  (Jacque Griffin)  
(Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Library District Board of
Directors and reconvene as the Gila County Board of Supervisors.)

 

 

D Information/Discussion/Action to set primary and secondary property tax
rates for 2011 for all taxing jurisdictions within Gila County and convey tax
rates for all jurisdictions to the County Treasurer, and adopt Resolution No.
11-08-10 providing for the collection of taxes for all jurisdictions by the
County Treasurer for fiscal year 2011-2012. (Don McDaniel)

 

 

E Information/Discussion/Action to approve the submission of a United States
Department of Agriculture, Rural Housing Service, Rural Housing
Preservation Grant Preapplication in the amount of $100,000.  (Malissa
Buzan)

 

 

F Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Subscription Service Agreement
between CAPLUCK, Inc and the Gila County Division of Community Services,
Community Action Program/Housing Services, whereby CAPLUCK, Inc. will
provide software services that will allow for the universal collection of data
and demographics of assistance provided to eligible citizens residing in Gila
County at a charge of $3,500 per year.  (Malissa Buzan)

 

 



G Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Chairman's signature on
Amendment No. 1 to the Ground Lease and Use Agreement-Central Heights
Complex between Gila County and the Miami Unified School District to
extend the Agreement for an additional 10 years beyond the
original termination date of September 26, 2021, to September 26, 2031, and
the APS Landlord/Tenant Rider form.  (Steve Stratton)

 

 

H Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of Request for
Proposals No. 070111-1 for janitorial services at County facilities located in
Globe, Arizona.  (Steve Stratton)

 

 

I Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 11-08-09, which
pertains to a roadway exchange between Erik C. and Cheryl D. Long and
Gila County, and to authorize the Chairman's signature on a Quit Claim
Deed for said roadway exchange.  (Steve Stratton)

 

 

J Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of Invitation
for Bids No. 071911-1 for the purchase of one or more new SUV special
service vehicles and one or more new 6/7 passenger minivans for Gila
County Fleet Management.  (Steve Stratton)

 

 

K Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of Request for
Bids No. 080211-1 for the Public Works Roadyard Shop Area Paving
Project.    (Steve Stratton)

 

 

L Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 11-08-04 approving
the disposal of an unnecessary public roadway being a portion of Evalinda
Drive, King Addition Subdivision, official map no. 196, and to authorize the
Chairman to execute and deliver in the name and under the seal of the
County of Gila, a quit claim deed conveying the abandoned roadway to John
D. Cotterill. (Steve Sanders)

 

 

M Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 11-08-05 approving
the disposal of an unnecessary public roadway shown as a portion of
Christopher Creek Loop, and authorizing the Chairman to execute and
deliver in the name and under the seal of the County of Gila, 3 separate quit
claim deeds conveying the abandoned roadway to Lynnie Raichert; Edwin G.
and Mary C. Schuck; and George and Ruth Deming. (Steve Sanders)

 

 

N Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 11-08-06 approving
the disposal of an unnecessary public roadway shown as a portion of
Christopher Creek Loop, and authorizing the Chairman to execute and
deliver in the name and under the seal of the County of Gila, a quit claim
deed conveying the abandoned roadway to Manuel Gene Bettencourt.  (Steve
Sanders)

 

 

O Information/Discussion/Action to direct staff to begin the process to
abandon a portion of Smelter Street from Coplan to Silicate between blocks
16 and 17 as shown on the Plat of Arlington Heights, Gila County Recorded
Map 31.  (Steve Sanders)

 

 



 

P Information/Discussion/Action to direct staff to begin the process to
abandon a portion of Upper Pinal Creek Road as shown on Gila County
Record of Survey Map 3841A-C.  (Steve Sanders)

 

 

3 CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  
 

A Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. DE106003-008 between Gila
County d/b/a Gila Employment and Special Training Program, and
the Arizona Department of Economic Security, Rehabilitation Services
Administration, to replace the current Attachment 1, RSA Fee Schedule, with
the revised Attachment 1, RSA Fee Schedule Application dated June 23,
2011. 

 

 

B Approval of Amendment No. 1 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract
No. DE111093-001), Career Exploration/Supported Education, between Gila
County d/b/a Gila Employment and Special Training and the Arizona
Department of Economic Security, Rehabilitation Services Administration, to
replace the current Attachment 6, Facility Location and Staffing Chart-Gila
County, with the revised Attachment 6, Facility Location and Staffing
Chart dated June 23, 2011.

 

 

C Approval of CDBG (Community Development Block Grant) Contract No.
150-09 Close-Out Report to finalize the contract between the Arizona
Department of Housing and Gila County Community Action/Housing
Services, which will successfully end the contract and enable Gila County
Community Action/Housing Services to be in compliance with
all requirements for the CDBG contract. 

 

 

D Approval of FY 2012 Victims' Rights Program Award Agreement No. AG#
2012-004 between the Gila County Attorney's Office and the Arizona
Attorney General's Office in the amount of $33,350 to cover the existing
salary and employee-related expenses for a full-time advocate, with no cash
match funds required, and for the period July 1, 2011, through June 30,
2012.

 

 

E Approval of Contract No. HG752219 between the Gila County Division of
Health & Emergency Services, Health Department, and the Arizona
Department of Health Services in the amount of $51,160 to continue the
funding of the Prop 201 Smoke Free AZ Contract for the period July 1, 2011,
through June 30, 2012. 

 

 

F Approval of the December 7, 2010, BOS meeting minutes.  
 

G Approval of the June 2011 monthly departmental activity report submitted
by the Clerk of the Superior Court.

 

 

H Approval of the Human Resources reports for the weeks of August 9, 2011,
and August 15, 2011.

 

 

I Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of August 9,  



I Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of August 9,
2011, and August 15, 2011.

 

 

4 CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public benefit to allow
individuals to address issue(s) within the Board’s jurisdiction. Board
members may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the
agenda. Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(G),
action taken as a result of public comment will be limited to directing staff to
study the matter, responding to criticism, or scheduling the matter for
further discussion and decision at a future date.

 

 

5 At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02(K), members
of the Board of Supervisors and the Chief Administrator may present a brief
summary of current events. No action may be taken on issues presented.

 

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928) 425-3231 AS EARLY AS
POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL 7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE
AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO (928) 425-3231.

THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE
BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION 38-431.03(A)((3)

THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE MEETING



ARF-701     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  2- A     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 08/15/2011  
Submitted For: Linda Eastlick,

Elections Director
Submitted By: Linda Eastlick, Elections Department

Department: Elections Department
Presenter's Name: Roberto Sanchez 

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County Supervisorial and Community College redistricting mapping alternatives  (NOTE - mapping
alternative attachments will be provided by August 8)

Background Information
The Gila County Redistricting Advisory Committee (RAC) was formed by the Board of Supervisors to
assist in the supervisorial and college district redistricting process.  The RAC was to work with elections
staff and redistricting consultants to gather input from the public, evaluate public input, and present
mapping alternatives for the Board's consideration.

Evaluation
The RAC has conducted numerous committee meetings and attended numerous public meetings in
order to be educated about the redistricting process, receive and review Gila County census
information, receive information from the County's redistricting consultants and elections staff and to
hear public comments.

Conclusion
The RAC is now prepared to provide mapping alternatives for the supervisorial and college districts to
the Board of Supervisors for further consideration.  The Board will determine mapping alternatives to
be circulated for public input at a work session to be held August 23, 2011.

Recommendation
Following the presentation of mapping alternatives, the Elections Director recommends the Board of
Supervisors thank the Committee for the work they have done, accept the mapping alternatives, and
dissolve the committee.  The Committee's work is now complete and the Board will make further
mapping decisions at the work session on August 23, 2011.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to receive Gila County supervisorial and community college redistricting
mapping alternatives from the Redistricting Advisory Committee (RAC) and to dissolve the Committee.  (Linda Eastlick/Roberto Sanchez, Chairman of the RAC)
(Linda Eastlick/Roberto Sanchez, Chairman of the RAC)

Attachments
Link: Supervisorial Mapping Alternatives 
Link: Community College Mapping Alternatives 
Link: Report to the Board 























































































Redistricting Committee Report Page 1 
 

Gila County Redistricting Advisory Committee 

Report to the Board of Supervisors – August 15, 2011 

 

 
GOAL:  The goal of the committee was to meet, inform and review public input 

and to provide the Board of Supervisors with at least two formal recommendations 

for consideration. 

 

COMMITTEE:  The committee consisted of one Native American, three 

Hispanic and eight Anglos.  Five Democrats, four Republicans, two Party Not 

Designated and one Independent.  There were also five alternates.  All committee 

members were volunteers.   

 

The committee members were: 

 

Gary Andress  James Muhr   Roberto Sanchez 

Mac Feezor   Bob Pastor   Joe Skamel 

Bob Dalby   David Prechtel  Loretta Stone 

Tom Moody   Adelaido Rodriguez  Mike Vogel 

 

The alternate members were: 

 

Paul Bates   Christine Harrison  Linda Pearce 

Bob Hibbert   Marvin Mull 

 

COMMITTEE MEETINGS: The committee held nine meetings between 22 

March and 29 July 2011. 

 

Our first meeting took place in Star Valley on 22 March 2011.  Mr. B. Chambers 

briefed the committee on Open Meeting Law. Redistricting criteria and the Voting 

Rights Act of 1965 were discussed by Mr. Bruce Adelson.  Census Data and 

documenting and recording public input were reviewed by Mr. Tony Sissons and 

finally committee responsibilities, redistricting principles, public participation 

consideration and general information was provided by Linda Eastlick, Director 

Gila County Department of Elections. 

 

At our second meeting on 12 April 2011 the committee selected Mr. Roberto A. 

Sanchez, a resident of Star Valley as the Chairperson and Mr. Gary Andress from 

Claypool as the Vice Chair. Linda Eastlick presented the committee with general 



Redistricting Committee Report Page 2 
 

information, i.e. travel reimbursement, availability of interactive mapping tool on 

line and the Redistricting Principles. 

 

During our 10 May 2011 meeting, Mr. Chambers briefed the committee on general 

information regarding emails and open meeting law.  Mr. Sissons discussed 

receiving and documenting public input and the on-line redistricting mapping tool.  

The committee discussed and presented the idea of having study groups. Linda 

Eastlick informed the committee on dates and locations for the first round of public 

information meetings. 

 

Linda Eastlick presented the committee with information regarding citizen handout 

materials, the mapping submission process, and submission forms at our 6 June 

2011 meeting. The committee was briefed on collecting information and 

committee members were provided a Power Point presentation which they then 

could use for presentation at community meetings.  Linda also discussed the 

tentative redistricting timeline and informed the committee of the Board of 

Supervisors approval of revised guidelines to include Study Groups. 

 

At our 19 July 2011 meeting, Linda Eastlick reviewed changes to the redistricting 

timeline including presentation of maps to the Board of Supervisors on 15 August 

2011.  The committee then separated into study groups for round table discussions. 

The purpose of the study groups was to review mapping alternatives submitted by 

the public and discuss public opinions expressed during the first round of public 

meetings.  Maps were reviewed to see how closely they met the Constitutional one 

person, one vote criteria and the Voting Rights Act.  Mr. Andress chaired the 

College Distinct study group and Mr. Sanchez chaired the Supervisorial District 

study group. 

 

The study groups had Mr.  Sissons make minor adjustments to some of the maps 

they were seriously considering for submission to the Board of Supervisors.  The 

Supervisorial study group decided to meet again on Tuesday 26 July 2011 to select 

the maps to be presented to the full committee. 

 

The College District Study Group was able to select three maps to submit to the 

full committee at the 19 July 2011 meeting. A total of eight college district maps 

were submitted.  Five maps were rejected due to large population or minority 

deviations which would not be approved by the Department of Justice. 

 



Redistricting Committee Report Page 3 
 

The Supervisors District study group met again on Tuesday, 25 July 2011 and after 

review of the maps revised by the consultant and further discussion, they selected 

three maps to present to the full committee. 

 

At our 29 July 2011 meeting, the committee voted unanimously to approve the 

three maps recommended by the College District Study Group and the three maps 

recommended by the Supervisorial Study Group.  Twenty-one maps were 

submitted for the Supervisorial Districts.  Most of the maps were extremely 

retrogressive and/or did not meet required population deviations or the redistricting 

principle of being contiguous. 

 

PUBLIC MEETINGS:  From June 8 thru 6 July, the Gila County Election staff, 

together with redistricting committee members conducted a series of eleven public 

meetings in Gila County:   

 

Meetings were held in: 

 

San Carlos    Globe    Payson 

Star Valley    Young   Tonto Basin (2 meetings) 

Pine/Strawberry   Town of Miami  

Tonto Apache Tribal Counsel 

White Mountain Tribal Counsel 

 

These meetings were held inform citizens about why redistricting is taking place 

and to encourage input from the public regarding what changes they would 

recommend to the district maps.  The public was also informed as to the 

procedures to be followed when submitting changes and the requirements of the 

Constitution and the Voting Rights Act of 1965. The public was encouraged to 

participate in the redirecting process by voicing their concerns and submitting 

ideas, comments and maps. 

 

MAPPING ALTERNATIVES:  The committee recommends the following maps 

for your consideration.  None of the maps have drawn any incumbents out of their 

districts.  All maps meet the Constitutional requirement of one person, one vote.   

The college maps may require slight adjustments for minority percentage 

reductions.   The Tonto Apache recommended map has been submitted “as is” for 

the Board to review and it too will require adjustments for minority percentage 

reductions. 

 

 



Redistricting Committee Report Page 4 
 

Supervisorial District Maps   

 

Map submitted by Mr. Tom Moody, TJM01.  This map meets all the requirements 

of the Constitution and the Voting Rights Act.  The deviation from the ideal district 

size of 17,866, is 1.02%.  There are minor variances in voting age minority 

population changes, none of which are significant nor retrogressive.  This plan 

keeps the Tonto Apache Tribe in District 2. 

 

Map submitted by Mrs. K. Feezor, KLFSP01.  This map also meets all the 

requirements of the Constitution and the Voting Rights Act.  The deviation from 

the ideal district size of 17,866 is 1.66%.  There are minor variances in voting age 

minority population changes, none of which are significant nor retrogressive.  This 

plan places all three tribes into District 3, however, it does not move Gisela from 

District 2 to District 3 as recommended by Tonto Apache Tribal Council. 

 

Map submitted by the Tonto Apache Tribal Council, TAT01.  This map was 

submitted by the Tonto Apache Tribal Council.  It meets the requirements of the 

Constitution as the deviation from ideal district size of 17,866 is 3.04%.   

However, the Redistricting Advisory Committee is concerned that (1) the voting-

age Hispanic population in District 3 is decreased by 7.14%; and (2) total 

minorities in District 3 are decreased by 6.37%.  The Committee and the 

consultants believe this plan has a lot of potential, but it will require additional 

adjustments by the consultants if the Board selects this alternative for further 

public review and discussion. 

 

College District Maps 

 

Map submitted by Tom Moody, TJM06.  This map meets the requirements of the 

Constitution as the deviation from ideal district size of 10,719 is 4.44%.  

The plan does produce minority voting age variance reductions as follows: 

 

 Percent voting-age Hispanic, District 3   -3.27%.  

 Percent voting-age total minority residents, District 3 -2.69% 

 

Map submitted by Mrs. K. Feezor, KLF06B.  This map meets the requirements of 

the Constitution as the deviation from the ideal district size of 10,719 is 3.01%.   

The plan produces minority voting age variance reductions as follows: 

 

 Percent voting age Hispanic, District 3   -2.22% 

 Percent voting-age Hispanic, District 5   -7.63% 



Redistricting Committee Report Page 5 
 

 Percent voting-age total minority residents, District 3 -2.99% 

 Percent voting-age total minority residents, District 5 -4.02% 

 

Map submitted by Blaine Kimball, AZBandit CC02. This map meets the 

requirements of the Constitution as the deviation from the ideal district size of 

10,719 is 3.70%.  The plan produces minority voting age voting age variance 

reductions as follows: 

 

 Percent voting-age Hispanic, District 5   -7.60% 

 Percent voting-age total minority residents, District 2 -2.11% 

 Percent voting-age total minority residents, District 5 -4.01% 

 

All three college plans will require additional adjustments by the consultants to 

address reductions in minority populations. 

 

Respectfully  

 

 

 

Roberto A. Sanchez 

Chairperson, RAC for Gila County 



ARF-751     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  2- B     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 08/15/2011  
Submitted For: Stephen

Cullen, Ph.D. 
Submitted By: Linda Rodriguez, County Manager

Department: County Manager
Presenter's Name: Don McDaniel 

Information
Request/Subject
Arizona Public Service Landlord Tenant Rider between Gila County and Gila Community
College (GCC).

Background Information
On March 29, 2011, Tom Harris of PV Advanced Concepts made a presentation before the
Board of Supervisors regarding solar energy incentives through the Arizona Public Service
(APS) Solar for Schools and Government Program.

On April 19, 2011, the Board of Supervisors approved applications to APS Schools and
Government Program for solar energy funding in coordination with PV Advanced Concepts at
no up-front capital investment to Gila County.

Evaluation
PV Advanced Concepts has made a similar presentation to Gila Community College and its
Governing Board approved proceeding with an application. The attached APS Landlord
Tenant Rider between Gila County and Gila Community College must be approved and signed
by both entities in order for the College to proceed with an application. 

This agreement defines the roles and responsibilities of each entity. As Landlord, the County
will have no financial (direct or indirect) obligation. The College assumes all responsibility and
obligation to submit an application and any subsequent costs related to an award of funds. 

Further, the County currently pays the utility bills for the College and this would reduce that
bill and decrease the County’s cost to assist GCC.

Conclusion
Approving this Rider and authorizing the Chairman to sign would allow GCC to make an
application for this Renewable Energy System and thereby reduce its cost of power, which in
turn would reduce the County’s cost of assisting the College. Signing the Rider will not bind
the County to any costs or obligations resulting from the applications or approved systems for
GCC.

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the APS Landlord Tenant Rider
between Gila County and Gila Community College and authorize the Chairman to sign the
Rider.

Suggested Motion
Information/ Discussion/Action to authorize the Chairman's signature on the APS Landlord
Tenant Rider between Gila County and Gila Community College. (Don McDaniel)

Attachments
Link: APS Landlord-Tenant Rider for College



Link: APS Landlord-Tenant Rider for College
Link: Disclosure of Dual Representation-GC and College









ARF-742     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  2- C     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 08/15/2011  
Submitted For: Jacque Griffin, Asst. County Manager/Librarian
Submitted By: Jacque Griffin, Asst County Manager/Library District
Department: Asst County Manager/Library District

Fiscal Year: Budgeted?:

Contract Dates
Begin & End:
Grant?:
Matching
Requirement?:

Fund?:

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Agreement with Creative Empire, LLC. d/b/a Mango Languages to provide access to online subscription for Gila
County libraries.

Background Information
The Gila County Library District provides for access to a variety of materials and online resources on behalf of the
public libraries to benefit the residents of Gila County.  Language learning resources have been an often requested
resource by the public. In past years, the Library District purchased a subscription to a different language product
that then became unavailable for public library use.  Last year, at the request of the public library staff, the Gila
County Library District began providing access to the Mango Languages product.  This year, we would like to enter
into a three-year agreement with Creative Empire, LLC. d/b/a Mango Languages to ensure continuity of access to
this online subscription.  

Evaluation
The Mango Languages product is an online application designed to help someone learn a new language. The Full
Language Package provides 35 foreign languages as well as 15 English as a Second Language product for English
language learners. Grouped into 100 lessons, it provides language basics as well as conversational skills. The
parent company is firmly committed to the public library market, encouraging access to all language learners.  The
public library staff in Gila County reviewed a number of language materials and collectively chose Mango Languages
both for its variety and its economical price.  Access to this online resource is available both in the library and from
home through the Gila County Library District website. 

Conclusion
The Mango Languages product provides access to 35 foreign languages as well as 15 English as a second language
product. The company is committed to providing language learning resources to the library market, and is currently
in use in one in five libraries in North America.  In Gila County, all eight affiliate libraries indicated that access to a
language learning product provides their customers with a much requested resource, and that Mango Languages
was their choice for a language learning product.

Recommendation
Gila County Library District staff recommend approval of the agreement between the Gila County Library District
and Creative Empire, LLC. d/b/a Mango Languages for the provision of a Library Premium Subscription for a Full
Language Package for three years, beginning on September 1, 2011, through August 30, 2014, at the rate of
$3,142.00 per year.

Suggested Motion
(Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and convene as the Gila County Library District
Board of Directors.)  
Information/Discussion/Action to approve an agreement between Gila County Library District and Creative
Empire, LLC. d/b/a Mango Languages for the provision of a Library Premium Subscription for a Full Language
Package, for three years, beginning on September 1, 2011, through August 30, 2014, at the rate of $3,142 per
year.  (Jacque Griffin)  
(Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors and reconvene as the Gila County
Board of Supervisors.)

Attachments
Link: Mango Languages Agreement 2011-2014



30445 Northwestern Hwy. Suite 300, Farmington Hills, MI 48334 mangolanguages.com
Toll Free: 877-Mango-ll Business Phone: 248-254-7450 Fax: 248-254-7424

Mango Languages Terms of Sale

These Terms of Sale (the "Agreement") is between Gila County Library District and Creative Empire, LLC. d/b/a Mango Languages ("Mango"),
a Michigan Limited Liability Company.

1.PRODUCTS AND TERM. Mango shall provide Library certain products ("Products") under the terms of this Agreement. The Products provided
under this Agreement are identified as Library Premium Subscription including all languages. This Agreement shall be effective as of 9/1/2011,
and shall remain in full force and effect to and including 8/31/2014.

2. PAYMENT. Payment for the Products shall be made within 30 days of Library's receipt or initial use of the Products. Such payment shall be
made by checks, wire transfers, or other immediately available funds.

3. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMISSIBLEUNDER APPLICABLE LAW, THE PRODUCTS AND SERVICESPURCHASED FROM
MANGO ARE PROVIDED "AS IS". MANGO DOES NOT MAKE, AND HEREBY DISCLAIMS, ANY AND ALL OTHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY
WARRANTIES, INCLUDING IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, NONINFRINGEMENT OF THIRD
PARTY RIGHTS, AND ANY WARRANTIES ARISING FROM A COURSE OF DEALING, USAGE, OR TRADE PRACTICE. To the maximum extent permitted by
applicable law, neither Mango nor its licensors or distributors shall be liable to the Library for any lost profits, cost of substitute goods or
services, or any form of indirect, special, incidental, consequential or punitive damages from any causes of action arising with respect to the
products or services that you purchase from Mango, whether arising in tort (including negligence), contract, strict liability or otherwise,
whether or not such party has been advised of the possibility of such damage. In no event shall Mango's aggregate liability under this Agreement
exceed the amount actually paid by you for the applicable products.

4. WEB-SITE/SOFTWARE ACCESS. To the extent that any Products are accessed through Mango's web-site or software programs, Mango hereby
grants the Library's Authorized Users a limited license to access and make use of such Products. "Authorized Users" means users who are
registered borrowers of the Library, those that are watk-ins, and those who are remote users accessing the service through the library's web
site. Library will make reasonable efforts to protect Mango's proprietary information (including but not limited to Mango's Intellectual
Property) and will notify Mango promptly if it discovers there is unauthorized use of Mango's Products and will cooperate with Mango to mediate
the situation.

5. WEB-SITE LICENSEAND CONDITIONS. As a condition of the web-site licensed granted in paragraph 4, above, such license, Library agrees:

a. not to download or modify any part of the Website, except with the express and prior written consent of Mango;
b. not to download or copy any account information for the benefit of another merchant;
c. not to resell or make any commercial use of this Website or its contents;
d. not to reproduce, duplicate, copy, sell, resell or otherwise exploit the Website for any commercial purpose
without express written consent of Mango;
e. not to make any derivative use of this Website or its contents;
f. not to frame or utilize framing techniques to enclose any trademark, logo, or other proprietary information
(including images, text, page layout, or form) of Mango except for the purposes of this agreement and for promoting the
product.
g. not to use any meta tags or any other "hidden text" utilizing the Mango name or trademarks without the express
written consent of Mango;
h. While Mango attempts to insure that its Website is normally available 24 hours a day, Mango shall not be liable if
for any reason its Website is unavailable at any time or for any period; provided however, that Mango shall use best efforts
to provide adequate capacity and bandwidth to support the Library's needs and provide service on a 24 hour basis except
for routine maintenance (for which the Library is pre-notified). In the event that Mango fails to provide such service for five
days within a 30 day period, Mango shall provide a pro rata refund for the 30 day period in question.
i. Access to Mango's Website may be suspended temporarily and without notice in the case of system failure,
maintenance or repair or for reasons beyond Mango's control.
j. Any rights not expressly granted in these terms are reserved.

6. INDEMNIFICATION. Mango and the Library agree to indemnify, defend and hold one another, and all of their respective directors, officers,
employees, attorneys and agents harmless from and against any loss, claim, judgment, liability, damage, action or cause of action (including
reasonable attorneys' fees and court costs) arising out of or in connection with (a) a third party claim that the Library's possession and/or use of
the Products infringe or misappropriate the patent, copyright, trademark or other intellectual property rights of a third party, or (b) the
negligence or willful misconduct of either Mango or the Library or their respective officers employees and/or agents.

1



30445 Northwestern Hwy. Suite 300, Farmington Hills, MI 48334 mangolanguages.com
Toll Free: 877-Mango-ll Business Phone: 248-254-7450 Fax: 248-254-7424

7. SUPPORT. Mango shall support the Library by responding to emails and phone calls from the Library. Mango shall make reasonable efforts
to respond to all customer support issues between the hours of 9 a.m. and 5 p.m. Eastern Standard Time, Monday through Friday.

8. UPDATES. Mango shall from time to time, update its online software and language lesson content. The Library shall only receive updates to
the Mango Languages Library Edition and any changes or enhancements to Mango's "consumer edition" and/or other editions will not necessarily
be made to the Library Edition.

9. ACCESS. Mango intends to provide Authorized Users unlimited access to the Mango Library edition. In the event that the Library's
Authorized Users exceed what Mango deems reasonable usage during the term of the agreement, Mango shall assume that either the number of
cardholders in the Library was grossly underestimated or there is piracy of Mango's service from outside sources. Under such circumstances
Mango reserves the right to restrict or limit access to Mango's web-site. In the event of such circumstances, Mango shall make every effort to
provide notice to and cooperate with Library prior to Mango's restriction or limitation of access to its Web-site and Products.

10. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY.All materials on the Mango Web Site or Products, including without limitation, text, images, logo, software,
Audio Content and video clips, databases, e-rnails, and posted comments and reviews (collectively, the "Content") are owned or controlled by
Mango and/or it licensors, who retain all right, title, and interest in and to the Content. The Web Site and Content are protected by the
copyright and trademark laws of the United States and other countries, international conventions, and other applicable laws. Library shall use
all "reasonable" efforts to ensure that all Authorized Users are appropriately notified of the importance of respecting Mango's intellectual
property rights.

11. APPLICABLELAW, This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted under the laws of the state of Arizona, excluding conflicts of any law
provisions.

12. FORCEMAJEURE. Neither party shall be in default if failure to perform any obligation under this Agreement is caused solely by supervening
conditions beyond a party's control, including acts of nature, God, civil commotion, terrorism, strikes, power outages, internet connectivity
outages, labor disputes, and government demands or requirements. The party anticipating or claiming a force majeure occurrence shall notify
the other party, in writing as soon as possible, detailing the occurrence and providing a recovery and time table plan.

13. GENERAL.This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between Mango and the Library with respect to the subject matter hereof and
supersede all prior agreements with respect to the same. Failure by Mango to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not be construed as
a waiver of any provision or right. In the event that any portion of this Agreement is held unenforceable, the unenforceable portion shall be
construed in accordance with applicable law as nearly as possible to reflect the original intentions of the parties, and the remainder of the
provisions shall remain in full force and effect. The parties represent and warrant to the other that they each have the right and power to enter
into and fully perform its obligations under this Agreement or Invoice and has obtained all necessary licenses, permissions, consents to fulfill
their respective obligations.

Signatures below indicate acceptance of these terms:

Library Name: Gila County Library District

Amount: $3,142

Authorized Library Representative: _

Title: _

Signature: Date:

Creative Empire, LLC. d/b/a Mango Lan~es ~

A"thoc;'roM'"~~t7~-I--~---'~:~~--e-M-~--=->.-\L-/-"""'/'-
Signature: --'-~---r'~'-'''''--/'-,hP'''-'''''::,,::~JIC'---\:~------------ Date:

7 ' I

2
sf?

Initial _



Cancellation pursuant to A.R.S. §38-5l1. This contract is subject to the cancellation
provisions of A.R.S. §38-5l1.

Anti-Terrorism Warranty. Pursuant to A.R.S. §35-397, Mango certifies that it does not have
scrutinized business operations in Iran or Sudan and that they are in compliance with the Export
Administration Act and not on the Excluded Parties List.

Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance. Mango hereby warrants that it will at all times during
the term of this Agreement comply with all federal immigration laws applicable to Mango's'
employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A) (collectively,
the "State and Federal Immigration Laws"). Mango shall further ensure that each subcontractor
who performs any work for Mango under this Agreement, if any, likewise complies with the
State and Federal Immigration Laws.

Any breach of Mango's or any subcontractor's warranty of compliance with the State and
Federal Immigration Laws, or of any other provision of this section, shall be deemed a material
breach of this Agreement, such that Gila County Library District ("Client") shall have the right
to suspend or termination this Agreement. If the breach is by a subcontractor, and the subcontract
is suspended or terminated as a result, Mango shall be required to take such steps as may be
necessary to either self-perform the services that would have been provided under the
subcontract or retain a replacement subcontractor (subject to Client approval), as soon as
possible so as not to delay project completion.

Mango Languages shall advise each subcontractor of Client's rights, and the
subcontractor's obligations, under this section.

Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial action under this
section shall be the responsibility of Mango.

W# Date_
On behalf of Mango Languages:

Approved as to form',

Chairman, Board of Directors

Chief Deputy County Attorney

3



30445 Northwestern Hwy. Suite 300, Farmington Hills, MI 48334 mangolanguages.com
Toll Free: 877-Mango-ll Business Phone: 248-254-7450 Fax: 248-254-7424

Exhibit A -Library Premium Subscription

The Library Edition of the following courses will be made available to your library:

4

Full Language Package

1

"l5l}}nttia __ .1_-



ARF-748     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  2- D     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 08/15/2011  
Submitted For: Joseph Heatherly,

Finance Director
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board of

Supervisors
Department: Finance Department
Presenter's Name: Don McDaniel 

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution No. 11-08-10 providing for the collection of taxes for all jurisdictions for FY 2011-2012

Background Information
The annual adoption of Gila County's budget and setting the County's primary and secondary property
tax rates by the Board of Supervisors is a requirement of the Arizona Revised Statutes.

Evaluation
The specific applicable statutes are as follows:

42-17151. County, municipal, community college and school tax levy

A. On or before the third Monday in August each year, the governing body of each county, city, town,
community college district and school district shall:

1. Fix, levy and assess the amount to be raised from primary property taxation and secondary property
taxation. This amount, plus all other sources of revenue, as estimated, and unencumbered balances
from the preceding fiscal year, shall equal the total of amounts proposed to be spent in the budget for
the current fiscal year.

42-18003. Delivery of roll to county treasurer; resolution for collecting taxes

A. On or before October 1 of each year the assessment and tax roll and the cross-index shall be
delivered to the county treasurer.

B. On completing the assessment and tax roll, the county board of supervisors shall adopt a resolution
for the collection of taxes by the county treasurer as provided by law from the persons who are listed in
the roll. The county treasurer is thereafter responsible for collecting the totals of all taxes levied on the
roll.

C. The roll attached to the county board of supervisors' resolution for collecting taxes is the treasurer's
authority to collect the levied taxes.

Conclusion
This date of Monday, August 15, 2011, has been set for the Board of Supervisors to set the primary and
secondary property tax rates for fiscal year 2011-2012 for all taxing jurisdictions within Gila County
and convey tax rates for all taxing jurisdictions to the County Treasurer.  By adopting Resolution No.
11-08-10, it provides for the collection of taxes for all jurisdictions by the County Treasurer for fiscal
year 2011-2012.

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors set the primary and secondary property tax rates for
fiscal year 2011-2012 for all taxing jurisdictions within Gila County and convey tax rates for all
jurisdictions to the County Treasurer and that the Board adopt Resolution No. 11-08-10.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to set primary and secondary property tax rates for 2011 for all taxing



Information/Discussion/Action to set primary and secondary property tax rates for 2011 for all taxing
jurisdictions within Gila County and convey tax rates for all jurisdictions to the County Treasurer, and
adopt Resolution No. 11-08-10 providing for the collection of taxes for all jurisdictions by the County
Treasurer for fiscal year 2011-2012.  (Don McDaniel)

Attachments
Link: Resolution No. 11-08-10
Link: Tax Levies and Rates Comparison Sheet











ARF-738     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  2- E     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 08/15/2011  
Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, CAP/Housing Services Manager
Submitted By: Carolyn Haro, Community Services Division
Department: Community Services Division
Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.

Fiscal Year: 2011 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

preapplication 

Grant?: Yes
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Malissa Buzan 

Information
Request/Subject
Rural Addressing Preservation Grant Preapplication

Background Information
A new grant opportunity is now available to add to funding for housing rehabilitation projects.  A Preapplication
must be submitted as a prerequisite to submitting a grant application to the United States Department of
Agriculture (USDA) Rural Housing Service for Rural Housing Preservation Grant to total $100,000.  This grant
funding will allow the Gila County Health and Community Services Housing Division to add additional homes in
Gila County for housing rehabilitation for low-income homeowners.

Evaluation
This Preapplication must be submitted in order to be eligible to apply for a USDA Rural Housing Preservation Grant
and, if the grant application is approved, it will enable the Gila County Housing Department to add additional
homes for rehabilitation.  Funds will be leveraged along with URRD funding, APS funding and Southwest Gas
funding to complete rehabilitation projects.  The program is only available for eligible low-income homeowners
within Gila County.

USDA is currently requesting preapplication materials to be submitted before actual grant application materials are
released for submission. 

Conclusion
Grant application would benefit Gila County by adding additional homes for housing rehabilitation.

Recommendation
Gila County Housing Services Department staff recommends the Board of Supervisors' approval to
submit preapplication grant materials to USDA Rural Housing Service for Rural Housing Preservation Grant in the
amount of $100,000.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the submission of a United States Department of Agriculture, Rural
Housing Service, Rural Housing Preservation Grant Preapplication in the amount of $100,000.  (Malissa Buzan)

Attachments
Link: Application SF424
Link: Equal Opportunity Agreement
Link: Property Identification
Link: Request for Environmental Information
Link: Certification-Primary Covered Transactions
Link: Certification - lower tier covered transactions
Link: Drugfree Workplace



APPLICATION FOR OMB Approval No. 0348-0043

FEDERAL ASSISTANCE 2. DATE SUBMITTED Applicant Identifier

1. TYPE OF SUBMISSION: 3. DATE RECEIVED BY STATE State Application Identifier

    Application Preapplication
4. DATE RECEIVED BY FEDERAL AGENCY Federal Identifier

5. APPLICANT INFORMATION
Legal Name: Organizational Unit:

Address (give city, county, State, and zip code): Name and telephone number of person to be contacted on matters involving
this application (give area code)

6. EMPLOYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (EIN): 7. TYPE OF APPLICANT: (enter appropriate letter in box)

   A. State H. Independent School Dist.
8. TYPE OF APPLICATION:    B. County I. State Controlled Institution of Higher Learning

   C. Municipal J. Private University
   D. Township K. Indian Tribe

If Revision, enter appropriate letter(s) in box(es)    E. Interstate L. Individual
   F. Intermunicipal M. Profit Organization

   A. Increase Award         B. Decrease Award       C. Increase Duration     G. Special District N. Other (Specify) ____________________
   D. Decrease Duration    Other (specify):

9. NAME OF FEDERAL AGENCY:

10. CATALOG OF FEDERAL DOMESTIC ASSISTANCE NUMBER: 11. DESCRIPTIVE TITLE OF APPLICANT’S PROJECT:

TITLE:
12. AREAS AFFECTED BY PROJECT (Cities, Counties, States, etc.):

13. PROPOSED PROJECT 14. CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICTS OF:

Start Date Ending Date a. Applicant b. Project

15. ESTIMATED FUNDING: 16. IS APPLICATION SUBJECT TO REVIEW BY STATE EXECUTIVE

      ORDER 12372 PROCESS?
a. Federal  $ .00

   a. YES.  THIS PREAPPLICATION/APPLICATION WAS MADE
b. Applicant  $ .00                  AVAILABLE TO THE STATE EXECUTIVE ORDER 12372

                 PROCESS FOR REVIEW ON:
c. State  $ .00

                 DATE  _____________________
d. Local  $ .00

   b. No.        PROGRAM IS NOT COVERED BY E. O. 12372
e. Other  $ .00                     OR PROGRAM HAS NOT BEEN SELECTED BY STATE

                    FOR REVIEW

f. Program Income  $ .00

17. IS THE APPLICANT DELINQUENT ON ANY FEDERAL DEBT?
g. TOTAL  $ .00

18. TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF, ALL DATA IN THIS APPLICATION/PREAPPLICATION ARE TRUE AND CORRECT, THE
 DOCUMENT HAS BEEN DULY AUTHORIZED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE APPLICANT AND THE APPLICANT WILL COMPLY WITH THE
 ATTACHED ASSURANCES IF THE ASSISTANCE IS AWARDED.
a. Type Name of Authorized Representative b. Title c. Telephone Number

d. Signature of Authorized Representative e. Date Signed

Previous Edition Usable Standard Form 424 (Rev. 7-97)
Authorized for Local Reproduction     Prescribed by OMB Circular A-102

Construction

Non-Construction Non-Construction

Construction

Yes    If "Yes," attach an explanation. No

New Continuation Revision



INSTRUCTIONS FOR THE SF-424

Item: Entry: Item: Entry:
1. Self-explanatory. 12. List only the largest political entities affected (e.g., State, 

counties, cities).
2. Date application submitted to Federal agency (or State if 

applicable) and applicant’s control number (if applicable). 13. Self-explanatory.

3. State use only (if applicable). 14. List the applicant’s Congressional District and any 
District(s) affected by the program or project.

4. If this application is to continue or revise an existing award, 
enter present Federal identifier number. If for a new project, 
leave blank.

15.

5.

6. Enter Employer Identification Number (EIN) as assigned by the 
Internal Revenue Service.

7. Enter the appropriate letter in the space provided. 16.

8. Check appropriate box and enter appropriate letter(s) in the 
space(s) provided:

 -- "New" means a new assistance award. 17.

 -- "Continuation" means an extension for an additional

     funding/budget period for a project with a projected

     completion date.

18.
 -- "Revision" means any change in the Federal
     Government’s financial obligation or contingent
     liability from an existing obligation.

9. Name of Federal agency from which assistance is being 
requested with this application.

10. Use the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance number and 
title of the program under which assistance is requested.

11.

SF-424 (Rev. 7-97) Back

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 45 minutes per response, including time for reviewing
instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of
information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for
reducing this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348-0043), Washington, DC 20503.

PLEASE DO NOT RETURN YOUR COMPLETED FORM TO THE OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET. 
SEND IT TO THE ADDRESS PROVIDED BY THE SPONSORING AGENCY.

This is a standard form used by applicants as a required facesheet for preapplications and applications submitted for Federal assistance. It
will be used by Federal agencies to obtain applicant certification that States which have established a review and comment procedure in
response to Executive Order 12372 and have selected the program to be included in their process, have been given an opportunity to review
the applicant’s submission.

Amount requested or to be contributed during the first 
funding/budget period by each contributor. Value of in-
kind contributions should be included on appropriate 
lines as applicable. If the action will result in a dollar 
change to an existing award, indicate only  the amount 
of the change. For decreases, enclose the amounts in 
parentheses. If both basic and supplemental amounts 
are included, show breakdown on an attached sheet. 
For multiple program funding, use totals and show 
breakdown using same categories as item 15.

Legal name of applicant, name of primary organizational unit 
which will undertake the assistance activity, complete address of 
the applicant, and name and telephone number of the person to 
contact on matters related to this application.

Applicants should contact the State Single Point of 
Contact (SPOC) for Federal Executive Order 12372 to 
determine whether the application is subject to the 
State intergovernmental review process.

This question applies to the applicant organization, not 
the person who signs as the authorized representative. 
Categories of debt include delinquent audit 
disallowances, loans and taxes.

To be signed by the authorized representative of the 
applicant. A copy of the governing body’s 
authorization for you to sign this application as official 
representative must be on file in the applicant’s office. 
(Certain Federal agencies may require that this 
authorization be submitted as part of the application.)

Enter a brief descriptive title of the project. If more than one 
program is involved, you should append an explanation on a 
separate sheet. If appropriate (e.g., construction or real 
property projects), attach a map showing project location. For 
preapplications, use a separate sheet to provide a summary 
description of this project.



Form RD 400-1 
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE(Rev 5-00) 

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY AGREEMENT 

FORM APPROVED 
OMB No. 0575-0018 

This agreement, dated ______________________________________________________________________________ between 

(herein called “Recipient” whether one or more) and United States Department of Agriculture (USDA), pursuant to the rules and 
regulations of the Secretary of Labor (herein called the ‘Secretary’) issued under the authority of Executive Order 11246 as amended, 
witnesseth: 

In consideration of financial assistance (whether by a loan, grant, loan guaranty, or other form of financial assistance) made or to be 
made by the USDA to Recipient, Recipient hereby agrees, if the cash cost of construction work performed by Recipient or a construction 
contract financed with such financial assistance exceeds $10,000 - unless exempted by rules, regulations or orders of the Secretary of 
Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965. 

1. To incorporate or cause to be incorporated into any contract for construction work, or modification thereof, subject to the relevant 
rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary or of any prior authority that remain in effect, which is paid for in whole or in part with the 
aid of such financial assistance, the following “Equal Opportunity Clause”: 

During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows: 
(a)	 The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex or 

national origin. The contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are 
treated during employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. Such action shall include, but 
not be limited, to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff 
or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The contractor 
agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided by the 
USDA setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. 

(b) The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the contractor, state that all 
qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex or national origin. 

(c)	 The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a collective bargaining agreement 
or other contract or understanding, a notice, to be provided by the USDA, advising the said labor union or workers’ representative 
of the contractor’s commitments under this agreement and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and 
applicants for employment. 

(d) The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and of all rules, regulations 
and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor. 

(e)	 The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, rules, 
regulations, and orders, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the USDA Civil 
Rights Office, and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, 
regulations, and orders. 

(f)	 In the event of the contractor’s noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or with any of the said rules, 
regulations, or orders, this contract may be cancelled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the contractor may be 
declared ineligible for further Government contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures 
authorized in Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as 
provided in Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise 
provided by Law. 

(g) The contractor will include the provisions of paragraph 1 and paragraph (a) through (g) in every subcontract or purchase order, unless 
exempted by the rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to Section 204 of Executive Order No. 11246 of 
September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The contractor will take such action with 
respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the USDA may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for 
noncompliance: Provided, however, that in the event the contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a 
subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the USDA, the contractor may request the United States to enter into such 
litigation to protect the interest of the United States. 

According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, an agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to respond 
to, a collection of information unless it displays a valid OMB control number. The valid OMB control number for this information 
collections is 0575-0018. The time required to complete this information collection is estimated to average 10 minutes per response, 
including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and 
completing and reviewing the collection of information. 

RD 400-1 (Rev. 5-00) 
Position 6 



2. To be bound by the above equal opportunity clause with respect to its own employment practices when it participates in federally 
assisted construction work: Provided, that if the organization so participating is a State or local government, the above equal 
opportunity clause is not applicable to any agency, instrumentality or subdivision of such government which does not 
participate in work on or under the contract. 
3. To notify all prospective contractors to file the required ‘Compliance Statement’, Form RD 400-6, with their bids. 
4. Form AD-425, Instructions to Contractors, will accompany the notice of award of the contract. Bid conditions for all nonexempt 
federal and federally assisted construction contracts require inclusion of the appropriate “Hometown” or “Imposed” plan affirmative 
action and equal employment opportunity requirements. All bidders must comply with the bid conditions contained in the invitation to 
be considered responsible bidders and hence eligible for the award. 
5. To assist and cooperate actively with USDA and the Secretary in obtaining the compliance of contractors and subcontractors with 
the equal opportunity clause and the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary, that it will furnish USDA and the Secretary 
such information such as, but not limited to, Form AD 560, Certification of Nonsegregated Facilities, to submit the Monthly 
Employment Utilization Report, Form CC-257, as they may require for the supervision of such compliance, and that it will otherwise 
assist USDA in the discharge of USDA’s primary responsibility for securing compliance. 
6. To refrain from entering into any contract or contract modification subject to Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, with a 
contractor debarred from, or who has not demonstrated eligibility for, Government contracts and federally assisted construction 
contracts pursuant to the Executive Order and will carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of the equal opportunity clause as 
may be imposed upon contractors and subcontractors by USDA or the Secretary of Labor pursuant to Part II, Subpart D, of the 
Executive Order. 
7. That if the recipient fails or refuses to comply with these undertakings, the USDA may take any or all of the following actions: 
Cancel, terminate, or suspend in whole or in part this grant (contract, loan, insurance, guarantee); refrain from extending any further 
assistance to the organization under the program with respect to which the failure or refund occurred until satisfactory assurance of 
future compliance has been received from such organization; and refer the case to the Department of Justice for appropriate legal 
proceedings. 

Signed by the Recipient on the date first written above. 

Recipient Recipient 

(CORPORATE SEAL) Name of Corporate Recipient 

Attest: By 
President 

Secretary 







32. Coastal Barrier Resources System.....

USDA Position 3 FORM APPROVED
OMB No. 0575-0094Form RD 1940-20

REQUEST FOR ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION
(Rev. 4-06) Name of Project

Location

Item   1a.     Has a Federal, State, or Local Environmental Impact Statement or Analysis been prepared for this project?
Yes No Copy attached as EXHIBIT I-A.

           1b.     If ''No.'' provide the information requested in Instructions as EXHIBIT I.
Item     2.     The State Historic Preservation Officer (SHPO) has been provided a detailed project description and has been requested to submit

Yes    comments to the appropriate Rural Development Office. No      Date description submitted to SHPO
Item     3.     Are any of the following land uses or environmental resources either to be affected by the proposal or located within or adjacent to
                     the project site(s)? (Check appropriate box for every item of the following checklist).

Yes No Yes

(designated or proposed under
the Wilderness Act)

(proposed or designated under the Wild
and Scenic Rivers Act)

(Listed on the National Register of
Historic Places or which may be
eligible for listing)

(endangered/threatened species)

(Listed on National Registry of Natural
Landmarks)

Item 4. Are any facilities under your ownership, lease, or supervision to be utilized in the accomplishment of this project, either listed or under
Yes Noconsideration for listing on the Environmental Protection Agency's List of Violating Facilities?

Signed:
(Date) (Applicant)

(Title)

Unknown No Unknown

6. Mining, Quarrying...........................

5. Grazing........................................

4. Agricultural.....................................

3. Residential....................................

1. Industrial.......................................

2. Commercial....................................

19. Dunes............................................

20. Estuary..........................................

21. Wetlands.........................................

22. Floodplain.......................................

23. Wilderness.......................................

24. Wild or Scenic River.........................
7. Forests..........................................

8. Recreational.....................................

9. Transportation..................................

10. Parks..............................................

11. Hospital...........................................

12. Schools..........................................

13. Open spaces....................................

14. Aquifer Recharge Area.....................

15. Steep Slopes....................................

16. Wildlife Refuge................................

17. Shoreline.......................................

18. Beaches..........................................

25. Historical, Archeological Sites...........

26. Critical Habitats................................

27. Wildlife...........................................

28. Air Quality.....................................

29. Solid Waste Management..................

30. Energy Supplies...............................

31. Natural Landmark............................

According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, an agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to respond to, a collection  of  information
unless it displays a valid OMB control number. The valid OMB control number for this information collections is 0575-0094. The time required to complete this
information collection is estimated to average 6 to 10 hours per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and
maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information.



 
 Form AD-1047 (1/92) 

 U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 
  
 
 Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other 
 Responsibility Matters - Primary Covered Transactions 
  
 
This certification is required by the regulations implementing Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension, 7 
CFR Part 3017, Section 3017.510, Participants' responsibilities.  The regulations were published as Part IV of the 
January 30, 1989 Federal Register (pages 4722-4733).  Copies of the regulations may be obtained by contacting the 
Department of Agriculture agency offering the proposed covered transaction. 
 
(BEFORE COMPLETING CERTIFICATION, READ INSTRUCTIONS ON REVERSE) 
 
(1) The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its principals: 
 

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency; 

 
(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a 

civil judgement rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or 
local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State 
antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

 
(c) are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental 

entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in 
paragraph (1)(b) of this certification; and 

 
(d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more 

public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default. 
 
(2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, 

such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal. 
 
 
 
  

Organization Name PR/Award Number or Project Name                 
 
  

Name(s) and Title(s) of Authorized Representative(s) 

 
  

Signature(s)    Date         



 
 Form AD-1047 (1/92) 2 

 Instructions for Certification 
 
1. By signing and submitting this form, the prospective primary participant is providing the certification set out on the reverse 
side in accordance with these instructions. 
 
2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial of participation in 
this covered transaction.  The prospective participant shall submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification set 
out on this form.  The certification or explanation will be considered in connection with the department or agency's 
determination whether to enter into this transaction.  However, failure of the prospective primary participant to furnish a 
certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in this transaction. 
 
3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when the department or 
agency determined to enter into this transaction.  If it is later determined that the prospective primary participant knowingly 
rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or 
agency may terminate this transaction for cause or default. 
 
4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the department or agency to whom this 
proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its certification was erroneous when 
submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. 
 
5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered transaction," "participant," 
"person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and "voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the 
meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549.  You may contact 
the department or agency to which this proposal is being submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations. 
 
6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this form that, should the proposed covered transaction be 
entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, 
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department 
or agency entering into this transaction. 
 
7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this form that it will include the clause titled "Certification 
Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by the 
department or agency entering into this covered transaction, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in 
all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. 
 
8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered 
transaction that is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows 
that the certification is erroneous.  A participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of 
its principals.  Each participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List. 
 
9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render in 
good faith the certification required by this clause.  The knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed 
that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings. 
 
10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction 
knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the 
department or agency may terminate this transaction for cause or default. 













OMB APPROVAL NO. 0991-0002 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 

 CERTIFICATION REGARDING 
DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS (GRANTS) 

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS 
This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160, of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 
(Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.), 7 CFR Part 3017, Subpart F, Section 3017.600, Purpose.  The 
January 31, 1989, regulations were amended and published as Part II of the MAY 25, 1990, Federal Register (pages 21681- 
21691).  Copies of the regulations may be obtained by contacting the Department of Agriculture agency offering the grant. 

 (BEFORE COMPLETING CERTIFICATION, READ INSTRUCTIONS ON REVERSE) 
Alternative I 
 

A.       The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by: 
          
        (a)      Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or  
                   use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken  
                   against employees for violation of such prohibition; 
        
        (b)      Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about -- 

 

(1)      The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
(2)      The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
(3)       Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and 
(4)      The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the workplace; 

       (c)        Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be given a copy of the  
                    statement required by paragraph (a): 
        
       (d)        Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of employment under the  
                    grant, the employee will -- 

 

(1)       Abide by the terms of the statement; and 
(2)       Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug statute occurring in      

            the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction; 
     (e)         Notify the agency in writing, within 10 calendar days after receiving notice under subparagraph (d)(2) from an   
                   employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.  Employers of convicted employees must provide  
                   notice, including position, title, to every grant officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working,  
                   unless the Federal agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices.  Notice shall include the  
                   identification number(s) of each affected grant; 

                      

                      (1)        Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including termination, consistent   

                                   with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or 
                       

                      (2)        Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program   

                                  approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law enforcement, or other appropriate    

                                  agency; 
                  (g)         Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation of   
                                paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e) and (f). 

 
 

1-1 
Form AD-1049 (REV 5/90) 

Microsoft Word 2000 
 



B.        The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in connection with the specific grant: 
 
Place of Performance (Street address, city, county, State, zip code) 
 
      

 

 
Check      if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here. 
 
 
                                                                                                              
Organization Name                                                                        Award Number or Project Name 
 
 
      
Name  and Title of Authorized Representative 
 
 
                                                                                                                 
Signature                                                                                       Date 

 

Instructions for Certification 

1. By signing and submitting this form, the grantee is providing the certification set out on pages 1 and 2. 

2. The certification set out on pages 1 and 2 is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant.  If it is 
later determined that the grantee knowingly rendered a false certification, or otherwise violates the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act, the 
agency, in addition to any other remedies available to the Federal Government, may take action authorized under the Drug-Free Workplace Act. 

3. Workplaces under grants, for grantees other than individuals, need not be identified on the certification.  If know, they may be identified in the grant 
application.  If the grantee does not   identify the workplaces at the time of application, or upon award, if there is no application, the grantee must keep 
the identity of the workplace(s) on file in its office and make the information available for Federal inspection.  Failure to identify all known workplaces 
constitutes a violation of the grantee's drug-free workplace requirements. 

4. Workplace identifications must include the actual address of buildings (or parts of buildings) or other sites where work under the grant takes place.  
Categorical descriptions may be used (e.g., all vehicles of a mass transit authority or State highway department while in operation, State employees in 
each local unemployment office, performers in concert halls or radio studios). 

5. If the workplace identified to the agency changes during the performance of the grant, the grantee shall inform the agency of the change(s), if it 
previously identified the workplaces in question (see paragraph three). 

 6. Definitions of terms in the Nonprocurement Suspension and Debarment common rule and Drug-Free Workplace common rule apply to this certification.  
Grantees' attention is called, in particular, to the following definitions from these rules: 

``Controlled substance'' means a controlled substance in Schedules I through V of the Controlled Substances Act (21 U.S.C. 812) and as further 
defined by regulation (21 CFR 1308.11 through 1308.15); 

``Conviction'' means a finding of guilt (including a plea of nolo contendere) or imposition of sentence, or both, by any judicial body charged with the 
responsibility to determine violations of the Federal or State criminal drug statutes; 

``Criminal drug statute'' means a Federal or non-Federal criminal statute involving the manufacture, distribution, dispensing, use, or possession of any 
controlled substance; 
``Employee'' means the employee of a grantee directly engaged in the performance of work under a grant, including: (i) all ``direct charge'' employees; 
(ii) all ``indirect  charge'' employees unless their impact or involvement is insignificant to the performance of the grant; and, (iii) temporary personnel 
and consultants who are directly engaged in the performance of work under the grant and who are on the grantee's payroll.  This definition does not 
include workers not on the payroll of the grantee (e.g., volunteers, even if sued to meet a matching requirement; consultants or independent contractors 
not on the grantee's payroll; or employees of subrecipients or subcontractors in covered workplaces). 

1-2 
Form AD-1049 (REV 5/90) 

 



ARF-640     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  2- F     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 08/15/2011  
Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, CAP/Housing Services Manager
Submitted By: Cecilia Bejarano, Community Services Division
Department: Community Services Division
Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.

Fiscal Year: 2010-2011 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

April 1, 2011- 4/1/2012 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Malissa Buzan 

Information
Request/Subject
Subscription Service Agreement with CAPLUCK, Inc.

Background Information
This is a new contract between CAPLUCK, Inc. and Gila County Community Action Program, Housing Services, in
the amount of $3,500 for a year-long subscription for a data collection and demographic program.   This data
collection and demographic program is being implemented by all Community Action Programs (CAPs)  throughout
Arizona in order to universalize the collection process for the Results Oriented Management Agency (ROMA) Plan. 

Evaluation
By the Gila County Board of Supervisors approving the CAPLUCK Inc. Subscription Service Agreement, the
Community Action Program, Housing Services Department, will be able to collect data and demographic
information with the same method as all Arizona Community Action agencies thus resulting in a more accurate
Results Oriented Management Agency Plan. 

Conclusion
It is important that the Board of Supervisors approve the Subscription Service Agreement between Gila County
Community Action Housing Services and CAPLUCK, Inc. so the data collection and demographic information
collection is accurate and acceptable to the Results Oriented Management Agency Plan.

The Arizona Community Action Association will pay a one-time installation and setup charge of $1,500 plus $3,500
for the first year's subscription, which begins on April 1, 2011, and ends on March 31, 2012.  Thereafter, Gila
County Community Action Program/Housing Services will pay the $3,500 yearly cost.  This Service Agreement may
be terminated by either party by providing 180-day written notice before the beginning of the next annual billing
period.  The agreement cannot be terminated during the annual subscription term. 

Recommendation
The Community Action Program/Housing Services Manager recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the
Subscription Service Agreement with CAPLUCK, Inc.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Subscription Service Agreement between CAPLUCK, Inc and the Gila
County Division of Community Services, Community Action Program/Housing Services, whereby CAPLUCK, Inc.
will provide software services that will allow for the universal collection of data and demographics of assistance
provided to eligible citizens residing in Gila County at a charge of $3,500 per year.  (Malissa Buzan)

Attachments
Link: Subscription Service Agreement with CAPLUCK, Inc.





















ARF-676     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  2- G     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 08/15/2011  
Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director
Submitted By: Shannon Coons, Public Works Division
Department: Public Works Division

Fiscal Year: 2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

9-27-2001 thru 9-26-2031 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name: Steve Stratton 

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 1 to Ground Lease and Use Agreement -Central Heights Complex with MUSD (Miami
Unified School District).

Background Information
Gila County is pursuing a grant from Arizona Public Service Company (APS) for solar energy savings
in a 20-year period. In order to participate in the grant, the existing lease in place between Gila County
and the Miami Unified School District (MUSD) for the Central Heights County Complex must be
extended another 10 years and an APS Landlord/Tenant Rider must be signed. The MUSD Board is
meeting August 8, 2011, and will sign the Lease Amendment to extend the lease and the
APS Landlord/Tenant Rider. The APS Grant Application for the solar energy project is due August 31,
2011.

Evaluation
Gila County has invested a great deal of time and money into the Central Heights County Complex that
was once a school. The MUSD doesn't have a use for the property and the County has a need for the
space. Adding another 10 years to the Ground Lease and Use Agreement will show the MUSD that Gila
County has a plan to maintain the property until at least September 2031. The solar investment that
Gila County is applying for will also be an added benefit to the property.

Conclusion
With the extension of the Lease and the approval of the APS Landlord/Tenant Rider, Gila County can
apply for the APS solar energy grant for this property. The grant application is due August 31, 2011.

Recommendation
Staff of the Public Works Division recommends the approval of Amendment No. 1 to the Ground Lease
and Use Agreement-Central Heights Complex and the APS Landlord/Tenant Rider form for the Solar
Power Energy Grant Application which is due August 31, 2011. 

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Chairman's signature on Amendment No.
1 to the Ground Lease and Use Agreement-Central Heights Complex between Gila County and the
Miami Unified School District to extend the Agreement for an additional 10 years beyond the
original termination date of September 26, 2021, to September 26, 2031, and the APS Landlord/Tenant
Rider form.  (Steve Stratton)

Attachments
Link: MUSD - APS Landlord/Tenant Rider
Link: Amendment No. 1 to Ground Lease and Use Agreement-Central Heights Complex



Link: Original Lease
Link: Dual Representation Form - GC and MUSD

























 
 

DISCLOSURE OF DUAL REPRESENTATION 
 
 
 

In approving the preceding Intergovernmental Agreement between Miami 

Unified School District No. 40, Gila County Attorney Daisy Flores has represented 

Gila County and the Miami Unified School District No. 40. 

 Arizona Ethical Rule 1.7 requires that certain steps be taken before an 

attorney can represent one client that is directly adverse to another client or 

representation of one client may be materially limited by the attorney’s 

responsibilities to another client. 

 In approving the IGA on behalf of Gila County and the Miami Unified School 

District No. 40, Daisy Flores has determined that representation of one client is not 

directly adverse to the other, nor will representation of one client be materially 

limited by her responsibilities to the other.   

However, it is possible in the future that if any dispute arises from this IGA, 

and Gila County and the Miami Unified School District No. 40 are adverse to each 

other, Daisy Flores may have to invoke the requirements of Ethical Rule 1.7.    



 

Disclosure of Dual Representation 
page two 
 
Arizona Ethical Rule 1.7 is as follows:  

Ethical Rule 1.7: CONFLICT OF INTEREST: CURRENT CLIENTS: 
 
(a) Except as provided in paragraph (b), a lawyer shall not represent a client if 
the representation involves a concurrent conflict of interest. A concurrent 
conflict of interest exists if: 

(1) the representation of one client will be directly adverse to another 
client; or 

(2) there is a significant risk that the representation of one or more clients 
will be materially limited by the lawyer's responsibilities to another client. a 
former client or a third person or by a personal interest of the lawyer.  

 
(b) Notwithstanding the existence of a concurrent conflict of interest under 
paragraph (a), a lawyer may represent a client if each affected client gives 
informed consent, confirmed in writing, and: 

(1) the lawyer reasonably believes that the lawyer will be able to provide 
competent and diligent representation to each affected client: 
(2) the representation is not prohibited by law; and: 
(3) the representation does not involve the assertion of a claim by one 
client against another client represented by the lawyer in the same litigation 
or other proceeding before a tribunal. 

 

As a result of Ethical Rule 1.7 the attorney is required to reasonably believe the 

dual representation will not be adversely affected, and each client must consent in 

writing after consultation.  

 Therefore, the undersigned acknowledges this dual representation and 

acknowledges that if the Rule’s conflict of interest occurs, Daisy Flores may have to 

withdraw her representation of one or both clients. 

 
           ______ 
Date    Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 

Gila County Board of Supervisors    
      

           ______ 
Date    Robert Mawson, President 
    Miami Unified School District No. 40 Governing Board 

http://www.law.cornell.edu/ethics/az/code/AZ_CODE.HTM#D-informed_consent#D-informed_consent
http://www.law.cornell.edu/ethics/az/code/AZ_CODE.HTM#D-confirmed_in_writing#D-confirmed_in_writing
http://www.law.cornell.edu/ethics/az/code/AZ_CODE.HTM#D-reasonable_belief#D-reasonable_belief


ARF-718     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  2- H     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 08/15/2011  
Submitted For: Robert Hickman,

Facilities Manager
Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Finance Department

Department: Public Works Division Division: Facilities

Fiscal Year: FY 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

10-4-2011 to 10-3-2012 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name: Steve Stratton 

Information
Request/Subject
Request for Proposals No. 070111-1 for County Facilities Janitorial Service Globe, Arizona

Background Information
For several years Gila County had hired a contractor to handle the evening custodial duties.  In
January 2011 a new contractor was awarded a contract to work for the County. In June 2011, Gila
county exercised its right to cancel the contract and hired temporary custodians to clean the Globe
buildings until a new contract can be put in place.

Evaluation
Using an outside contractor allows greater flexibility to meet the varying demands of the County needs
concerning janitorial services.

Conclusion
The advertisement of RFP No. 070111-1 would result in the possible hiring of a contractor to provide
janitorial services at Globe County facilites.  The advertisement dates of Request for Proposals 070111-1
will be August 17 and 24, 2011.

Recommendation
The Public Works Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the
advertisement of Request for Proposals No. 070111-1 for janitoral services of County facilities in Globe

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of Request for Proposals No. 070111-1
for janitorial services at County facilities located in Globe, Arizona.  (Steve Stratton)

Attachments
Link: Request to Advertise RFP 070111-1
Link: Request for Proposals No. 070111-1 Janitorial Service





 

 
 

 
 
 

GILA COUNTY 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
070111-1 

 
 

JANITORIAL SERVICE  
GLOBE, ARIZONA 

 
 
 
  

BIDDER’S INFORMATION 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

*BOARD OF SUPERVISORS* 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 

Tommie C. Martin, Vice Chairman 
Shirley L. Dawson, Member 

 
 
 

*COUNTY MANAGER* 
Don E. McDaniel Jr. 

 
 

 



 1 

                                                              GILA COUNTY 
NOTICE OF REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 070111-1 

JANITORIAL SERVICE GLOBE, ARIZONA 

 

Notice is hereby given that the Gila County Facilities and Land Management Department is requesting 
proposals from qualified Contractors to provide Janitorial Services for County facilities located in Globe, 
Arizona. 
 
SUBMITTAL DUE DATE:      3:00 PM, Local AZ Time, Wednesday, September 14, 2011 
 

RETURN PROPOSAL TO:      Gila County Procurement         
        1400 East Ash Street 
        Globe, AZ  85501 
 

MANDATORY PRE-BID MEETING:    10:00 AM, Thursday, September 1, 2011,  
      1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ          (2nd Floor Reception Area) 

 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that sealed competitive Proposals for the material or services as specified will 
be received by the Gila County Procurement Department, until the time and date cited. 
 
Interested Bidders may obtain a copy of this solicitation by calling Gila County Procurement at 928-402-
8612.  Bidders are strongly encouraged to carefully read the entire Request for Proposal. 
 
Questions regarding the technical aspects of this Request for Proposals shall be directed to:  Robert 
Hickman, Facilities Manager, PH. 928-402-8591.  Questions regarding the general terms and conditions of 
this Request for Proposals should be directed to, Valrie Bejarano, 928-402-8612 
 
Proposals received by the correct time and date will be publicly opened and recorded thereafter in the 
Board of Supervisors Conference Room, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ, or other site, which may be 
designated.  Any proposals received later than the date and time specified above will be returned 
unopened.  Late proposals shall not be considered.   
 
The Board of Supervisors reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, or to accept any proposal, or to 
waive any informality in any proposal, or to withhold the award if deemed in the best interest of Gila 
County.  All procurement activities conducted by Gila County are in conformance with the rules and 
regulations of the Gila County Procurement Code.  A copy of the Code is available for review in the Deputy 
Clerk of the Board’s office, Globe, AZ. 
 
Arizona Silver Belt advertisement dates:   August 17 and 24, 2011 

 
 
Signed:  _______________________________________________  Date:  ______________ 
  Bryan B. Chambers, Chief Deputy County Attorney 
                for Daisy Flores, County Attorney 
 

Signed:  _______________________________________________  Date:  ______________  
                Michael A. Pastor, Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
 



 2 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

     CONTENT           PAGE 
 

 

Solicitation Notice ................................................................................................................... 1 

Scope of Services ............................................................................................................... 3-10 

Exhibit “A”; Instructions to Bidders................................................................................... 11-13 

 Preparation of Sealed Bid ......................................................................................................... 11 
 Amendments ............................................................................................................................. 11 
 Inquires ..................................................................................................................................... 12 
 Late Proposals ........................................................................................................................... 12 
 Submittal Bid Format ................................................................................................................ 12 

General Terms and Conditions .......................................................................................... 14-17 

 Acceptance Contract/Agreement ............................................................................................. 14 
 Protests ..................................................................................................................................... 14 
 Laws & Ordinances.................................................................................................................... 15 

Exhibit “B”; Contract Award Agreement ........................................................................... 15-17 

 Overcharges by Antitrust Violations ......................................................................................... 15 
 Authority to Contract ................................................................................................................ 15 
 Contract Amendments .............................................................................................................. 15 
 Contract Default ........................................................................................................................ 16 
 Right of Assurance .................................................................................................................... 16 

Costs & Payment ....................................................................................................................... 16 
 Co-op Intergovernmental Purchasing Agreement .................................................................... 16 
 Cancellation of County Contracts ............................................................................................. 17 
 Termination of Contract ........................................................................................................... 17 

 Exhibit “C”; Minimum Specifications/Information ............................................................. 18-20 

 Section 1.0; General Purpose .................................................................................................... 18 
 Section 2.0; Bid Pricing & Term ................................................................................................ 18 
 Section 3.0; Order & Delivery ................................................................................................... 19 
 Section 4.0; Negotiations  ......................................................................................................... 19 

Insurance Provisions ........................................................................................................ 21-23 

Qualification and Certification Forms ............................................................................... 24-25 

Price Sheet ........................................................................................................................... 26 

Reference List ....................................................................................................................... 27 

No Collusion Form ................................................................................................................. 28 

Subcontracting ...................................................................................................................... 29 

Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance .................................................................................. 30 

Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment ................................................................................. 31 

Offer Page ....................................................................................................................... 32-33 

Background Authorization ..................................................................................................... 34 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 3 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 070111-1   

 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

It is the intention of Gila County to award a contract to a qualified Contractor for janitorial services at 
several of its facilities.  The Contractor shall furnish all necessary labor, supervision, equipment, 
transportation and all effort necessary to perform the required services at the designated locations. 
 

Building  
Address 

Square 
Footage 

 
Floors 

 
Bathrooms 

Mop  
Closets 

Storage 
 Closets 

 
Gila County Courthouse 
     1400 E. Ash St. 
     Globe, AZ  85501 

 
 

47,076 

 
1st 
2nd 
3rd 

 
8 
7 

10 

 
1 
0 
1 

 
1 
0 
0 

 
Michaelson Building 
     149 S. Broad St. 
     Globe, AZ  85501 

 
 

7,952 

 
1st 
2nd  

 

 
2 
2 

 
1 
1 

 
1 
1 

 
Health & Community Services 
     5515 S. Apache Ave. 
    Globe, AZ  85501 

 
 

27,581 
 

 
 

1 

 
 

6 

 
 

3 

 
 

1 

 
WIC Building 
     5515 S. Apache Ave 
     Globe, AZ  85501 

 
 

1,792 

 
 

1 

 
 

1 

 
 

1 

 
 

0 

 
Public Works Administration 
     745 N. Rose Mofford Way 
     Globe, AZ  85501 

 
 

11,000 
 

 
 

1 

 
 

2 

 
 

1 

 
 

0 

 
Facilities/Sign Shop Building 
     725 N. Rose Mofford Way 
     Globe, AZ  85501      

 
 

2,256 

 
 

1  

 
 

2 

 
 

1 

 
 

0 

 
Roads/Shop Office 
     1100 W. Besich Blvd 
     Globe, AZ  85501 

 
 

1,980 

 
 

1 

 
 

2 

 
 

1 

 
 

0 

 
Guerrero Building 
     1400 E. Ash St. 
     Globe, AZ  85501 

 
 

5,976 

 
 

1 

 
 

2 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 
 
Contract may be awarded to multiple Contractors depending on what is deemed to be in the best interest 
of Gila County. 



 4 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 070111-1   

Scope of Services continued... 

 
SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS 

Building Areas and Janitorial Standards: 

 Sweeping and Dust Moping (Uncarpeted Areas) 
1.  Vestibules, lobbies and entries 
2. Corridors 
3. Stairwells, stars and landings (interior) 
4. Elevators and elevator vestibules 
5. Offices, Courtrooms and Conference rooms 

 
 Sweeping and Dust Mopping Standards 

Sweeping shall leave the surfaces uniformly clean of all surface dirt including corners and 
places inaccessible to the mop.  Surface accumulation of hardened dirt that cannot be 
loosened with the broom shall be loosened sufficiently to permit removal by sweeping or if 
necessary, shall be washed.  It is intended that all dust and surface contamination except 
deeply embedded dirt and stains shall be removed by sweeping or mopping with a treated 
mop.  Dirty mops are not acceptable for use.  
 

 Vacuuming (Carpeted Areas) 
1.  Lobbies and entries (interior) 
2. Stairwells, stairs and landings (interior) 
3. Corridors 
4. Offices, Courtroom and Conference rooms 

 Dusting and Vacuuming (Low Cleaning-Under 6’) 
1.  All furniture and fixtures (i.e.) file cabinets, tables, etc. 
2. Window sills, ledges, etc. 
3. Vending Machines 
4. Stairwells, stairs, landings and railings (interior) 

 
 Dusting and Vacuuming (High Cleaning-Over 6’) 

1. Door casings 
2. Partitions, wood paneling, etc. 

 
 Dusting and Vacuuming Standards 

Dusting shall be accomplished by means of vacuum cleaners supplemented by chemically 
treated clean cloths.  Oil treatment for cloths will not be permitted.  Surfaces shall be cleaned 
and free from dust after dusting is completed.  Dust shall be removed and not scattered 
around the room.  Low dusting includes all surfaces not over six feet from the floor.  Venetian 
blinds shall be dusted with a treated dust cloth by hand or with a vacuum cleaner attachment 
especially designed for cleaning Venetian blinds.  Office equipment such as typewriters, 
adding machines, calculators and similar instruments shall not be dusted because of 
possibility of damage.  Tops of desks will also be excluded from dusting. 

 
 Trash Removal 

1. Empty all trash containers, replace liners as needed; DO NOT place leaking trash bags on 
carpet. 

2. Dispose of trash in sealed and/or tied plastic bags in outside dumpsters. 
 



 5 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 070111-1   

Scope of Services continued... 

 
 Trash Removal Standards 

All waste baskets shall be emptied and boxes, cans, paper, etc. marked trash which is placed 
near the trash cans for disposal shall be removed in a manner that will not cause dispersion of 
dust.  Trash shall not be allowed to blow around.  Any trash dropped shall be immediately 
retrieved by the custodian or contractor and properly placed in the trash receptacle. 

 
 Washing 

1. Clean and sanitize urinals inside and out 
2. Clean and sanitize commodes inside and out. 
3. Clean mirrors 
4. Clean and sanitize miscellaneous restroom and toilet fixtures. 
5. Clean and sanitize restroom and toilet floors. 
6. Clean and sanitize restroom wash basin wall area and toilet wall area. 
7. Clean and sanitize shower rooms. 
8. Damp wipe all restroom and locker room ledges and sills. 
9. Spot clean walls, doors and trim. 
10. Clean and sanitize water fountains. 
11. Windows inside and outside of building 

 
 Washing Standards 

Washed surfaces shall be clean and free from all dirt, grease and film including embedded dirt 
and grease.  All small and narrow openings shall be cleaned to the same degree as other 
surfaces.  Surfaces shall be dried and left clean. 

 
A.  Washing Glass:  Glass shall be washed by application of glass cleaner, rubbed with a cloth 

and finally polished with a clean soft dry cloth or textile disposable wipers.  Use only soft 
cloths on Plexiglas.  The washing shall not contaminate adjacent non-glass areas.  Glass 
shall be left clean and dry, free from film or streaks and any contamination visible when 
looking through the glass towards natural light source.  Sill and frames shall be damp 
wiped. 

 
B.  Washing Non-Glass:  All surfaces shall be washed with a mild neutral detergent or 

quaternary disinfectant-detergent solution following manufacturer’s dilution ration.  
They shall be left clean without streaks.  Scrub brush or scour pad shall be used where 
necessary to loosen the dirt. 

 
C.  Washing in Restroom, Public and Patient Areas:  Restroom floors, chairs, tables and 

mirrors shall be cleaned as specified with quaternary disinfectant-detergent.  Commodes 
and urinals shall be washed clean with disinfectant-detergent and toilet brush then 
wiped dry with textile disposable wipers or clean cloths. 

 
 Damp Wiping Standards 

Surfaces shall be left clean and free from film or streaks upon completion of damp wiping. 
 

 Disinfecting Standards 
Urinals and commode surfaces shall be disinfected with a concentration of quaternary 
disinfectant-detergent.  It shall be allowed to stand in the fixtures for at least ten minutes.   
 
 



 6 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 070111-1   

Scope of Services continued... 

 
Bowl cleaner shall be used once weekly for lime and iron stain removal except where water 
conditions require more frequent applications.  In these cases, bowl cleaner shall be used 
twice weekly. 

 
 Wet Mopping 

All tile, wooden or hard surface floors. 
 

 Wet Mopping Standards 
After dust mopping, all floors shall be cleaned by wet mopping using quaternary ammonium 
germicide and shall be free from streaks, stains and film from dirt or soap.  There shall be no 
splashes on walls, baseboards, furniture and furnishings.  Wet mopping is also required on all 
stairwells, stars, landings & elevator hard floors. 
 
There shall be no mop strings left on the floor.  Surface should be dry in a reasonable amount 
of time.  Corners and spaces inaccessible to the mop shall be carefully cleaned and dry.  Dirty 
mops are not acceptable for use. 

 
 Polishing 

Clean and polish all brass and stainless steel (i.e. railings, elevators, doorknobs, plumbing 
fixtures, kick plates, etc.). 

 
 Polishing Metal Trim and Plumbing Hardware 

This shall be accomplished with metal polish.  Chromium-plated, stainless steel and brass shall 
be polished with a dry cloth or textile disposable wipers.  All surfaces shall be rubbed to a soft 
gloss with clean cloth or textile disposable wipers. 

 
 Spray Buffing (Hard Surfaced Floors) 

Spray buff all lobbies, corridors, and conference rooms.  Spray buff product to be of the same 
manufacturer as floor finish. 

 
 Spot Cleaning Carpets 

A carpet adequately spot cleaned is free of all stains, deposits, or spills. (Exceptions:  Any 
stain, contractor has made every attempt to remove by industry standards, and such stain has 
become permanent to the surface).  Care will be taken to use a product or cleaning that will 
not harm or discolor the carpet fibers or backing. 

 

Work Schedule 

Cleaning services shall be provided, five (5) nights a week (excluding those weeks with an official 
holiday), Monday through Friday unless otherwise noted on Bid Reply Section for specific building.  
Cleaning services will not be required on days in which a declared State of Emergency has been made 
by the Governor or in the event of any other unforeseen type of emergency where County offices are 
closed.  There are 10 County holidays, and services will not be provided on these days unless the 
County agency makes such request and pays for these additional services. 
 
    Daily Schedule 

1.  Empty all wastebaskets; transport to specified area for removal.  Replace liners as 
needed. 
 



 7 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 070111-1   

Scope of Services continued... 

 
2. Clean all entryways and walkways six feet outside of entry. 
3. Sweep or dusts mop all entrances, entryways, and lobbies. 
4. Spot clean all glass and interior partitions. 
5. Clean all restrooms. 

a. Clean and disinfect all drinking fountains. 
b. Clean and disinfect all sinks, toilets, and urinals. 
c. Remove all finger marks from walls, stalls, doors, and light switches. 
d. Damp wipe all ledges and sills. 
e. Clean all mirrors and ledges of mirrors. 
f. Sweep and mop all uncarpeted floors (Including Health Department Exam Rooms) 

g. Replenish all restroom with paper towels, tissue, and soap. 
h. Empty and remove trash. 

6. Clean elevators, door tracks, and lobbies. 
7. Remove trash from all buildings to the Shop garbage bin. 
8. Clean all kitchens by sweeping, mopping floors and removing trash only. 
9. Sweep and dust stairwells, stairs, and landings (interior).   Wet mop, as needed. 
10. Vacuum all courtrooms and offices with vacuum cleaner. 
 

    Two Times Weekly – (Minimum): 
1.  Vacuum all carpeted floors (including under desks) with a vacuum cleaner. 
2. Clean stairwells, steps and tread in the Courthouse using appropriate cleaning machine.  

Wipe down hand rails. 
 

    Two Times Weekly – (Minimum): 
1. Dust furniture in lobby areas (top, side, and lower area), fixtures, ledges, and window sills 

using a treated dust cloth or feather duster. 
2. Remove all finger marks from furniture, fixtures, ledges and sills. 
3. Damp mop all quarry and tile floors. 

 
    Monthly 

1. Wash baseboards, doors and door handles in all buildings. 
2. Clean light switches. 
 

    Semi-Annually 
1. Wash windows inside and out of each building. 
2. Clean window blinds. 

 

Billable Work 

   Carpet Cleaning Per County Request 
 Carpet cleaning shall be performed as directed by the County on an as need basis.  Carpet 

cleaning shall consist of shampooing or steam cleaning (after a thorough vacuuming). 
 

Stripping and Waxing of Floors per County Request 
 Stripping and waxing of floors shall be performed as directed by the County on an as need 

basis.  All tile floors shall be stripped, all dirt and old wax removed,   doors and baseboards 
cleaned, and three (3) coats of non-slip floor finish added. 

 

 



 8 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 070111-1   

Scope of Services continued... 

 
  Custodial Personnel / Subcontractors 

Contractor must provide trained qualified personnel to perform the duties required under this 
contract.  A list of persons, and their phone numbers, performing the work shall be provided by the 
Contractor to the County should the need arise in case of an emergency. 
 
All individuals working for the awarded Contractor must pass a background check prior to working 
on Gila County property under this project.  Investigation will include criminal record, driving 
record, personal references, past employment/volunteer status, educational/professional status.  
All questionable findings of background checks will be discussed with special panel of Gila County 
Management and Law Enforcement.  (page 34) 
 
The Contractor shall provide a job supervisor for this contract who shall be responsible to the 
County for the competent performance of all custodial work. The supervisor shall make sufficient 
daily routine inspections to insure work is performed as specified.  In addition, Contractor 
supervisor shall direct the cleaning activities of the custodial staff. 

 

Contractor supervisor shall inspect the building prior to employees leaving and any deficiencies will 
be corrected.   
 
The Contractor shall provide to the County the name and phone number of the supervisor and 
alternate(s) who shall act for the Contractor when the supervisor is absent.  This information shall 
be designated in writing to the Gila County Facilities and Land Management Manager prior to 
contract start date. 

 
 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

Temporary Work Changes   

Locations and janitorial service at the locations may change from time to time pending on the needs 
of the County.  It is possible during the period of this Contract that new locations may be added and 
some locations removed from the schedule.  These location changes shall be processed as an 
amendment to the contract requiring Board approval and shall result in no penalties to the County. 
 
The County shall have the right to require Contractor’s personnel to perform other cleaning duties 
on the premises as the County shall deem desirable or necessary and Contractor shall promptly 
comply with such requirements, provided however, that only such of Contractor’s personnel who 
are performing cleaning services of a routine cleaning nature shall be utilized and provided further 
that the Contractor shall not be required to perform the effected routine cleaning services during 
such times.  No change in payment rate for routine work will be made due to temporary work 
changes. 
 

Contract Performance 

If at any time during the term of the contract the performance becomes unsatisfactory to the 
County, the Contractor will be directed to provide adequate personnel or otherwise correct the 
unsatisfactory performance.  Any cost to the County directly related to correction of unsatisfactory 
performance will be deducted from Contractor’s billing.  Contractor shall do all the work provided in 
the specifications and shall do additional extra and incidental tasks as may be considered necessary 
from time to time to complete the work in a satisfactory manner. 



 9 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 070111-1   

Scope of Services continued... 

 
County Furnished Supplies 

Gila County reserves the right to control all janitorial products and chemicals that will be used in 
each designated building.  Copies of Material Safety Data Sheets on each chemical shall be kept on 
file.    
The County is responsible for ordering Janitorial Supplies and will control inventory of the paper 
products, chemicals and cleaning products and shall be responsible for storage of these products 
and chemicals.  

 

Contractor Equipment 

Contractor shall provide their own equipment to perform the scope of work under this contract.   
 

Contractor’s equipment must be in good operating condition at all times and must meet OSHA 

standards.  The appearance, cleanliness, and suitability for the job of all equipment must be 

acceptable to the County at all times. 

 

Storage Space 

Contractor shall store its supplies and equipment in storage areas and custodial closets designated 
by the County.  Contractor agrees to keep these areas neat and clean at all times in accordance with 
all applicable fire regulations.  Basins, sinks and drains will be wiped clean daily and sanitized at 
least weekly.   

 

Safety 

For all operations requiring the placing and movement of the Contractor’s equipment, Contractor 
shall observe and exercise, and compel his employees to observe and exercise, all necessary caution 
and discretion so as to avoid injury to persons, damage to property of any and all kinds, and 
annoyance to or undue interference with the movement of the public and County personnel. 
 
All ladders, scaffolding, or other devices used to reach the surface of objects not otherwise 
accessible for the required cleaning operations, shall be of sound construction, firm and stable, and 
shall be maintained in good condition.  All such equipment shall be moved onto the areas where 
they are required, placed, shifted where necessary, and removed from the areas in such manner as 
to provide maximum safety to persons and property in and around areas of cleaning operations. 

 

ADOSH Guidelines 

Contractor will be familiar with and operate within guidelines set forth by the Arizona Division of 
Occupational Safety and Health which affects custodial and housekeeping operations.  Contractor 
will insure that all employees assigned to this contract are knowledgeable of the current ADOSH 
guidelines affecting custodial and housekeeping operations. 

 

 

 

 

 



 10 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 070111-1   

Scope of Services continued... 

 

INFORMATION REQUEST 

Requests for additional information relating the Scope of Services should be directed to Robert Hickman, 
(928)402-8591, rhickman@co.gila.az.us. 

 
Requests for additional information relating to the instruction or general conditions of this bid should be 
directed to Valrie Bejarano (928)402-8612, vbejarano@co.gila.az.us.  

 

 

MANDATORY PRE-BID MEETING 

There will be a mandatory pre-bid meeting held Thursday, September 1, 2011, 10:00 AM.  The meeting 

will begin at the Globe Courthouse, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ, 2nd floor, and continue to the locations on 

page 3 of RFP packet. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:rhickman@co.gila.az.us
mailto:vbejarano@co.gila.az.us


 11 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO.  070111-1 

 
INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 

 
IMPORTANT:  EXHIBIT “A”, INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS AND EXHIBIT “B”, BIDDERS AWARD 
AGREEMENT ARE BASIC CONTENT TO GILA COUNTY BID PACKAGES.  INDIVIDUAL BIDS MAY REQUIRE 
DIFFERENT LANGUAGE FOR INSTRUCTIONS AND AWARD AGREEMENTS.  WHERE APPLICABLE, SUCH 
CHANGES WILL APPEAR IN EXHIBIT “C”, MINIMUM PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS AND INFORMATION AND 
TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER THE LANGUAGE APPEARING IN EXHIBITS “A” & “B”. 
 
EXHIBIT “A” INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 

Preparation of Sealed Proposal 

A. Sealed Proposals will be received by the Gila County Public Works Division, from individuals and 
Contractors to deliver the product(s), goods and services contained to establish a contract for 
specified locations within Gila County.  The County seeks sealed Proposals only from qualified, 
experienced Contractors able to provide services which are, in all respects, responsive to the 
specifications.  All Proposals shall be on the forms provided in this Request for Sealed Proposal 
package.  It is permissible to copy these forms if required but copies must have original signatures. 
 

B. Before submitting its Proposal and Qualification Form each Contractor shall familiarize itself with the 
Scope of Work, laws, regulations and other factors affecting performance of work.  It shall carefully 
correlate its observations with requirements of the Contract and otherwise satisfy itself of the 
expense and difficulties attending the performance of the work.  The submission of a Proposal will 
constitute a representation of compliance by the Contractor.  There will be no subsequent financial 
adjustment, other than that provided for by the Contract, for lack of such familiarization. 

 
C. Contractors must complete the Proposal and Qualifications Forms provided in this Request for 

Proposal package in full, original signature in ink, by the person(s) authorized to sign the Proposal and 
to be submitted at the time of bid, and made a part of this contract.  The County will use the Proposal 
and Qualifications Form in evaluating the capacity of Contractor(s) to perform the Scope of Services as 
set forth in the Contract.  Failure of any Contractor to complete and submit the Price Sheet and 
Signature/Offer Page at time and place of opening shall be grounds for automatic disqualification of 
the Contractor(s) from further consideration. 

 
D. The names of all persons authorized to sign the Proposal must also be legibly printed below the 

signature. Evidence of the authority of the person signing shall be furnished. 
 
E. The full name of each person or company interested in the Request for Proposal shall be listed on the 

Proposal. 
 
F. No alterations in Proposals, or in the printed forms therefore, by erasures, interpolations, or 

otherwise will be acceptable unless each such alteration is signed or initialed by the Contractor; if 
initialed, the County may require the Contractor to identify any alteration so initialed. 

 

Amendments 

Any addendum issued as a result of any change in this Request for Sealed Proposal must be acknowledged 
by all Contractors in the following manner: 
 

1. Completion of the Bidder Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment form, page 30. 
2. Copies of all addenda must be attached to the submittal. 



 12 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 070111-1   

Instructions to Bidders continued… 

 
Failure to indicate receipt of addenda in the above manner may result in a Proposal being rejected as non-
responsive. 
 

Inquires 

Any questions related to this Request for Proposal must be directed to those whose names appear on the 
Notice.  The Gila County Supervisors may require all questions be submitted in writing.  Any 
correspondence related to a Request for Proposals should refer to the appropriate Request for Proposals 
number, page, and paragraph number.  However, the Contractor(s) must not place the Request for 
Proposal number on the outside of an envelope containing questions since such an envelope may be 
identified as a sealed Proposal and may not be opened until after the official Request for Proposal due 
date and time.  Questions received after 5:00 pm, September 6, 2011 will not be answered.   Only 
questions answered by formal written addenda will be binding.  Oral and other interpretations or 
clarifications will be without legal effect. 
 

A. Proposal results ARE NOT provided in response to telephone or written inquires.  A tabulation of 
proposals received is on file in the Gila County Board of Supervisors and Public Works offices and 
available for review after contract award. 

 

Late Proposals 

Any proposal received later than the date and time specified on Notice for Sealed Proposal will be 
returned unopened.  Late Proposals shall not be considered.  Any Contractor submitting a late Proposal 
shall be so notified. 
 

Submittal Proposal Format: 

It is requested that One (1) Original and Two (2) copies ( 3 TOTAL) with original signatures on all three 
(3) of the Proposal and Qualification Forms, Price Sheet, and Offer Page shall be submitted on the forms 
and in the format specified in the Request for Proposal.  The County will not be liable for any cost 
incident to the preparation of Proposal, materials, reproductions, presentations, copy-right infringements, 
etc.  It is permissible to copy these forms if required.  Facsimiles or mailgrams shall not be considered.  
Failure to include all required documents, all with original signatures, may invalidate the bid. 

 
1. By signature in the offer section of the Offer and Acceptance page, Contractor certifies: 
 

A. The submission of the proposal did not involve collusion or other anti-competitive practices. 
B. The Contractor has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at any time hereafter, any 

economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip, favor, or 
service to a public servant in connection with the submitted offer. 

C. In order to conserve resources, reduce procurement costs, improve timely acquisition and 
cost of supplies and to improve efficiency and economy of procurement, any political 
subdivision, Stated, County, City, Town, etc., of the State of Arizona, will be allowed by the 
Contractor(s) awarded the contract to provide the same services, at the same prices stated in 
the Proposal.  Delivery charges may differentiate depending on geographical location. 

 
 
 
 



 13 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 070111-1   

Instructions to Submitters continued… 

 
2. Proposals submitted early may be modified or withdrawn by notice to the party receiving proposals 

at the place and prior to the time designated for receipts of Proposals. 
 
3. The County is not responsible for any Contractor’s errors or omissions.  Negligence in preparing an 

offer confers no right to the Contractor unless the Contractor discovers and corrects such errors 
prior to the Proposal deadline. 

 

 

The Proposal shall be submitted in a sealed envelope, a minimum of Three (3) copies with original 
signatures shall be provided by the Bidder.  The words “SEALED PROPOSAL” with Proposal Title 
“JANITORIAL SERVICE”, Bid No., “070111-1”, Date “SEPTEMBER 14 2011”, and time “3:00 PM” of 
Proposal opening shall be written on the envelope.  The Bidder(s) shall assume full responsibility for 
timely delivery at the location designated in the Notice. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 14 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO.  070111-1 

 
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
Award of Contract   

1. The Gila County Board of Supervisors reserves the right to award any Proposal by individual line 
item, by group of line items or as total, or any part thereof, whichever is deemed to be in the best 
interest, most advantageous of the County of Gila. 

 
a.   Notwithstanding any or other provisions of the RFP, the County reserves the right to:  

1.   Waive any immaterial defects or informalities; or 
2.   Reject any or all Proposals; or portions thereof; or 
3.   Reissue a Request for Proposal. 

 
2. It is the responsibility of the Gila County Board of Supervisors to let the County contracts to the 

lowest responsive and responsible Contractor(s).  To ensure that all Contractors are experienced, 
reasonably equipped and adequately financed to meet their contractual obligations, a 
determination of responsibility shall be made by the Gila County Board of Supervisors prior to 
contract award. 

 
3. Further, the County reserves the right to reject the Proposal of any Contractor(s) who has 

previously failed to perform adequately after having once been awarded a prior Proposal for 
furnishing and installing materials similar in nature. 

 
4. All submitted forms provided in this Request for Proposal will be reviewed by the Gila County 

attorney and Gila County Board of Supervisors. 
 

5. Those Contractor(s) who, in the opinion of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, are best qualified 
and whose Proposals are most advantageous of the County may be invited to appear before the 
Board for an oral review. 

 
6. The apparent successful Contractor shall sign and file with the County, within ten (10) days after 

Notice of Intent to Award, all documents necessary to successfully execute the contract. 
 

Protests 

Only other Contractors who have submitted a bid proposal have the right to protest.  A protest of an 
award must be filed within ten (10) days after the award by the Board of Supervisors.  A protest must be 
in writing and must include the following: 
 

A. Name, address and telephone number of the protester. 
B. Signature of the protester or its representative, and evidence of authority to sign. 
C. Identification of the contract and the solicitation or contract number. 
D. Detailed statement of the legal and factual grounds of protest including copies of relevant 

documents. 
E. The form of relief requested. 

 
All protests shall be sent to the attention of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, 1400 East Ash Street, 
Globe, Arizona  85501. 
 

 



 15 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 070111-1   

General Terms & Conditions continued… 

 
Laws and Ordinances 

This agreement shall be enforced under the laws of the State of Arizona and Gila County.  Contractor shall 
maintain in current status all Federal, State and Local licenses and permits required for the operation of 
the business conducted by the Contractor.  The Contractor shall comply with the applicable provisions of 
the Americans with Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213) and applicable federal 
regulations under the act. 
 
 
EXHIBIT “B” BIDDER AWARD AGREEMENT 

This exhibit shall serve as the contract agreement to any Contractor, their agents, subcontractors and/or 
representatives, awarded this or any portion of this contract by the County, by submitting Proposals to 
this or any other solicitation requiring sealed Proposals, does hereby agree to the following provisions.  
Proof of acceptance of these provisions will be the Contractor’s signature(s) appearing on page 31, 
BIDDERS OFFER PAGE, Exhibit “D” Bidders Qualification and Certification forms(s) pages 22-23. 

 

Overcharges by Antitrust Violations 

The County maintains that, in actual practice, overcharges resulting from antitrust violations are borne by 
the purchaser.  Therefore, to the extent permitted by law, the Contractor hereby assigns to the County 
any and all claims for such overcharges as to the goods or services used to fulfill the contract. 
 

Authority to Contract 

This contract is based upon the Request for Proposal, Attached Exhibits and Forms, issued by the County 
and the offer submitted by the Contractor in response to the RFP.  The offer shall substantially conform to 
the terms, conditions, specifications and other requirements set forth within the text of the RFP and 
attached exhibits.  All other conditions, specifications and other requirements set forth within the text of 
the RFP, attached exhibits and forms are incorporated by this reference into this contract.  The county 
reserves the right to clarify any contractual terms with the concurrence of the Contractor; however, any 
substantial non-conformity in the offer, as determined by the County Attorney, shall be deemed non-
responsive and the offer rejected.  The contract and incorporated RFP with attached exhibits and forms 
shall contain the entire agreement between Gila County and the Contractor relating to these 
requirements and shall prevail over any and all previous agreements, contracts, proposals, negotiations, 
purchase orders, or master agreement in any form.  The contract activity is issued under the authority of 
the Gila County Manager, after the Gila County Board of Supervisors approves the award.  No alteration 
of any portion of the contract, any items or services awarded, or any other agreement that is based upon 
this contract may be made without express written approval of the Gila County Board of Supervisors in 
the form of an official contract amendment.  Any attempt to alter any documents on the part of the 
Contractor or any agency is a violation of the County Procurement Code.  Any such action is subject to the 
legal and contractual remedies available to the County inclusive, but not limited to, contract cancellation, 
suspension and/or debarment of the Contractor. 

 

Contract Amendments 

The contract shall be modified only by a written contract amendment signed by the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors and persons duly authorized to enter into contracts on behalf of the Contractor. 

 
 



 16 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 070111-1   

General Terms & Conditions continued… 

 

Contract Default 

A. The County, by written notice of default to the Contractor, may terminate the whole or any part 
of this contract in any one of the following circumstances: 

 
1. If  the Contractor fails to make delivery of the supplies or to perform the services within the 

times specified; or 
2. If the Contractor fails to perform any of the other provisions of this contract; and fails to 

remedy the situation within a period of ten (10) days after receipt of notice. 
 
B. In the event the County terminates this contract in whole or part, the County may procure 

supplies or services similar to those terminated, and the Contractor shall be liable to the County 
for any excess costs for such similar supplies or services. 

 

Right to Assurance 

Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question the other party’s intent to 
perform, the other party may demand that the other party give a written assurance of this intent to 
perform.  In the event that a demand is made and no written assurance is given within five (5) days, the 
demanding party may treat this failure as an anticipatory repudiation of this contract. 
 

Costs and Payments 

Payment:  Payments shall comply with the requirements of A.R.S. Title 35 and 41, Net 30 days.  Upon 
receipt and acceptance of goods and services, the Contractor shall submit a complete and accurate 
invoice for payment from the County within thirty (30) days. 
 
Payment of Taxes:  The Contractor shall be responsible for paying all applicable taxes. 
 
Tax Indemnification:  Contractor and all subcontractors shall pay all Federal, state and local taxes 
applicable to its operation and any persons employed by the Contractor.  Contractor shall, and require all 
subcontractors to hold the County harmless from any responsibility for taxes, damages and interest, if 
applicable, contributions required under Federal, and/or state and local laws and regulations any other 
costs including transaction privilege taxes, unemployment compensation insurance, Social Security and 
Worker’s Compensation. 
 
IRS W9 Form:  In order to receive payment the Contractor shall have a current IRS W9 Form on file with 
the County unless not required by law. 
 
Note:  If County receives a Preliminary Lien Notice from a subcontractor the Contractor will provide Lien 
Waivers prior to Contractor receiving payment. 
 

 Co-op Use of Contract – Intergovernmental Purchasing 

Gila County has entered into an active purchasing agreement with other political subdivisions, cities, and 
towns of the State of Arizona in order to conserve resources, reduce procurement costs and improve 
timely acquisition and cost of supplies, equipment and services.  The Contractor to whom this contract is 
awarded may be requested by other parties of said interactive purchasing agreements to extend to those 
parties the right to purchase supplies, equipment and services provided by the Contractor under this 
contract, pursuant to the terms and conditions stated herein.  Any such usage by other entities must be in 
accord with the rules and regulations of the respective entity and the approval of the Contractor. 



 17 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 070111-1   

General Terms & Conditions continued… 

 

Cancellation of County Contracts 

This contract is subject to the cancellation provisions of A.R.S. §38-511. 
 

Termination of Contract 

The County, with or without cause, may terminate this contract at any time by mutual written consent, or 
by giving thirty (30) days written notice to you.  The County at its convenience, by written notice, may 
terminate this contract, in whole or in part.  If this contract is terminated, the County shall be liable only 
for payment under the payment provisions of this contract for the services rendered and accepted 
material received by the County before the effective date of termination. 
 
The County reserves the right to cancel the whole or any part of this contract due to failure of the 
Contractor to carry out any term, promise, or condition of the contract.  The County will issue a written 
ten (10) day notice of default to Contractor for acting or failing to act as in any of the following: 
 

1. In the opinion of the County, the Contractor fails to perform adequately the stipulations, 
conditions or services/specifications required in the contract. 

2. In the opinion of the County, the Contractor attempts to impose on the County material 
products, or workmanship, which is of unacceptable quality.  

3. Contractor fails to furnish the required service and/or product within the time stipulated in the 
contract. 

4. In the opinion of the County, the Contractor fails to make progress in the performance of the 
requirements of the contract and/or give the County a positive indication that Contractor will 
not or cannot perform to the requirements of the contract. 

 
Each payment obligation of the County created hereby is conditioned upon the availability of County, 
State and Federal funds, which are appropriated or allocated for the payment of such an obligation.   
 
If funds are not allocated by the County and available for the continuance of service herein contemplated, 
the contract period for the service may be terminated by the County at the end of the period for which 
funds are available.  The County shall notify the Contractor at the earliest possible time which service may 
be affected by a shortage of funds.  No penalty shall accrue to the County in the event this provision is 
exercised, and the County shall not be obligated or liable for any future payments due or for any damages 
as a result of termination under this paragraph. 
 
 
General 
After receipt of all proposals, each submittal shall be screened to determine if any shall be deemed non-
responsive.  Unsigned proposals, unacknowledged Addenda, incomplete proposals, non-conformance 
with mandatory requirements, etc., may result in the determination of non-responsive. 
 
Subsequent to the initial review, all remaining proposals shall be reviewed by the Gila County Public 
Works Fiscal Services Manager to evaluate the information submitted, perform tests when necessary 
and make comparisons in order to approve or reject the Request.  If rejected, the purchasing 
department shall give written notice to the Bidder submitting this request. 

 
 
 



 18 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO.  070111-1 

 
MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS 

 
EXHIBIT “C” MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS – PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS 

Purpose 

It is the intent of this Invitation for Proposals to enter into a contract with a qualified Contractor to 
provide janitorial services for Gila County, Globe, Arizona.  
 

SECTION 1.0 

General Purpose 

1.1 All product specifications are minimum.   
 

1.2 Contractor should have adequate manufacturing/stocking facilities to serve the needs of Gila 
County. 

 
1.3 All Proposals must represent the entire package.  Partial awards will not be made unless 

otherwise stated in the Proposal specifications. 
 

1.4 The parties specifically understand and agree that the quantities used for bidding purposes are 
estimates of County needs and in no event shall the County be obligated to purchase the exact 
quantities of any item set forth in the Proposal.  The County does not guarantee any maximum 
or minimum amounts of purchase. 
 

1.5 Contractor shall review its Proposal submission to assure the following requirements are met. 
1.5.1 One (1) original and two (2) copies, total of three (3), all with original signatures, 

shall be submitted at time of bid opening. 
1.5.2 Qualification and Certification Forms  
1.5.3 Price Sheet  
1.5.4 References List  
1.5.5 No Collusion Certification  
1.5.6 Intentions Concerning Subcontracting  
1.5.7 Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance  
1.5.8 Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment   
1.5.9 Offer Page   
1.5.10 Gila County Human Resources Department Background Authorizaiton 

 

SECTION 2.0 

Proposal Pricing & Term 

2.1 Prices shall be in effect for the duration of the contract period.  Contractor shall incorporate all 
profit and discount into their price.  The exception will be any price reduction, which will be 
applied to the contract immediately upon the Contractor’s or Gila County’s discovery of any such 
price reduction. 

 
2.2 The contract shall commence upon award and shall remain in effect for a period of twelve (12) 

months unless terminated, cancelled or extended as otherwise provided herein.  The Contractor 
agrees that Gila County shall have the right, at its sole option, to renew the contract for two (2)  

 



 19 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 070111-1   

Minimum Specifications continued… 

 
 additional one year periods.  In the event the County exercises such a right, all terms, conditions 

and provisions of the original contract shall remain the same and apply during the renewal period.  
 
2.3 Profit costs may be negotiated should the Contractor provide information indicating the necessity 

for such price increases and must meet the Board of Supervisor’s approval by an amendment to 
the contract prior to any such extension.  

 

SECTION 3.0 

Ordering and Delivery: 

3.1 ORDERING:  Gila County does not warrant the order of any equipment or services prior to actual 
need.  Gila County’s personnel may re-order equipment or services as it becomes necessary or 
based on the required needs within the County during the term of this contract. 

 
3.2 PRODUCT DELIVERY:  Gila County Facilities and Land Management Office.  The Board of 

Supervisors may designate other or alternate delivery sites at any time during the term of the 
contract.  These needs may be based on, but not limited to, seasonal, emergency, historical usage 
data. 

 

SECTION 4.0 

4.1 Evaluation of Proposal and Negotiations 
The Director shall appoint a selection committee to evaluate the proposals and make a 
recommendation based on the criteria set forth in the Invitation for Proposals.  The Board of 
Supervisors shall not act in capacity of the selection committee.  Proposals shall be evaluated on 
the factors set forth in the Invitation for Proposals. 

 
For the purpose of conducting Negotiations, the County shall determine what Proposals are 
susceptible for being selected for award.  A determination that a Proposal is unacceptable shall be 
in writing, state the basis of the determination and be retained in the County files.  If it is 
determined a Proposal is not reasonably susceptible of being selected for Award, the Contractor 
shall be notified and shall not be afforded an opportunity to modify its Proposal 

 
4.2 Negotiations with Individual Contractors 

 Gila County may establish procedures and schedules for conducting Negotiations.  Disclosure 
of a Contractors Price or any information derived from competing Proposal Prices or any 
information derived from competing Proposals is prohibited.   

 

a.    Any Response to a request for Clarification of a Proposal shall be in writing.   
b.    Gila County shall keep a record of all Negotiations. 

 
 For the purposes of conducting Negotiations with Contractors, Gila County may use any of the 

following methods that, in their judgment, best meets the unique requirements. 
 

a.    Concurrent Negotiations:  Negotiations may be conducted concurrently with 
Responsible Contractors for the purpose of determining source selection and/or 
Contract Award.  

 
 



 20 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 070111-1   

Minimum Specifications continued… 

 
b.    Exclusive Negotiations:  A determination may be made by the Director to enter into 

exclusive Negotiations with the Responsible Contractor whose Proposal is determined 
in the selection process to be most Advantageous to the County. 

 
 Exclusive Negotiations may be conducted subsequent to concurrent Negotiations or may be 

conducted without requiring previous concurrent Negotiations.  
 

a. A determination to conduct exclusive Negotiations shall not constitute a Contract 
Award nor shall it confer any property rights to the successful Contractor.   

b. If exclusive Negotiations are conducted and an agreement is not reached, the County 
may enter into exclusive Negotiations with the next highest rank Contractor without the 
need to repeat the formal Solicitation process. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 21 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO.  070111-1 

 
INSURANCE PROVISIONS 

 

Indemnification Clause 

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the County of Gila and its officers, officials, 
agents, and employees (hereinafter referred to as “Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, 
actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses (including court costs, attorneys’ fees, and costs of claim 
processing, investigation and litigation) (hereinafter referred to as “Claims”) for bodily injury or personal 
injury (including death), or loss or damage to tangible or intangible property caused, or alleged to be 
caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or willful acts or omissions of Contractor or any of its owners, 
officers, directors, agents, employees or subcontractors.  This indemnity includes any claim or amount 
arising out of or recovered under the Workers’ Compensation Law or arising out of the failure of such 
contractor to conform to any federal, state or local law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court 
decree.  It is the specific intention of the parties that the Indemnitee shall, in all instances, except for 
Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the Indemnitee, be indemnified by 
Contractor from and against any and all claims.  It is agreed that Contractor will be responsible for primary 
loss investigation, defense and judgment costs where this indemnification is applicable.  In consideration 
of the award of this contract, the Contractor agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against the County, 
its officers, officials, agents and employees for losses arising from the work performed by the Contractor 
for the County. 

 

Insurance Requirements 

Contractor and subcontractors shall procure and maintain until all of their obligations have been 
discharged, including any warranty periods under this Contract are satisfied, insurance against claims for 
injury to persons or damage to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of 
the work hereunder by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors.   
 
The insurance requirements herein are minimum requirements for this Contract and in no way limit the 
indemnity covenants contained in this Contract.  The County in no way warrants that the minimum limits 
contained herein are sufficient to protect the Contractor from liabilities that might arise out of the 
performance of the work under this contract by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or 
subcontractors and Contractor is free to purchase additional insurance as may be determined necessary.  
 
A. MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMITS OF INSURANCE:  Contractor shall provide coverage with limits of 

liability not less than those stated below. 
 
 1. Commercial General Liability – Occurrence Form 

Policy shall include bodily injury, property damage and broad form contractual liability coverage. 

 General Aggregate $2,000,000 

 Products – Completed Operations Aggregate $1,000,000 

 Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000 

 Each Occurrence $1,000,000 
a. Policy shall be endorsed to include master key coverage. 
b. The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured language: "The 

County of Gila shall be named as an additional insured with respect to liability arising 
out of the activities performed by, or on behalf of the Contractor". 

c. Policy shall be endorsed to include coverage for "care-custody-control". 
 
 



 22 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 070111-1   

Insurance Provisions continued… 

 
2. Automobile Liability 

  Bodily Injury and Property Damage for any owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles used in the 
performance of this Contract. 

  Combined Single Limit (CSL) $1,000,000 
a. The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured language: "The 

County of Gila shall be named as an additional insured with respect to liability arising 
out of the activities performed by, or on behalf of the Contractor, including automobiles 
owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the Contractor". 

 
3. Worker's Compensation and Employers' Liability 

 Workers' Compensation Statutory 
 Employers' Liability  

 Each Accident $100,000 
 Disease – Each Employee $100,000 
 Disease – Policy Limit $500,000 
a. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the County of Gila. 

 
4. Fidelity Bond or Crime Insurance 

 Bond or Policy Limit $___________ 
a. The bond or policy shall be issued with limits of 50% of the contract value or $50,000 - 

whichever amount is greater. 
b. The bond or policy shall include coverage for all directors, officers, agents and employees 

of the Contractor. 
c. The bond or policy shall include coverage for third party fidelity. 
d. The bond or policy shall include coverage for extended theft and mysterious 

disappearance. 
e. The bond or policy shall not contain a condition requiring an arrest and conviction. 

 
B. ADDITIONAL INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  The policies shall include, or be endorsed to include, 

the following provisions: 
1. On insurance policies where the County of Gila is named as an additional insured, the County of 

Gila shall be an additional insured to the full limits of liability purchased by the Contractor even 
if those limits of liability are in excess of those required by this Contract. 

2. The Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance and non-contributory with 
respect to all other available sources. 

3. Coverage provided by the Contractor shall not be limited to the liability assumed under the 
indemnification provisions of this Contract. 
 

C. NOTICE OF CANCELLATION:  Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of this 
Contract shall provide the required coverage and shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced 
in coverage or endorsed to lower limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has been 
given to the County.  Such notice shall be sent directly to, Birdie DeNero, Risk Management, 1400 E. 
Ash St., Globe, AZ 85501, and shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested. 

 
D. ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS:  Insurance is to be placed with insurers duly licensed or approved 

unlicensed companies in the state of Arizona and with an “A.M. Best” rating of not less than B+ VI.  
The County in no way warrants that the above-required minimum insurer rating is sufficient to 
protect the Contractor from potential insurer insolvency. 

 



 23 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 070111-1   

Minimum Specifications continued… 

 
E. VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE:  Contractor shall furnish the County with certificates of insurance 

(ACORD form or equivalent approved by the County) as required by this Contract.  The certificates 
for each insurance policy are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage 
on its behalf. 

 
 All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the County before work 

commences.  Each insurance policy required by this Contract must be in effect at or prior to 
commencement of work under this Contract and remain in effect for the duration of the project.  
Failure to maintain the insurance policies as required by this Contract or to provide evidence of 
renewal is a material breach of contract. 

 
 All certificates required by this Contract shall be sent directly to, Birdie DeNero, Risk Management, 

1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ 85501.  The County project/contract number and project description shall 
be noted on the certificate of insurance.  The County reserves the right to require complete, 
certified copies of all insurance policies required by this Contract at any time.   

 
F. SUBCONTRACTORS:  Contractors’ certificate(s) shall include all subcontractors as additional 

insured’s under its policies or Contractor shall furnish to the County separate certificates and 
endorsements for each subcontractor.  All coverage’s for subcontractors shall be subject to the 
minimum requirements identified above. 

 
G. APPROVAL:  Any modification or variation from the insurance requirements in this Contract shall be 

made by the County Attorney, whose decision shall be final.  Such action will not require a formal 
Contract amendment, but may be made by administrative action. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 24 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO.  070111-1 

 
QUALIFICATION AND CERTIFICATION FORMS 

 
EXHIBIT “D” Bidder Qualifications and Certification 
 
Purpose 

This exhibit shall serve as a requirement to enable the evaluation team to assess the qualifications of 
Contractors under consideration for final award. 
 
The information may or may not be a determining factor in award. 
 
 
Contract Number 070111-1 Janitorial Services, Globe, Arizona 
 
The applicant submitting this Proposal warrants the following: 
 
1. Name, Address, and Telephone Number of Principal Contractor: 

   _____________________________________________________________________ 

   _____________________________________________________________________ 

   _____________________________________________________________________ 
 

2. Had Contractor (under its present or any previous name) ever failed to complete a contract? 
________Yes    ________No.   If “Yes, give details, including the date, the contracting agency, and 
the reasons Contractor failed to perform in the narrative part of this Contract. 

 

3. Has Contractor (under its present or any previous name) ever been disbarred or prohibited from 
competing for a contract?  ________Yes   ________No.   If “Yes”, give details, including the date, 
the contracting agency, the reasons for the Contractors disqualification, and whether this 
disqualification remains in effect in the narrative part of this Contract. 

 

4. Has a contracting agency ever terminated a contract with the Contractor prior to contract 
expiration date (under your Contractor’s present or any previous name)?  ________Yes   
________No.   If “Yes”, give details including the date, the contracting agency, and the reasons 
Contractor was terminated in the narrative part of this Contract. 

 

5. Contractor must also provide at least the following information:   

a. A brief history of the Contractor. 
b. A Cost Proposal shall be submitted on the Price Sheet, attached hereon and made a full 

part of this contract by this reference. 
c. A list of previous and current customers, which are considered identical or similar to the 

Scope of Services described herein; shall be submitted on the Reference List, attached 
hereon and made a full part of this contract by this reference. 

d. List the specific qualifications the Contractor has in supplying the specified services. 
e. A list of any subcontractors (if applicable) to be used in performing the service must 

accompany the Proposal.  The subcontractors Arizona ROC, contact name and phone # 
must be included. 

f. Gila County reserves the right to request additional information. 
g. Sealed list of equipment used in performing the services must accompany proposal. 



 25 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 070111-1   

Qualification & Certification continued… 

 
6. Contractor Experience Modifier (e-mod) Rating in Arizona:  _____________________________ 

                                     (If Applicable) 

A method the National Council on Compensation Insurance (NCCI) uses to measure a business’ 
computed loss ratio and determine a factor, which when multiplied by premium, can reward 
policyholders with lower losses.  E-mod rate may be a determining factor in bid award. 

 

7. Current Contractor Business License Number:  ________________________________________ 
(If Applicable) 

 

8. Contractor must provide copies of all required Arizona Certifications in performing the scope of 
services provided in this request for proposals. 

         

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

________________________________________ 
       Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Printed Name 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Title 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 26 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO.  070111-1 

 
PRICE SHEET 

Please complete price sheet in its entirety for the services provided in RFP 070111-1 Janitorial Service, 
Globe, Arizona. 
 

Contractor Name:  ______________________________________            Phone No.:  _________________ 
 
 

 

Location 
Square  

Foot 
Cost Per  

Square Foot 
Total  
Cost 

 
Gila County Courthouse 

 
47,076 

 
$  ________ 

 
$ ___________ 

 
Michaelson Building 

 
7,952 

 
$  ________ 

 
$ ___________ 

 
Health & Community Services 

 
27,581 

 
$  ________ 

 
$ ___________ 

 
WIC Building 

 
1,792 

 
$  ________ 

 
$ ___________ 

 
Public Works Administration Building 

 
11,000 

 
$  ________ 

 
$ ___________ 

 
Facilities/Sign Shop Building 

 
2,256 

 
$  ________ 

 
$ ___________ 

 
Roads/Shop Office 

 
1,980 

 
$  ________ 

 
$ ___________ 

 
Guerrero Building 

 
5,976 

 
$  ________ 

 
$ ___________ 

 
 

BILLABLE WORK 

 
Description 

Price 
Per Square Foot 

 
Carpet Cleaning (Including strain removal.) 

 
$ ____________ 

 
Stripping and Waxing Floors 

 
$ ____________ 

 
 
 
 

*Each location shall be billed separately with location identified on invoice when submitted to County for 
payment.  County Terms “Net 30”. 

 
All applicable taxes shall be included in proposed amount. 

 



 27 

     REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO.  070111-1 

 
REFERENCE LIST 

 
References 

Please list a minimum of three (3) references for contracts of similar size and scope as this Request for 
Proposals during the past twenty-four (24) months, in or as close to Gila County as possible.  Bidder may 
attach further reference information as necessary. 
 
 

1. Company:  ________________________________________________ 

Contact:   ________________________________________________ 

Phone:    ________________________________________________ 

Address:   ________________________________________________ 

Job Description:  _______________________________________________________________ 

    _______________________________________________________________ 

                 _______________________________________________________________  

 

2. Company:  ________________________________________________ 

Contact:   ________________________________________________ 

Phone:    ________________________________________________ 

Address:   ________________________________________________ 

Job Description:  _______________________________________________________________ 

     _______________________________________________________________ 

                   _______________________________________________________________ 

 

3. Company:  ________________________________________________ 

Contact:   ________________________________________________ 

Phone:    ________________________________________________ 

Address:   ________________________________________________ 

Job Description:  _______________________________________________________________ 

     _______________________________________________________________ 

                               _______________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

           Name of Business 

________________________________________ 
           Signature of Authorized Representative 

________________________________________ 
           Title 
 
 

 



 28 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO.  070111-1 

 
AFFIDAVIT BY CONTRACTOR 

CERTIFYING THAT THERE WAS NO COLLUSION 
IN BIDDING FOR CONTRACT 

 
STATE OF ARIZONA  ) 

)ss 
COUNTY OF:   ) 
 
____________________________________________________________________________________                                                                     
(Name of Individual) 
being first duly sworn, deposes and says: 
 
That he is ____________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                                (Title)  

of_______________________________________________________________________________  and 
                                                                      (Name of Business) 
 

That he is bidding on Gila County BID NO. 070111-1 JANITORIAL SERVICE, GLOBE and, 
 
 

That neither he nor anyone associated with the said _____________________________________  
 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                     (Name of Business) 
 
has, directly or indirectly entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion or otherwise taken any 
action in restraint of free competitive bidding in connection with the above mentioned project. 
 

       ______________________________________________ 
Name of Business 

 
______________________________________________  
By 

 
______________________________________________ 
Title 

 
 
 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me this __________ day of _________________________, 20________. 

 
_______________________________________________________               My Commission expires: 
Notary Public   
                      _____________________________ 
 

 



 29 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO.  070111-1 

 
CERTIFICATION:  INTENTIONS CONCERNING SUBCONTRACTING 

 
 
 At the time of the submission of bids for BID NO. 070111-1 JANITORIAL SERVICE, GLOBE, my 
intention concerning subcontracting a portion of the work is as indicated below. 
 
 In indicating that it is my intention to subcontract a portion of the work, this will acknowledge 
that such subcontractors will be identified and approved by the Facilities Manager prior to award of the 
contract; and that documentation, such as copies of letters, requests for quotations, quotations, etc., 
substantiating the actions taken and the responses to such actions is on file and available for review. 

A list of any subcontractors (if applicable) to be used in performing the service must accompany 
the Bid.  The list must include the subcontractors name, address, and phone number. 
 

Any subcontractor not listed with the bid must be approved by the County prior to providing any 
work pursuant to this contract.  Further, contractor warrants that all subcontractors will comply with all 
terms and conditions of this contract.  The County reserves the right to terminate the contract if the 
contractor fails to comply with the provisions of this certification. 
 
 
 
 
 

     It is my intention to subcontract a portion of the work. 

 

     It is not my intention to subcontract a portion of the work. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 _________________________________________  

                Name of Firm 
 

     _________________________________________  
                    By: (Signature) 

 

     _________________________________________  
                                                                                              Title 
 
 

 
 



 30 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO.  070111-1 

 
LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE 

 
Contractor hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this Contract  comply with all federal 
immigration laws applicable to Contractor’s employment of its employees, and with the requirements of 
A.R.S. § 23-214 (A) (together the “State and Federal Immigration Laws”).  Contractor shall further ensure 
that each subcontractor who performs any work for Contractor under this contract likewise complies with 
the State and Federal Immigration Laws. 
  
County shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and records of Contractor and any 
subcontractor in order to verify such party’s compliance with the State and Federal Immigration Laws.   
 
 Any breach of Contractor’s or any subcontractor’s warranty of compliance with the State and Federal 
Immigration Laws, or of any other provision of this section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of 
this Contract subjecting Contractor to penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this 
Contract. If the breach is by a subcontractor, and the subcontract is suspended or terminated as a result, 
Contractor shall be required to take such steps as may be necessary to either self-perform the services 
that would have been provided under the subcontract or retain a replacement subcontractor, (subject to 
County approval if MWBE preferences apply) as soon as possible so as not to delay delivery of services.   
 
 Contractor shall advise each subcontractor of County’s rights, and the subcontractor’s obligations, under 
this Article by including a provision in each subcontract substantially in the following form:  
“Subcontractor hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all 
federal immigration laws applicable to Subcontractor’s employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 
23-214 (A). Subcontractor further agrees that County may inspect the Subcontractor’s books and records 
to insure that Subcontractor is in compliance with these requirements.  Any breach of this paragraph by 
Subcontractor will be deemed to be a material breach of this contract subjecting Subcontractor to 
penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this contract.”  
  
Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial action under this Article shall be the 
responsibility of Contractor.   
 

 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 

      Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Printed Name 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Title 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 31 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 070111-1 

 

BIDDER CHECKLIST & ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that all Bid Documents shall be completed and/or executed and submitted with 
this RFP.  If Contractor fails to complete and/or execute any portion of the Bid documents, all with original 
signatures, the RFP may be determined to be “non-responsive” and rejected. 
 
 
CHECKLIST: 
 

REQUIRED DOCUMENT      COMPLETED / EXECUTED 
 
QUALIFICATION & CERTIFICATION FORM              ______________ 

PRICE SHEET             ______________ 

REFERENCE LIST             ______________ 

NO COLLUSION IN BIDDING            ______________ 

INTENTIONS IN SUBCONTRACTING           ______________ 

LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE         ______________ 

CHECKLIST & ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGMENT         ______________ 

OFFER PAGE             ______________ 

BACKGROUND AUTHORIZATION           ______________ 

      
 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF ADDENDA: 

    #1  #2             #3             #4           #5 

Initials         ________        ________          ________           ________          ________ 

Date         ________           ________          ________            ________          ________  
 

 

Signed and dated this _________ day of ______________________, 2011 
 
 
           ______________________________________ 
                                      Contractor: 

           ______________________________________ 
                                By:   
 
 
 
Each proposal shall be sealed in an envelope addressed to the Gila County Procurement Group and bearing the 
following statement on the outside of the envelope:  Request for Sealed Proposals No. 070111-1 Janitorial Service.  
All proposals shall be filed with Gila County Procurement at 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ on or before September 14, 
2011, by 3:00 PM. 



 32 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO.  070111-1 

 
OFFER PAGE  

 
TO GILA COUNTY: 

The undersigned hereby offers and agrees to furnish the material or service in compliance with all terms 
and conditions, instruction, specifications, and any amendments contained in this Request for Proposal 
document. 
 
Signature also certifies the Contractors bid proposal is genuine, and is not in any way collusive or a sham; 
that the bid proposal is not made with the intent to restrict or prohibit competition; that the Contractor 
submitting the proposal has not revealed the contents of the proposal to, or in any way colluded with, any 
other Contractor which may compete for the contract; and that no other Contractor which may compete 
for the contract has revealed the contents of a proposal to, or in any way colluded with, the Contractor 
submitting this proposal. 
 
Pursuant to A.R.S. §35-397 the Contractor certifies that it does not have scrutinized business operations in 
Iran or Sudan and that they are in compliance with the Export Administration Act and not on the Excluded 
Parties List. 
 

CONTRACT NUMBER:  070111-1 Janitorial Service, Globe, Arizona 

 
Contractor Submitting Proposal:    For clarification of this offer, contact: 

 
 
________________________________________ Name:  __________________________________ 
Company Name 
 
________________________________________ Phone No.:  ______________________________ 
Address   
       Fax   ____________________________________ 
_________________________________________ 
City                                State                                Zip  Email:  __________________________________ 
       
 
 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Signature of Authorized Person to Sign 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Printed Name 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Title 
 
Proposal must be signed by a duly authorized officer(s) eligible to sign contract documents for the 
Contractor. 
 



 33 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO.  070111-1 

 
ACCEPTANCE OF OFFER 

(For Gila County use only) 
 
 
 
 

The Offer is hereby Accepted: 
 

The Contractor ___________________ is now bound to provide the materials or services listed in RFP No.: 

070111-1 including all terms and conditions, specifications, amendments, etc. and the Contractor’s Offer 

as accepted by County/public entity. 

 

The contract shall henceforth be referenced to as    Contract No. 070111-1   . The Contractor has been 

cautioned not to commence any billable work or to provide any material or service under this Contract 

until Contractor receives written notice to proceed from Gila County. 

 
 
GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS: 

 

 Awarded this       __     day of __________________, 2011 

 
 
 ______________________________________________ 
 Michael A. Pastor, Chairman of the Board 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 ______________________________________________ 
 Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 ______________________________________________ 
 Bryan B. Chambers, Chief Deputy County Attorney 
 for Daisy Flores, County Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 34 

Gila County Human Resources Department 
Background Authorization 

 
 
I hereby give Gila County Human Resources the right to make a thorough investigation of my background 
including: 
 

 Criminal Record 
 Driving Record 
 Personal References 
 Past Employment/Volunteer Status 
 Educational/Professional Status 

 
And any other persons or sources as appropriate for the position for which I have expressed an interest.   
I release from liability all persons, companies, and corporations supplying such information and indemnify 
and hold harmless Gila County from any liability which might result from such an investigation. 
I understand that I do not have to agree to this background check, but that refusal to do so may exclude 
me from consideration. 
I understand that information collected during this background check will be limited to that appropriate 
to determining my suitability for certain positions and that all such information collected during the check 
will be kept confidential. 
I hereby extend my permission to those individuals or organizations contacted, for the purpose of this 
background check, to give their full and honest evaluation of my suitability of the described position and 
such other information, as they deem appropriate. 
 

Signed:  ________________________________________   Date:  __________________ 
 
Witnessed:  _____________________________________  Date:  ___________________ 
 

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Name:  ________________________   _______________________   __________ 
                                            (Last)                                                     (First)                                     (Initial) 

 
DOB:  _____/_____/_________          Social Security # _________-_____-_________ 
 
Driver’s License # _________________________________   State Issued:  ______________ 
 
 

 



ARF-737     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  2- I     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 08/15/2011  
Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director
Submitted By: Shannon Boyer, Public Works Division
Department: Public Works Division
Presenter's Name: Steve Stratton 

Information
Request/Subject
Adopt Resolution No. 11-08-09 for Erik and Cheryl Long Roadway Exchange & sign Quit Claim Deed

Background Information
Gila County is going to be doing a widening project on Russell Road and realignment of the intersection
at Hope Lane and Russell Road.  The County needs to acquire some land from Erik and Cheryl Long for
the realignment .  It was not necessary to have all of the current easement on Russell Road.  The
County is exchanging square foot for square foot by what it owns on Russell Road for land that Erik and
Cheryl Long own on Hope Lane.

Evaluation
The exchange is beneficial to both parties and a land appraisal is not necessary since both properties
are adjacent to each other.  The evaluation would be the same.

Conclusion
It is in the best interest of Gila County to exchange the properties described in the Resolution.

Recommendation
Staff recommendation is to adopt the Resolution allowing the exchange of properties as described
in Resolution No. 11-08-09, and to authorize the Chairman's signature on the Quit Claim Deed whereby
Gila County is deeding property to Erik and Cheryl Long.  

Attached to this agenda item is a recorded Quit Claim Deed whereby Erik and Cheryl Long deeded
property to Gila County.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 11-08-09, which pertains to a roadway
exchange between Erik C. and Cheryl D. Long and Gila County, and to authorize the Chairman's
signature on a Quit Claim Deed for said roadway exchange.  (Steve Stratton)

Attachments
Link: Resolution No. 11-08-09
Link: Resolution No. 11-08-09 Record of Survey



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 11-08-09 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
FOR THE ROADWAY EXCHANGE OF THAT PROPERTY DESCRIBED 
AS FEE NO. 2011-007310, GILA COUNTY RECORDS, AND THAT 
PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBITS “A” & “B” ATTACHED 
HERETO AND BY THIS REFERENCE MADE A PART HEREOF AND 
ISSUED BY QUIT CLAIM DEED, PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §28-7203 

 
WHEREAS, A.R.S. §28-7203 authorizes the Gila County Board of Supervisors to 

exchange roadways with an abutting land owner; and, 
 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of Gila County to exchange that roadway described 

in the legal description attached hereto; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the abutting land owner has granted Gila County a new roadway in 

exchange for the roadway described in the attached legal descriptions.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Gila County Board of 

Supervisors that the property exchange described as Fee No. 2011-007310, Gila County Records, 
and in the attached Exhibits “A” & “B” be exchanged according to the legal descriptions.  Quit 
Claim Deeds will be issued for said exchange and transfer of ownership.  
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of August 2011, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona 
 
 
Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Marian Sheppard    Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Bryan Chambers 
Chief Deputy County Attorney 













ARF-719     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  2- J     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 08/15/2011  
Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director
Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Finance Department
Department: Public Works Division Division: Fleet

Fiscal Year: FY 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

9-20-11 to 9-19-12 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Steve Stratton 

Information
Request/Subject
Request to Advertise Invitation for Bids No. 071911-1 for New SUV Special Service Vehicle and New 6/7
Passenger Minivan

Background Information
The Sheriff's Office uses vans for inmate transport and there is also a need for one in the County motor
pool.  The Sheriff's Office Patrol will turn over 5 or 6 old SUVs from the 1990s that are currently in
Search and Rescue to auction and will also put some of the 2001s ad 2003s from Patrol into Search
and Rescue to replace those with the new vehicles.

Evaluation
The vans generally have great cargo and passenger capacity.  The miles per gallon savings is another
reason to use these vehicles.  The annual mileage for the two current jail vans are 40,000.  The County
purchased them in 2005 and they now have 169,853 and 237,523 miles on them.

The SUVs for the Sheriff's Patrol are also high in miles and need to be rotated to keep the fleet from
costing too much for repairs.

Conclusion
This invitation for bids will be for the purchase of one or more vehicles depending on what is in the best
interest of the County.

It's important to keep the fleet vehicles on the newer side so the County doesn't expend a lot of time
and money on repairs.

The newspaper advertisement dates of Invitation for Bids No. 071911-1 will be August 24 and 31, 2011.

Recommendation
The Public Works Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors authorize the
advertisement of Invitation for Bid No. 071911-1 for the purchase of one or more new SUV special
service vehicles and one or more new 6/7 passanger minivans.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of Invitation for Bids No. 071911-1 for
the purchase of one or more new SUV special service vehicles and one or more new 6/7 passenger
minivans for Gila County Fleet Management.  (Steve Stratton)

Attachments
Link: Request to Advertise for Bids



Link: Invitation for Bids No. 071911-1





 

 
 

 
 
 

GILA COUNTY 
 

NOTICE OF INVITATION FOR BID 
 
 

BID NO. 071911-1 
 
 

NEW SUV SPECIAL SERVICE VEHICLE  

NEW 6/7 PASSENGER MINI-VAN 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

*BOARD OF SUPERVISORS* 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 

Tommie C. Martin, Vice Chairman 
Shirley L. Dawson, Member 

 
 
 

*County Manager* 
Don E. McDaniel Jr. 

 
 

 

 

 

 



1 

 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 

     CONTENT           PAGE 

 
Solicitation ............................................................................................................................. 2 

Scope of Work ........................................................................................................................ 3 

Exhibit “A”; Instructions to Vendors ..................................................................................... 4-6 

 Preparation of Sealed Bid ........................................................................................................... 4 
 Amendments .............................................................................................................................. 6 
 Inquires ....................................................................................................................................... 5 
 Late Proposals............................................................................................................................. 5 
 Submittal Bid Format .................................................................................................................. 5 

General Terms and Conditions ............................................................................................. 7-8 

 Acceptance Contract/Agreement ............................................................................................... 7 
 Protests ....................................................................................................................................... 7 
 Laws & Ordinances ..................................................................................................................... 8 

Exhibit “B” Contract Award Agreement ............................................................................... 8-10 

 Overcharges by Antitrust Violations ........................................................................................... 8 
 Authority to Contract ................................................................................................................. 8 
 Contract Amendments ............................................................................................................... 8 
 Contract Default ......................................................................................................................... 8 
 Right of Assurance ...................................................................................................................... 9 
 Costs & Payments ....................................................................................................................... 9 
 Co-op Intergovernmental Purchasing Agreement ..................................................................... 9 
 Cancellation of County Contracts ............................................................................................... 9 
 Termination of Contract ............................................................................................................. 9  

Exhibit “C”; Minimum Product Specifications/Information ................................................ 11-12 

 Section 1.0; General Purpose ................................................................................................... 11 
 Section 2.0; Bid Pricing ............................................................................................................. 11 
 Section 3.0; Order and Delivery................................................................................................ 12 

Qualification and Certification Forms ..................................................................................... 13 

Price Sheet ....................................................................................................................... 14-15 

No Collusion Affidavit ............................................................................................................ 16 

Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance .................................................................................. 17 

Vendor Checklist ................................................................................................................... 18 

Offer Page  ....................................................................................................................... 19-20 

 
 
 
 
 



2 

 

 

GILA COUNTY 
PROCUREMENT GROUP 

NOTICE OF INVITATION FOR BID 
 

SOLICITATION NUMBER 
071911-1 

1400 E. Ash Street 
Globe,  Arizona 

85501 
 

 
 

BID DUE DATE:      September 8, 2011                             TIME:  11:00 AM 
 
DESCRIPTION:        New SUV Special Service Vehicle & New 6/7 Passenger Mini-Van 
 
Bid Opening & Submittal Location: GILA COUNTY PROCUREMENT 
     (Board Conference Room) 
     1400 EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA  85501 
 
 
In accordance with A.R.S. §41-2533, Invitation for Bid for the materials and services specified will be received 
by the Gila County Procurement Group at the above specified location until the time and date cited. 
 
Request for submittals after the specified date and time to the Procurement Group shall not be considered.  
To receive bid documents contact the Procurement Group at (928)402-8612. 
 
Additional instructions for preparing a bid are provided on pages 4-6 of the bid documents to Offerors as 
contained within the solicitation. 
 
The Board of Supervisors reserves the right to reject any or all bid proposals, or to accept any bid proposal, or 
to waive any informality in any bid proposal, or to withhold the award if deemed in the best interest of Gila 
County.  
 All procurement activities conducted by Gila County are in conformance with the rules and regulations of the 
Gila County Procurement Code.  A copy of the Code is available for review in the Deputy Clerk of the Board’s 
office, Globe, AZ. 
 
Arizona Silver Belt advertisement dates:   August 24 and 31, 2011 

 
BIDDERS ARE STRONGLY ENCOURAGED TO CAREFULLY READ THE ENTIRE SOLICITATION. 

 
Designated Department:       Gila County Fleet Management 
Type of contract: Term 
Term of Contract: Twelve Months  
Phone Number: (928)200-1580 
 

 
Signed:  _____________________________________________________ Date:  ________________ 
  Bryan B. Chambers, Chief Deputy County Attorney 
                 for Daisy Flores, County Attorney 
 

Signed:  _____________________________________________________ Date:  ________________  
                Michael A. Pastor, Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
 



3 

 

BID NO. 071911-1   

 

GENERAL SCOPE  

 
It is the intent of this solicitation to award a contract for the purchase of one (1) or more New Full Size 4 Door 
4x4 SUV Special Service Vehicle(s) and New Extended Length 6/7 Passenger Mini-Van(s) to be used by the 
Gila County Fleet Department. 
 
The County may choose to award this contract as a whole, or make multiple awards, depending on what is 
deemed to be in the County’s best interest considering price, specifications, and delivery date. 
 
See attached:  Exhibit “C”) Pages 11-12, and 14-15 as specified on Price Sheet for total price being 
proposed. 
 
Vendors who agree to provide the Minimum Bid Specifications for this equipment shall be considered for 
award. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



4 

 

BID NO.  071911-1 

 
INSTRUCTIONS TO VENDORS 

 
IMPORTANT:  EXHIBIT “A”, INSTRUCTIONS TO VENDORS AND EXHIBIT “B”, VENDORS AWARD AGREEMENT 
ARE BASIC CONTENT TO GILA COUNTY BID PACKAGES.  INDIVIDUAL BIDS MAY REQUIRE DIFFERENT 
LANGUAGE FOR INSTRUCTIONS AND AWARD AGREEMENTS.  WHERE APPLICABLE, SUCH CHANGES WILL 
APPEAR IN EXHIBIT “C”, MINIMUM PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS AND INFORMATION AND TAKE PRECEDENCE 
OVER THE LANGUAGE APPEARING IN EXHIBITS “A” & “B”. 
 
EXHIBIT “A” INSTRUCTIONS TO VENDORS 
 
Preparation of Sealed Bid Proposal 

A. Sealed Bids will be received by the Gila County Public Works Division, from individuals and vendors 
to deliver the product(s), goods and services contained to establish a contract for specified 
locations within Gila County.  The County seeks sealed bid proposals only from qualified, 
experienced vendors able to provide services which are, in all respects, responsive to the 
specifications.  All bid proposals shall be on the forms provided in this Invitation for Bid package.  It 
is permissible to copy these forms if required. 

 
B. Before submitting its Proposal and Qualification Form each vendor shall familiarize itself with the 

Scope of Work, laws, regulations and other factors affecting performance of work.  It shall carefully 
correlate its observations with requirements of the Contract and otherwise satisfy itself of the 
expense and difficulties attending the performance of the work.  The submission of a Proposal will 
constitute a representation of compliance by the vendor.  There will be no subsequent financial 
adjustment, other than that provided for by the Contract, for lack of such familiarization. 

 
C. Vendors must complete the Proposal and Qualifications Forms provided in this Request for 

Proposal package in full, original signature in ink, by the person(s) authorized to sign the Proposal 
and to be submitted at the time of bid, and made a part of this contract.  The County will use the 
Proposal and Qualifications Form in evaluating the capacity of vendor(s) to perform the Scope of 
Services as set forth in the Contract.  Failure of any Vendor to complete and submit the Price Sheet 
and Signature/Offer Page at time and place of opening shall be grounds for automatic 
disqualification of the vendor(s) from further consideration. 

 

D. The names of all persons authorized to sign the Proposal must also be legibly printed below the 
signature. Evidence of the authority of the person signing shall be furnished. 

 
E. The full name of each person or company interested in the Invitation for Bids shall be listed on the 

Proposal. 
 

F. No alterations in Proposals, or in the printed forms therefore, by erasures, interpolations, or 
otherwise will be acceptable unless each such alteration is signed or initialed by the vendor; if 
initialed, the County may require the vendor to identify any alteration so initialed. 

 
Amendments 

Any addendum issued as a result of any change in this Invitation for Bids must be acknowledged by all 
Vendors in the following manner: 
 

1. Completion of the Vendor Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment form, page 18. 
 



5 

 

BID NO.  071911-1 

Instructions to Vendors continued… 

 
Failure to indicate receipt of addenda in the above manner may result in a bid proposal being rejected as 
non-responsive. 
 
Inquires 

Any questions related to this IFB must be directed to those whose names appear on the Notice.  Questions 
should be submitted in writing when time permits.  The Gila County Supervisors, at their sole discretion, may 
require all questions be submitted in writing.  Any correspondence related to a Invitation for Bids should 
refer to the appropriate Invitation for Bids number, page, and paragraph number.  However, the Vendor(s) 
must not place the IFB number on the outside of an envelope containing questions since such an envelope 
may be identified as a sealed Proposal and may not be opened until after the official IFB due date and time.  
Questions received less than three (3) working days prior to the date for opening Proposals will be answered 
only if time permits.   Only questions answered by formal written addenda will be binding.  Oral and other 
interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. 
 

A. Bid results ARE NOT provided in response to telephone inquires or email requests.  A tabulation of 
bids received is on file in the Gila County Board of Supervisors and Public Works offices and available 
for review after contract award. 

 
Late Bids 

Any bid received later than the date and time specified on Notice for Sealed Bids will be returned unopened.  
Late bids shall not be considered.  Any Vendor submitting a late bid shall be so notified. 
 
 
Submittal Bid Format: 

It is requested that One (1) Original and Two (2) copies ( 3 TOTAL) with original signatures on all three (3) 
of the Proposal and Qualification Forms, Price Sheet, and Offer Page shall be submitted on the forms and 
in the format specified in the Invitation for Bid.  The County will not be liable for any cost incident to the 
preparation of Proposal, materials, reproductions, presentations, copy-right infringements, etc.  It is 
permissible to copy these forms if required.  Facsimiles or mailgrams shall not be considered. 
 
1. By signature in the offer section of the Offer and Acceptance page, Vendor certifies: 
 

A. The submission of the offer did not involve collusion or other anti-competitive practices. 
B. The Vendor has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at any time hereafter, any 

economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip, favor, or 
service to a public servant in connection with the submitted offer. 

C. In order to conserve resources, reduce procurement costs, improve timely acquisition and cost of 
supplies and to improve efficiency and economy of procurement, any political subdivision, 
Stated, County, City, Town, etc., of the State of Arizona, will be allowed by the Vendor(s) 
awarded the contract to provide the same services, at the same prices stated in the bid proposal.  
Delivery charges may differentiate depending on geographical location. 

 
2. Bid proposals submitted early may be modified or withdrawn by notice to the party receiving proposals 

at the place and prior to the time designated for receipts of Proposals. 
 
 
 
 



6 

 

BID NO.  071911-1 

Instructions to Vendors continued… 

 
3. The County is not responsible for any Vendor’s errors or omissions.  Negligence in preparing an offer 

confers no right to the Vendor unless the Vendors discovers and corrects such errors prior to the 
Proposal deadline. 

 

All bids shall be submitted in a sealed envelope, a minimum of Three (3) copies with original signatures 
shall be provided by the Vendor.  The words “SEALED BID” with Title “NEW SUV SPECIAL SERVICE VEHICLE 
& New 6/7 PASSENGER MINI-VAN”, Bid No., “071911-1”, Date “SEPTEMBER 8, 2011”, and TIME “11:00 
AM” of Bid opening shall be written on the envelope.  The Vendor shall assume full responsibility for 
timely delivery at the location designated in the Notice. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



7 

 

BID NO.  071911-1 

 
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
Award of Contract   

1. The Gila County Board of Supervisors reserves the right to award any Bid by individual line item, by 
group of line items or as total, or any part thereof, whichever is deemed to be in the best interest, 
most advantageous of the County of Gila. 

 
a.   Notwithstanding any or other provisions of the Bid, the County reserves the right to:  

1.   Waive any immaterial defects or informalities; or 
2.   Reject any or all Proposals; or portions thereof; or 
3.   Reissue a Request for Proposal. 

 
2. It is the responsibility of the Gila County Board of Supervisors to let the County contracts to the 

lowest responsive and responsible Vendor(s).  To ensure that all Vendors are experienced, 
reasonably equipped and adequately financed to meet their contractual obligations, a determination 
of responsibility shall be made by the Gila County Board of Supervisors prior to contract award. 

 
3. Further, the County reserves the right to reject the Bid of any Vendor(s) who has previously failed to 

perform adequately after having once been awarded a prior Bid for furnishing and installing 
materials similar in nature. 

 
4. All submitted forms provided in this Invitation for Bids will be reviewed by the Gila County Board of 

Supervisors. 
 

5. Those Vendor(s) who, in the opinion of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, are best qualified and 
whose Bids are most advantageous to the County may be invited to appear before the Board for an 
oral review. 

 
6. The apparent successful Vendor(s) shall sign and file with the County, within ten (10) days after 

Notice of Intent to Award, all documents necessary to successfully execute the contract. 
 
Protests 

Only other Vendors who have submitted a bid proposal have the right to protest.  A protest of an award must 
be filed within ten (10) days after the award by the Board of Supervisors.  A protest must be in writing and 
must include the following: 
 

A. Name, address and telephone number of the protester. 
B. Signature of the protester or its representative, and evidence of authority to sign. 
C. Identification of the contract and the solicitation or contract number. 
D. Detailed statement of the legal and factual grounds of protest including copies of relevant 

documents. 
E. The form of relief requested. 

 
All protests shall be sent to the attention of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, 1400 East Ash Street, 
Globe, Arizona  85501. 
 
 

 

 



8 

 

BID NO.  071911-1 

General Terms & Conditions continued… 

 

Laws and Ordinances 

This agreement shall be enforced under the laws of the State of Arizona and Gila County.  Firm shall maintain 
in current status all Federal, State and Local licenses and permits required for the operation of the business 
conducted by the Firm.  The Firm shall comply with the applicable provisions of the Americans with 
Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213) and applicable federal regulations under the act. 
 
 
 
EXHIBIT “B” VENDOR AWARD AGREEMENT 

This exhibit shall serve as an example of the contract agreement to any Vendor, their agents, subcontractors 
and/or representatives, awarded this or any portion of this contract by the County, by submitting Bid 
proposals to this or any other solicitation requiring sealed bids, does hereby agree to the following 
provisions.  Proof of acceptance of these provisions will be the Vendor’s signature(s) appearing on page 18, 
VENDORS OFFER PAGE, Exhibit “D” Vendors Qualification and Certification forms(s) pages 13. 

 
Overcharges by Antitrust Violations 

The County maintains that, in actual practice, overcharges resulting from antitrust violations are borne by the 
purchaser.  Therefore, to the extent permitted by law, the Vendor hereby assigns to the County any and all 
claims for such overcharges as to the goods or services used to fulfill the contract. 
 
Authority to Contract 

This contract shall be based upon the Invitation for Bids issued by the County and the offer submitted by the 
Vendor in response to the IFB.  The offer shall substantially conform to the terms, conditions, specifications 
and other requirements set forth within the text of the IFB.  The county reserves the right to clarify any 
contractual terms with the concurrence of the Vendor; however, any substantial non-conformity in the offer, 
as determined by the County Attorney, shall be deemed non-responsive and the offer rejected.  The contract 
shall contain the entire agreement between  

 
Gila County and the Vendor relating to these requirements and shall prevail over any and all previous 
agreements, contracts, proposals, negotiations, purchase orders, or master agreement in any form.  The 
contract activity is issued under the authority of the Gila County Manager, after the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors approves the award.  No alteration of any portion of the contract, any items or services awarded, 
or any other agreement that is based upon this contract may be made without express written approval of 
the Gila County Board of Supervisors in the form of an official contract amendment.  Any attempt to alter any 
documents on the part of the Vendor or any agency is a violation of the County Procurement Code.  Any such 
action is subject to the legal and contractual remedies available to the County inclusive, but not limited to, 
contract cancellation, suspension and/or debarment of the Vendor. 

 
Contract Amendments 

The contract shall be modified only by a written contract amendment signed by the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors and persons duly authorized to enter into contracts on behalf of the Vendor. 
 
Contract Default 

A. The County, by written notice of default to the Vendor, may terminate the whole or any part of this 
contract in any one of the following circumstances: 

 
 



9 

 

BID NO.  071911-1 

General Terms & Conditions continued… 

 
1. If  the Vendor fails to make delivery of the supplies or to perform the services within the times 

specified; or 
 

2. If the Vendor fails to perform any of the other provisions of this contract; and fails to remedy 
the situation within a period of ten (10) days after receipt of notice. 

 
B. In the event the County terminates this contract in whole or part, the County may procure supplies 

or services similar to those terminated, and the Vendor shall be liable to the County for any excess 
costs for such similar supplies or services. 

 
Right to Assurance 

Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question the other party’s intent to perform, 
the other party may demand that the other party give a written assurance of this intent to perform.  In the 
event that a demand is made and no written assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party 
may treat this failure as an anticipatory repudiation of this contract. 
 

Costs and Payments 

Payments shall comply with the requirements of A.R.S. Title 35 and 41, Net 30 days.  Upon receipt and 
acceptance of goods and services, the Vendor shall submit a complete and accurate invoice for payment.  
 
IRS W9 Form:  In order to receive payment the Vendor shall have a current IRS W9 Form on file with the 
County unless not required by law. 
 
 Co-op Use of Contract – Intergovernmental Purchasing 

Gila County has entered into an active purchasing agreement with other political subdivisions, cities, and 
towns of the State of Arizona in order to conserve resources, reduce procurement costs and improve timely 
acquisition and cost of supplies, equipment and services.  The vendor(s) to whom this contract is awarded 
may be requested by other parties of said interactive purchasing agreements to extend to those parties the 
right to purchase supplies, equipment and services provided by the vendor under this contract, pursuant to 
the terms and conditions stated herein.  Any such usage by other entities must be in accord with the rules 
and regulations of the respective entity and the approval of the Vendor. 
 
Cancellation of County Contracts 

This contract is subject to the cancellation provisions of A.R.S. §38-511. 
 
Termination of Contract 

The County, with or without cause, may terminate this contract at any time by mutual written consent, or by 
giving thirty (30) days written notice to you.  The County at its convenience, by written notice, may terminate 
this contract, in whole or in part.  If this contract is terminated, the County shall be liable only for payment 
under the payment provisions of this contract for the services rendered and accepted material received by 
the County before the effective date of termination. 
 
The County reserves the right to cancel the whole or any part of this contract due to failure of the Vendor(s) 
to carry out any term, promise, or condition of the contract.  The County will issue a written ten (10) day 
notice of default to Vendor for acting or failing to act as in any of the following: 
 

1. In the opinion of the County, the Vendor fails to perform adequately the stipulations, conditions or 
services/specifications required in the contract. 



10 

 

BID NO.  071911-1 

General Terms & Conditions continued… 

 
2. In the opinion of the County, the Vendor attempts to impose on the County material products, or 

workmanship, which is of unacceptable quality.  
3. Vendor fails to furnish the required service and/or product within the time stipulated in the 

contract. 
4. In the opinion of the County, the Vendor fails to make progress in the performance of the 

requirements of the contract and/or give the County a positive indication that Vendor will not or 
cannot perform to the requirements of the contract. 

 
Each payment obligation of the County created hereby is conditioned upon the availability of County, State 
and Federal funds, which are appropriated or allocated for the payment of such an obligation.  If funds are 
not allocated by the County and available for the continuance of service herein contemplated, the contract 
period for the service may be terminated by the County at the end of the period for which funds are 
available.  The County shall notify the Vendor at the earliest possible time which service may be affected by a 
shortage of funds.  No penalty shall accrue to the County in the event this provision is exercised, and the 
County shall not be obligated or liable for any future payments due or for any damages as a result of 
termination under this paragraph. 
 
 
Proposal Evaluation Process 

All proposals shall be evaluated by using the following criteria.  The recommendation for contract award 
will be made to the responsible Vendor whose proposal is determined to be the most advantageous to Gila 
County when applying the weighted criteria:  50% price, 25% compliance with specifications, and 25% 
serviceability.  The County reserves the right to award in whole or in part, by item or group of items, by 
section or geographic area, or make multiple awards, where such action serves the County’s best interest. 
 
 
General 

After receipt of all bid proposals, each submittal shall be screened to determine if any shall be deemed non-
responsive.  Unsigned proposals, unacknowledged Addenda, incomplete proposals, non-conformance with 
mandatory requirements, etc., may result in the determination of non-responsive. 
 
Subsequent to the initial review, all remaining proposals shall be reviewed by the Gila County Public Works 
Fiscal Services Manager to evaluate the information submitted, perform tests when necessary and make 
comparisons in order to approve or reject the Request.  If rejected, the purchasing department shall give 
written notice to the Vendor submitting this request. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



11 

 

BID NO.  071911-1 

 
MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS 

 
EXHIBIT “C” MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS FOR:   071911-1 
 
Purpose: 

It is the intent of Gila County to establish, by this Invitation for Bids, the contract to purchase one or more 
New 4 Door 4x4 SUV Special Service Vehicle(s) and New Extended Length 6/7 Passenger Mini-Van(s) 
 

This specification is intended to describe the type, size, and quality, which will best meet the demands of the 
using department.  It is NOT intended to favor any one brand or make.  The mention of brand names or 
components merely serves to specify the quality or general type required. 

 
 
SECTION 1.0 
 
General:   

1.1 All product specifications are minimum.  Vendor must provide product specification sheet. 
 
1.2 Vendor should have adequate manufacturing / stock facilities to serve the needs of Gila County. 

 
1.3 All proposals must represent the entire package.   

 
1.4 The parties specifically understand and agree that the quantities used for bidding purposes are 

estimates of County needs and in no event shall the County be obligated to purchase the exact 
quantities of any item set forth in the proposal.  The County does not guarantee any maximum or 
minimum amounts of purchase. 

 
 
SECTION 2.0 
 
Bid Pricing: 

2.1 The Vendor shall submit the proposal in the form of a firm unit price for the contract period.  
Initial contract period is twelve (12) months.  Vendor shall incorporate all freight, profit, and 
discount into their price.  The exception will be any price reduction, which will be applied to the 
contract immediately upon the Vendor’s or Gila County’s discovery of any such price reduction.   

 
2.2 The term of the contract shall commence upon award and shall remain in effect for a period of one 

(1) year, unless terminated, cancelled or extended as otherwise provided herein.  The Vendor 
agrees that Gila County shall have the right, at its sole option, to renew the contract for one (1) 
additional year period.  In the event the County exercises such a right, all terms, conditions and 
provisions of the original contract shall remain the same and apply during the renewal period with 
the exception of price.  Pricing for any extensions of the contract beyond 12 months will be the 
Vendor’s invoiced cost per unit.   

 
 
 
 
 
 



12 

 

BID NO.  071911-1 

Minimum Specifications continued… 

 
SECTION 3.0 
 
Ordering and Delivery: 

3.1 ORDERING:  Gila County does not warrant the order quantity of any equipment prior to actual 
need.  Gila County’s Public Works personnel may re-order equipment as it becomes necessary or 
based on the required needs within the County during the term of this contract. 

 
3.2 PRODUCT DELIVERY Location:  Gila County Shop, 1400 East Ash Street, Globe, AZ.  The Board of 

Supervisors may designate other or alternate delivery sites at any time during the term of the 
contract.  These needs may be based on, but not limited to, seasonal, emergency, historical usage 
data. 

 
3.3 Vendor shall retain title and control of all goods until they are delivered and the contract of 

coverage has been completed.  All risks of transportation and all related charges shall be the 
responsibility of the Vendor.  All claims for visible or concealed damage shall be filed by the 
Vendor.  The County will assist the Vendor in arranging for inspection. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



13 

 

BID NO.  071911-1 

 
QUALIFICATION AND CERTIFICATION FORMS 

 
EXHIBIT “D” VENDORS QUALIFICATION AND REFERENCE LIST 
 
PURPOSE 

This exhibit shall serve as a requirement to enable the evaluation team to assess the qualifications of 
Vendors under consideration for final award.  The information may or may not be a determining factor in 
award. 
 

CONTACT NUMBER 071911-1  New SUV Special Service Vehicle & New 6/7 Passenger Mini-Van 
 
The applicant submitting this Bid Proposal warrants the following: 
 

1. Name, Address, and Telephone Number of Principal Vendor: 

________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

2. Had Vendor (under its present or any previous name) ever failed to complete a contract? 
________ Yes   ________No.  If “Yes”, give details including the date, the contracting agency,  And 
the reason Vendor failed to perform in the narrative part of this Contract. 

 
3. Has Vendor (under its present or any previous name) ever been disbarred or prohibited from 

competing for a contract?  ________ Yes   ________ No.  If “Yes”, give details, including the date, the 
contracting agency, the reasons for the Vendors disqualifications, and whether this disqualification 
remains in effect in the narrative part of this Contract. 

 
4. Has a contracting agency ever terminated a contract with the Vendor (under your firm’s present or 

any previous name) prior to end of contract period?  ________ Yes   ________No.  If “Yes”, give 
details including the date, the contracting agency, and the reasons offer was terminated in the 
narrative part of this Contract. 

 
5. Vendor must also provide at least the following information: 

a. A Cost Proposal shall be submitted on the Price Sheet, attached hereon and made a full part 
of this contract by this reference. 

b. Gila County reserves the right to request additional information. 
 

 

___________________________________________ 
Signature of Authorized Person to Sign 
 
___________________________________________ 
Printed Name 
 
___________________________________________ 
Title 

 



14 

 

BID NO.  071911-1 

 
PRICE SHEET 

 
Complete and Return this form for the total price being proposed.  Attach any pertinent cost breakdowns, 
sub-totals of component cost, etc. to this proposal-pricing page. 
 

Vendor Name/Phone #:  ____________________________________________________________ 
 
Vehicle Year/Make/Model: __________________________________________________________ 

 
MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS 

New Full Size 4x4 SUV Special Service Vehicle 

 
MEETS MINIIMUM 

SPECIFICATIONS 
  YES                     NO 

Exterior:   Solid White    

Interior:    Light Color   

                   Cloth Covered Front Bucket Seats without Console   

                   Vinyl Covered Rear Bench Seat   

Power Features:    Door Locks   

                                  Windows   

                                  Mirrors   

                                  Driver Seat   

                                  Steering   

4 Door   

Keyless Entry   

Cruise Control   

Tilt Steering Wheel   

AM / FM Clock (CD) Radio / Stereo   

5.3L Gas Engine   

Four Wheel Drive 4x4   

Automatic Transmission   

Locking Differential   

A/C – in Front and Rear   

Front Tow Hooks   

Trailer Tow Package (Receiver Hitch, Engine Oil Cooler, Transmission 
Cooler) 

  

Skid Plate Package   

All Terrain Tires (LT) with Full Size Spare Tire   

 
                                        SUB-TOTAL AMOUNT 

 
    $                             . 

 
                                                            SALES TAX 

 
    $                              . 

 
     TOTAL AMOUNT OF DELIVERED VEHICLE 

 
    $                              . 

 
*Delivery Location:  Fleet Department,  1400 East Ash Street, Globe, AZ  85501 
 
Estimated Date of Delivery:  _______________________________________ 
(Note: Delivery date may be a factor in Bid award.) 



15 

 

BID NO.  071911-1 

 
PRICE SHEET 

 
Complete and Return this form for the total price being proposed.  Attach any pertinent cost breakdowns, 
sub-totals of component cost, etc. to this proposal-pricing page.  

 
 

Vendor Name/Phone #:  ____________________________________________________________ 
 
Vehicle Year/Make/Model: __________________________________________________________ 

 
MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS 

New Extended Length 6/7 Passenger Mini-Van 

 
MEETS MINIIMUM 

SPECIFICATIONS 
  YES                     NO 

Exterior:   Solid White    

Interior:    Gray or Tan Light Color Cloth Covered Seats   

Power Features:    Door Locks   

                                  Windows   

                                  Mirrors   

                                  Driver Seat   

                                  Steering   

Front and Rear A/C and Heath   

Tilt Steering Wheel   

Dual Sliding Doors   

Third Row Bench Seat   

Second Row Bucket or Bench Seat   

Remote Keyless Entry   

Cruise Control   

AM / FM Clock (CD) Radio   

V6 Gas Engine   

Automatic Transmission   

Tinted Glass   

 
                                        SUB-TOTAL AMOUNT 

 
    $                             . 

 
                                                            SALES TAX 

 
    $                              . 

 
     TOTAL AMOUNT OF DELIVERED VEHICLE 

 
    $                              . 

 
 
 
*Delivery Location:  Fleet Department,  1400 East Ash Street, Globe, AZ  85501 
 
 
Estimated Date of Delivery:  _____________________________________ 
(Note: Delivery date may be a factor in bid award.) 

 
 
 



16 

 

BID NO.  071911-1 

 
AFFIDAVIT BY VENDOR 

CERTIFYING THAT THERE WAS NO COLLUSION 
IN BIDDING FOR CONTRACT 

 
STATE OF ARIZONA  ) 

)ss 
COUNTY OF:   ) 
 
____________________________________________________________________________________                                                                     
(Name of Individual) being first duly sworn, deposes and says: 
 
That he is ____________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                                (Title)  

of_______________________________________________________________________________  and 
                                                                      (Name of Business) 
 
 

That he is bidding on Gila County BID NO. 071911-1 New SUV Special Service Vehicle & New 6/7 
Passenger Mini-Van and, 
 
 

That neither he nor anyone associated with the said _____________________________________  

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                     (Name of Business) 
 
has, directly or indirectly entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion or otherwise taken any 
action in restraint of free competitive bidding in connection with the above mentioned project. 
 

 

       _____________________________________________ 
Name of Business 

 
_____________________________________________  
By 

 
_____________________________________________ 
Title 

 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me this __________ day of _________________________, 20______. 

 
 
_______________________________________________________               My Commission expires: 
Notary Public                
         ___________________________ 

 
 



17 

 

 
BID NO.  071911-1 

 
LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE 

 
Vendor hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this Contract  comply with all federal 
immigration laws applicable to Vendor’s employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 
23-214 (A) (together the “State and Federal Immigration Laws”).  Vendor shall further ensure that each 
subcontractor who performs any work for Vendor under this contract likewise complies with the State and 
Federal Immigration Laws. 
  
County shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and records of Vendor and any subcontractor in 
order to verify such party’s compliance with the State and Federal Immigration Laws.   
 
 Any breach of Vendor’s or any subcontractor’s warranty of compliance with the State and Federal 
Immigration Laws, or of any other provision of this section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this 
Contract subjecting Vendor to penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this Contract. If the 
breach is by a subcontractor, and the subcontract is suspended or terminated as a result, Vendor shall be 
required to take such steps as may be necessary to either self-perform the services that would have been 
provided under the subcontract or retain a replacement subcontractor, (subject to County approval if MWBE 
preferences apply) as soon as possible so as not to delay project completion.   
 
 Vendor shall advise each subcontractor of County’s rights, and the subcontractor’s obligations, under this 
Article by including a provision in each subcontract substantially in the following form: 
 “Subcontractor hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all 
federal immigration laws applicable to Subcontractor’s employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-
214 (A). Subcontractor further agrees that County may inspect the Subcontractor’s books and records to 
insure that Subcontractor is in compliance with these requirements.  Any breach of this paragraph by 
Subcontractor will be deemed to be a material breach of this contract subjecting Subcontractor to penalties 
up to and including suspension or termination of this contract.”  
  
Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial action under this Article shall be the 
responsibility of Vendor.  In the event that remedial action under this Article results in delay to one or more 
tasks on the critical path of Vendor’s approved construction or critical milestones schedule, such period of 
delay shall be deemed excusable delay for which Vendor shall be entitled to an extension of time, but not 
costs. 
 

 
_____________________________________________ 

      Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Printed Name 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Title 
    
 
 
 
 
 



18 

 

 
BID NO.  071911-1 

 
BIDDERS CHECKLIST & ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that all Bid Documents shall be completed and/or executed and submitted with 
this IFB.  If bidder fails to complete and/or execute any portion of the Bid Documents, this IFB will be 
determined to be “non-responsive” and rejected. 
 
CHECKLIST: 
 

REQUIRED DOCUMENT                    COMPLETED / EXECUTED 
 

QUALIFICATION & CERTIFICATION FORM   ___________ 

PRICE SHEET       ___________ 

NO COLLUSION AFFADAVIT     ___________ 

LEGAL ARIZONA WORKS ACT COMPLIANCE   ___________ 

OFFER PAGE       ___________ 

 
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF ADDENDA:       
 
                        #1                #2                  #3                       #4                           #5 
Initials  __________          __________          __________          __________          __________  
 
Date  __________          __________          __________          __________          __________         

 
 
 

Signed and dated this ______ day of _____________________, 2011 
 
 
 

           __________________________________________________ 
                                        VENDOR: 
 

           __________________________________________________ 
                                        BY:   
 
 
Each proposal shall be sealed in an envelope addressed to the Gila County Procurement Group and bearing 
the following statement on the outside of the envelope:  Invitation for Bids:  Bid No. 071911-1 New SUV 
Special Service Vehicle & New 6/7 Passenger Mini-Van.  All proposals shall be filed with the Gila County 
Procurement Group at 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ on or before September 8, 2011, 11:00 AM. 
 
 



19 

 

 
BID NO.  071911-1 

 
OFFER PAGE  

 
TO GILA COUNTY: 

The undersigned hereby offers and agrees to furnish the material or service in compliance with all terms and 
conditions, instruction, specifications, and any amendments contained in this Invitation for bids. 
 
Signature also certifies the Vendors bid proposal is genuine, and is not in any way collusive or a sham; that 
the bid proposal is not made with the intent to restrict or prohibit competition; that the Vendor submitting 
the bid proposal has not revealed the contents of the proposal to, or in any way colluded with, any other 
Vendor which may compete for the contract; and that no other Vendor which may compete for the contract 
has revealed the contents of a proposal to, or in any way colluded with, the Vendor submitting this proposal. 
 
Pursuant to A.R.S. §35-397 the Vendor certifies that it does not have scrutinized business operations in Iran 
or Sudan and that they are in compliance with the Export Administration Act and not on the Excluded Parties 
List. 
 

CONTRACT NUMBER:  071911-1 New SUV Special Service Vehicle & New 6/7 Passenger Mini-Van 

 
 
Firm Submitting Proposal:    For clarification of this offer, contact: 

 
 
________________________________________ Name:  __________________________________ 
Company Name 
 
________________________________________ Phone No.:  ______________________________ 
Address   
       Fax   ____________________________________ 
_________________________________________ 
City                                State                                Zip  Email:  __________________________________ 
       
 
 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Signature of Authorized Person to Sign 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Printed Name 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Title 
 
 
Proposal must be signed by a duly authorized officer(s) eligible to sign contract documents for the Firm. 
 



20 

 

 
BID NO.  071911-1 

Offer Page continued… 
 

 
ACCEPTANCE OF OFFER 

(For Gila County use only) 
 
 
 

The Offer is hereby Accepted: 
 

The Vendor ___________________________ is now bound to provide the materials or services listed in 

Invitation for Bid No.: 071911-1 including all terms and conditions, specifications, amendments, etc. and the 

Vendor’s Offer as accepted by County/public entity. 

 

The contract shall henceforth be referenced to as    Contract No. 071911-1   . The Vendor has been cautioned 

not to commence any billable work or to provide any material or service under this Contract until Vendor 

receives written notice to proceed from Gila County. 

 
 
GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS: 

 

 Awarded this _________ day of ___________________, 2011 

 
 ______________________________________________ 
 Michael A. Pastor, Chairman of the Board 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 ______________________________________________ 
 Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 ______________________________________________ 
 Bryan B. Chambers, Chief Deputy County Attorney 
 for Daisy Flores, County Attorney 

 
 



ARF-750     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  2- K     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 08/15/2011  
Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director
Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Finance Department
Department: Public Works Division Division: Administration

Fiscal Year: FY 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

12-31-2011 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Steve Stratton 

Information
Request/Subject
Request to Advertise Bid No. 080211-1 Roadyard Shop Area Paving Project

Background Information
The Shop/Road building is almost complete at 1001 W. Besich Boulevard and Public Works wants to
pave the area before people and equipment begin moving in.

Evaluation
The plans have been revised several times and are now ready to go out for bid.

Conclusion
This will complete the Shop/Roadyard Project.

Recommendation
The Public Works Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors authorize the advertisement of
Request for Bids No. 080211-1 to be published in the newspaper on August 24 and 31, 2011.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of Request for Bids No. 080211-1 for the
Public Works Roadyard Shop Area Paving Project.     (Steve Stratton)

Attachments
Link: Request to Advertise
Link: Bid 080211-1 Roadyard Shop Area Paving Project



GILA COUNTY DEPARTMENTAL REQUEST TO ADVERTISE FOR BIDS 
SEE GC2-7-111 (ART.1) OF PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES FOR INSTRUCTIONS TO PREPARE THIS FORM 

All departments procuring purchases in excess of $50,000.00 that requires advertising for bids must follow the Procurement Procedure and must complete item “I” of 
this form prior to such a purchase.  The requesting Department is responsible for writing the necessary specifications and routing them, including this form, 
accompanied by a Bid Request Form to the Procurement Department.  THIS FORM MUST BE COMPLETE, ACCURATE, AND HAVE A COPY OF THE SPECIFICATIONS 
ATTACHED BEFORE ROUTING BEGINS.  ALL CALLS FOR BID/PROPOSALS AND SPECIFICATIONS WILL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE AZ. REVISED STATUTES AND THE 
GILA COUNTY PURCHASING CODE AND PROCEDURES. 
 

I.  IS THIS A CALL FOR  BID:             X                      PROPOSAL:  ________                  DEPARTMENT NAME:  _______Public Works Division__________      

FUNDING SOURCE:  FUND NO.:  66510   DEPT NO.:  341    PROGRAM NO.:  526    LOCATION NO.: 000_   ACCOUNT NO.:   4300.81    PJCT:   PAVE12-PrkgLot714 

 
 

I.  DESCRIPTION:  List item(s) to be purchased, Purpose, Spec. Summary, Estimated Cost and Funding Source.  It is the intent of this solicitation 
to establish a contract with a qualified contractor for the completion of the Public Works Complex Roadyard Shop Area Paving 
Project. 
 
 
Signed:  _____________________________________   Date:  _____________   Signature indicates material specifications are approved as written. 
              Elected Officials or Department Head 
 
 

II.  DEPARTMENTAL INFORMATION ONLY   BID NO.: _____________080211-1______________ 
                     (For Procurement Use Only) 

Action Dates: 

Department Receipt:  ______/______/______   Placed on Agenda:  __08__/__15__/__11__ 

Presented to Board:    ______/______/______   Approved to Call:    ______/______/______ 

Delivered to Paper:    __08__/__18__/__11__   Paper Name:     Arizona Silver Belt           .  

Advertised Dates:      From:  __08__/__24__/__11__   To:  __08__/__31__/__11__ 

Closing Date:             __09__/__19__/__11__   Bid Award Date:     ______/______/______ 

Awarded to:  __________________________________  P.O. No.:  ___________________________ 

Proposed Delivery Date:  ______/______/______ 
 

 

III.  OTHER APPROVAL   (only as necessary) 
 

Public Works:                     Dept. Head Sign:  ______________________________________ Date:  ______/______/______ 
                                
Community Action:           Dept. Head Sign:  ______________________________________ Date:  ______/______/______ 
                  
MIS Department:            Dept. Head Sign:  ______________________________________ Date:  ______/______/______ 
               

 

IV.  APPROVED FUNDING 
 

Finance Director Signature:  ___________________________________________________ Date:  ______/______/______ 
 

 

V.  LEGAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL   (Bid packet must be completed and attached) 

  

Signed:  ___________________________________________________________________ Date:  ______/______/______ 
 Bryan B. Chambers,  Chief Deputy County Attorney (Approved as to form)   
                         for Daisy Flores County Attorney 

 
Signed:  ____________________________________________________________________ Date:  ______/______/______ 
 Don E. McDaniel Jr., County Manager   (Approved as to specifications and information) 
 

 

VI.  AWARD APPROVAL 
 

Signed:  _____________________________________________________________________ Date:  ______/______/______ 
(Declaration that the Board of Supervisors approved the award as stated in Section V. of this page) 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman of the Board of Supervisors, Gila County 

 
. 



 
 
 
 
 

GILA COUNTY 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

 
GILA COUNTY PWD COMPLEX 

ROADYARD SHOP AREA PAVING PHASE 
 

BID CALL 080211‐1 
 
 

BIDDER'S INFORMATION  
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

*BOARD OF SUPERVISORS* 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 

Tommie C. Martin, Vice Chairman 
Shirley L. Dawson, Member 

 
 

*COUNTY MANAGER* 
Don E. McDaniel Jr. 

 
 

*PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR* 
Steve Stratton 

 
AUGUST 2011 

 
 



 
 

GILA COUNTY 
 

GILA COUNTY PWD COMPLEX 
ROADYARD SHOP AREA PAVING PHASE 

 
 
 

GLOBE, ARIZONA 
 
 
 
 

BIDDER'S INFORMATION 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

 
 

BID NO. 080211‐1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

C.L. Williams Consulting, Incorporated 
621 South Hillside Lane 
Pinetop, Arizona 85935 

(928) 367‐2248 
 



  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SECTION 0I 
 
 

INVITATION FOR BIDS 
 
 
 
 

IFB‐1 
 



                                             INVITATION FOR BIDS 
       BID CALL NO.   080211‐1   

Sealed bids will be  received by Gila County Procurement, 1400 East Ash  St., Globe, AZ 85501, until 
11:00  A.M.  (AZ  Time),  Monday,  September  19th,  2011  for  the  GILA  COUNTY  PWD  COMPLEX 
ROADYARD  SHOP  AREA  PAVING  PHASE,  GILA  COUNTY,  ARIZONA,  BID  NO.  080211‐1  in  strict 
accordance with the rules and regulations of the Gila County Procurement Code on file  in the office of 
the Gila County Clerk of the Board, Globe, Arizona.  No bids will be accepted after 11:00 AM.  The Bids 
will be publicly opened within  the Board of Supervisors Conference Room and  read aloud at 11:00 
AM, Arizona time, at the location and date listed above. 

   
All Bids  shall be made on  the  Invitation  for Bids  forms  included  in  the Contract Documents and  shall 
include all applicable taxes.  
 

There  is a mandatory site walk  through scheduled  for Thursday, September 1st, 2011 at 10:00 A.M. 
Meeting  shall be on‐site  at  the Gila County PWD Complex Roadyard  Shop,  immediately north of  the 
shop building, 1001 W. Besich Blvd, Globe, AZ. Only those companies signed in on the walk through sign‐
in sheet will be permitted to bid. Plans, Specifications and Contract documents are available and may be 
obtained from the office of Engineering Services, 928‐402‐8612, Gila County Public Works Division, 745 
North Rose Mofford Way, Globe, AZ. 
 

Each Bid submitted, either by hand, United States Postal Service, or other carrier, shall be sealed and 
plainly marked "GILA COUNTY PWD COMPLEX ROADYARD SHOP AREA PAVING PHASE, GILA COUNTY, 
ARIZONA  BID  CALL  NO.  080211‐1”.  All  Bids  shall  be  mailed  or  delivered  to  the  Gila  County 
Procurement, 1400 East Ash St., Globe, AZ 85501. Gila County Procurement and Board of Supervisors of 
Gila County will not be responsible for those bids submitted that are not marked appropriately and/or 
sent to the wrong address.  
 

Contractors are invited to be present at the opening of bids but absence will not be considered cause for 
disqualification. 
 

Contractors  shall be  responsible  for any  licenses or permits  required by  the  regulatory agency of  the 
State of Arizona that apply to the performance of this contract. 
 

After  the  Contractor who  is  determined  to  be most Advantageous  to  the  county  has  been  selected 
through the source selection process, negotiations may be conducted for the purpose of developing a 
recommended Contract for Award. 
 

The Gila County Board of Supervisors reserves the right to reject any or all bids, or to accept any bids, or 
to waive  any  informality  in  any bid, or  to withhold  the  award  if deemed  in  the best  interest of Gila 
County. 
 

Dates advertised in Arizona Silver Belt:   August 24th and 31st, 2011 
 
Signed:_____________________________________________    Date:  _____/_____/_____ 
  Bryan B. Chambers, Chief Deputy County Attorney 
  for Daisy Flores, County Attorney 

 
Signed: _____________________________________________    Date:  _____/_____/_____ 
  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
 
   



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

SECTION 01 ..................................................................................................................................... 1 
NOTIFICATION TO BIDDERS ........................................................................................................... 1 
 
SECTION 10 ..................................................................................................................................... 3 
DEFINITION OF TERMS ................................................................................................................... 3 
 
SECTION 20 ..................................................................................................................................... 9 
PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS ............................................................................ 9 
20‐03 CONTENTS OF PROPOSAL FORMS .................................................................................... 9 
20‐04 ISSUANCE OF PROPOSAL FORMS ..................................................................................... 9 
20‐05 INTERPRETATION OF ESTIMATED PROPOSAL QUANTITIES .............................................. 9 
20‐06 EXAMINATION OF PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, AND SITE ..................................................... 9 
20‐07  PREPARATION OF PROPOSAL ........................................................................................ 10 
20‐08 IRREGULAR PROPOSALS .................................................................................................. 10 
20‐09 PROPOSAL GUARANTY .................................................................................................... 11 
20‐10  DELIVERY OF PROPOSAL ................................................................................................ 11 
20‐11 WITHDRAWAL OR REVISION OF PROPOSALS ................................................................. 11 
20‐12 PUBLIC OPENING OF PROPOSALS ................................................................................... 11 
20‐13 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDERS ..................................................................................... 11 
20‐14 PROTESTS ........................................................................................................................ 12 

 
SECTION 30 ................................................................................................................................... 13 
AWARD AND EXECUTION OF CONTRACT .................................................................................... 13 
30‐01 CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSALS ................................................................................... 13 
30‐02 AWARD OF CONTRACT ................................................................................................... 13 
30‐03 CANCELLATION OF AWARD ............................................................................................ 13 
30‐04 RETURN OF PROPOSAL GUARANTY ................................................................................ 13 
30‐05 REQUIREMENTS OF CONTRACT BONDS ......................................................................... 14 
30‐06 EXECUTION OF CONTRACT ............................................................................................. 14 
30‐07 APPROVAL OF CONTRACT ............................................................................................... 14 
30‐08 FAILURE TO EXECUTE CONTRACT ................................................................................... 14 
30‐09  DISPUTE & RESOLUTION. ............................................................................................... 14 

 
SECTION 40 ................................................................................................................................... 16 
SCOPE OF WORK ........................................................................................................................... 16 
40‐01 INTENT OF CONTRACT .................................................................................................... 16 
40‐02 ALTERATION OF WORK AND QUANTITIES ...................................................................... 16 
40‐03 OMITTED ITEMS .............................................................................................................. 16 
40‐04 EXTRA WORK .................................................................................................................. 17 
40‐05 MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC ............................................................................................ 17 
40‐06 RIGHTS IN AND USE OF MATERIALS FOUND IN THE WORK ........................................... 18 
40‐07 FINAL CLEANING UP ........................................................................................................ 19 



 
SECTION 50 ................................................................................................................................... 20 
CONTROL OF WORK ..................................................................................................................... 20 
50‐01 AUTHORITY OF THE OWNER'S ENGINEER ...................................................................... 20 
50‐02 CONFORMITY WITH PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS ......................................................... 20 
50‐03 COORDINATION OF CONTRACT, PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS ...................................... 21 
50‐04 COOPERATION OF CONTRACTOR ................................................................................... 21 
50‐05 COOPERATION BETWEEN CONTRACTORS ...................................................................... 21 
50‐06 CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT AND STAKES ........................................................................... 22 
50‐07 AUTOMATICALLY CONTROLLED EQUIPMENT ................................................................ 22 
50‐08 AUTHORITY AND DUTIES OF INSPECTORS ...................................................................... 22 
50‐09 INSPECTION OF THE WORK ............................................................................................ 22 
50‐10 REMOVAL OF UNACCEPTABLE AND UNAUTHORIZED WORK ......................................... 23 
50‐11 LOAD RESTRICTIONS ....................................................................................................... 24 
50‐12 MAINTENANCE DURING CONSTRUCTION ...................................................................... 24 
50‐13 FAILURE TO MAINTAIN THE WORK ................................................................................ 24 
50‐14 PARTIAL ACCEPTANCE .................................................................................................... 25 
50‐15 FINAL ACCEPTANCE ........................................................................................................ 25 
50‐17 GUARANTEE OF WORK (ADDITIONAL) ........................................................................... 26 
50‐18 CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE ............................................................................................ 26 
50‐19 NEGOTIATIONS WITH INDIVIDUAL CONTRACTORS ........................................................ 26 

 
SECTION 60 ................................................................................................................................... 28 
CONTROL OF MATERIAL ............................................................................................................... 28 
60‐01 SOURCE OF SUPPLY AND QUALITY REQUIREMENTS ...................................................... 28 
60‐02 SAMPLES, TESTS, AND CITED SPECIFICATIONS ............................................................... 28 
60‐03 CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE ................................................................................... 29 
60‐04 PLANT INSPECTION ......................................................................................................... 29 
60‐05 OWNER'S FIELD OFFICE AND LABORATORY ................................................................... 30 
60‐06 STORAGE OF MATERIALS ................................................................................................ 30 
60‐07 UNACCEPTABLE MATERIALS ........................................................................................... 30 
60‐08 OWNER‐FURNISHED MATERIALS .................................................................................... 30 

 
SECTION 70 ................................................................................................................................... 32 
LEGAL RELATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITY TO PUBLIC .................................................................. 32 
70‐01 LAWS TO BE OBSERVED .................................................................................................. 32 
70‐02 PERMITS, LICENSES, AND TAXES ..................................................................................... 32 
70‐03 PATENTED DEVICES, MATERIALS, AND PROCESSES ....................................................... 32 
70‐04 RESTORATION OF SURFACES DISTURBED BY OTHERS .................................................... 32 
70‐05 SANITARY, HEALTH, AND SAFETY PROVISIONS .............................................................. 33 
70‐06 PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND SAFETY ............................................................................... 34 
70‐07 BARRICADES, WARNING SIGNS AND HAZARD MARKINGS ............................................. 34 
70‐08 PROTECTION AND RESTORATION OF PROPERTY AND LANDSCAPE ............................... 34 
70‐09 RESPONSIBILITY FOR DAMAGE CLAIMS .......................................................................... 35 
70‐10 CONTRACTOR'S INSURANCE ........................................................................................... 35 
70‐11 THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY CLAUSE ............................................................................... 36 
70‐12 OPENING SECTIONS OF THE WORK TO TRAFFIC ............................................................ 36 



70‐13 CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR WORK ................................................................. 36 
70‐14 CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR UTILITY SERVICE AND FACILITIES OF OTHERS .... 37 
70‐15 FURNISHING RIGHTS‐OF‐WAY ........................................................................................ 38 
70‐16 PERSONAL LIABILITY OF PUBLIC OFFICIALS .................................................................... 38 
70‐17 NO WAIVER OF LEGAL RIGHTS ........................................................................................ 38 
70‐18 ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION ..................................................................................... 39 

 
SECTION 80 ................................................................................................................................... 40 
PROSECUTION AND PROGRESS ................................................................................................... 40 
80‐01 SUBLETTING OF CONTRACT ............................................................................................ 40 
80‐02 NOTICE TO PROCEED ...................................................................................................... 40 
80‐03 PROSECUTION AND PROGRESS ...................................................................................... 41 
80‐04 CONSTRUCTION LIMITS .................................................................................................. 41 
80‐05 CHARACTER OF WORKERS, METHODS AND EQUIPMENT .............................................. 41 
80‐06 TEMPORARY SUSPENSION OF THE WORK ...................................................................... 42 
80‐07 DETERMINATION AND EXTENSION OF CONTRACT TIME ............................................... 43 
80‐08 FAILURE TO COMPLETE ON TIME ................................................................................... 44 
80‐09 DEFAULT AND TERMINATION OF CONTRACT ................................................................. 45 
80‐10 TERMINATION FOR NATIONAL EMERGENCIES ............................................................... 46 

 
SECTION 90 ................................................................................................................................... 47 
MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT .................................................................................................. 47 
90‐01 MEASUREMENT OF QUANTITIES .................................................................................... 47 
90‐02 SCOPE OF PAYMENT ....................................................................................................... 50 
90‐03 COMPENSATION FOR ALTERED QUANTITIES ................................................................. 50 
90‐04 PAYMENT FOR OMITTED ITEMS ..................................................................................... 50 
90‐05 PAYMENT FOR EXTRA AND FORCE ACCOUNT WORK ..................................................... 51 
90‐06 ACCEPTANCE AND FINAL PAYMENT ............................................................................... 52 

 
 
SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

PROPOSED WORK……………………………………………………………………………………………………….....….SP‐1 
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS…………………………………………………………………………………………….…...SP‐1 
POINTS AND INSTRUCTION AND AS‐BUILTS .……………………………………………………………..………SP‐2 
CONSTRUCTION LIMITS …………………………………………………………………………………………………….SP‐2 
OPERATION AND TRAFFIC CONTROL PLANS……………………………………………………………………….SP‐3 
QUALITY CONTROL PLAN …………………………………………………………………………………………………..SP‐3 
SAMPLING AND TESTING …………………………………………………………………………………………………..SP‐3 
MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT ………………………………………………………………………………………..SP‐4 
HAUL ROUTE ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….….SP‐5 
DUST CONTROL……………………………………………………………………………………………………………….…SP‐5 
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENTS …………………………………………………………………….…SP‐5 
OWNER'S FIELD OFFICE……………………………………………………………………………………………………...SP‐6 
BLASTING NOTIFICATION……………………………………………………………………………………………………SP‐6 
UTILITY SYSTEMS………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..SP‐6 
UTILITY RELOCATION/REMOVAL………………………………………………………………………………………..SP‐6 



DISPOSAL OF REMOVED VEGETATION OR UNSUITABLE MATERIALS ………………………………….SP‐6 
 
 

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 

107‐TEMPORARY CHAIN LINK FENCE…………………………………………………………………………….…….T‐1 
202‐REMOVAL OF STRUCTURES AND OBSTRUCTIONS ………………………………………………….…….T‐1 
203‐EARTH WORK ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………….T‐1 
206‐STRUCTURE EXCAVATION AND BACKFILL ……………………………………………………………………..T‐1 
206‐FURNISH WATER SUPPLY ……………………………………………………………………………………………..T‐1 
301‐SUBGRADE PREPARATION  …………………………………………………………………………………………..T‐2 
303‐AGGREGATE SUBBASES AND AGGREGATE BASES  ………………………………………………………..T‐2 
321‐ASPHALTIC CONCRETE PAVEMENT  ……………………………………………………………………………..T‐2 
340‐CONCRETE  CURB,  GUTTER,  SIDEWALK,  SIDEWALK  RAMPS,  DRIVEWAY  AND  ALLEY 
ENTRANCE………………………………………………………………………………………………….………………………..T‐3 
430‐LANDSCAPING AND PLANTING……………………………………………………………………………………..T‐3 
525‐PNUEMATICALLY PLACED MORTAR……………………………………………………………………………..T‐3 
701‐MAINTENANCE AND PROTECTION OF TRAFFIC ……………………………………………………………T‐4 
810‐EROSION CONTROL AND POLLUTION PREVENTION (SWPPP) ……………………………………….T‐4 
901‐MOBILIZATION ………………………………………………………………………………………………………..…..T‐4 
902‐CHAIN LINK FENCE….………………………………………………………………………………………………..…..T‐5 
903‐WIRE FENCE……………………………………………………………………………………………………………..…..T‐5 
909‐SURVEY MARKER  …………………………………………………………………………………………………………T‐5 
913‐BANK PROTECTION….……………………………………………………………………………………………………T‐5 
914‐WALLS AND MISCELLANEOUS STRUCTURES.…………………………………………………………………T‐5 
925‐CONSTRUCTION SURVEYING AND LAYOUT AND AS‐BUILT DRAWINGS …………………………T‐5 
 
 

CONTRACT FORMS 

PROPOSAL …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..P‐1 
BIDDING SCHEDULE …………………………………………………………………………………..………………………BS‐1 
SURETY (BID) BOND ………………………………………………………………………………………………………….BB‐1 
QUALIFICATION AND CERTIFICATION ……………………………………………………………………………….QC‐1 
REFERENCE LIST ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..RL‐1 
AFFIDAVIT OF NON‐COLLUSION ………………………………………………………………………………..……ANC‐1 
SUBCONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION …………………………………………………………………………………….SC‐1 
CHECKLIST AND ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGMENT ……………………………….……………………………..CK‐1 
CONTRACT ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….C‐1 
CONTRACT PERFORMANCE BOND …………………………………………………………………………………..CPB‐1 
LABOR AND MATERIALS BOND ………………………………………….……………………………….………....LMB‐1 
CONTRACT PERFORMANCE WARRANTY ……………………………………………………………………..…CWP‐1 
IRS W‐9 Form ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….…W‐9 
 



 GP-1 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
Bid No. 080211‐1 

 
  SECTION 01 
 
  NOTIFICATION TO BIDDERS 
 
 
BIDDERS ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED: 
 
1. The  bidder  must  supply  all  the  information  required  by  the  bidding  documents  or 

specifications.  All proposals shall be made on the bid proposal forms prepared by Gila 
County  as part of  the Contract Documents.   The proposal must  include  the  following 
forms, all with original signatures, and must accompany the bidder’s proposal: 

 
 Bid Proposal (pages P‐1 to P‐3) 
 Qualification & Certification Form (pages QC‐1 to QC‐2) 
 Reference List (RL1) 
 Bid Schedule (pages BS‐1 to BS‐2) 
 Surety (Bid) Bond (page BB‐1) 
 Affidavit of Non‐Collusion (page ANC‐1) 
 Subcontracting Certification (page SC‐1) 
 Check List & Addenda Acknowledgment (CK‐1) 
 Contract (C1‐C7) 
 IRS W‐9 Form (W‐9) 

 
Failure to  include all required documents, all with original signatures, may  invalidate 
the bid.  Prices shall include all applicable taxes.   

 
2. Proposal Guaranty ‐Proposals shall be accompanied by a certified check, cashier's check 

or bid bond for 10 percent (10%) of the total contract price bid. 
 
3.  Delivery of Proposal  ‐ Each bid shall be sealed and plainly marked "Bid No. 080211‐1 

GILA COUNTY PWD COMPLEX ROADYARD SHOP AREA PAVING PHASE", on  the outer 
most envelope or label.  If courier is used, bidder shall instruct the courier to deliver the 
package  by Monday,  September  19th,  2011  on  the  date  specified  herein,  to  the Gila 
County Procurement,  1400  East Ash  St., Globe, AZ  85501.   No bids will be  accepted 
after  11:00 A.M. AZ  Time, Monday,  September  19th,  2011.    Bids will  be  opened  at 
11:00 A.M. , Monday, September 19th, 2011.  

  
4.  Rejection of Bids  ‐The Owner reserves the right to reject any and all bids, waive all or 

any informalities in the bids. 
 
 
 
 
 



 GP-2 

 
Notification to Bidders continued… 
 
 
5.  Plans  and  Specifications  ‐Plans,  specifications  and  all  other  documents  required  by 

bidders may be obtained at  the address shown below.   A deposit of $20 per set, and 
$10 for mailing, $20 of which will be refunded upon return of the documents in good, 
usable order within seven (7) days of bid award.  Payment shall be by check or money 
order only.  No cash will be accepted.  

   
Gila County  

Engineering Services 
Gila County Public Works Division 
745 North Rose Mofford Way 

Globe, Arizona 85501 
 
6.  Arizona Contractor's  License  ‐Prior  to  submission of bids, bidders must have  a  valid 

Arizona  Contractor's  License  of  a  type which meets  all  criteria  and  requirements  to 
perform the work as specified in the contract documents in accordance with the Arizona 
State Registrar of Contractors. 

 
7.  Bid Opening  Information  ‐  Information  regarding  the bid  award will not be  available 

until  after  the Gila  County  Board  of  Supervisors  has  issued  a  decision  regarding  the 
submitted project bids. This will be the only time, until bid award, this  information will 
be revealed.   

 
8.  Mandatory Pre‐Bid Walk Through 

There is a mandatory site walk through scheduled for Thursday, September 1st, 2011 at 
10:00 A.M.   Meeting shall be on‐site at the Gila County PWD Complex Roadyard Shop, 
immediately north of the shop building, 1001 W. Besich Blvd, Globe, Arizona. Only those 
companies signed in on the walk through sign‐in sheet will be permitted to bid.  

 
9.  Request for Clarifications 

Requests for clarification shall be made to Ms. Valrie Bejarano (vbejarano@co.gila.az.us) 
in writing  (phone: 928‐402‐8612) submitted no  later than Wednesday, September 7th, 
2011 at 3:00 P.M.   A  response will be  issued  to all plan holders no  later  than Friday, 
September 9th, 2011 at 2:00 P.M. 
 

 

 

 

 



 GP-3 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
  SECTION 10 
 
  DEFINITION OF TERMS 
 
Whenever  the  following  terms  are  used  in  these  specifications,  in  the  contract,  in  any 
documents or other instruments pertaining to construction where these specifications govern, 
the intent and meaning shall be interpreted as follows: 
 
10‐00 M.A.G.   Uniform  Standard  Specifications  for Public Works Construction  (Latest Edition 
and Revisions).  Maricopa Association of Governments. 
 
10‐01  ACCESS  ROAD.    The  right‐of‐way,  the  roadway  and  all  improvements  constructed 
thereon. 
 
10‐02 ADOT.  Arizona Department of Transportation 
 
10‐03 ADOT  STANDARD  SPECIFICATIONS.    "Arizona Department  of  Transportation  Standard 
Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction, Revised Edition 2000", and all revisions. 
 
10‐04 ADVERTISEMENT.   A  public  announcement,  as  required  by  local  law,  inviting  bids  for 
work to be performed and materials to be furnished. 
 
10‐05 ASTM.  The American Society for Testing and Materials. 
 
10‐05a AASHTO.  The American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials. 
 
10‐06 AWARD.  The acceptance, by the Owner, of the successful bidder's proposal. 
 
10‐07 BIDDER.   Any  individual, partnership,  firm, or corporation, acting directly or  through a 
duly authorized representative, who submits a proposal for the work contemplated. 
 
10‐08 BUILDING AREA.  An area to be used, considered, or intended to be used for a building or 
other facilities or rights‐of‐way together with all buildings and facilities located thereon. 
 
10‐09 CALENDAR DAY.  Every day shown on the calendar. 
 
10‐09a CERTIFIED FLAGGER.   An  individual who has been trained and certified by the Arizona 
Department of Transportation, an Arizona County or Municipal agency,  the  Federal Highway 
Administration,  or  the Highway  agency  of  another  state,  to  control  traffic  in  a  construction 
zone.  Individuals certified outside Arizona must also exhibit familiarity with Arizona laws. 
 
10‐10 CHANGE ORDER.   A written order by the Engineer or Owner to the Contractor covering 
changes  in  the  plans,  specifications,  or  proposal  quantities  and  establishing  the  basis  of 
payment  and  contract  time  adjustment,  if  any,  for  the work  affected by  such  changes.    The 
work, covered by a change order, shall be within the scope of the contract. 



 GP-4 

 
Definition of Terms continued… 
 
 
10‐11 CONTRACT.   The written agreement covering the work to be performed.   The awarded 
contract  shall  include,  but  is  not  limited  to:    the  Advertisement;  the  Contract  form;  the 
Proposal;  the Performance Bond;  the Payment Bond; any  required  insurance certificates;  the 
Specifications; the Plans; and any addenda issued to bidders. 
 
10‐12 CONTRACT ITEM (PAY ITEM).  A specific unit of work for which a price is provided in the 
contract.  All pay items on this contract will be measured in English units. 
 
10‐13 CONTRACT TIME.  The number of calendar days or working days, stated in the proposal, 
allowed for completion of the contract, including authorized time extensions.  If a calendar date 
of completion  is stated  in  the proposal,  in  lieu of a number of calendar or working days,  the 
contract shall be completed by that date. 
 
10‐14 CONTRACTOR.   The  individual, partnership,  firm, or corporation primarily  liable  for  the 
acceptable  performance  of  the  work  contracted  and  for  the  payment  of  all  legal  debts 
pertaining to the work who acts directly or through lawful agents or employees to complete the 
contract work. 
 
10‐15  CONTRACTOR'S  ENGINEER.    The  Arizona  Registered  Professional  Civil  Engineer, 
individual, partnership, firm, or corporation, duly authorized by Contractor to be responsible for 
engineering supervision, quality control and certification of the Contract work. 
 
10‐15a  DEPARTMENT.      The  term  Department  in  the  ADOT  Standard  Specifications  and 
supplements  references  the  Arizona  Department  of  Transportation.    Department  shall 
reference OWNER for this contract work.   
 
10‐16 ENGINEER.   See OWNER. 
 
10‐17 EQUIPMENT.   All machinery,  together with  the necessary  fuel and supplies  for upkeep 
and maintenance including, but not limited to, all tools and apparatus necessary for the proper 
construction and acceptable completion of the work. 
 
10‐18 EXTRA WORK.   An  item of work not provided for  in the awarded contract as previously 
modified  by  change  order  or  supplemental  agreement,  but which  is  found  by  the  Owner's 
Engineer  to be necessary  to complete  the work within  the  intended scope of  the contract as 
previously modified. 
 
10‐19 INSPECTOR.  An authorized representative of the Owner's Engineer assigned to make all 
necessary  quality  assurance  inspections  and/or  tests  of  the  work  performed  or  being 
performed, or of the materials furnished or being furnished by the Contractor. 
 
 
 
 



 GP-5 

 
Definition of Terms continued… 
 
 
10‐20  INTENTION OF TERMS.   Whenever,  in  these  specifications or on  the plans,  the words 
"directed," "required," "permitted," "ordered," "designated," "prescribed," or words of the like 
import  are  used,  it  shall  be  understood  that  the  direction,  requirement,  permission,  order, 
designation,  or  prescription  of  the  Owner's  Engineer  is  intended;  and  similarly,  the words, 
"approved," "acceptable," "satisfactory," or words of  like  import, shall mean approved by, or 
acceptable  to,  or  satisfactory  to  the  Owner's  Engineer,  subject  in  each  case  to  the  final 
determination of the Owner. 
 
Any reference to a specific requirement of a numbered paragraph of the contract specifications 
or  a  cited  standard  shall  be  interpreted  to  include  all  general  requirements  of  the  entire 
section, specification item, or cited standard that may be pertinent to such specific reference. 
 
10‐21 LABORATORY.   A testing  laboratory as may be designated or approved by the Owner’s 
Engineer to test construction materials and products. 
 
10‐22  LABOR  AND  MATERIALS  BOND.    The  approved  form  of  security  furnished  by  the 
Contractor and his surety as a guaranty that he will pay in full all bills and accounts for materials 
and labor used in the construction of the work.  Also known as Payment Bond. 
 
10‐23 MAJOR AND MINOR CONTRACT ITEMS.  A major contract item shall be any item that is 
listed in the proposal, the total cost of which is equal to or greater than 10 percent of the total 
amount of the awarded contract.  All other items shall be considered minor contract items. 
 
10‐24 MATERIALS.  Any substance specified for use in the construction of the contract work. 
 
10‐24a MUTCD.  The Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Streets and Highways, U.S. 
Department  of  Transportation,  Federal  Highway  Administration,  Millennium  Edition,  with 
current revisions. 
 
10‐25 NOTICE TO PROCEED.   A written notice  to  the Contractor  to begin  the actual contract 
work on a previously agreed to date.  If applicable, the Notice to Proceed shall state the date on 
which the contract time begins. 
 
10‐26 OWNER  (SPONSOR).    The  term  Owner  shall mean  the  party  of  the  first  part  or  the 
contracting agency signatory to the contract. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 GP-6 

 
Definition of Terms continued. 
 
 
10‐27 OWNER'S ENGINEER.  The individual, partnership, firm, or corporation duly authorized by 
the Owner  (sponsor)  to be  responsible  for engineering  supervision of  the  contract work and 
acting directly or through an authorized representative.  The Owner's Engineer is: 
 

C.L. Williams Consulting Inc. 
621 South Hillside Lane 
Pinetop, Arizona 85935 
(928) 367‐2248 

 
  Contacts:  Joseph M. Alwin, P.E. (joe@clwilliams.net) 
 
10‐28 PAVEMENT.  The combined surface, base course, and sub base course, if any, considered 
as a single unit. 
 
10‐29 PERFORMANCE BOND.   The approved form of security furnished by the Contractor and 
his  surety  as  a  guaranty  that  the Contractor will  complete  the work  in  accordance with  the 
terms of the contract. 
 
10‐30 PLANS.  The official drawings or exact reproductions, approved by the Owner's Engineer, 
which show the  location, character, dimensions and details of the work to be done and which 
are to be considered as a part of the contract, supplementary to the specifications. 
 
10‐31 PROJECT.  The agreed scope of work for accomplishing specific tasks. 
 
10‐32 PROPOSAL.  The written offer of the bidder (when submitted on the approved proposal 
form)  to perform  the  contemplated work  and  furnish  the necessary materials  in  accordance 
with the provisions of the plans and specifications. 
 
10‐33 PROPOSAL GUARANTY.   The  security  furnished with a proposal  to guarantee  that  the 
bidder will enter into a contract if his proposal is accepted by the Owner. 
 
10‐34  SPECIFICATIONS.    A  part  of  the  contract  containing  the  written  directions  and 
requirements  for completing  the contract work.   Standards  for specifying materials or  testing 
which are cited in the contract specifications by reference shall have the same force and effect 
as if included in the contract physically. 
 
10‐35  STRUCTURES.    Facilities  such  as  bridges,  culverts,  catch  basins,  inlets,  retaining walls, 
cribbing, storm and sanitary sewer  lines, water  lines, underdrains, electrical ducts, manholes, 
handholes, lighting fixtures and bases, transformers, flexible and rigid pavements, navigational 
aids, buildings, vaults, and other manmade features that may be encountered in the work and 
not otherwise classified herein. 
 
 
 



 GP-7 

 
Definition of Terms continued… 
 
 
10‐36 SUBGRADE.  The soil that forms the pavement foundation. 
 
10‐37  SUPERINTENDENT.   The Contractor's  authorized  representative who  is present on  the 
work site during progress, and is authorized to receive and fulfill instructions from the Owner's 
Engineer, and who shall supervise and direct the construction. 
 
10‐38  SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT.   A written  agreement  between  the Contractor  and  the 
Owner  covering:  1)  work  that  would  increase  or  decrease  the  total  dollar  amount  of  the 
awarded  contract,  or  any major  contract  item,  by more  than  25  percent,  such  increased  or 
decreased work being within the scope of the originally awarded contract, or 2) work that is not 
within the scope of the originally awarded contract. 
 
10‐39  SURETY.    The  corporation,  partnership,  or  individual,  other  than  the  Contractor, 
executing payment or performance bonds which are furnished to the Owner by the Contractor. 
 
10‐40 WORK.  The furnishing of all labor, materials, tools, equipment and incidentals necessary 
or  convenient  to  the Contractor's  performance  of  all  duties  and  obligations  imposed  by  the 
contract, plans, and specifications. 
 
10‐41 WORK DAY, WORKING DAY.   A work day  shall be any day other  than a  legal holiday, 
Saturday, or Sunday on which the normal working forces of the Contractor may proceed with 
regular work for at least 6 hours toward completion of the contract, unless work is suspended 
for  causes  beyond  the  Contractor's  control.    Saturdays,  Sundays  and  holidays  on which  the 
Contractor's forces engage  in regular work, after obtaining written permission from the Public 
Works Director, or his authorized representative, which requires the presence of an inspector, 
will be considered and applied as working days.   
 
10‐42 WORK WEEK.   A work week  shall consist of  forty  (40) hours beginning on Sunday and 
ending on Saturday.  Should the Contractor engage in work exceeding the forty (40) hour work 
week which requires the presence of an  inspector, as determined by the County Public Works 
Director  or  his  authorized  representative,  the  Contractor  shall  reimburse  the  County  for  all 
overtime hours as 10‐43. 
 
10‐43 OVERTIME HOURS.  Any and all hours worked which are other than a normal work week 
as defined under 10‐42.   Contractor must give prior written notification  to  the Public Works 
Director or his authorized representative, for any and all overtime hours to be worked.  It shall 
be  at  the Owner's  discretion  to  provide  an  inspector  at  the worksite  to  ensure  compliance 
during any and all overtime hours worked.  
 
10‐44 OVERTIME PAY.  Any and all pay resulting from overtime hours worked.  
 
 
 
 



 GP-8 

 
Definition of Terms continued… 
 
 
10‐45 OWNER'S  INSPECTOR'S OVERTIME PAY.   Any and all pay  to  the Owner's  Inspector  for 
overtime hours worked  resulting  from  the Contractor having  received approval  for overtime 
hours.  The inspector's overtime pay shall be the actual monies paid by the County and shall be 
reimbursed  by  the  Contractor  to  the  County.    Certified  payrolls  for  the Owner's  Inspector's 
Overtime will be submitted to the Contractor.   The cost for the Owner's  Inspector's Overtime 
Pay will be deducted from the Contractor's billing. 
   
10‐46 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION.  See the ADOT Standard Specification Section 105.19 



 GP-9 

 GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
  SECTION 20 
 
  PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS 
 
20‐03 CONTENTS OF PROPOSAL FORMS.  The Owner shall furnish bidders with proposal forms.  
All papers bound with or attached to the proposal forms are necessary parts of the proposal. 
The proposal submitted by the bidder must include the entire bid packet. 
 
The plans, specifications, and other documents designated in the proposal whether attached or 
not to the proposal are considered as a part of and included with the proposal. 
 
20‐04  ISSUANCE OF  PROPOSAL  FORMS.    The Owner  reserves  the  right  to  refuse  to  issue  a 
proposal form to a prospective bidder should such bidder be in default for any of the following 
reasons:  
 

(a)  Failure  to  comply  with  any  prequalification  regulations  of  the  Owner,  if  such 
regulations  are  cited,  or  otherwise  included,  in  the  proposal  as  a  requirement  for 
bidding. 

(b)  Failure  to pay, or satisfactorily settle, all bills due  for  labor and materials on  former 
contracts  in  force  (with  the Owner) at  the  time  the Owner  issues  the proposal  to a 
prospective bidder. 

(c)  Contractor default under previous contracts with the Owner. 
(d)  Unsatisfactory work on previous contracts with the Owner. 

 
20‐05 INTERPRETATION OF ESTIMATED PROPOSAL QUANTITIES.   An estimate of quantities of 
work  to  be  done  and materials  to  be  furnished  under  these  specifications  is  given  in  the 
proposal.  It is the result of careful calculations and is believed to be correct.  It is given only as a 
basis for comparison of proposals and the award of the contract.  The Owner does not expressly 
or by  implication agree  that  the actual quantities  involved will correspond exactly  therewith; 
nor  shall  the  bidder  plead  misunderstanding  or  deception  because  of  such  estimates  of 
quantities, or of the character,  location, or other conditions pertaining to the work.   Payment 
to the Contractor will be made only for the actual quantities of work performed or materials 
furnished in accordance with the plans and specifications.  It is understood that the quantities 
may be increased or decreased as hereinafter provided in the subsection titled ALTERATION OF 
WORK AND QUANTITIES of Section 40‐02 without in any way invalidating the unit bid prices. 
 
20‐06  EXAMINATION  OF  PLANS,  SPECIFICATIONS,  AND  SITE.    The  bidder  is  expected  to 
carefully  examine  the  site  of  the  proposed  work,  the  proposal,  plans,  specifications,  and 
contract forms.  He shall satisfy himself as to the character, quality, and quantities of work to be 
performed, materials  to be  furnished, and as  to  the  requirements of  the proposed  contract.  
The  submission  of  a  proposal  shall  be  prima  facie  evidence  that  the  bidder  has made  such 
examination and is satisfied as to the conditions to be encountered in performing the work and 
as to the requirements of the proposed contract, plans and specifications. 
 
 



 GP-10 

Proposal Requirements & Conditions continued… 
 
 
If any person contemplating submitting a bid  for  the proposed contract  is  in doubt as  to  the 
true meaning of any part of the plans, specifications, or other proposed contract documents, or 
finds discrepancies  in, or omissions from the drawings or specifications, he may submit to the 
Owner's  Engineer  a written  request  for  an  interpretation or  correction  thereof.    The person 
submitting  the  request  will  be  responsible  for  its  prompt  delivery.    Any  interpretation  or 
correction of the contract documents will be made only by addendum duly issued and a copy of 
such  addendum  will  be  made  or  delivered  to  each  person  having  received  a  set  of  such 
documents.  The Owner will not be responsible for any other explanations or interpretations of 
the contract documents. 
 
Any  addenda  or  bulletins  issued  during  the  time  of  bid  preparations,  forming  a  part  of  the 
contract documents furnished the bidder for the preparation of his bid, shall be covered in the 
bid, and shall be made a part of the contract. 
 
20‐07    PREPARATION  OF  PROPOSAL    The  bidder  shall  submit  his  proposal  on  the  forms 
furnished  by  the Owner.   All  blank  spaces  in  the  proposal  forms must  be  correctly  filled  in 
where  indicated  for each and every  item  for which a quantity  is given.  The bidder shall state 
the price  (written  in  ink or  typed)  in NUMERALS  for which he proposes  to do each pay  item 
furnished in the proposal.  The TOTAL AGGREGATE AMOUNT bid shall be stated in both WORDS 
and NUMERALS.  A minimum of one (1) original and two (2) copies all with original signatures 
shall be submitted. 
 
The bidder shall sign his proposal correctly and in ink.  If the proposal is made by an individual, 
his name and mailing address must be shown.  If made by a partnership, the name and mailing 
address of each member of  the partnership must be  shown.    If made by  a  corporation,  the 
person  signing  the  proposal  shall  give  the  name  of  the  state  under which  the  laws  of  the 
corporation  were  chartered  and  the  name,  titles,  and  business  address  of  the  president, 
secretary, and the treasurer.   Anyone signing a proposal as an agent shall  file evidence of his 
authority to do so and that the signature is binding upon the firm or corporation. 
 
20‐08  IRREGULAR  PROPOSALS.    Proposals  shall  be  considered  irregular  for  the  following 
reasons: 
 

(a)  If the proposal is on a form other than that furnished by the Owner, or if the Owner's 
form is altered, or if any part of the proposal form is detached. 

(b)  If there are unauthorized additions, conditional or alternate pay items, or irregularities 
of any kind which make the proposal incomplete, indefinite, or otherwise ambiguous. 

(c)  If the proposal does not contain a unit price for each pay  item  listed  in the proposal, 
except  in  the  case  of  authorized  alternate  pay  items,  for which  the  bidder  is  not 
required to furnish a unit price. 

(d)  If the proposal contains unit prices that are obviously unbalanced. 
(e)  If the proposal is not accompanied by the proposal guaranty specified by the Owner. 

 
 



 GP-11 

Proposal Requirements & Conditions continued… 
 
 
The  Owner  reserves  the  right  to  reject  any  irregular  proposal  and  the  right  to  waive 
technicalities if such waiver is in the best interest of the Owner and conforms to local laws and 
ordinances pertaining to the letting of construction contracts. 
 
20‐09  PROPOSAL  GUARANTY.    Each  proposal  shall  be  accompanied  by  a  certified  check, 
cashier’s check or surety bond for ten percent (10%) of the amount of the bid  included  in the 
proposal as a guarantee that the Contractor will enter into a contract to perform the proposed 
work in accordance with the plans and specifications. 
 
20‐10  DELIVERY OF PROPOSAL.  Each proposal submitted shall be placed in a sealed envelope 
plainly marked with  the project number, name of project, and name and business address of 
the bidder on  the outside.   When  sent by mail, preferably  registered, or  courier,  the  sealed 
proposal,  marked  as  indicated  above,  should  be  enclosed  in  an  additional  envelope.    No 
proposal will be considered unless received at the place specified  in the advertisement before 
the time specified.  Proposals received after the specified time shall be returned to the bidder 
unopened. 
 
20‐11 WITHDRAWAL  OR  REVISION  OF  PROPOSALS.    A  bidder may withdraw  or  revise  (by 
withdrawal of one proposal and submission of another) a proposal provided that the bidder's 
request  for withdrawal  is  received  by  the Owner  in writing  or  by  telegram  before  the  time 
specified for receipt of bids.   Revised proposals must be received at the place specified  in the 
advertisement before the time specified for receipt of bids.   
 
20‐12 PUBLIC OPENING OF PROPOSALS.   Proposals  shall be opened and  read publicly at  the 
time  and  place  specified  in  the  advertisement.    Bidders,  their  authorized  agents,  and  other 
interested persons are invited to attend. 
 
Proposals that have been withdrawn  (by written or telegraphic request) or received after the 
time specified shall be returned to the bidder unopened. 
 
This will be the only time, until bid award, this information will be revealed. 
 
20‐13 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDERS.  A bidder shall be considered disqualified for any of the 
following reasons: 
 

(a)  Submitting more than one proposal  from the same partnership,  firm, or corporation 
under the same or different name. 

(b)  Evidence of collusion among bidders.   Bidders participating  in such collusion shall be 
disqualified as bidders  for any  future work of the Owner until any such participating 
bidder has been reinstated by the Owner as a qualified bidder. 

(c)  If the bidder is considered to be in "default" for any reason specified in the subsection 
titled ISSUANCE OF PROPOSAL FORMS of Section 20‐04. 

(d)   Failure to submit all required official bid forms. 
 
 



 GP-12 

Proposal Requirements & Conditions continued… 
 
 
20‐14 PROTESTS.  Only other bidders have the right to protest.  A protest of a proposed award 
or of an award must be filed within ten (10) days after the bid award by the Gila County Board 
of Supervisors and must be sent to the Board of Supervisors.  A protest must be in writing and 
must include: 
 

(a) Name, address and telephone number of the protester. 
(b) Signature of the protester or its representative, and evidence of authority to sign. 
(c) Identification of the contract and the solicitation or contract number. 
(d) Detailed  statement  of  the  legal  and  factual  grounds  of  protest  including  copies  of 

relevant documents. 
(e) The form of relief requested. 

 
All protests shall be sent to the attention of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, 1400 E. Ash 
Street, Globe, Arizona  85501 

 



 GP-13 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
  SECTION 30 
 
  AWARD AND EXECUTION OF CONTRACT 
 
30‐01 CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSALS.  After the proposals are publicly opened and read, they 
will be compared on the basis of the summation of the products obtained by multiplying the 
estimated  quantities  shown  in  the  proposal  by  the  unit  bid  prices.    If  a  bidder's  proposal 
contains a discrepancy between unit bid prices written  in words and unit bid prices written  in 
numbers, the unit price written in words, unless obviously incorrect, shall govern. 
 
Until the award of a contract is made, the Owner reserves the right to reject a bidder's proposal 
for any of the following reasons: 
 

(a) If the proposal is irregular as specified in the subsection titled IRREGULAR PROPOSALS of 
Section 20‐08. 

(b) If  the  bidder  is  disqualified  for  any  of  the  reasons  specified  in  the  subsection  titled 
DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDERS of Section 20‐13. 

 
In addition, until the award of a contract is made, the Owner reserves the right to reject any or 
all proposals; waive technicalities,  if such waiver  is  in the best  interest of the Owner and  is  in 
conformance with  applicable  state  and  local  laws  or  regulations  pertaining  to  the  letting  of 
construction contracts; advertise  for new proposals; or proceed with the work otherwise.   All 
such actions shall promote the Owner's best interests. 
 
30‐02 AWARD OF CONTRACT.   The  award of  contract,  if  it  is  to be  awarded,  shall be made 
within  sixty  (60)  calendar  days  of  the  date  specified  for  publicly  opening  proposals,  unless 
otherwise specified herein. 
 
This contract will be awarded to the responsible bidder whose bid conforms to the  invitation 
and whose  bid  is  the most  advantageous  to  the Owner  concerning price,  conformity  to  the 
specifications and other factors. 
 
30‐03 CANCELLATION OF AWARD.   The Owner reserves the right to cancel the award without 
liability  to  the bidder, except  return of proposal guaranty, at any  time before a contract has 
been  fully  executed  by  all  parties  and  is  approved  by  the  Owner  in  accordance  with  the 
subsection titled APPROVAL OF CONTRACT of Section 30‐07. 
 
30‐04 RETURN OF PROPOSAL GUARANTY.  All proposal guaranties, except those of the two (2) 
lowest bidders, will be returned immediately after the Owner has made a comparison of bids as 
hereinbefore specified  in the subsection titled CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSALS of Section 30‐
01.  Proposal guaranties of the two lowest bidders will be retained by the Owner until such time 
as  an  award  is  made,  at  which  time  the  unsuccessful  bidder's  proposal  guaranty  will  be 
returned as soon as the Owner receives the contract bonds as specified in the subsection titled 
REQUIREMENTS OF CONTRACT BONDS of Section 30‐05. 
 
 



 GP-14 

Award & Execution of Contract continued… 
 
 
30‐05 REQUIREMENTS OF CONTRACT BONDS.  At the time of the execution of the contract, the 
successful bidder shall furnish the Owner surety bond or bonds which have been fully executed 
by the bidder and his surety guaranteeing the performance of the work and the payment of all 
legal debts that may be  incurred by reason of the Contractor's performance of the work.   The 
surety and the form of the bond or bonds shall be acceptable to the Owner.  Unless otherwise 
specified in this subsection, the surety bond or bonds shall be in a sum equal to the full amount 
of the contract.  All bonds shall conform to the requirements of A.R.S. §34‐222 and §34‐223. § 
 
30‐06  EXECUTION  OF  CONTRACT.  The  successful  bidder  shall  sign  (execute)  the  necessary 
agreements for entering into the contract and return such signed contract to the Owner, along 
with the fully executed surety bond or bonds specified in the subsection titled REQUIREMENTS 
OF CONTRACT BONDS of Section 30‐05, the Contractor’s Statement of Insurance and an original 
Certificate of Insurance conforming with the requirements of Section 70‐10, within 10 calendar 
days  from  the date mailed or otherwise delivered  to  the successful bidder.    If  the contract  is 
mailed, special handling is recommended. 
 
30‐07 APPROVAL OF CONTRACT.  Upon receipt of the contract and contract bond or bonds that 
have been executed by  the successful bidder,  the Owner shall complete  the execution of  the 
contract in accordance with local laws or ordinances, and return the fully executed contract to 
the Contractor.   Delivery of  the  fully executed contract  to  the Contractor shall constitute  the 
Owner's  approval  to  be  bound  by  the  successful  bidder's  proposal  and  the  terms  of  the 
contract.  This agreement is subject to cancellation pursuant to A.R.S. §38‐511.   
 
30‐08  FAILURE  TO  EXECUTE  CONTRACT.    Failure  of  the  successful  bidder  to  execute  the 
contract as specified  in  the  subsection  titled EXECUTION OF CONTRACT of Section 30‐06 and 
furnish an acceptable surety bond or bonds within the 10‐calendar‐day period specified in the 
subsection titled REQUIREMENTS OF CONTRACT BONDS of Section 30‐05 shall be just cause for 
cancellation  of  the  award  and  forfeiture  of  the  proposal  guaranty,  not  as  a  penalty,  but  as 
liquidation of damages to the Owner. 

30‐09  DISPUTE & RESOLUTION. 

 Initial Notification & Dispute of Resolution:  As required by these Specifications or any 
time the Contractor believes the action or decision of the County, lack of action by the 
County,  or  for  some  other  reason  will  result  in  or  necessitate  the  revision  of  the 
Contract, the County Engineer must be notified immediately.  If within two (2) working 
days the identified issue has not been resolved between the Contractor and the County, 
the Contractor shall provide a written notice.   At a minimum,  the written notice shall 
provide a description of  the nature of  the  issue,  the  time and date  the problem was 
discovered, and if appropriate, the location of the issue.  After initial written notice has 
been  provided,  the  County  Engineer  will  proceed  in  accordance  with MAG  Uniform 
Standard Specifications Subsection 104.2.  In addition to proceeding in accordance with 
Subsection 104.2, the Contractor and the County must make every effort to resolve the 
issue identified in the initial notice. Only if the issue cannot be quickly resolved will it be 
necessary to proceed to the next step in accordance with MAG Specs Subsection 110.2.2 
Dispute Resolution. 



 GP-15 

 Process  for Dispute Resolution:    If  the Contractor  rejects  the decision of  the County 
according  to  Subsection  110.2.2(B),  the  Contractor  may  begin  the  Administration 
Process  to resolve  the dispute.   All dispute resolutions shall be handled  in accordance 
with MAG Spec’s Subsection 110.3, Administrative Process for Dispute Resolution. 

 
The  administrative  process  for  the  resolution  of  disputes  is  sequential  in  nature  and  is 
composed of the following levels:  Level I (County Project Manager), Level II (County Engineer, 
Level III (Public Works Director). 
 
The  provision  set  forth  in  Subsection  110.2  is  a  contractual  obligation  assumed  by  the 
Contractor  in  executing  the  Contract.    It  is  understood  that  the  Contractor will  be  forever 
barred  from  recovering against  the County  if  the Contractor  fails  to give notice of any act or 
failure to act, by the County, or the happening of any event, thing, or occurrence, in accordance 
with Subsection 104.2, Alteration of Work. 
 

 Dispute  Review  Board:      If  the  Dispute  Review  Board  is  utilized  as  prescribed  in 
Subsection 110.3.3,  the County Engineer  shall be notified within  thirty  (30) days after 
the Level III Representative decision.   The Dispute Review Board  is a three (3) member 
board independent of the parties involved in the issue.  The County and Contractor shall 
each select a member for this board.  The third (3rd) member shall be a mutually agreed 
upon  independent member.   This Review Board must be selected within fourteen (14) 
calendar days after notice to the Level  III Representative.   Each member shall agree to 
impartially serve the County and Contractor.  Fees and expenses of the Board Members 
are to be shared equally by the County and the Contractor.  The Dispute Review Board 
shall meet  within  thirty  (30)  days  of  the  selection  of  the  board,  unless,  by mutual 
agreement, another date  is selected.   The scope of the Dispute Review Board shall be 
restricted and limited to the matters originally presented to the Level III Representative 
for  decision  or  determination  and  shall  include  no  other matters.    The  Board  shall 
consider and evaluate  the dispute and  render a written decision  that assigns  financial 
responsibilities and allocates adjustments in the contact time, if applicable, within seven 
(7) calendar days after the meeting.   The decision of the Dispute Review Board will be 
final. 

 



 GP-16 

  GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
  SECTION 40 
 
  SCOPE OF WORK 
 
40‐01  INTENT OF CONTRACT.    The  intent of  the  contract  is  to provide  for  construction  and 
completion,  in every detail, of  the work described.    It  is  further  intended  that  the Contractor 
shall furnish all labor, materials, equipment, tools, and supplies required to complete the work 
in accordance with the plans, specifications, and terms of the contract. 
 
40‐02 ALTERATION OF WORK AND QUANTITIES.  The Owner reserves and shall have the right 
to make such alterations  in the work as may be necessary or desirable to complete the work 
originally  intended  in an acceptable manner.   Unless otherwise specified herein,  the Owner's 
Engineer shall be and is hereby authorized to make such alterations in the work as may increase 
or  decrease  the  originally  awarded  contract  quantities,  provided  that  the  aggregate  of  such 
alterations does not change the total contract cost or the total cost of any major contract item 
by  more  than  twenty‐five  percent  (25%)  (total  cost  being  based  on  the  unit  prices  and 
estimated quantities in the awarded contract). Alterations which do not exceed the twenty‐five 
percent  (25%)  limitation  shall  not  invalidate  the  contract  nor  release  the  surety,  and  the 
Contractor agrees to accept payment for such alterations as if the altered work had been a part 
of the original contract.   These alterations which are for work within the general scope of the 
contract shall be covered by "Change Orders"  issued by the Owner's Engineer.   Change order 
for  altered work  shall  include  extensions  of  contract  time where,  in  the Owner's  Engineer's 
opinion, such extensions are commensurate with the amount and difficulty of added work. 
 
Should the aggregate amount of altered work exceed the twenty‐five percent (25%)  limitation 
hereinbefore specified, such excess altered work shall be covered by supplemental agreement.  
If the Owner and the Contractor are unable to agree on a unit adjustment for any contract item 
that  requires  a  supplemental  agreement,  the  Owner  reserves  the  right  to  terminate  the 
contract with respect to the item and make other arrangements for its completion. 
 
All  supplemental  agreements  shall  require  consent  of  the  Contractor's  surety  and  separate 
performance and payment bonds. 
 
40‐03 OMITTED ITEMS.  The Owner's Engineer may, in the Owner's best interest, omit from the 
work any contract item, except major contract items.  Major contract items may be omitted by 
a  supplemental  agreement.    Such  omission  of  contract  items  shall  not  invalidate  any  other 
contract provision or requirement. 
 
Should a contract  item be omitted or otherwise ordered to be non‐performed, the Contractor 
shall be paid  for all work performed toward completion of such  item prior to the date of the 
order  to  omit  such  item.    Payment  for  work  performed  shall  be  in  accordance  with  the 
subsection titled PAYMENT FOR OMITTED ITEMS of Section 90‐04. 
 
 
 



 GP-17 

Scope of Work continued… 
 
 
40‐04 EXTRA WORK.   Should acceptable completion of the contract require the Contractor to 
perform  an  item  of work  for which  no  basis  of  payment  has  been  provided  in  the  original 
contract or previously  issued  change orders or  supplemental  agreements,  the  same  shall be 
called  EXTRA WORK.    Extra work  that  is within  the  general  scope  of  the  contract  shall  be 
covered by written change order.  Change orders for such extra work shall contain agreed unit 
prices for performing the change order work in accordance with the requirements specified in 
the order, and shall contain any adjustment to the contract time that, in the Owner's Engineer's 
opinion, is necessary for completion of such extra work. 
 
When determined by the Owner's Engineer to be in the Owner's best interest, he may order the 
Contractor  to proceed with extra work by  force account as provided  in  the  subsection  titled 
PAYMENT FOR EXTRA AND FORCE ACCOUNT WORK of Section 90‐05. 
 
Extra work  that  is necessary  for  acceptable  completion of  the project, but  is not within  the 
general scope of the work covered by the original contract, shall be covered by an agreement 
as hereinbefore defined in the subsection titled SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT of Section 10‐38. 
 
Any claim for payment of extra work that is not covered by written agreement (change order or 
supplemental agreement) shall be rejected by the Owner. 
 
40‐05 MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC.  It is the explicit intention of the contract that the safety of 
all traffic, vehicular and pedestrian, as well as the Contractor's equipment and personnel, is the 
most important consideration. 
 
With respect to his own operations and the operations of all his subcontractors, the Contractor 
shall  provide  marking,  lighting,  and  other  acceptable  means  of  identifying  personnel, 
equipment, vehicles, storage areas, and any work area or condition that may be hazardous to 
the operation of all traffic, vehicular and pedestrian. 
 
When the contract requires the maintenance of vehicular traffic on an existing road, street, or 
highway  during  the  Contractor's  performance  of work  that  is  otherwise  provided  for  in  the 
contract, plans, and specifications, the Contractor shall keep such road, street, or highway open 
to all  traffic and shall provide such maintenance as may be required  to accommodate  traffic.  
The Contractor shall furnish, erect, and maintain barricades, warning signs, flaggers, and other 
traffic  control  devices  in  reasonable  conformity with  the Manual  of Uniform  Traffic  Control 
Devices  for  Streets  and  Highways  (MUTCD)  PART  VI,  (published  by  the  United  States 
Government  Printing  Office),  unless  otherwise  specified  herein.    The  Contractor  shall  also 
construct and maintain in a safe condition any temporary connections necessary for ingress to 
and egress from abutting property or intersecting roads, streets or highways.  Unless otherwise 
specified herein, the Contractor will not be required to furnish snow removal for such existing 
road, street, or highway. 
 
 
 
 



 GP-18 

Scope of Work continued… 
 
 
The Contractor shall make his own estimate of all labor, materials, equipment, and incidentals 
necessary for providing the maintenance of pedestrian and vehicular traffic as specified in this 
subsection. 
 
40‐06  RIGHTS  IN  AND  USE  OF MATERIALS  FOUND  IN  THE WORK.    Should  the  Contractor 
encounter any materials  such as  (but not  restricted  to)  sand,  stone, gravel,  slag, or  concrete 
slabs within the established  lines, grades, or grading sections, the use of which  is  intended by 
the terms of the contract to be either embankment or waste, he may at his option either: 
 

(a)  Use  such material  in  another  contract  item,  providing  such  use  is  approved  by  the 
Owner's Engineer and is in conformance with the contract specifications applicable to 
such use; or,  

(b)  Remove such material from the site, upon written approval of the Owner's Engineer; 
or,  

(c)  Use such material for his own temporary construction on site; or,  
(d)  Use such material as intended by the terms of the contract. 

 
Should  the  Contractor wish  to  exercise  option  (a),  (b),  or  (c),  he  shall  request  the Owner's 
Engineer's  approval  in  advance  of  such  use.    Should  the  Owner's  Engineer  approve  the 
Contractor's  request  to  exercise  option  (a),  (b),  or  (c),  the  Contractor  shall  be  paid  for  the 
excavation or removal of such material at the applicable contract price.   The Contractor shall 
replace, at his own expense, such removed or excavated material with an agreed equal volume 
of material that is acceptable for use in constructing embankment, backfills, or otherwise to the 
extent  that  such  replacement  material  is  needed  to  complete  the  contract  work.    The 
Contractor shall not be charged  for his use of such material so used  in  the work or  removed 
from the site. 
 
Should  the Owner's Engineer approve  the Contractor's exercise of option  (a),  the Contractor 
shall  be  paid,  at  the  applicable  contract  price,  for  furnishing  and  installing  such material  in 
accordance with requirements of the contract item in which the material is used. 
 
It is understood and agreed that the Contractor shall make no claim for delays by reason of his 
exercise of option (a), (b), or (c). 
 
The Contractor  shall not excavate,  remove, or otherwise disturb  any materials,  structure, or 
part of a structure which is located outside the lines, grades, or grading sections established for 
the work, except where such excavation or  removal  is provided  for  in  the contract, plans, or 
specifications. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 GP-19 

Scope of Work continued… 
 
 
40‐07  FINAL CLEANING UP.   Upon  completion of  the work  and before  acceptance  and  final 
payment will be made,  the Contractor  shall  remove  from  the  site all machinery, equipment, 
surplus  and  discarded materials,  rubbish,  temporary  structures,  and  stumps  or  portions  of 
trees.  He shall cut all brush and woods within the limits indicated and shall leave the site in a 
neat  and  presentable  condition.   Material  cleared  from  the  site  and  deposited  on  adjacent 
property will not be considered as having been disposed of satisfactorily, unless the Contractor 
has  obtained  the  written  permission  of  such  property  owner  and  furnished  a  copy  to  the 
Owner's Engineer. 



 GP-20 

 GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
  SECTION 50 
 
  CONTROL OF WORK 
 
50‐01 AUTHORITY OF THE OWNER'S ENGINEER.  The Owner shall decide any and all questions 
which may  arise  as  to  the  quality  and  acceptability  of materials  furnished,  based  upon  the 
Contractor's Engineer's certification for the quality and acceptability work performed, and as to 
the manner of performance and  rate of progress of  the work.   He  shall decide all questions 
which may arise as to the interpretation of the specifications or plans relating to the work, the 
fulfillment of the contract on the part of the Contractor, and the rights of different contractors 
on the project.  The Owner shall review and determine, based upon the Contractor's Engineer's 
certifications on amounts, quality of work and materials furnished, the amount and quality of 
the  several kinds of work performed and materials  furnished which are  to be paid  for under 
contract. 
 
50‐02 CONFORMITY WITH PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS.  All work and materials furnished shall 
be the full responsibility of the Contractor and shall be in reasonably close conformity with the 
lines, grades, grading  section,  cross  sections, dimensions, material  requirements, and  testing 
requirements  that  are  specified  (including  specified  tolerances)  in  the  contract,  plans,  or 
specifications, and shall be certified by the Contractor's Engineer. 
 
If the Owner finds the materials furnished, work performed, or the finished product not within 
reasonably close conformity with the plans and specifications, but that the portion of the work 
affected will,  in  his  opinion,  result  in  a  finished  product  having  a  level  of  safety,  economy, 
durability  and  workmanship  acceptable  to  the  Owner,  he  will  advise  the  Owner  of  his 
determination  that  the  affected work  be  accepted  and  remain  in  place.    In  this  event,  the 
Owner will document his determination and recommend to  the Owner a basis of acceptance 
which will provide for an adjustment in the contract price for the affected portion of the work.  
The Owner's  determination  and  recommended  contract  price  adjustments will  be  based  on 
good engineering  judgment and on such  tests or retests by  the Contractor's Engineer, and at 
the Contractor's expense, of the affected work as are,  in his opinion, needed.   Changes  in the 
contract  price  shall  be  covered  by  contract  modifications  (change  order  or  supplemental 
agreement) as applicable. 
 
If the Owner finds the materials furnished, work performed, or the finished product are not in 
reasonably  close  conformity  with  the  plans  and  specifications  and  have  resulted  in  an 
unacceptable finished product, the affected work or materials shall be removed and replaced or 
otherwise  corrected by and at  the expense of  the Contractor  in accordance with  the Owner 
written orders. 
 
For  the  purpose  of  this  subsection,  the  term  "reasonably  close  conformity"  shall  not  be 
construed as waiving the Contractor's responsibility to complete the work  in accordance with 
the contract, plans and specifications.  The terms shall not be construed as waiving the Owner's 
right  to  insist  on  strict  compliance  with  the  requirements  of  the  contract,  plans,  and 
specifications during the Contractor's prosecution of the work, when,  in the Owner's opinion, 
such compliance is essential to provide an acceptable finished portion of the work. 
 



 GP-21 

Control of Work continued… 
 
 
For the purpose of this subsection, the term "reasonably close conformity"  is also  intended to 
provide the Owner with the authority to use good engineering judgment in his determinations 
as  to  acceptance of work  that  is not  in  strict  conformity but will provide  a  finished product 
equal  to  or  better  than  that  intended  by  the  requirements  of  the  contract,  plans  and 
specifications. 
 
50‐03  COORDINATION  OF  CONTRACT,  PLANS  AND  SPECIFICATIONS.    The  contract,  plans, 
specifications,  and  all  referenced  standards  cited  are  essential  parts  of  the  contract 
requirements.  A requirement occurring in one is as binding as though occurring in all.  They are 
intended  to be complementary and  to describe and provide  for a complete work.    In case of 
discrepancy,  calculated  dimensions  will  govern  over  scaled  dimensions;  contract  technical 
specifications shall govern over contract general provisions, plans, cited standards for materials 
or testing; contract general provisions shall govern over plans, cited standards for materials or 
testing; plans shall govern over County standards for materials or testing. 
 
The  Contractor  shall  not  take  advantage  of  any  apparent  error  or  omission  on  the  plans  or 
specifications.  In the event the Contractor discovers any apparent error or discrepancy, he shall 
immediately call upon the Owner for his interpretation and decision, and such decision shall be 
final. 
 
50‐04 COOPERATION OF CONTRACTOR.  The Contractor will be supplied with two copies each 
of the plans and specifications.  He shall have available on the job at all times one copy each of 
the plans and specifications.  Additional copies of plans and specifications may be obtained by 
the Contractor for the cost of reproduction. 
 
The Contractor shall give constant attention to the work to facilitate the progress thereof, and 
he shall cooperate with the Owner and his inspectors and with other contractors in every way 
possible.  The Owner shall allocate the work and designate the sequence of construction in case 
of controversy between contractors.  The Contractor shall have a competent superintendent on 
the job at all times who is fully authorized as his agent for the work.  The superintendent shall 
be  capable  of  reading  and  thoroughly  understanding  the  plans  and  specifications  and  shall 
receive and fulfill instructions from the Owner or his authorized representative. 
 
50‐05 COOPERATION BETWEEN CONTRACTORS.  The Owner reserves the right to contract for 
and perform other or additional work on or near the work covered by this contract. 
 
When  separate  contracts  are  let within  the  limits  of  any  one  project,  each  contractor  shall 
conduct his work so as not to  interfere with or hinder the progress of completion of the work 
being  performed  by  other  contractors.    Contractors  working  on  the  same  project  shall 
cooperate with each other as directed. 
 
Each contractor involved shall assume all liability, financial or otherwise, in connection with his 
contract and  shall protect and  save harmless  the Owner  from any and all damages or claims 
that may arise because of  inconvenience, delays, or  loss experienced by him because of  the 
presence and operations of other contractors working within the limits of the same project. 
 



 GP-22 

Control of Work continued… 
 
 
The Contractor shall arrange his work and shall place and dispose of the materials being used so 
as not to  interfere with the operations of the other contractors within the  limits of the same 
project.    He  shall  join  his work with  that  of  the  others  in  an  acceptable manner  and  shall 
perform it in proper sequence to that of the others. 
 
50‐06 CONSTRUCTION  LAYOUT AND STAKES.   The Contractor and  the Contractor's Engineer 
will establish lines, grades, and measurements necessary to the proper prosecution and control 
of the work contracted for under these specifications.  The Contractor shall satisfy himself as to 
the accuracy of all measurements before constructing any permanent structure.  Any question 
raised relative to the accuracy of construction shall not be raised unless all survey stakes remain 
intact.   Should such stakes not be present and verified as to their origin, no claim for addition 
compensation for correction shall be submitted for payment and such shall be corrected by the 
Contractor at his expense.  
 
50‐07  AUTOMATICALLY  CONTROLLED  EQUIPMENT.    Whenever  batching  or  mixing  plant 
equipment  is  required  to be operated automatically under  the  contract and a breakdown or 
malfunction of the automatic controls occurs, the equipment may be operated manually or by 
other methods for a period of 48 hours following the breakdown or malfunction, provided this 
method  of  operations will  produce  results which  conform  to  all  other  requirements  of  the 
contract. 
 
50‐08 AUTHORITY AND DUTIES OF  INSPECTORS.    Inspectors employed by the Owner shall be 
authorized to inspect all work done and all material furnished.  Such inspection may extend to 
all or any part of the work and to the preparation, fabrication, or manufacture of the materials 
to  be  used.    Inspectors  are  not  authorized  to  revoke,  alter,  or waive  any  provision  of  the 
contract.    Inspectors  are  not  authorized  to  issue  instructions  contrary  to  the  plans  and 
specifications or to act as foreman for the Contractor. 
 
Inspectors employed by the Owner are authorized to notify the Contractor or his representative 
of any failure of the work or materials to conform to the requirements of the contract, plans, or 
specifications and to reject such nonconforming materials  in question until such  issues can be 
referred to the Owner's Engineer for his decision. 
 
50‐09  INSPECTION OF THE WORK.   All materials and each part or detail of  the work shall be 
subject to inspection by the Owner.  The Owner shall be allowed access to all parts of the work 
and shall be furnished with such information and assistance by the Contractor as is required to 
make a complete and detailed inspection. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 GP-23 

Control of Work continued… 
 
 
If  the Owner  requests  it,  the  Contractor,  at  any  time  before  acceptance  of  the work,  shall 
remove or uncover such portions of the finished work as may be directed.  After examination, 
the  Contractor  shall  restore  said  portions  of  the  work  to  the  standard  required  by  the 
specifications.  Should the work thus exposed or examined prove acceptable, the uncovering, or 
removing and the replacing of the covering or making good of the parts removed will be paid 
for  as  extra  work;  but  should  the  work  so  exposed  or  examined  prove  unacceptable,  the 
uncovering,  or  removing,  and  the  replacing  of  the  covering  or  making  good  of  the  parts 
removed will be at the Contractor's expense. 
 
Any  work  done  or  materials  used  without  supervision  or  inspection  by  an  authorized 
representative  of  the  Owner  may  be  ordered  removed  and  replaced  at  the  Contractor's 
expense unless the Owner's representative failed to inspect after having been given reasonable 
notice in writing that the work was to be performed. 
 
Should the contract work include relocation, adjustment, or any other modification to existing 
facilities, not the property of the (contract) Owner, authorized representatives of the owners of 
such facilities shall have the right to  inspect such work.   Such  inspection shall  in no way make 
any facility owner a party to the contract, and shall  in no way  interfere with the rights of the 
parties to this contract. 
 
50‐10 REMOVAL OF UNACCEPTABLE AND UNAUTHORIZED WORK.   All work which does not 
conform  to  the  requirements  of  the  contract,  plans,  and  specifications  will  be  considered 
unacceptable,  unless  otherwise  determined  acceptable  by  the  Owner  as  provided  in  the 
subsection titled CONFORMITY WITH PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS of Section 50‐02. 
 
Unacceptable  work,  whether  the  result  of  poor  workmanship,  use  of  defective  materials, 
damage through carelessness, or any other cause found to exist prior to the final acceptance of 
the work, shall be removed  immediately and replaced  in an acceptable manner  in accordance 
with  the  provisions  of  the  subsection  titled  CONTRACTOR'S  RESPONSIBILITY  FOR WORK  of 
Section 70‐13. 
 
No work shall be done without lines and grades having been given by the Contractor's Engineer 
and authorized by the Owner.  Work done contrary to the instructions of the Owner, work done 
beyond the lines shown on the plans or as given, except as herein specified, or any extra work 
done without authority will be considered as unauthorized and will not be paid for under the 
provisions  of  the  contract.    Work  so  done  may  be  ordered  removed  or  replaced  at  the 
Contractor's expense. 
 
Upon failure on the part of the Contractor to comply as soon as possible with any order of the 
Owner made under  the provisions of  this subsection,  the Owner will have authority  to cause 
unacceptable work  to  be  remedied  or  removed  and  replaced  and  unauthorized work  to  be 
removed and to deduct the costs (incurred by the Owner) from any monies due or to become 
due the Contractor. 
 
 



 GP-24 

 
Control of Work continued… 
 
 
50‐11 LOAD RESTRICTIONS.   The Contractor shall comply with all  legal  load restrictions  in the 
hauling of materials on public roads beyond  the  limits of  the work.   A special permit will not 
relieve  the Contractor of  liability  for damage  that may  result  from  the moving of material or 
equipment. 
 
The operation of equipment of such weight or so loaded as to cause damage to structures or to 
any other type of construction will not be permitted.  Hauling of materials over the base course 
or surface course under construction shall be limited as directed.  No loads will be permitted on 
a  concrete  pavement,  base,  or  structure  before  the  expiration  of  the  curing  period.    The 
Contractor shall be responsible for all damage done by his hauling equipment and shall correct 
such damage at this own expense. 
 
50‐12 MAINTENANCE DURING CONSTRUCTION.  The Contractor shall maintain the work during 
construction and until the work is accepted.  This maintenance shall constitute continuous and 
effective work prosecuted day by day, with adequate equipment and forces so that the work is 
maintained in satisfactory condition at all times. 
 
In  the  case  of  a  contract  for  the  placing  of  a  course  upon  a  course  or  subgrade  previously 
constructed,  the  Contractor  shall  maintain  the  previous  course  or  subgrade  during  all 
construction operations. 
 
All costs of maintenance work during construction and before the project  is accepted shall be 
included in the unit prices bid on the various contract items, and the Contractor will not be paid 
an additional amount for such work. 
 
50‐13 FAILURE TO MAINTAIN THE WORK.   Should the Contractor at any time fail to maintain 
the  work  as  provided  in  the  subsection  titled  MAINTENANCE  DURING  CONSTRUCTION  of 
Section 50‐12, the Owner shall immediately notify the Contractor of such noncompliance.  Such 
notification  shall  specify  a  reasonable  time within which  the Contractor  shall be  required  to 
remedy  such  unsatisfactory  maintenance  conditions.    The  time  specified  will  give  due 
consideration to the emergency that exists. 
 
Should the Contractor  fail to respond to the Owner notification, the Owner may suspend any 
work necessary for the Owner to correct such unsatisfactory maintenance condition, depending 
on the emergency that exists.  Any maintenance cost incurred by the Owner shall be deducted 
from monies due or to become due the Contractor. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 GP-25 

 
Control of Work continued… 
 
 
50‐14  PARTIAL  ACCEPTANCE.    If  at  any  time  during  the  prosecution  of  the  project  the 
Contractor substantially completes a usable unit or portion of the work, the occupancy of which 
will benefit the Owner, he may request the Owner to make final inspection of that unit.  If the 
Owner finds upon inspection that the unit has been satisfactorily completed in compliance with 
the contract, and certified to be in compliance by the Contractor's Engineer, he may accept it as 
being  completed,  and  the Contractor may be  relieved of  further  responsibility  for  that unit, 
subject to stated guarantees.   Such partial acceptance and beneficial occupancy by the Owner 
shall not void or alter any provision of the contract. 
 
50‐15 FINAL ACCEPTANCE.  Upon due notice from the Contractor of presumptive completion of 
the entire project, and certification of completion and compliance to the approved plans by the 
Contractor's  Engineer, Owner will make  an  inspection.    If  all  construction  provided  for  and 
contemplated by the contract is found to be completed in accordance with the contract, plans, 
and specifications, such inspection shall constitute the final inspection.  The Owner shall notify 
the Contractor in writing of final acceptance as of the date of the final inspection. 
 
If, however, the inspection discloses any work, in whole or in part, as being unsatisfactory, the 
Owner  will  give  the  Contractor  the  necessary  instructions  for  correction  of  same,  and  the 
Contractor shall  immediately comply with and execute such  instructions.   Upon correction of 
the work,  and  recertification  by  the  Contractor's  Engineer,  another  inspection will  be made 
which shall constitute the final inspection, provided the work has been satisfactorily completed.  
In such event, the Owner will make the final acceptance and notify the Contractor in writing of 
this acceptance as of the date of final inspection. 
 
50‐16 CLAIMS FOR ADJUSTMENT AND DISPUTES.  If for any reason the Contractor deems that 
additional  compensation  is  due  him  for  work  or materials  not  clearly  provided  for  in  the 
contract,  plans,  or  specifications  or  previously  authorized  as  extra work,  he  shall  notify  the 
Owner  in writing of his  intention to claim such additional compensation before he begins the 
work on which he bases the claim.  If such notification is not given or the Owner is not afforded 
proper opportunity by the Contractor for keeping strict account of actual cost as required, then 
the Contractor hereby agrees to waive any claim for such additional compensation.  Such notice 
by the Contractor and the fact that the Owner has kept account of the cost of the work shall 
not  in any way be construed as proving or substantiating the validity of the claim.   When the 
work  on  which  the  claim  for  additional  compensation  is  based  has  been  completed,  the 
Contractor shall, within 10 calendar days, submit his written claim, along with certification by 
the  Contractor's  Engineer,  to  the Owner  for  consideration  in  accordance with  local  laws  or 
ordinances. 
 
Nothing  in  this subsection shall be construed as a waiver of  the Contractor's  right  to dispute 
final payment based on differences in measurements or computations. 
 
 
 
 
 



 GP-26 

Control of Work continued… 
 
 
50‐17 GUARANTEE OF WORK (ADDITIONAL).   The Contractor shall guarantee all work against 
any defects due to faulty materials or workmanship for a period of two years from the date of 
final  inspection  and  acceptance.    The  Owner  shall  give  notice  of  observed  defects  with 
reasonable promptness.  Any omission on the part of the Owner to condemn defective work at 
the time of construction or final inspection shall not be deemed an acceptance.  The Contractor 
shall be required to correct defective work or material at any time before final  inspection and 
acceptance and within two years thereafter. 
 
50‐18 CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE.   Prior  to commencement of  the work  the Contractor shall 
prepare and submit to the Owner for review, a written schedule covering the general sequence 
of  the  work  to  be  performed  on  a  bi‐weekly  basis.    The  work  schedule,  after  review  and 
acceptance by the Owner, shall not be changed without the written consent of the Owner.  The 
Contractor shall assume the full responsibility for performing the work in an orderly procedure 
under the Contract. 
 
50‐19  NEGOTIATIONS.    It  is  the  intent  of  the  County  to  award  a  Contract  to  the  lowest 
responsible Bidder provided the Bid has been submitted  in accordance with the requirements 
of the Bid Documents, is judged reasonable, and does not exceed the funds available. 
 

(a)    The County shall have the authority to negotiate with the lowest bidder to reduce the 
scope of the Project in the event that all responsive bids exceed the Project budget. 

 
Bids  shall  be made  available  for  public  inspection  by  appointment  only  after  the  award  has 
been made by  the Board of Supervisors.   The Board of Supervisors has  the  sole authority  to 
award bids and any statement by any employee of the County is not binding on the Board. 
 
The following criteria will be considered a part of the evaluation process: 
 

(a)   Competence and responsibility of Bidder. 
(b)   Qualifications and experience of Bidder. 
(c)   Past performance of Bidder. 
(d)   Conformity with bidding requirements and general considerations. 
(e)   Record of timely completion of punch lists on past projects. 

 
 
Negotiations With  Individual Contractors:   Gila County Public Works Division  shall  establish 
procedures and schedules for conducting Negotiations.  Disclosure of one (1) Contractor’s Price 
or  any  information  derived  from  competing  Bid  Prices  or  any  information  derived  from 
competing Bids is prohibited. 
 

(a)    Any response to a request for clarification of a bid shall be in writing. 
(b)    The Public Works Division shall keep a record of all negotiations. 

 
For the purpose of conducting Negotiations with Contractors, Gila County may use any of the 
following methods that, in their judgment, best meets the unique requirements. 



 GP-27 

 
 

(a) Concurrent  Negotiations:   Negotiations  may  be  conducted  concurrently  with 
responsible  Contractors  for  the purpose  of  determining  source  selection  and/or 
Contract Award. 

(b) Exclusive Negotiations:  A determination may be made by the Public Works Director to 
enter  into  exclusive  negotiations  with  the  responsible  Contractor  whose  bid  is 
determined in the selection process to be the most Advantageous to Gila County. 

 
Exclusive Negotiations may be  conducted  subsequent  to  concurrent Negotiations or may be 
conducted without requiring previous concurrent Negotiations. 
 

(a) A  determination  to  conduct  exclusive  Negotiations  shall  not  constitute  a  Contract 
Award nor shall it confer any property rights to the successful bidder. 

(b) If exclusive Negotiations are conducted and an agreement is not reached, the County 
may enter into exclusive Negotiations with the next highest ranked Contractor without 
the need to repeat the formal Solicitation process. 

 



 GP-28 

 GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
  SECTION 60 
 
  CONTROL OF MATERIAL 
 
60‐01 SOURCE OF SUPPLY AND QUALITY REQUIREMENTS  .   The materials used on  the work 
shall conform to the requirements of the contract, plans, and specifications.  Unless otherwise 
specified,  such materials  that  are manufactured or processed  shall be new  (as  compared  to 
used or reprocessed). 
 
In  order  to  expedite  the  inspection  and  testing  of materials,  the Contractor's  Engineer  shall 
furnish complete statements to the Owner as to the origin, composition, and manufacture of all 
materials to be used in the work.  Such statements shall be furnished promptly after execution 
of the contract but, in all cases, prior to delivery of such materials. 
 
At  the Owner’s option, materials may be approved at  the source of supply before delivery  is 
started.  If it is found after trial that sources of supply for previously approved materials do not 
produce specified products, the Contractor shall furnish materials from other sources. 
 
It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to provide sources of aggregates to complete the 
work specified in the specifications and on the plans.  The Contractor shall so inform the Owner 
of the location of his proposed sources in sufficient time to allow for the necessary preliminary 
sampling and testing.  The Owner shall sample the aggregate source(s) and test those samples 
to determine the source's suitability for use, based upon the specifications of the Contract.  Any 
materials information provided by the Owner shall not be considered as a part of the contract, 
and should be used at the discretion of each prospective contractor in formulating his bids and 
plan of operation. 
 
Any  construction, building  addition or  alteration project which  is  financed by monies of  this 
state or its political subdivisions shall not use endangered wood species unless an exemption is 
granted by the director of the Department of Administration.   The director shall only grant an 
exemption  if  the  use  of  endangered  wood  species  is  deemed  necessary  for  historical 
restoration or to repair existing facilities and the use of any substitute material is not practical.  
Any  lease‐purchase  agreement  entered  into  by  this  state  or  its  political  subdivisions  for 
construction shall specify  that no endangered wood species may be used  in  the construction 
unless  an  exemption  is  granted  by  the  director.   As  used  in  this  subsection,  an  endangered 
wood species  includes  those  listed  in Appendix  I of  the Convention on  International Trade  in 
Endangered Species of Wild Flora and Fauna.  
 
60‐02 SAMPLES, TESTS, AND CITED SPECIFICATIONS.   All materials used  in  the work shall be 
inspected,  tested and certified by  the Owner before  incorporation  in  the work.   Any work  in 
which untested materials are used without approved or written permission of the Owner shall 
be performed at  the Contractor's  risk. Materials  found  to be unacceptable and unauthorized 
will not be paid for and, if directed by the Owner, shall be removed at the Contractor's expense.  
Unless otherwise designated,  tests  in accordance with  the  cited  standard methods of ADOT,  
AASHTO or ASTM which are current on the date of advertisement for bids will be made by and 
at the expense of the Owner; samples will be taken by a qualified representative of the Owner.   



 GP-29 

Control of Material continued… 
 
 
All materials  being  used  are  subject  to  inspection,  test,  or  rejection  at  any  time  prior  to  or 
during incorporation into the work.   
 
60‐03 CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE.  The Owner' may permit the use, prior to sampling and 
testing, of certain materials or assemblies when accompanied by manufacturer's certificates of 
compliance stating that such materials or assemblies fully comply with the requirements of the 
contract.   
 
The certificate shall be signed by the manufacturer.   Each  lot of such materials or assemblies 
delivered to the work must be accompanied by a certificate of compliance  in which the  lot  is 
clearly identified. 
 
Materials or assemblies used on  the basis of certificates of  compliance may be  sampled and 
tested  at  any  time  and  if  found  not  to  be  in  conformity with  contract  requirements will be 
subject to rejection whether in place or not. 
 
The form and distribution of certificates of compliance shall be as approved by the Owner. 
 
When a material or assembly is specified by "brand name or equal" and the Contractor elects to 
furnish  the  specified  "brand  name,"  the  Contractor  shall  be  required  to  furnish  the 
manufacturer's certificate of compliance for each lot of such material or assembly delivered to 
the work.  Such certificate of compliance shall clearly identify each lot delivered and shall certify 
as to: 
 

(a)  Conformance  to  the  specified  performance,  testing,  quality  or  dimensional 
requirements; and, 

(b)  Suitability of the material or assembly for the use intended in the contract work. 
 
Should the Contractor propose to  furnish an "or equal" material or assembly, he shall  furnish 
the manufacturer's certificates of compliance as hereinbefore described for the specified brand 
name material or assembly.   However,  the Owner  shall be  the  sole  judge as  to whether  the 
proposed "or equal" is suitable for use in the work. 
 
The Owner  reserves  the  right  to  refuse permission  for use of materials or assemblies on  the 
basis of certificates of compliance. 
 
60‐04  PLANT  INSPECTION.    The Owner  or  his  authorized  representative may  inspect,  at  its 
source, any specified material or assembly to be used  in the work.   Manufacturing plants may 
be  inspected  from  time  to  time  for  the  purpose  of  determining  compliance with  specified 
manufacturing methods or materials to be used in the work and to obtain samples required for 
his acceptance of the material or assembly. 
 
Should the Owner conduct plant inspections, the following conditions shall exist: 
 
 



 GP-30 

 
Control of Material continued… 
 
 

(a)  The  Owner  shall  have  the  cooperation  and  assistance  of  the  Contractor  and  the 
producer with whom he has contracted for materials. 

(b)  The Owner shall have full entry at all reasonable times to such parts of the plant that 
concern the manufacture or production of the materials being furnished. 

(c)  If required by the Owner, the Contractor shall arrange for adequate office or working 
space  that may  be  reasonably  needed  for  conducting  plant  inspections.   Office  or 
working space should be conveniently located with respect to the plant. 

 
It is understood and agreed that the Owner shall have the right to retest any material which has 
been tested and approved at the source of supply after  it has been delivered to the site.   The 
Owner  shall have  the  right  to  reject only material which, when  retested, does not meet  the 
requirements of the contract, plans, or specifications. 
 
60‐05 OWNER'S FIELD OFFICE AND LABORATORY.  The Owner’s field office and laboratory shall 
be the responsibility of the Contractor or his authorized representative as determined by need 
by the Owner. 
 
60‐06 STORAGE OF MATERIALS.   Materials shall be so stored as to assure the preservation of 
their quality and fitness for the work.  Stored materials, even though approved before storage, 
may again be inspected prior to their use in the work.  Stored materials shall be located so as to 
facilitate their prompt  inspection.   The Contractor shall coordinate the storage of all materials 
with  the  Owner.    Private  property  shall  not  be  used  for  storage  purposes without written 
permission  of  the  owner  or  lessee  of  such  property.    The  Contractor  shall  make  all 
arrangements and bear all expenses  for  the  storage of materials on private property.   Upon 
request, the Contractor shall furnish the Owner a copy of the property owner's permission. 
 
All  storage  sites  on  private  property  shall  be  restored  to  their  original  condition  by  the 
Contractor at his entire expense, except as otherwise agreed  to  (in writing) by  the owner or 
lessee of the property. 
 
60‐07 UNACCEPTABLE MATERIALS.   Any material or assembly  that does not  conform  to  the 
requirements of the contract, plans or specifications shall be considered unacceptable and shall 
be rejected.  The Contractor shall remove any rejected material or assembly from the site of the 
work, unless otherwise instructed by the Owner. 
 
No rejected material or assembly, the defects of which have been corrected by the Contractor, 
shall be returned to the site of the work until such time as the Owner has approved  its use  in 
the work. 
 
60‐08 OWNER‐FURNISHED MATERIALS.   The Contractor shall  furnish all materials required to 
complete  the  work,  except  those  specified  herein  (if  any)  to  be  furnished  by  the  Owner.  
Owner‐furnished materials shall be made available to the Contractor at the  location specified 
herein. 
 
 



 GP-31 

Control of Material continued… 
 
 
All costs of handling, transportation from the specified location to the site of work, storage, and 
installing owner‐furnished materials shall be included in the unit price bid for the contract item 
in which such owner‐furnished material is used. 
 
After any owner‐furnished material has been delivered to the location specified, the Contractor 
shall  be  responsible  for  any  demurrage,  damage,  loss,  or  other  deficiencies  that may  occur 
during the Contractor's handling, storage, or use of such owner‐furnished material.  The Owner 
will deduct  from any monies due or  to become due  the Contractor any cost  incurred by  the 
Owner  in making good  such  loss due  to  the Contractor's handling,  storage, or use of owner‐
furnished materials. 



 GP-32 

  GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
  SECTION 70 
 
  LEGAL RELATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITY TO PUBLIC 
 
70‐01 LAWS TO BE OBSERVED.  The Contractor shall keep fully informed of all Federal and State 
laws, all local laws, ordinances, and regulations and all orders and decrees of bodies or tribunals 
having any jurisdiction or authority, which in any manner affect those engaged or employed on 
the work, or which in any way affect the conduct of the work.  He shall at all times observe and 
comply with all such  laws, ordinances, regulations, orders, and decrees; and shall protect and 
indemnify the Owner and all his officers, agents, or servants against any claim or liability arising 
from  or  based  on  the  violation  of  any  such  law,  ordinance,  regulation,  order,  or  decree, 
whether by himself or his employees. 
 
Laws and Ordinances:  This agreement shall be enforced under the laws of the State of Arizona 
and Gila County.  The Contractor  shall maintain  in  current  status all Federal, State and  Local 
licenses and permits required for the operation of the business conducted by the Contractor.  
The Contractor  shall comply with  the applicable provisions of  the Americans with Disabilities 
Act (Public Law 101‐336, 42 U.S.C. 12101‐12213) and applicable federal regulations under the 
Act. 
 
70‐02 PERMITS, LICENSES, AND TAXES.   The Contractor shall procure all permits and  licenses, 
pay all charges,  fees, and  taxes, and give all notices necessary and  incidental  to  the due and 
lawful prosecution of the work.  All costs for any permits, licenses, fees, taxes, or other charges 
shall be included in the contract price bid. 
 
70‐03  PATENTED  DEVICES, MATERIALS,  AND  PROCESSES.    If  the  Contractor  is  required  or 
desires to use any design, device, material, or process covered by letters of patent or copyright, 
he  shall provide  for  such use by  suitable  legal agreement with  the patentee or owner.   The 
Contractor and  the  surety  shall  indemnify  and  save harmless  the Owner,  any  third party, or 
political  subdivision  from  any  and  all  claims  for  infringement  by  reason  of  the  use  of  any 
patented  design,  device,  material  or  process,  or  any  trademark  or  copyright,  and  shall 
indemnify the Owner for any costs, expenses, and damages which it may be obliged to pay by 
reason of an  infringement, at any time during the prosecution or after the completion of the 
work. 
 
70‐04 RESTORATION OF SURFACES DISTURBED BY OTHERS.   The Owner reserves the right to 
authorize  the  construction,  reconstruction,  or  maintenance  of  any  public  or  private  utility 
service, or a utility service of another government agency at any time during the progress of the 
work.    To  the  extent  that  such  construction,  reconstruction,  or  maintenance  has  been 
coordinated with the Owner, such authorized work (by others) is indicated as follows: 
 

A. Preparatory work on the subgrade by the Owner. 
 

Except as provided above, the Contractor shall not permit any individual, firm, or corporation to 
excavate or otherwise disturb such utility services or  facilities  located within  the  limits of  the 
work without the written permission of the Owner's Engineer. 



 GP-33 

Legal Relations & Responsibility to Public continued… 
 
 
Should the owner of public or private utility service, or a utility service of another government 
agency be authorized to construct, reconstruct, or maintain such utility service or facility during 
the progress of  the work,  the Contractor  shall cooperate with  such owners by arranging and 
performing  the work  in  this  contract  so  as  to  facilitate  such  construction,  reconstruction  or 
maintenance by others whether or not such work by others  is  listed above.   When ordered as 
extra work by the Owner's Engineer, the Contractor shall make all necessary repairs to the work 
which are due to such authorized work by others, unless otherwise provided for in the contract, 
plans or specifications.  It is understood and agreed that the Contractor shall not be entitled to 
make any  claim  for damages due  to  such authorized work by others or  for any delay  to  the 
work resulting from such authorized work. 
 
70‐05  SANITARY,  HEALTH,  AND  SAFETY  PROVISIONS.    The  Contractor  shall  provide  and 
maintain  in a neat,  sanitary condition  such accommodations  for  the use of his employees as 
required to comply with the requirements of the State and  local boards of health, or of other 
bodies or tribunals having  jurisdiction.   Contractor  is responsible for supplying toilet and hand 
washing facilities at work site. 
 
Attention  is  directed  to  Federal,  State  and  local  laws,  rules  and  regulations  concerning 
construction safety and health standards.  The Contractor shall not require any worker to work 
in  surroundings  or  under  conditions  which  are  unsanitary,  hazardous,  or  dangerous  to  his 
health or safety as determined under the Arizona Occupational Safety and Health Standards for 
Construction,  adopted  by  the  Industrial Commission  of Arizona pursuant  to  the Authority  in 
A.R.S. §23‐410. 
 
Contractor  Safety  Tailgate  Meetings:    Contractor  shall  conduct  tailgate  safety  meetings 
regularly to ensure that safety on the  job  is given priority. Gila County will be represented at 
each  of  those  informal  meetings.  Notification  shall  be  given  to  the  County  QA/QC  Safety 
Compliance Officer at  (928) 402‐8506 at  least  twenty‐four  (24) hours  in advance of  the next 
meeting. Each employee of the Contractor and Sub‐Contractor shall read the County Safety & 
Loss Control Procedures book and sign an acknowledgement.  
 
Accident/Injury  Procedure:    Contractor  shall  contact  the  Owner  and  the  Gila  County  Risk 
Management Division within twenty‐four (24) hours of the occurrence of an accident or injury 
arising out of the Contractor’s work under this contract. 
 
Unsafe  Acts:    Contractor  employees  are  encouraged  to  abate  or  remedy  any  unsafe  act  or 
condition which may arise in the course of Contractor’s work under this contract. 
 
Safety Audits:   The County reserves the right to conduct safety audits at the  job site and stop 
unsafe acts at any time.   In addition, the County shall be notified should any OSHA  inspection 
occur at a County job site. 
 
 
 
 
 



 GP-34 

 
Legal Relations & Responsibility to Public continued… 
 
 
70‐06  PUBLIC  CONVENIENCE AND  SAFETY.    The  Contractor  shall  control  his  operations  and 
those of his subcontractors and all suppliers, to assure the least inconvenience to the traveling 
public.  Under all circumstances, safety shall be the most important consideration. 
 
The Contractor shall maintain the free and unobstructed movement of aircraft and/or vehicular 
traffic with  respect  to his own operations and  those of his  subcontractor and all  suppliers  in 
accordance with the subsection titled MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC of Section 40‐05 hereinbefore 
specified. 
 
70‐07 BARRICADES, WARNING SIGNS AND HAZARD MARKINGS.  The Contractor shall furnish, 
erect and maintain all barricades, warning signs, and markings for hazards necessary to protect 
the public and the work.  When used during periods of darkness, such barricades, warning signs 
and hazard markings shall be suitably illuminated. 
 
For vehicular and pedestrian traffic, the Contractor shall furnish, erect, and maintain barricades, 
warning signs, lights and other traffic control devices in reasonable conformity with the Manual 
of Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Streets and Highways (MUTCD Part VI), published by the 
United States Government Printing Office. 
 
The Contractor  shall  furnish and erect all barricades, warning  signs and markings  for hazards 
prior  to  commencing work which  required  such  erection  and  shall maintain  the  barricades, 
warning  signs,  and markings  for  hazards  until  their  dismantling  is  directed  by  the  Owner's 
Engineer. 
 
70‐08 PROTECTION AND RESTORATION OF PROPERTY AND LANDSCAPE.  The Contractor shall 
be responsible for the preservation of all public and private property, and shall protect carefully 
from  disturbance  or  damage  all  land monuments  and  property marks  until  the  Contractor's 
Engineer and  the Owner's Engineer has witnessed or otherwise referenced  their  location and 
shall not move them until directed. 
 
The Contractor shall be responsible for all damage or injury to property of any character, during 
the prosecution of  the work,  resulting  from  any  act, omission, neglect, or misconduct  in his 
manner or method of executing the work, or at any time due to defective work or materials, 
and  said  responsibility will not be  released until  the project  shall have been  completed  and 
accepted. 
 
When or where any direct or indirect damage or injury is done to public or private property by 
or on account of any act, omission, neglect, or misconduct  in the execution of the work, or  in 
consequence  of  the  non‐execution  thereof  by  the  Contractor,  he  shall  restore,  at  his  own 
expense, such property to a condition similar or equal to that existing before such damage or 
injury was done, by repairing, rebuilding, or otherwise restoring as may be directed, or he shall 
make good such damage or injury in an acceptable manner. 
 
 
 



 GP-35 

 
Legal Relations & Responsibility to Public continued… 
 
 
70‐09  RESPONSIBILITY  FOR  DAMAGE  CLAIMS.    To  the  fullest  extent  permitted  by  law, 
Contractor shall defend,  indemnify and hold harmless Gila County, and the Pinal Creek Group 
and  their respective agents,  representatives, officers, directors, officials, and employees  from 
and against any and all demands, proceedings, suits, actions, claims, damages, or losses relating 
to, arising out of, resulting from or alleged to have resulted from the performance of the Work.  
Contractor’s duty to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the indemnitee and their respective 
agents,  representatives,  officers,  directors,  officials  and  employees  shall  arise  in  connection 
with  any  and  all demands, proceedings,  suits,  actions,  claims, workers  compensation  claims, 
unemployment  claims,  damages,  losses  or  expenses  (including  but  not  limited  to  attorneys 
fees,  court  costs  and  the  cost of  appellate proceedings)  that  are  attributable  to personal or 
bodily  injury,  sickness,  disease,  death,  or  injury  to,  impairment  or  destruction  of  property 
including the  loss of use resulting thereon, caused by any act or omission of the Contractor, a 
subcontractor, anyone directly or  indirectly employed by them or for whose acts they may be 
liable.  The amount and type of insurance coverage requirements set forth in the Contract shall 
in no way be construed as limiting the scope of this indemnity. 
 
70‐10 CONTRACTOR'S INSURANCE.  Prior to the execution of the contract, the Contractor shall 
file with the Owner's Engineer a certificate or certificates of insurance executed by an insurance 
company doing business  in the State of Arizona and acceptable to the Owner's Engineer.   The 
certificate of  insurance shall state  that, with respect  to  the contract awarded  the Contractor; 
the Contractor carries insurance in accordance with the requirements of this subsection. 
 
On all policies Gila County shall be named as an additional insured. 
 
All insurance policies or certificates shall include an endorsement providing for thirty (30) days 
prior written notice to the Owner's Engineer of any cancellation or reduction of coverage.  The 
Contractor shall cease operations on the occurrence of any such cancellation or reduction and 
shall  not  resume  operations  until  the  required  insurance  is  in  force  and  new  certificates  of 
insurance have been filed with the Owner's Engineer.  The insurance policy or policies provided 
by  the  Contractor  may  contain  deductibles  not  to  exceed  $500  for  any  one  accident  or 
occurrence excluding bodily injury. 
 
In addition to statutory Worker's Compensation  insurance, the Contractor, with respect to all 
operations performed by himself or his subcontractors, shall have in force regular public liability 
insurance in not less than the following amount:  $2,000,000 Combined Single Limit of Liability 
per Occurrence. 
 
Such  insurance  shall  include,  but  not  be  limited  to,  coverage  for  underground  damage  to 
facilities because of drilling and excavating with mechanical equipment, and for collapse of or 
structural injury to structures or utilities because of blasting or explosion, excavation, tunneling, 
pile driving, cofferdam work or demolition. 
 
 
 
 



 GP-36 

Legal Relations & Responsibility to Public continued… 
 
 
With respect to the operation of all motor vehicles, including those hired or borrowed, used in 
connection with the contract, the Contractor shall have  in force automobile  liability  insurance 
in  not  less  than  the  following  amount:    $2,000,000  Combined  Single  Limit  of  Liability  per 
Occurrence. 
 
70‐11  THIRD  PARTY  BENEFICIARY  CLAUSE.    It  is  specifically  agreed  between  the  parties 
executing  the  contract  that  it  is  not  intended  by  any  of  the  provisions  of  any  part  of  the 
contract to create to the public or any member thereof a third party beneficiary or to authorize 
anyone not a party to the contract to maintain a suit for personal injuries or property damage 
pursuant to the terms or provisions of the contract. 
 
70‐12  OPENING  SECTIONS  OF  THE  WORK  TO  TRAFFIC.    Should  it  be  necessary  for  the 
Contractor  to  complete  portions  of  the  contract  work  for  the  beneficial  occupancy  of  the 
Owner prior to completion of the entire contract, such "phasing" of the work shall be specified 
herein  and  indicated  on  the  plans.   When  so  specified,  the  Contractor  shall  complete  such 
portions of the work on or before the date specified or as otherwise specified.  The Contractor 
shall make his own estimate of  the difficulties  involved  in arranging his work  to permit  such 
beneficial occupancy by the Owner as described below: 
 
Upon completion of any portion of the work listed above, with certification of the work by the 
Contractor's  Engineer,  such  portion  shall  be  accepted  by  the Owner  in  accordance with  the 
subsection titled PARTIAL ACCEPTANCE of Section 50‐14. 
 
No portion of the work may be opened by the Contractor  for public use until ordered by the 
Owner's  Engineer  in writing.    Should  it become necessary  to open  a portion of  the work  to 
public traffic on a temporary or  intermittent basis, such openings shall be made when,  in the 
opinion  of  the Owner's  Engineer,  such  portion  of  the work  is  in  an  acceptable  condition  to 
support  the  intended  traffic.    Temporary  or  intermittent  openings  are  considered  to  be 
inherent  in the work and shall not constitute either acceptance of the portion of the work so 
opened or a waiver of any provision of the contract.  Any damage to the portion of the work so 
opened that is not attributable to traffic which is permitted by the Owner shall be repaired by 
the Contractor at his expense. 
 
The Contractor shall make his own estimate of the  inherent difficulties  involved  in completing 
the work under the conditions herein described and shall not claim any added compensation by 
reason of delay or increased cost due to opening a portion of the contract work. 
 
70‐13 CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR WORK.   Until the Owner's Engineer's final written 
acceptance of the entire completed work, excepting only those portions of the work accepted 
in accordance with the subsection titled PARTIAL ACCEPTANCE of Section 50‐14, the Contractor 
shall have the charge and care thereof and shall take every precaution against injury or damage 
to any part due to the action of the elements or from any other cause, whether arising from the 
execution or from the non‐execution of the work.  The Contractor shall rebuild, repair, restore, 
and make good all  injuries or damages  to any portion of  the work occasioned by any of  the 
above causes before final acceptance and shall bear the expense thereof except damage to the  
 



 GP-37 

Legal Relations & Responsibility to Public continued… 
 
 
work due to unforeseeable causes beyond the control of and without the fault or negligence of 
the  Contractor,  including  but  not  restricted  to  acts  of God  such  as  earthquake,  tidal wave, 
tornado, hurricane or other cataclysmic phenomenon of nature, or acts of the public enemy or 
of governmental authorities. 
 
If  the work  is suspended  for any cause whatever,  the Contractor shall be  responsible  for  the 
work and shall take such precautions necessary to prevent damage to the work.  The Contractor 
shall  provide  for  normal  drainage  and  shall  erect  necessary  temporary  structures,  signs,  or 
other facilities at his expense.   During such period of suspension of work, the Contractor shall 
properly  and  continuously maintain  in  an  acceptable  growing  condition  all  living material  in 
newly established plantings, seedings, and soddings furnished under his contract, and shall take 
adequate  precautions  to  protect  new  tree  growth  and  other  important  vegetative  growth 
against injury. 
 
70‐14 CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR UTILITY SERVICE AND FACILITIES OF OTHERS.   As 
provided in the subsection titled RESTORATION OF SURFACES DISTURBED BY OTHERS of Section 
70‐04, the Contractor shall cooperate with the owner of any public or private utility service, or 
a  utility  service  of  another  government  agency  that  may  be  authorized  by  the  Owner  to 
construct,  reconstruct or maintain such utility services or  facilities during  the progress of  the 
work.    In  addition,  the  Contractor  shall  control  his  operations  to  prevent  the  unscheduled 
interruption of such utility services and facilities and shall notify Blue Stake in accordance with 
applicable State laws or regulations prior to commencing any work. 
 
It  is  understood  and  agreed  that  the  Owner  does  not  guarantee  the  accuracy  or  the 
completeness  of  the  location  information  relating  to  existing  utility  services,  facilities,  or 
structures  that may be  shown on  the plans or encountered  in  the work.   Any  inaccuracy or 
omission  in  such  information  shall not  relieve  the Contractor of his  responsibility  to protect 
such  existing  features  from  damage  or  unscheduled  interruption  of  service.    It  is  further 
understood  and agreed  that  the Contractor  shall, upon execution of  the  contract, notify  the 
owners of all utility services or other facilities of his plans of operations.  Such notification shall 
be in writing and addressed to Blue Stake and the respective utility as provided hereinbefore in 
this subsection and the subsection titled RESTORATION OF SURFACES DISTURBED BY OTHERS of 
Section 70‐04.  A copy of each notification shall be given to the Owner's Engineer. 
 
In  addition  to  the  general  written  notification  hereinbefore  provided,  it  shall  be  the 
responsibility  of  the  Contractor  to  keep  Blue  Stake  and  such  individual  owners  advised  of 
changes in his plan of operations that would affect such owners. 
 
Prior to commencing the work in the general vicinity of an existing utility service or facility, the 
Contractor shall again notify each such owner of his plan of operation.    If,  in the Contractor's 
opinion, the Owner's assistance is needed to locate the utility service or facility or the presence 
of  a  representative  of  the  Owner  is  desirable  to  observe  the work,  such  advice  should  be 
included in the notification.  Such notification shall be given by the most expeditious means to 
reach the utility owner's PERSON TO CONTACT no later than two normal business days prior to 
the Contractor's commencement of operations in such general vicinity.   
 



 GP-38 

Legal Relations & Responsibility to Public continued… 
 
 
The Contractor  shall  furnish  a written  summary of  the notification  to  the Owner's  Engineer.  
The Contractor's  failure  to give  the  two day's notice hereinabove provided shall be cause  for 
the Owner's Engineer to suspend the Contractor's operations in the general vicinity of a utility 
service or facility.   
 
Where the outside limits of an underground utility service have been located and staked on the 
ground, the Contractor shall be required to use excavation methods acceptable to the Owner's 
Engineer within  3  feet  of  such  outside  limits  at  such  points  as may  be  required  to  insure 
protection from damage due to the Contractor's operations.   
 
Should  the  Contractor  damage  or  interrupt  the  operation  of  a  utility  service  or  facility  by 
accident  or  otherwise,  he  shall  immediately  notify  the  proper  authority  and  the  Owner's 
Engineer and shall take all reasonable measures to prevent further damage or  interruption of 
service.  The Contractor, in such events, shall cooperate with the utility service or facility owner 
and  the  Owner's  Engineer  continuously  until  such  damage  has  been  repaired  and  service 
restored to the satisfaction of the utility or facility owner. 
 
The Contractor shall bear all costs of damage and restoration of service to any utility service or 
facility due to his operations whether or not due to negligence or accident.  The contract owner 
reserves  the  right  to deduct  such costs  from any monies due or which may become due  the 
Contractor, or his surety. 
 
70‐15 FURNISHING RIGHTS‐OF‐WAY.  The Owner will be responsible for furnishing all rights‐of‐
way, permanent easements and temporary construction easements upon which the work is to 
be constructed in advance of the Contractor's operations. 
 
70‐16  PERSONAL  LIABILITY  OF  PUBLIC  OFFICIALS.    In  carrying  out  any  of  the  contractor 
provisions or in exercising any power or authority granted to him by this contract, there shall be 
no  liability upon  the Owner's  Engineer, his  authorized  representatives, or  any official of  the 
Owner either personally or as an official of the Owner.    It  is understood that  in such matters 
they act solely as agents and representatives of the Owner. 
 
70‐17  NO  WAIVER  OF  LEGAL  RIGHTS.    Upon  completion  of  the  work,  the  Owner  will 
expeditiously make  final  inspection and notify  the Contractor of  final acceptance.   Such  final 
acceptance, however, shall not preclude or stop the Owner from correcting any measurement, 
estimate, or certificate made before or after completion of the work, nor shall the Owner be 
precluded  or  stopped  from  recovering  from  the  Contractor  or  his  surety,  or  both,  such 
overpayment  as may  be  sustained,  or  by  failure  on  the  part  of  the  Contractor  to  fulfill  his 
obligations under the contract.  A waiver on the part of the Owner of any breach of any part of 
the contract shall not be held to be a waiver of any other or subsequent breach. 
 
The Contractor, without prejudice to the terms of the contract, shall be liable to the Owner for 
latent defects, fraud, or such gross mistakes as may amount to fraud, or as regards the Owner's 
rights under any warranty or guaranty. 
 
 



 GP-39 

Legal Relations & Responsibility to Public continued… 
 
 
70‐18 ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION.  The Contractor shall comply with all Federal, State, and 
local  laws and  regulations  controlling pollution of  the environment.   He  shall  take necessary 
precautions  to  prevent  pollution  of  streams,  lakes,  ponds  and  reservoirs  with  fuels,  oils, 
bitumen’s, chemicals, or other harmful materials and  to prevent pollution of  the atmosphere 
from particulate and gaseous matter. 



 GP-40 

 GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
  SECTION 80 
 
  PROSECUTION AND PROGRESS 
 
80‐01  SUBLETTING OF  CONTRACT.    The  Contractor  shall  not  sublet,  sell,  transfer,  assign  or 
otherwise dispose of  the  contract or  contracts or any portion  thereof or of his  right,  title or 
interest  therein without written  consent  of  the Owner's  Engineer.    In  case  such  consent  is 
given, the Contractor will be permitted to sublet a portion thereof, but shall perform with his 
own organization work amounting  to not  less  than 50 percent of  the  total  contract amount, 
except  that  any  items designated  in  the  contract  as  "Specialty  Items" may be performed by 
subcontract  and  the  cost  of  any  such  specialty  items  so  performed  by  subcontract may  be 
deducted from the total cost before computing the amount of work required to be performed 
by  the  Contractor with  his  own  organization.   No  subcontracts  or  transfer  of  contract  shall 
release the Contractor of his liability under the contract and bond. 
 
"His own organization" shall be construed to include only workmen employed and paid directly 
by the prime contractor and equipment owned or rented by him, with or without operators. 
 
"Specialty  Items"  shall  be  construed  to  be  limited  to  work  that  requires  highly  specialized 
knowledge,  craftsmanship  or  equipment  not  ordinarily  available  in  contracting  organizations 
qualified  to  bid  on  the  contract  as  a  whole  and  in  general  are  to  be  limited  to  minor 
components of the overall contract. 
 
The contract amount upon which the 50 percent requirement is computed includes the cost of 
materials and manufactured products which are to be purchased or produced by the Contractor 
under the contract provisions. 
 
Any items that have been selected as "Specialty Items" for the contract will be listed as such in 
the special provisions, bidding schedule, or elsewhere in the contract documents. 
 
The Owner will not recognize any subcontractor on the work.  The Contractor shall at all times 
when work is in progress be represented either in person, by a qualified superintendent, or by 
other designated, qualified  representative who  is duly authorized  to  receive and execute  the 
orders of the Owner's Engineer. 
 
Should the Contractor elect to assign his contract, said assignment shall be concurred in by the 
surety,  shall  be  presented  for  the  consideration  and  approval  of  the  Owner,  and  shall  be 
consummated only on the written approval of the Owner.  In case of approval, the Contractor 
shall file copies of all subcontracts with the Owner's Engineer. 
 
80‐02 NOTICE TO PROCEED.  The notice to proceed shall state the date on which it is expected 
the Contractor will begin the construction and from which date contract time will be charged.  
The  Contractor  shall  begin  the  work  to  be  performed  under  the  contract  within  ten  (10) 
calendar days of the date set by the Owner's Engineer in the written notice to proceed, but in 
any  event,  the  Contractor  shall  notify  the  Owner's  Engineer  at  least  two  (2) work  days  in 
advance of the time actual construction operations will begin. 
 



 GP-41 

Prosecution & Progress continued… 
 
 
80‐03 PROSECUTION AND PROGRESS.  Unless otherwise specified, the Contractor shall submit 
his progress  schedule  for  the Owner's Engineer's  approval within 10 days  after  the effective 
date  of  the  notice  to  proceed.    The  Contractor's  progress  schedule, when  approved  by  the 
Owner's Engineer, may be used to establish major construction operations and to check on the 
progress of the work.   The Contractor shall provide sufficient materials, equipment, and  labor 
to  guarantee  the  completion  of  the  project  in  accordance with  the  plans  and  specifications 
within the time set forth in the proposal. 
 
If  the Contractor  falls significantly behind  the submitted schedule,  the Contractor shall, upon 
the Owner's Engineer's request, submit a revised schedule  for completion of  the work within 
the contract time and modify his operations to provide such additional materials, equipment, 
and  labor  necessary  to meet  the  revised  schedule.    Should  the  prosecution  of  the work  be 
discontinued for any reason, the Contractor shall notify the Owner's Engineer at  least twenty‐
four (24) hours in advance of resuming operations. 
 
The  Contractor  shall  not  commence  any  actual  construction  prior  to  the  date  on which  the 
notice to proceed is issued by the Owner. 
 
80‐04 CONSTRUCTION LIMITS.   Construction  limits shall be defined as that area of the public 
right‐of‐way, easement or area shown on  the construction plans  to be disturbed as a part of 
this contract for this project. 
 
80‐05  CHARACTER OF WORKERS, METHODS AND  EQUIPMENT.    The  Contractor  shall,  at  all 
times, employ sufficient labor and equipment for prosecuting the work to full completion in the 
manner and time required by the contract, plans and specifications. 
 
All workers shall have sufficient skill and experience to perform properly the work assigned to 
them. Workers engaged in special work or skilled work shall have sufficient experience in such 
work and in the operation of the equipment required to perform the work satisfactorily. 
 
Any person employed by  the Contractor or by any  subcontractor who,  in  the opinion of  the 
Owner's Engineer, does not perform his work in a proper and skillful manner or is intemperate 
or disorderly shall, at the written request of the Owner's Engineer, be removed forthwith by the 
Contractor or  subcontractor employing  such person, and  shall not be employed again  in any 
portion of the work without the approval of the Owner's Engineer. 
 
Should  the  Contractor  fail  to  remove  such  person  or  persons  or  fail  to  furnish  suitable  and 
sufficient personnel for the proper prosecution of the work, the Owner's Engineer may suspend 
the work by written notice until compliance with such orders. 
 
All equipment which is proposed to be used on the work shall be of sufficient size and in such 
mechanical condition as to meet requirements of the work and to produce a satisfactory quality 
of work.  Equipment used on any portion of the work shall be such that no injury to previously 
completed work, adjacent property, or existing facilities will result from its use. 
 
 
 



 GP-42 

Prosecution & Progress continued… 
 
 
When the methods and equipment to be used by the Contractor in accomplishing the work are 
not prescribed in the contract, the Contractor is free to use any methods or equipment that will 
accomplish  the  work  in  conformity  with  the  requirements  of  the  contract,  plans  and 
specifications. When  the  contract  specifies  the use of  certain methods and equipment,  such 
methods and equipment shall be used unless others are authorized by the Owner's Engineer.  If 
the  Contractor  desires  to  use  a method  or  type  of  equipment  other  than  specified  in  the 
contract, he may request authority from the Owner's Engineer to do so.  The request shall be in 
writing and shall include a full description of the methods and equipment proposed and of the 
reasons for desiring to make the change.  If approval is given, it will be on the condition that the 
Contractor  will  be  fully  responsible  for  producing  work  in  conformity  with  contract 
requirements.    If,  after  trial  use  of  the  substituted  methods  or  equipment,  the  Owner's 
Engineer  determines  that  the  work  produced  does  not  meet  contract  requirements,  the 
Contractor shall discontinue the use of the substitute method or equipment and shall complete 
the remaining work with the specified methods and equipment.   The Contractor shall remove 
any deficient work and replace  it with work of specified quality, or take such other corrective 
action as the Owner's Engineer may direct.  No change will be made in basis of payment for the 
contract  items  involved nor  in contract time as a result of authorizing a change  in methods or 
equipment under this subsection. 
 
80‐06  TEMPORARY  SUSPENSION  OF  THE  WORK.    The  Owner's  Engineer  shall  have  the 
authority to suspend the work wholly, or  in part,  for such period or periods as he may deem 
necessary, due to unsuitable weather, or such other conditions as are considered unfavorable 
for the prosecution of the work, or for such time as is necessary due to the failure on the part of 
the Contractor to carry out orders given or perform any or all provisions of the contract. 
 
In  the event  that  the Contractor  is ordered by  the Owner's  Engineer,  in writing,  to  suspend 
work for some unforeseen cause not otherwise provided for in the contract and over which the 
Contractor has no control,  the Contractor may be reimbursed  for actual money expended on 
the work during  the period of shutdown.   No allowance will be made  for anticipated profits.  
The period of shutdown shall be computed from the effective date of the Owner's Engineer's 
order  to  suspend work  to  the effective date of  the Owner's  Engineer's order  to  resume  the 
work.   Claims for such compensation shall be filed with the Owner's Engineer within the time 
period  stated  in  the Owner's Engineer's order  to  resume work.   The Contractor  shall  submit 
with  his  claim  information  substantiating  the  amount  shown  on  the  claim.    The  Owner's 
Engineer will forward the Contractor's claim to the Owner for consideration in accordance with 
local  laws  or  ordinances.    No  provision  of  this  article  shall  be  construed  as  entitling  the 
Contractor to compensation for delays due to inclement weather, for suspensions made at the 
request  of  the  Contractor,  or  for  any  other  delay  provided  for  in  the  contract,  plans  or 
specifications. 
 
If  it  should become necessary  to  suspend work  for an  indefinite period,  the Contractor  shall 
store  all materials  in  such manner  that  they  will  not  become  an  obstruction  nor  become 
damaged in any way. He shall take every precaution to prevent damage or deterioration of the 
work  performed  and  provide  for  normal  drainage  of  the work.    The  Contractor  shall  erect 
temporary structures where necessary to provide for the continuous flow of traffic. 
 



 GP-43 

Prosecution & Progress continued… 
 
 
80‐07 DETERMINATION AND  EXTENSION OF  CONTRACT  TIME.    The  number  of  calendar  or 
working days allowed for completion of the work shall be stated  in the proposal and contract 
and shall be known as the CONTRACT TIME. 
 
Should the contract time require extension for reasons beyond the Contractor's control, it shall 
be adjusted as follows: 
 

(a)  CONTRACT TIME (10‐13) based on WORKING DAYS (10‐41) shall be calculated weekly 
by the Owner's Engineer.  The Owner's Engineer will furnish the Contractor a copy of 
his weekly  statement  of  the  number  of working  days  charged  against  the  contract 
time  during  the  week  and  the  number  of  working  days  currently  specified  for 
completion  of  the  contract  (the  original  contract  time  plus  the  number  of working 
days,  if  any,  that  have  been  included  in  approved  CHANGE  ORDERS  (10‐10)  or 
SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENTS (10‐38) covering EXTRA WORK (40‐04). 

 
The Owner's Engineer shall base his weekly statement of contract time charged on the 
following considerations: 

 
(1)  No time shall be charged for days on which the Contractor is unable to proceed 

with  the  principal  item  of work  under  construction  at  the  time  for  at  least  6 
hours with the normal work force employed on such principal item.  Should the 
normal work  force  be  on  a  double‐shift,  12  hours  shall  be  used.    Should  the 
normal work force be on a triple‐shift, 18 hours shall apply.   Conditions beyond 
the  Contractor's  control  such  as  strikes,  lockouts,  unusual  delays  in 
transportation,  temporary  suspension  of  the  principal  items  of  work  under 
construction  or  temporary  suspension  of  the  entire  work  which  have  been 
ordered  by  the Owner's  Engineer  for  reasons  not  the  fault  of  the  Contractor, 
shall not be charged against the contract time. 

(2)  The Owner's Engineer will not make charges against  the contract  time prior  to 
the effective date of the notice to proceed. 

(3)  The Owner's Engineer will begin charges against  the contract  time on  the  first 
working day after the effective date of the notice to proceed. 

(4)  The Owner's Engineer will not make charges against the contract time after the 
date of final acceptance as defined in the subsection titled FINAL ACCEPTANCE of 
Section 50‐15. 

(5)  The Contractor will be allowed one week in which to file a written protest setting 
forth his objections to the Owner's Engineer's weekly statement.  If no objection 
is filed within such specified time, the weekly statement shall be considered as 
acceptable to the Contractor. 

 
The  contract  time  (stated  in  the  proposal)  is  based  on  the  originally  estimated 
quantities  as  described  in  the  subsection  titled  INTERPRETATION  OF  ESTIMATED 
PROPOSAL QUANTITIES of Section 20‐05. 

 
 

 



 GP-44 

Prosecution & Progress continued… 
 
 

Should  the  satisfactory  completion  of  the  contract  require  performance  of work  in 
greater quantities  than  those  estimated  in  the proposal,  the  contract  time  shall be 
increased  in  the  same  proportion  as  the  cost  of  the  actually  completed  quantities 
bears to the cost of the originally estimated quantities in the proposal.  Such increase 
in contract time shall not consider either the cost of work or the extension of contract 
time that has been covered by change order or supplemental agreement and shall be 
made at the time of final payment. 

 
(b)  CONTRACT TIME (10‐13) based on CALENDAR DAYS (10‐09) shall consist of the number 

of calendar days stated in the contract counting from the effective date of the notice 
to  proceed  and  including  all  Saturdays,  Sundays,  holidays,  and  non‐work  days.    All 
calendar days elapsing between the effective dates of the Owner's Engineer's orders 
to suspend and resume all work, due to causes not the fault of the Contractor, shall be 
excluded. 

 
At  the  time  of  final  payment,  the  contract  time  shall  be  increased  in  the  same 
proportion as the final cost bears to the estimated cost in the proposal.  Such increase 
in  the  contract  time  shall  not  consider  either  the  cost  of work  or  the  extension  of 
contract time that has been covered by a change order or supplemental agreement.  
Charges against the contract time will cease as of the date of final acceptance.   

 
(c)  When the contract time is a specified completion date, it shall be the date on which all 

contract work shall be substantially completed. 
 

If  the Contractor  finds  it  impossible  for  reasons beyond his control  to  complete  the 
work within  the  contract  time  as  specified,  or  as  extended  in  accordance with  the 
provisions  of  this  subsection,  he may,  at  any  time  prior  to  the  expiration  of  the 
contract  time  as extended, make  a written  request  to  the Owner's  Engineer  for  an 
extension of time setting forth the reasons which he believes will justify the granting 
of his request.  The Contractor's plea that insufficient time was specified is not a valid 
reason for extension of time.  If the Owner's Engineer finds that the work was delayed 
because of conditions beyond the control and without the fault of the Contractor, he 
may extend  the  time  for  completion  in  such  amount  as  the  conditions  justify.   The 
extended time for completion shall then be in full force and effect, the same as though 
it were the original time for completion. 

 
 
80‐08 FAILURE TO COMPLETE ON TIME.  For each calendar day or working day, as specified in 
the  contract,  that  any  work  remains  uncompleted  after  the  contract  time  (including  all 
extensions  and  adjustments  as  provided  in  the  subsection  titled  DETERMINATION  AND 
EXTENSION  OF  CONTRACT  TIME  of  Section  80‐07)  the  sum  specified  in  the  contract  and 
proposal as  liquidated damages will be deducted  from any money due or to become due the 
Contractor or his surety.   Such deducted sums shall not be deducted as a penalty but shall be 
considered  as  liquidation  of  a  reasonable  portion  of  damages  that will  be  incurred  by  the 
Owner should the Contractor fail to complete the work in the time provided in his contract. 
 



 GP-45 

Prosecution & Progress continued… 
 
 
Permitting the Contractor to continue and finish the work or any part of it after the time fixed 
for its completion, or after the date to which the time for completion may have been extended, 
will  in  no way  operate  as  a waiver  on  the  part  of  the Owner  of  any of  its  rights  under  the 
contract. 
 
80‐09  DEFAULT  AND  TERMINATION OF  CONTRACT.    The  Contractor  shall  be  considered  in 
default of his contract and such default will be considered as cause for the Owner to terminate 
the contract for any of the following reasons if the Contractor: 
 

(a)  Fails to begin the work under the contract within the time specified in the "Notice to 
Proceed (80‐02)"; or 

(b)  Fails to perform the work or fails to provide sufficient workers, equipment or materials 
to assure completion of work in accordance with the terms of the contract; or 

(c)  Performs the work unsuitably or neglects or refuses to remove materials or to perform 
anew such work as may be rejected as unacceptable and unsuitable; or  

(d)  Discontinues the prosecution of the work; or 
(e)  Fails  to  resume work which  has  been  discontinued within  a  reasonable  time  after 

notice to do so; or 
(f)  Becomes  insolvent  or  is  declared  bankrupt,  or  commits  any  act  of  bankruptcy  or 

insolvency; or 
(g)  Allows any final judgment to stand against him unsatisfied for a period of 10 days; or 
(h)  Makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors; or  
(i)  For any other cause whatsoever, fails to carry on the work in an acceptable manner. 

 
Should the Owner's Engineer consider the Contractor in default of the contract for any reason 
hereinbefore, he shall  immediately give written notice to the Contractor and the Contractor's 
surety as to the reasons for considering the Contractor in default and the Owner's intentions to 
terminate the contract. 
 
If  the Contractor  or  surety, within  a  period  of  10  calendar  days  after  such  notice,  does  not 
proceed  in  accordance  therewith,  then  the  Owner will,  upon written  notification  from  the 
Owner's Engineer of the facts of such delay, neglect, or default and the Contractor's failure to 
comply with such notice, have full power and authority without violating the contract, to take 
the prosecution of the work out of the hands of the Contractor.  The Owner may appropriate or 
use any or all materials and equipment that have been mobilized for use  in the work and are 
acceptable and may enter  into an agreement for the completion of said contract according to 
the terms and provisions thereof, or use such other methods as  in the opinion of the Owner's 
Engineer will be required for the completion of said contract in an acceptable manner. 
 
All  costs and  charges  incurred by  the Owner,  together with  the cost of  completing  the work 
under  contract,  will  be  deducted  from  any  monies  due  or  which  may  become  due  the 
Contractor.    If  such  expense  exceeds  the  sum  which  would  have  been  payable  under  the 
contract,  then  the Contractor  and  the  surety  shall be  liable  and  shall pay  to  the Owner  the 
amount of such excess. 
 



 GP-46 

Prosecution & Progress continued… 
 
 
80‐10 TERMINATION FOR NATIONAL EMERGENCIES.   The Owner shall terminate the contract 
or portion  thereof by written notice when  the Contractor  is prevented  from proceeding with 
the construction contract as a direct result of an Executive Order of the President with respect 
to the prosecution of war or in the interest of national defense. 
 
When the contract, or any portion thereof, is terminated before completion of all items of work 
in  the  contract,  payment  will  be  made  for  the  actual  number  of  units  or  items  of  work 
completed at the contract price or as mutually agreed for items of work partially completed or 
not started.  No claims or loss of anticipated profits shall be considered. 
 
Reimbursement  for  organization  of  the  work,  and  other  overhead  expenses,  (when  not 
otherwise  included  in the contract) and moving equipment and materials to and from the  job 
will  be  considered,  the  intent  being  that  an  equitable  settlement  will  be  made  with  the 
Contractor. 
 
Acceptable materials,  obtained  or  ordered  by  the  Contractor  for  the work  and  that  are  not 
incorporated  in  the  work  shall,  at  the  option  of  the  Contractor,  be  purchased  from  the 
Contractor at actual cost as shown by receipted bills and actual cost records at such points of 
delivery as may be designated by the Owner's Engineer. 
 
Termination  of  the  contract  or  a  portion  thereof  shall  neither  relieve  the  Contractor  of  his 
responsibilities  for  the completed work nor shall  it  relieve his surety of  its obligation  for and 
concerning any just claim arising out of the work performed. 



 GP-47 

  GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
  SECTION 90 
 
  MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 
 
90‐01  MEASUREMENT  OF  QUANTITIES.    All  work  completed  under  the  contract  will  be 
measured by  the Contractor's Engineer,  certified and  furnished  to  the Owner's Engineer and 
verified by the Owner or his authorized representatives, using United States Customary Units of 
Measurement. 
 
The method of measurement and computations  to be used  in determination of quantities of 
material furnished and of work performed under the contract will be those methods generally 
recognized as conforming to good engineering practice. 
 
Unless  otherwise  specified,  longitudinal measurements  for  area  computations will  be made 
horizontally, and no deductions will be made  for  individual  fixtures  (or  leave‐outs) having an 
area of 9  square  feet or  less.   Unless otherwise  specified,  transverse measurements  for area 
computations will  be  the  neat  dimensions  shown  on  the  plans  or  ordered  in writing  by  the 
Owner's Engineer. 
 
Structures will be measured according to neat lines shown on the plans or as altered to fit field 
conditions. 
 
Unless otherwise  specified, all contract  items which are measured by  the  linear  foot  such as 
pipe  culverts,  and  similar  items  shall  be measured  parallel  to  the  base  or  foundation  upon 
which such items are placed. 
 
In computing volumes of excavation the average end area method or other methods acceptable 
to the Owner's Engineer, will be used. 
 
Areas of materials paid for by area shall be measured using the centerline length of the facility 
multiplied by the  lesser of the average actual or plan dimensions perpendicular to centerline.  
Actual width  shall be measured at  random  locations along  the  length of  the project, with an 
average of two measurements per station.   Volumes of materials  in place shall be determined 
by multiplying  the area by  the  lesser of  the plan or actual average  thickness of  the material.  
Materials  in  a  structural  section  such  as  aggregate  base  shall  be  not  less  than  the  specified 
thickness. 
 
The thickness of plates and galvanized sheet used in the manufacture of corrugated metal pipe, 
metal  plate  pipe  culverts  and  arches,  and metal  cribbing will  be  specified  and measured  in 
decimal fraction of inches. 
 
The  term "ton" will mean  the short  ton consisting of 2,000 pound avoirdupois.   All materials 
which are measured or proportioned by weights shall be weighed on accurate, approved scales 
by competent, qualified personnel at locations designated by the Owner's Engineer.   
 
 



 GP-48 

Measurement & Payment continued… 
 
 
If material  is  shipped by  rail,  the  car weight may be  accepted provided  that only  the  actual 
weight of material be paid for.  However, car weights will not be acceptable for material to be 
passed through mixing plants.  
 
Trucks used  to haul material being paid  for by weight  shall be weighed empty at  least  twice 
daily at such times as the Owner's Engineer directs, and each truck shall bear a plainly  legible 
identification  mark.    Such  empty  weights  shall  be  recorded  with  the  time  and  truck 
identification  on  a  Tare  Sheet.  Copies  of  each  days  Tare  Sheets  and  the  current  scale 
certification shall be furnished to the Owner’s Engineer with the pay request. 
 
Materials SHALL NOT be measured by volume in the hauling vehicle unless approved in writing 
in advance by the Owner's Engineer. 
 
When requested by the Contractor and approved by the Owner's Engineer in writing, material 
specified to be measured by the cubic yard may be weighed and such weights will be converted 
to  cubic  yards  for  payment  purposes.    Factors  for  conversion  from weight measurement  to 
volume measurement will be determined by  the Owner's Engineer and shall be agreed  to by 
the Contractor before such method of measurement of pay quantities is used. 
 
Bituminous materials will be measured by the gallon or ton.  When measured by volume, such 
volumes will be measured at 60 degrees F. or will be corrected to the volume at 60 degrees F. 
using ASTM D 1250 for asphalts or ASTM D 633 for tars. 
 
Net certified scale weights or weights based on certified volumes in the case of rail shipments 
will be used as a basis of measurement,  subject  to correction when bituminous material has 
been lost from the car or the distributor, wasted, or otherwise not incorporated in the work. 
 
When bituminous materials are shipped by truck or transport, net certified weights by volume, 
subject to correction for loss or foaming, may be used for computing quantities. 
 
Portland cement, fly ash and lime will be measured by the ton or hundredweight. 
 
Timber will be measured by the thousand feet board measure (M.F.B.M.) actually incorporated 
in the structure.  Measurement will be based on nominal widths and thickness and the extreme 
length of each piece. 
 
The term "lump sum" when used as an  item of payment will mean complete payment for the 
work described in the contract.  Contractor shall furnish a fee schedule to the Owner’s Engineer 
at  the  preconstruction  conference  for  all  professional  service  lump  sum  items  such  as 
construction surveying and materials testing. 
 
When a complete structure or structural unit  (in effect, "lump sum" work)  is specified as  the 
unit  of  measurement,  the  unit  will  be  construed  to  include  all  necessary  fittings  and 
accessories. 
 
 



 GP-49 

Measurement & Payment continued… 
 
 
Rental of equipment will be measured by time  in hours of actual working time and necessary 
traveling time of the equipment within the  limits of the work.   Special equipment ordered by 
the Owner's Engineer in connection with force account work will be measured as agreed in the 
change order or supplemental agreement authorizing such  force account work as provided  in 
the subsection titled PAYMENT FOR EXTRA AND FORCE ACCOUNT WORK of Section 90‐05. 
 
When  standard manufactured  items  are  specified  such  as  fence, wire, plates,  rolled  shapes, 
pipe  conduit, etc., and  these  items are  identified by gauge, unit weight,  section dimensions, 
etc., such identification will be considered to be nominal weights or dimensions.   Unless more 
stringently  controlled  by  tolerances  in  cited  specifications,  manufacturing  tolerances 
established by the industries involved will be accepted. 
 
Scales for weighing materials which are required to be proportioned or measured and paid for 
by  weight  shall  be  furnished,  erected,  and  maintained  by  the  Contractor,  or  by  certified 
permanently  installed commercial scales.   Scales shall be accurate within one‐half per cent of 
the correct weight throughout the range of use.  The Contractor shall have the scales checked 
under  the  observation  of  the  inspector  before  beginning work  and  at  such  other  times  as 
requested.    The  intervals  shall  be  uniform  in  spacing  throughout  the  graduated  or marked 
length of the beam or dial and shall not exceed one‐tenth of one per cent of the nominal rated 
capacity  of  the  scale,  but  not  less  than  one  pound.    The  use  of  spring  balances will  not  be 
permitted. 
 
Beams, dials, platforms, and other scale equipment shall be so arranged that the operator and 
inspector can safely and conveniently view them. 
 
Scale  installations  shall  have  available,  ten  standard  fifty‐pound  weights  for  testing  the 
weighing equipment or suitable weights and devices for other approved equipment. 
 
Scales must be tested for accuracy and serviced before use at a new site.  Platform scales shall 
be installed and maintained with the platform level and rigid bulkheads at each end. 
 
Scales "overweighing"  (indicating more  than correct weight) will not be permitted  to operate 
and all materials  received subsequent  to  the  last previous correct weighing‐accuracy‐test will 
be reduced by the percentage of error in excess of one‐half of one per cent. 
 
In  the  event  inspection  reveals  the  scales  have  been  "under‐weighing"  (indicating  less  than 
correct weight)  they  shall  be  adjusted  and  no  additional  payment  to  the  Contractor will  be 
allowed for materials previously weighed and recorded. 
 
All costs in connection with furnishing, installing, certifying, testing, and maintaining scales:  for 
furnishing check weights and scale house; and  for all other  items specified  in this subsection, 
for  the  weighing  of materials  for  proportioning  or  payment,  shall  be  included  in  the  unit 
contract prices for the various items of the project. 
 
 
 



 GP-50 

Measurement & Payment continued… 
 
 
When  the  estimated  quantities  for  a  specific  portion  of  the  work  are  designated  as  pay 
quantities in the contract, they shall be the final quantities for which payment for such specific 
portion of the work will be made, unless the dimensions of said portions of the work shown on 
the plans are revised by the Owner's Engineer.    If revised dimensions result  in an  increase or 
decrease in the quantities of such work, the final quantities for payment will be revised  in the 
amount represented by the authorized changes in the dimensions. 
 
90‐02 SCOPE OF PAYMENT.   The Contractor shall  receive and accept compensation provided 
for in the contract as full payment for furnishing all materials, for performing all work under the 
contract  in a  complete and acceptable manner, and  for all  risk,  loss, damage, or expense of 
whatever character arising out of the nature of the work or the prosecution thereof, subject to 
the provisions of the subsection titled NO WAIVER OF LEGAL RIGHTS of Section 70‐17. 
 
When the "basis of payment" subsection of a technical specification requires that the contract 
price  (price bid)  include compensation  for certain work or material essential  to  the  item,  this 
same work or material will not also be measured  for payment under any other contract  item 
which may appear elsewhere in the contract, plans or specifications. 
 
Periodic progress payments shall be in accordance with A.R.S. §34‐221. 
 
90‐03 COMPENSATION FOR ALTERED QUANTITIES.  When the accepted quantities of work vary 
from  the quantities  in  the proposal,  the Contractor  shall accept as payment  in  full,  so  far as 
contract  items  are  concerned,  payment  at  the  original  contract  price  for  the  accepted 
quantities of work actually completed and accepted.   No allowance, except as provided for  in 
the subsection titled ALTERATION OF WORK AND QUANTITIES of Section 40‐02 will be made for 
any increased expense, loss of expected reimbursement, or loss of anticipated profits suffered 
or claimed by the Contractor which results directly from such alterations or indirectly from his 
unbalanced  allocation  of  overhead  and  profit  among  the  contract  items,  or  from  any  other 
cause. 
 
90‐04 PAYMENT FOR OMITTED ITEMS.  As specified in the subsection titled OMITTED ITEMS of 
Section  40‐03,  the  Owner's  Engineer  shall  have  the  right  to  omit  from  the  work  (order 
nonperformance) any  contract  item, except major  contract  items,  in  the best  interest of  the 
Owner. 
 
Should  the Owner's Engineer omit  to order nonperformance of a contract  item or portion of 
such item from the work, the Contractor shall accept payment in full at the contract prices for 
any work actually completed and acceptable prior to the Owner's Engineer's order to omit or 
non‐perform such contract item. 
 
Acceptable materials ordered by the contract or delivered on the work prior to the date of the 
Owner's  Engineer's  order  will  be  paid  for  at  the  actual  cost  to  the  Contractor  and  shall 
thereupon become the property of the Owner. 
 
 
 



 GP-51 

Measurement & Payment continued… 
 
 
In addition  to  the  reimbursement hereinbefore provided,  the Contractor  shall be  reimbursed 
for all actual costs  incurred  for  the purpose of performing the omitted contract  item prior  to 
the date of  the Owner's  Engineer's order.    Such  additional  costs  incurred by  the Contractor 
must  be  directly  related  to  the  deleted  contract  item  and  shall  be  supported  by  certified 
statements by the Contractor as to the nature and amount of such costs. 
 
90‐05  PAYMENT  FOR  EXTRA  AND  FORCE  ACCOUNT  WORK.    Extra  work,  performed  in 
accordance with  the  subsection  titled EXTRA WORK of  Section 40‐04, will be paid  for at  the 
contract  prices  or  agreed  prices  specified  in  the  change  order  or  supplemental  agreement 
authorizing the extra work requiring that it be done by force account, such force account shall 
be measured and paid for as follows: 
 

(a)  Labor.   For all  labor  (skilled and unskilled) and  foremen  in direct charge of a specific 
force account  item, the Contractor shall receive the rate of wage (or scale) for every 
hour  that  such  labor  or  foreman  is  actually  engaged  in  the  specified  force  account 
work.  Such wage (or scale) shall be agreed upon in writing before beginning the work. 

 
The Contractor shall receive the actual costs paid to, or in behalf of, workers by reason 
of  subsistence  and  travel  allowances,  health  and  welfare  benefits,  pension  fund 
benefits or other benefits, when such amounts are required by collective bargaining 
agreement or other employment contract generally applicable to the classes of  labor 
employed on the work.  An amount equal to 15 percent of the sum of the above items 
will also be paid the Contractor. 

 
(b)  Insurance  and  Taxes.    For  property  damage,  liability  and workmen's  compensation 

insurance premiums, unemployment insurance contributions, and social security taxes 
on the force account work the Contractor shall receive the actual cost, to which cost 
(sum) 5 percent will be added.   The Contractor shall  furnish satisfactory evidence of 
the rate or rates paid for such insurance and taxes. 

 
(c)  Materials.   For materials accepted by the Owner's Engineer and used, the Contractor 

shall  receive  the  actual  cost  of  such  materials  delivered  on  the  work,  including 
transportation charges paid by him (exclusive of machinery rentals as hereinafter set 
forth), to which cost (sum) 15 percent will be added. 

 
(d)  Equipment.  For any machinery or special equipment (other than small tools) including 

fuel and lubricants, plus transportation costs, the use of which has been authorized by 
the Owner's Engineer, the Contractor shall receive the rental rates in the current "Blue 
Book for Construction Equipment". 

 
(e)  Miscellaneous.   No  additional  allowance will be made  for  general  superintendence, 

the  use  of  small  tools,  or  other  costs  for  which  no  specific  allowance  is  herein 
provided. 

 



 GP-52 

(f)  Comparison  of  Records.    The  Contractor  and  the  Owner's  Engineer  shall  compare 
records of the cost of force account work at the end of each day.  Agreement shall be 
indicated by signature of the Contractor and Owner's Engineer or their duly authorized 
representatives. 

 
(g)  Statements.   No payment will be made for work performed on a force account basis 

until  the  Contractor  has  furnished  the  Owner's  Engineer  with  duplicate  itemized 
statements of the cost of such force account work detailed as follows: 

 
(1)    Name, classification, date, daily hours, total hours, rate and extension  for each 

laborer and foreman. 
(2)    Designation, dates, daily hours,  total hours,  rental  rate and extension  for each 

unit of machinery and equipment. 
(3)    Quantities of material, prices, and extensions. 
(4)    Transportation of materials. 
(5)    Cost  of  property  damage,  liability  and  workmen's  compensation  insurance 

premiums, unemployment insurance contribution and social security tax. 
 

Statements shall be accompanied and supported by receipted invoice for all materials 
used  and  transportation  charges.   However,  if materials used on  the  force  account 
work are not specifically purchased for such work but are taken from the Contractor's 
stock,  then  in  lieu of  the  invoices  the Contractor  shall  furnish an affidavit  certifying 
that such materials were taken from his stock, that the quantity claimed, was actually 
used, and that the price and transportation claimed represent the actual cost to the 
Contractor. 
 
The additional payment, based on  the percentages  specified above,  shall  constitute 
full  compensation  for all  items of expense not  specifically provided  for  in  the  force 
account  work.    The  total  payment  made  as  provided  above  shall  constitute  full 
compensation for such work. 

 
90‐06  ACCEPTANCE  AND  FINAL  PAYMENT.   When  the  contract work  has  been  accepted  in 
accordance with the requirements of the subsection titled FINAL ACCEPTANCE of Section 50‐15, 
the Owner's Engineer will prepare the final estimate of the  items of work actually performed.  
The  Contractor  shall  approve  the  Owner's  Engineer's  final  estimate  or  advise  the  Owner's 
Engineer of his objections to the final estimate which are based on disputes  in measurements 
or computations of  the  final quantities  to be paid under  the contract as amended by change 
order  or  supplemental  agreement.  The  Contractor  and  Owner's  Engineer  shall  resolve  all 
disputes (if any)  in the measurement and computation of final quantities to be paid within 30 
calendar days of the Contractor's receipt of the Owner's Engineer's final estimate.  If, after such 
30‐day  period,  a  dispute  still  exists,  the  Contractor  may  approve  the  Owner's  Engineer's 
estimate  under  protest  of  the  quantities  in  dispute  and  such  disputed  quantities  shall  be 
considered  by  the  Owner  as  a  claim  in  accordance with  the  subsection  titled  CLAIMS  FOR 
ADJUSTMENT AND DISPUTES of Section 50‐16. 
 
 
 



 GP-53 

Measurement & Payment continued… 
 
After  the Contractor  has  approved,  or  approved  under protest,  the Owner's  Engineer's  final 
estimate, final payment will be processed based on the entire sum, or the undisputed sum  in 
case of approval under protest, determined to be due the Contractor less all previous payments 
and all amounts to be deducted under the provisions of the contract.  All prior partial estimates 
and payments shall be subject to correction in the final estimate and payment. 
 
Contractor shall provide an executed Affidavit of Release of Liens and an Affidavit of Payment 
to the Owners Engineer prior to the release of the final payment. 
 
If  the  Contractor  has  filed  a  claim  for  additional  compensation  under  the  provisions  of  the 
subsection  titled  CLAIMS  FOR  ADJUSTMENTS  AND  DISPUTES  of  Section  50‐16  or  under  the 
provisions of this subsection, such claims will be considered by the Owner  in accordance with 
local  laws  or  ordinances.    Upon  final  adjudication  of  such  claims,  any  additional  payment 
determined to be due the Contractor will be paid pursuant to a supplemental, final estimate. 
 



  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SPECIAL PROVISIONS 
 
 
 

SP‐1 TO SP‐6 



SP-1 

 SPECIAL PROVISIONS  
 
  GILA COUNTY PWD COMPLEX ROADYARD SHOP AREA PAVING PHASE 
   
 
1.  PROPOSED WORK 
 

The work consists of subgrade preparation (including any necessary minor clearing and 
grubbing),  removal or  relocation of  any  existing  structures  interfering with  the work, 
installation of  concrete  sidewalks,  concrete  curbs  and  curb  and  gutter, masonry wall, 
aggregate base course, asphaltic concrete pavement, temporary chain link fence, chain 
link  fence,  chain  link  security  fence,  fence  gates,  barbed  wire  fence  and  as‐built 
drawings other work as shown within the plans. 

 
2.  GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
 

The  project  has  been  designed  utilizing  the  Arizona  Department  of  Transportation 
(ADOT)  Construction  Standard  Drawings  (Latest  Series),  and  2008  Standard 
Specifications,  with  appropriate  current  revisions  along  with  Uniform  Standard 
Specifications  for  Public Works  Construction  (Latest  Edition  and  Revisions), Maricopa 
Association  of  Governments.    Wherever  reference  in  the  Standard  Specifications  is 
made to MAG, ADOT, the Owner, or the Department: it shall refer to Gila County. 

 
In  the event of any  conflict between  the plans and Standard Specifications,  the plans 
shall prevail.  In the event of any conflict between these Special Provisions and the plans 
or Standard Specifications, these Special Provisions shall prevail. 

 
The following STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS and/or details are considered a part of these 
Contract Documents and are considered as binding as if actually attached hereto: 

 
 Arizona  Department  of  Transportation,  Highways  Division,  Standard 

Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction, Edition of 2008, 
 

 Arizona Department  of  Transportation, Highways Division,  Standard Drawings, 
listed in the project plans and defined hereinafter, 

 
 Manual  on  Uniform  Traffic  Control  Devices,  Millennium  Edition,  and 

Amendments. 
 

 Uniform  Standard  Specifications  for  Public Works  Construction  (Latest  Edition 
and Revisions).  Maricopa Association of Governments. 

 
 Arizona Water Company Specifications and Standard Details, April 2004. 

 



SP-2 

 
Special Provisions continued… 
 
3.  POINTS AND INSTRUCTION AND AS‐BUILTS 
 

The Contractor will furnish and set control stakes and points for line and grade and will 
furnish the Engineer with the necessary information relating to such stakes and points.   
 
The Contractor will provide such  intermediate stakes as he may need to set to comply 
with these Specifications.   

 
The Contractor shall carefully preserve benchmarks, reference points and stakes, and in 
case of willful or careless destruction, he shall be charged with the resulting expense of 
replacement,  and  shall  be  responsible  for  any mistakes  that may  be  caused  by  their 
unnecessary loss or disturbance. 

 
In the event that it is necessary for the OWNER to duplicate his work because of acts of 
omission  or  negligence  on  the  part  of  the  Contractor,  or  because  of  the  removal  of 
defective work, such additional cost of engineering shall be borne by the Contractor. 

 
When the work is completed, the Contractor shall provide the OWNER with a set of as‐
built  drawings  on  clean  prints  of  the  original  drawings.    The  as‐built  drawings  shall 
indicate  in a neat and accurate manner all changes and revisions  in the original design 
which  affect  the  permanent  structures  and which  exist  in  the  completed work.    All 
underground  utilities  relocated  under  this  contract  shall  be  referenced  to  semi‐
permanent or permanent physical objects. 

 
The alterations and references shall be made with colored  ink and shall be sufficiently 
clear and complete to enable reproducing these changes on the original tracings.   The 
Engineer will document these changes on the original tracings and forward the tracings 
to the Contractor for review and signature.   The registered Professional Land Surveyor 
who  performed  the  Final  Survey  shall  certify  the As‐Built  information  by  signing  and 
sealing the tracings for the Contractor.  Final payment of this contract will not be made 
to the Contractor until the As‐Built drawings are satisfactorily produced and certified. 

 
As‐Built  conditions  shall  be  kept  current.    They  shall  be  inspected  for  accuracy  and 
completeness monthly.  The Contractor shall certify on his monthly payment requisition 
that the drawings are accurate and complete before the monthly payment estimate will 
be prepared and approved. 
 

4.   CONSTRUCTION LIMITS 
 

The Contractor shall not disturb any vegetation or operate any equipment outside the 
approved  clearing  limits  as  defined  in  ADOT  Standard  Specifications,  Section  201  ‐ 
Clearing and Grubbing and as specified in the Technical Specifications.  These limits shall 
be known as the Construction Limits.  Deviation outside these limits is not authorized. 

 



SP-3 

Special Provisions continued… 
 
The Owner shall provide land, right‐of‐way, and easements for all work specified in this 
contract,  except  that  the  Contractor  shall  provide  additional  land  if  required  for  the 
erection of  temporary construction  facilities  for  storage of his material,  together with 
right  of  access  to  same.    The  Contractor  shall  not  enter  or  occupy with men,  tools, 
equipment  or materials,  any  private  property without written  consent  of  the Owner 
thereof. 

 
The  Contractor  shall  submit  at  the  preconstruction  conference  a  map  showing  the 
proposed  location of his Contractor's yard.   The  location of  the yard  is  subject  to  the 
approval of the Owner.  The Contractor is responsible for the security of his yard and the 
equipment  and  materials  stored  at  the  yard  or  construction  site.    Damage,  theft, 
vandalism, or loss of such equipment or materials is the responsibility of the Contractor.  
The Contractor will not be compensated for replacement, repair, or refusal of materials 
by  the  Engineer  damaged  by  vandalism  or  theft.    The  Contractor will  take whatever 
measures  are  necessary  to  secure  his  yard,  equipment,  and  materials.    Security 
measures such as yard  fences, security guards,  locks, chains, etc. are  incidental  to  the 
work for this project. 

 
5.  OPERATION AND TRAFFIC CONTROL PLANS 
 

The  Contractor  shall  submit  to  the  Owner  for  approval  his  proposed  sequence  of 
operations and a compatible method of maintaining traffic as described in ADOT Section 
107 of the Standard Specifications and the Technical Provisions.   The proposal shall be 
submitted at the preconstruction conference. 

 
6.  QUALITY CONTROL PLAN  
 

The Owner shall be responsible for Quality Control. The Contractor shall provide access 
to  all  parts  of  the  work  and  material  sources  for  the  Owner  obtain  all  necessary 
sampling and testing and shall schedule all required testing with the Owner. The Owner 
shall  have  the  right,  at  any  stage  of  the  operations,  to  reject  any  and  all work  and 
material that, in his/her opinion, do not meet the requirements of the specifications. 
 

7.  SAMPLING AND TESTING 
 

All  testing  and  sampling  as  specified  herein  shall  be  performed  by  a  geotechnical 
laboratory.  Unless  otherwise  specified,  the  cost  of  the  laboratory  testing,  heavy 
equipment rental and  labor  incident to practical tests specified shall be at the Owner's 
expense.   
 



SP-4 

Special Provisions continued.. 
 

The Contractor  shall notify, during  the preconstruction  conference,  the Owner of  the 
proposed  sources of all materials  required by  the Specifications  to be  tested.   Before 
work  starts  sufficient  time  shall be allowed  for  the  taking of  samples and  completing 
tests required.  

 
For the verification of weights and character of materials, the Owner shall have access 
at all reasonable  times  to all parts of  the work, plants, and assembly yards connected 
with the work. The Contractor shall facilitate and assist  in the verification of all scales, 
measures  and  other  devices,  which  he  operates.    Reference  to  ASTM  and  other 
Standard  Specifications  shall be  considered  to mean  current  standards.    If  it  is  found 
that sources of supply that have been approved do not furnish a uniform product, or if 
the  product  from  any  source  proves  unacceptable  at  any  time,  the  Contractor  shall 
furnish  approved  material  from  other  approved  sources.    No  material  which,  after 
approval, has in any way become unfit for use shall be used in the work.  The approval 
of any material represented by any sample or samples shall not be taken as a guarantee 
of all materials from the source; and  it shall be understood that all materials delivered 
to the site are subject to test at any time and will be rejected  if they do not meet the 
requirement of the Specifications. 

 
8.  MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 

Measurement will be in place for the completed work, with no allowance for waste, and 
as may be more particularly described in the description of the various items set forth in 
the  Standard  Specifications  and  as  shown  on  the  plans.    All  earthwork,  fill  and 
excavation,  submitted  for  payment  shall  be  certified  by  an  Arizona  registered 
Professional Land Surveyor in support of the work performed by the Contractor. 

 
No additional payments will be made  for work  related  to any  item unless  specifically 
noted and called  for  in the Proposal.   Payment will be made at the unit price or  lump 
sum price bid in the Proposal. 

 
In  addition  to  the  requirements  set  forth  in  the  ADOT  Standard  Specifications,  no 
measurement or direct payment will be made for the following work.  The cost for such 
work shall be considered as included in the price of other contract items. 

 
A.  Removal  and  salvage  items  as  called  for  on  the  plans,  in  the  Standard 

Specifications, or these Special Provisions. 
B.  Removal, salvage and/or re‐installation of existing fence lines. 
C.  Sampling, testing, certification, and other quality control actions. 
D.  Disposal of surplus, waste or non‐salvageable materials. 
E.  Grading of drainage ditches and drainage excavation not called out on the plans. 



SP-5 

Special Provisions continued… 

 
F.  Preparation  and  submittal  of  operation,  traffic  control,  and  storm  water 

pollution  prevention  plans, whether  specified  herein  or  required  by  the  other 
agencies. 

G.  Obtaining and maintaining any required environmental and/or other permits and 
licenses. 

 

The quantities  set  forth  in  the Proposal  are used  for  the purpose of determining  the 
basis of the award of the Contract, and may be  increased or decreased 10% or  less by 
the Owner to conform to the requirements of the work as set  forth on the plans, and 
the Contractor  shall agree  to perform  the work on  the basis of  the prices bid  for  the 
items  contained  in  the  Proposal  regardless  of whether  or  not  the  items  or  units  are 
decreased or increased. 
 
The Engineer or the Owner shall have the right to order omitted from the Contract any 
minor  item  found  unnecessary  to  the  work  without  violating  the  Contract  or 
Performance Bond, and without any compensation to the Contractor. 

 
To ensure the Contractor's satisfactory performance of the Contract, progress payments 
shall be  subject  to  retainage pursuant  to A.R.S. §34‐221  in  the amount of 10% of  the 
approved estimate of the Work performed in the preceding calendar month.  When the 
Work is 50% complete, the retainage shall be reduced to 5% so long as the Contractor is 
making satisfactory progress.  If the Owner determines in writing that the Contractor is 
not making satisfactory progress at any time, the 10% retainage may be reinstated.   In 
lieu of retainage, the Contractor may post substitute security meeting the requirements 
of A.R.S. §34‐221. 

 
9.  HAUL ROUTE 
 

The Contractor  is  to submit haul routes  to  the Owner  for approval prior  to  the use of 
said routes.  

 
10.  DUST CONTROL 
 

The Contractor shall use all methods in the control of dust as set forth by A.R.S. §49‐401 
and the ADOT Standard Specifications Section 207.  The cost thereof is to be included in 
the unit construction cost. 

 
11.  TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENTS 
 

Temporary construction easements are not required for this project.  
 



SP-6 

Special Provisions continued… 

 
12.  OWNER’S FIELD OFFICE 
 

The Owner’s  field office,  as  called  for under  Section 60‐05 of  the General Provisions, 
shall not be required of the Contractor for this project. 

 

13.  BLASTING NOTIFICATION 
 

Blasting shall not be permitted within any portion of the project at any time. 
 

14.  UTILITY SYSTEMS 
 

The  Contractor  shall  be  aware  of  each  utility  system  owner’s 
requirements/specifications/standard details/permitting prior to the commencement of 
any utility  system  installation or  the  relation/adjustment of any  system elements  that 
interfere with construction. The Contractor shall also be aware of several utility systems 
existing within and around the project limits. The Contractor shall be responsible for any 
damage to the utilities. The Contractor shall be aware of overhead utility lines along and 
near  roadways within  and/or  adjacent  to  the  project  limits.  The  Contractor  shall  be 
responsible for any damage to any overhead utilities or their support structures.   
 

15.  UTILITY RELOCATION/REMOVAL 
 

The Contractor shall not be responsible for the relocation and/or removal of any existing 
utility system(s)  in conflict with  the project unless noted on  the plans. The Contractor 
shall  coordinate  project  activities  with  each  respective  utility  system.  Prior  to 
construction to minimize utility service disruption, relocations and/or removals shall be 
in  accordance  with  each  respective  utility  system  owner.  The  Contractor  shall  be 
responsible for any damage to said utility system(s) during construction. 

 
16.  DISPOSAL OF REMOVED VEGETATION OR UNSUITABLE MATERIALS 
 

The Contractor shall dispose all removed vegetation and/or any unsuitable materials in 
a  location  as  designated  by  the  Public Works  Director.  Disposal  of  said material  in 
another  location(s)  shall  be  submitted  to  the  OWNER  for  approval  prior  to  disposal 
activities. 

 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 

 
 
 
 

T‐1 TO T‐6 
 



T - 1 

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 
 

GILA COUNTY PWD COMPLEX ROADYARD SHOP AREA PAVING PHASE  
GLOBE, ARIZONA 

 
 
107  TEMPORARY CHAIN LINK FENCE 
 
Temporary Chain Link Fence and associated gates shall be  in accordance with Section 107 of 
the ADOT Standard Specifications unless modified herein. All temporary fencing, once installed 
and  construction of  all  site  improvements  completed  to  the  satisfaction of  the Owner,  shall 
become the property of the Owner. 
 
 
202  REMOVAL OF STRUCTURES AND OBSTRUCTIONS 
 
Removal of Structures and Obstructions shall be  in accordance with Section 202 of the ADOT 
Standard Specifications unless modified herein. 
 
 
203  EARTHWORK 
 
Earthwork  shall be  in  accordance with  the  specifications  and  requirements unless otherwise 
noted within the plans.  
 
 
206  STRUCTURE EXCAVATION AND BACKFILL 
 
Structure Excavation and Backfill shall be in accordance with Section 206 of the MAG Standard 
Specifications unless modified herein. 
 
 
206  FURNISH WATER SUPPLY:   
 
Furnish Water  Supply  shall  be  done  in  accordance with  Section  206  of  the  ADOT  Standard 
Specifications unless modified herein. 
   
  206‐1  Description: add the following paragraph. 
 

Water  shall be  free of  contaminants  that  in  the opinion of  the  Engineer  constitute  a 
health hazard. 

 



T - 2 

Technical Specifications continued… 
 
206‐4  Method of Measurement: is revised to read: 

 
No measurement  or  payment will  be made  for  furnish water  supply,  the  cost  being 
considered as included in the cost of other contract items. 

 
206‐5  Basis of Payment: is revised to read: 

 
No measurement  or  payment will  be made  for  furnish water  supply,  the  cost  being 
considered as included in the cost of other contract items. 

 
 
301  SUBGRADE PREPARATION 
 
Subgrade  Preparation  shall  be  in  accordance  with  Section  301  of  the  MAG  Standard 
Specifications unless modified herein or stated within the plans. 
 

301‐1  Description: the first sentence of the first paragraph is revised to read: 
 
This  section  shall  govern  the  preparation  of  natural,  or  excavated  areas  prior  to  the 
placement of  sub‐base material,  rock  riprap, pavement, curbs and gutters, driveways, 
sidewalks or other structures. 

 
301‐3  Relative Compaction: add the following line: 

 
(D) Subgrade for Rock RipRap  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 85 percent 

 
 
303   AGGREGATE SUBBASES AND AGGREGATE BASES 
 
Aggregate  Base  Course  shall  Class  II  in  accordance with  Section  303  of  the  ADOT  Standard 
Specifications unless modified herein. 
 
 
321  ASPHALT CONCRETE PAVEMENT 
 
Asphaltic Concrete Pavement  shall be  in  accordance with  Section  321 of  the MAG  Standard 
Specifications unless modified herein.  
 
 



T - 3 

 
Technical Specifications continued… 
 
340  CONCRETE CURB, GUTTER, SIDEWALK, SIDEWALK RAMPS, DRIVEWAY AND ALLEY 

ENTRANCE 
 
Concrete curb, gutter, sidewalk, sidewalk ramps, driveway, concrete aprons and alley entrances 
shall be  in accordance with Section 340 of  the MAG Standard Specifications unless modified 
herein. All  gutters having  a  slope  less  than 0.8  foot per hundred  feet or  less  shall be water 
tested in accordance with this Section. 
 
 
430  LANDSCAPING AND PLANTING 
 
Decomposed  Granite  shall  be  in  accordance  with  Section  430  of  the  MAG  Standard 
Specifications unless modified herein.  
 
 
525  PNUEMATICALLY PLACED MORTAR 
 
Pneumatically placed mortar  (a.k.a. shotcrete) shall be  in accordance with Section 525 of  the 
MAG Standard Specifications unless modified herein. 
 

525.1   Description: add the following sentence: 
 

Concrete color shall be in accordance with the information stated within the plans. 
 

525.6   Surface Preparation: add the following paragraph: 
 

On sloped faces taller than 24 inches, weep holes shall be constructed at intervals of ten 
feet  (10’) midway  between  contraction  joints  on  each  side  of  the  sloped  shotcrete. 
Weep  holes  shall  be  constructed  using  perforated  4‐inch  (4”)  diameter,  schedule  40, 
polyvinyl chloride (PVC) pipe. The pipe shall be cut to fit the finish slope of the sloped 
shotcrete face and shall be placed at an elevation of one foot (1’) above the toe of the 
slope. The pipe perforations shall be a minimum of one (1) square inch per linear foot of 
pipe. The weep holes shall be backed by a minimum of two (2) cubic feet of aggregate 
material tied  in a burlap bag. The aggregate shall extend at  least six  inches  (6”) above 
and below and to each side of the weep hole, and at least twenty four (24”) inches into 
the side slope. The side and back of the burlap bag shall be protected from being coated 
by concrete during the placing operation by a suitable means approved by the Owner. 
On  the day  following  concrete placement, each weep hole  shall be  rodded  to  assure 
that it has not been blocked.  

 



T - 4 

Technical Specifications continued… 
 

525.11   Testing: add the following paragraph: 
 

Shotcrete channels having a slope of 0.8 foot per hundred feet or less, or where unusual 
or special conditions cast doubt on the capability of the gutters to drain, shall be water 
tested. Water  testing  shall  consist of establishing  flow  in  the  length of  channel  to be 
tested by supplying water from a hydrant, tank truck or other source. One hour after the 
supply of water  is shut off,  the channel shall be  inspected  for evidence of ponding or 
improper shape. In the event water  is found ponded  in the channel to a depth greater 
than ½  inch,  the  defect  or  defects  shall  be  corrected  in  a manner  acceptable  to  the 
Engineer without additional cost to the Owner.  

 
 
701  MAINTENANCE AND PROTECTION OF TRAFFIC: 
 
Maintenance  and Protection of  Traffic  shall be  in  accordance with  Section 701 of  the ADOT 
Standard Specifications, except as modified herein. 
 

701‐1  Description:  of the Standard Specifications add the following paragraphs: 
 
The Contractor  shall be  responsible  for  closure of  the main entrance driveway during 
construction and all related signage including the protection of pedestrian traffic. 
 
701‐5    Method of Measurement: is revised to read: 
 
Maintenance  and  Protection  of  Traffic  will  not  be measured.    The  contract  unit  of 
measurement shall be lump sum. 
 
701‐6   Basis of Payment: is revised to read: 
   
The  contractor will  be  compensated  for  all Maintenance  and  Protection  of  Traffic  in 
accordance with the procedures described herein the contract  lump sum price for this 
item of work. 

 
 
810  EROSION CONTROL AND POLLUTION PREVENTION (SWPPP) 
 
An Erosion Control and Pollution Prevention Plan and an associated permit will be required for 
this  project.    The  Contractor  shall  provide  all  necessary  documentation  to  the  Arizona 
Department of Environmental Quality and provide copies of all documents to the Owner. 

 
 



T - 5 

Technical Specifications continued… 
 
901  MOBILIZATION 
 
Mobilization shall be in accordance with Section 901 of the ADOT Standard Specifications. 
 
 
902  CHAIN LINK FENCE 
 
Chain  Link  Fence  and Gates  shall  be  in  accordance with  Section  420  of  the MAG  Standard 
Specifications. 
 
 
903  WIRE FENCE 
 
Wire fence shall be in accordance with Section 903 of the ADOT Standard Specifications. 
 
 
909  SURVEY MARKER 
 
Survey Markers shall not be required to be installed for this project.  
 
 
913  BANK PROTECTION 
 
Bank Protection  including dumped rock riprap shall be  in accordance with Section 913 of  the 
ADOT Standard Specifications. 
 
 
914  WALLS AND MISCELLANEOUS STRUCTURES 
 
Walls shall be in accordance with Section 914 of the ADOT Standard Specifications. 
 
 
925   CONSTRUCTION SURVEYING AND LAYOUT AND AS‐BUILT DRAWINGS: 
 
Construction  Surveying  and  Layout  shall  be  in  accordance  with  Section  925  of  the  ADOT 
Standard Specifications, except as modified herein.  

 



T - 6 

Technical Specifications continued… 
 
As‐Builts: add the following section: 

 
Upon completion of the work, the Contractor shall perform an as‐built survey of all work 
shown within  the plans  including but not  limited  to:  finish pavement, concrete  items, 
the alignment of all concrete footings; beginning of top of wall, all changes in the footer 
and/or  top  of wall  elevation  change,  changes  in horizontal direction of  the wall  (i.e., 
angle  points)  and  other  necessary  grading  outside  of  the  limits  of  the  pavement  as 
shown within  the plans  and  all  changes  in  grade break  thereof. Datum of  the  survey 
shall be based on the benchmark information as shown on the Project Plans.  Three (3) 
sets of the signed and sealed survey document shall be submitted to the Engineer  for 
review and approval.  As‐built drawings shall also contain the following. 
 
A.  The as‐built drawings shall indicate in a neat and accurate manner all changes and 

revisions  in  the original design which affect  the permanent structures and which 
exist  in  the  completed  work.    All  underground  utilities  relocated  under  this 
contract shall be referenced to semi‐permanent or permanent physical objects. 

 
B.  The  alterations  and  references  shall  be  made  with  colored  ink  and  shall  be 

sufficiently  clear  and  complete  to  enable  reproducing  these  changes  on  the 
original  tracings.    The  Engineer  will  document  these  changes  on  the  original 
tracings and forward the tracings to the Contractor for review and signature.  The 
registered Professional Land Surveyor who performed the Final Survey shall certify 
the As‐Built information by signing and sealing the tracings for the Contractor.   

 
Final payment of this contract will not be made to the Contractor until the As‐Built 
drawings are satisfactorily produced and certified. 

 
C.  As‐Built conditions shall be kept current.  They shall be inspected for accuracy and 

completeness  monthly.    The  Contractor  shall  certify  on  his  monthly  payment 
requisition  that  the  drawings  are  accurate  and  complete  before  the  monthly 
payment estimate will be prepared and approved. 

 
    925‐4       Method of Measurement: is revised to read: 
 

No measurement shall be made for Construction Survey and Layout and As‐Builts.  The 
contract unit of measurement shall be lump sum. 

 
  925‐5  Basis of Payment: is revised to read: 
 

Payment for Construction Survey and Layout and As‐Builts shall be  lump sum and shall 
be  full compensation  for all work necessary to complete said Construction Survey and 
Layout and As‐builts.  
 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONTRACT FORMS 
       

    Proposal            P‐1 to P‐3 
    Bidding Schedule          BS‐1 to BS‐3 

    Bid Bond            BB‐1 

    Qualification & Certification      QC‐1 to QC‐2 

    Reference List          RL‐1 

    Affidavit of Non‐Collusion      ANC‐1 

    Subcontractor Certification      SC‐1 

    Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment  CK‐1 

    Contract            C‐1 to C‐7 

    Contract Performance Bond      CPB‐1 

    Labor and Materials Bond      LMB‐1 

    Contract Performance Warranty    CPW‐1 

    IRS W‐9 Form          W‐9 

 
 
 
 



P - 1 
 

PROPOSAL 
 
TO THE GILA COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS DIVISION: 
 
Gentlemen: 
 
The  following  Proposal  is made  for  the  BID  NO.  080211‐1,  GILA  COUNTY  PWD  COMPLEX 
ROADYARD SHOP AREA PAVING PHASE, GLOBE, in the County of Gila in the State of Arizona. 
 
The following Proposal is made on behalf of 
_____________________________________________________________________________  
 
_____________________________________________________________________________  
 
_____________________________________________________________________________  
 
and no others.  The Proposal is in all respects fair and is made without collusion on the part of 
any person, firm or corporation mentioned above, and no member or employee of Gila County 
is personally or financially interested, directly or indirectly, in the Proposal, or in any purchase 
or sale of any materials or supplies  for  the work  to which  it  relates, or  in any portion of  the 
profits thereof. 
 

The undersigned certifies that the approved Plans, Technical Specifications, General and 
Special Provisions and forms of Contract and Bond authorized by Gila County and constituting 
essential parts of this Proposal, have been carefully examined, and also that the site of the work 
has been personally  inspected.   The undersigned declares that the amount and nature of the 
work  to  be  done  is  understood  and  that  at  no  time  will  misunderstanding  of  the  Plans, 
Technical Specifications, General Provisions, Special Provisions, or conditions to be overcome, 
be plead.   On the basis of Plans, Technical Specifications, General and Special Provisions, each 
Addendum  (if  any)  and  the  forms  of  Contract  and  Bond  proposed  for  use,  the  undersigned 
proposes  to  furnish all  the necessary equipment, materials, machinery,  tools, apparatus, and 
other means of construction, and labor, to do all the work in the manner specified and to finish 
the entire project within  the  time hereinafter proposed, and  to accept, as  full compensation 
therefore, the sum of the various products obtained by multiplying each unit price, herein bid 
for  the work or materials on  the attached Bidding Schedule, by  the quantity  thereof actually 
incorporated  in  the  complete  project,  as  determined  by  the  Public  Works  Director.    The 
undersigned understands that the quantities mentioned herein are approximate only and are 
subject to increase or decrease and hereby proposes to perform all quantities of work as either 
increased or decreased, in accordance with the provisions of the Specifications, at the unit price 
bid in the attached Bidding Schedule. 
 

The undersigned further proposes to perform all extra work that may be required on the 
basis provided  in  the  Specifications  and  to  give  such work personal  attention  and  to  secure 
economical performance. 
 



P - 2 
 

Proposal continued… 
 

The  undersigned  further  proposes  to  execute  the  Contract  Agreement  and  furnish 
satisfactory Bonds within ten (10) calendar days from the date of Notice of Award, time being 
of  the essence.   The undersigned  further proposes  to begin work as specified  in  the contract 
attached hereto, and  to complete  the work within sixty  (90) Calendar Days of  the Notice  to 
Proceed,  and maintain  at  all  times  a  Payment  Bond  and  Performance,  Labor  and Material 
Bonds,  approved  by  the  Public Works  Director,  in  an  amount  equal  to  one  hundred  (100) 
percent of the total bid.   These bonds shall serve not only to guarantee the completion of the 
work on the part of the undersigned, but also to guarantee the excellence of both workmanship 
and material and the payment of all obligations incurred, until the work is finally accepted and 
the provisions of the Plans, Standard Specifications and Special Provisions fulfilled. 
 

A Proposal Guaranty in the amount and character named in the Call for Bids is enclosed 
amounting  to  not  less  than  ten  (10)  percent  of  the  total  bid,  which  Proposal  Guaranty  is 
submitted  as  a  guaranty of  the  good  faith of  the bidder  and  that  the bidder will  enter  into 
written contract, as provided, to do the work, if successful in securing the award thereof, and it 
is hereby agreed that  if at any time other than as provided  in the Proposal requirements and 
conditions  the undersigned should withdraw  this Proposal, or  if  the Proposal  is accepted and 
there  should  be  failure  on  the  part  of  the  undersigned  to  execute  the Contract  and  furnish 
satisfactory Bond as herein provided, Gila County, in either of such events, shall be entitled and 
is hereby given the right to retain the said Proposal Guaranty as liquidated damages. 
 
 
 
If by a Corporation: 
                                                                (SEAL)              
Corporate Name:__________________________________________________________  
 
Corporate Address:________________________________________________________  
 
Incorporated under the laws of the State of:____________________________________        
 
By (Signature):__________________________ Date:_____________________________  
 
President:_________________________________________________________________  
 
Secretary:_________________________________________________________________  
 
Treasurer:_________________________________________________________________  
 
 
If by a Firm or Partnership: 
 
Firm or Partnership Name:__________________________________________________  
 



 

P - 3 
 

Proposal continued… 
 
 
Firm or Partnership Address:________________________________________________  
 
By (Signature):__________________________ Date:_____________________________  
 
Name and Address of Each Member:__________________________________________ 
 
__________________________________________________________________________  
 
__________________________________________________________________________  
 
__________________________________________________________________________  
 
__________________________________________________________________________  
 
 
 
 
If by an Individual: 
 
 
Signature:_______________________________ Date:_____________________________      
 



 

BS-1 
 

 
BIDDING SCHEDULE 

 
GILA COUNTY PWD COMPLEX ROADYARD SHOP AREA PAVING PHASE 

GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 
 
 
We agree to provide all work and material necessary to complete the project as shown on the 
plans and specifications for the following Contract Price: 
   
 
Firm Name:   _____________________________________________________________ 
 
 
TOTAL CONTRACT PRICE, for the sum of $ _____________________________________ 
 
 
WRITTEN TOTAL CONTRACT PRICE 
 
_______________________________________________________________________Dollars  
 
and __________________________ Cents. 
 
 
This Contract Price is based upon the Bidder’s quantities and unit prices tabulated on Pages BS‐
2 and BS‐3 of the Proposal. The Bidder agrees that the Contract Price will be payment in full for 
all work shown on the plans and described in the Contract Documents. 
 
Any authorized  increases or decreases  to  the work shall be authorized by Change Order. The 
Contract Price shall be increased or decreased by the amount of work or material increased or 
decreased at the following Bid Unit Prices. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

BS-2 
 

BIDDING SCHEDULE 
 
 

Firm Name:   _____________________________________________________________ 
 
COST SUMMARY BREAK DOWN 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  UNIT 
ESTIMATED 
QUANTITIES 

UNIT PRICE 
EXTENDED 
AMOUNT 

107.1  Temporary Chain Link Fence (H=6')  L.F.  312     

107.2 
Temporary Chain Link Fence Gate 
(Double Swing)(W=28’)  EA.  1     

140  Bollard, MAG Dtl. 140  EA.  6     

202  Removal of Structures and Obstructions  L.S.  1     

270 
Sewer Cleanout, Frame and Cover, MAG 
Dtl. 270 

EA.  3     

301  Subgrade Preparation  S.Y.  8,400     

310  Aggregate Base Course ‐ (ADOT Class II)  C.Y.  1,105     

321  Asphaltic Concrete ‐ MAG (3/4") Mix  Ton  890     

340.1 
Concrete Curb, MAG Dtl. 222, Type B, 
H=6" 

L.F.  217.5     

340.2  Concrete Sidewalk  S.F.  883     

340.3  Concrete Sidewalk ADA Access Ramp  S.F.  85     

340.4 
Concrete Ribbon Curb, MAG Dtl. 220‐1, 
Type B 

L.F.  60     

340.5 
Concrete Valley Gutter (MAG 240, 2003 
ed.) 

L.F.  332     

340.6 
Pole Base, Stantec Detail, including pull 
box assembly 

EA.  2     

340.7 
Adjustment of Existing Fire Hydrant 
(Arizona Water Dtl. E‐9‐6‐1) 

L.S.  1     

430  Decomposed Granite, MAG 430  C.Y.  35     

 



 

BS-3 
 

COST SUMMARY BREAK DOWN continued 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  UNIT 
ESTIMATED 
QUANTITIES 

UNIT PRICE 
EXTENDED 
AMOUNT 

525 
Shotcrete (MAG 525)(4" thick, 6x6x10 
WWF)(colored) 

S.F.  1,775     

701  Maintenance and Protection of Traffic  L.S.  1     

810 
Erosion Control and Pollution Prevention 
Plan (SWPPP) 

L.S.  1     

901  Mobilization  L.S.  1     

902.1  Chain Link Fence, H=8'  L.F.  217     

902.2  Chain Link Fence, H=6', Security Type  L.F.  1,102     

902.3  Chain Link Fence, Gate, Double, W=14'  EA.  1     

902.4 
Chain Link Fence, Gate, Double, W=28', 
Security Type 

EA.  3     

902.5 
Chain Link Fence, Gate, Single, W=14', 
Security Type 

EA.  2     

902.6 
Chain Link Fence, Gate, Single, W=6', 
Security Type 

EA.  1     

903  Wire Fence, Barbed, ADOT Type 2  L.F.  402     

913  Dumped RipRap, D50=6"  C.Y.  110     

914  Masonry Wall, ADOT Std.  S.F.  1,476     

925 
Construction Survey and Layout and As‐
builts 

L.S.  1     

      TOTAL BASE BID   



 

BB - 1 
 

 

 GILA COUNTY 
 
 SURETY (BID) BOND 
 (Penalty of this bond must not be less than 10% of the bid amount) 
 
 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that we, the undersigned  , 
 
as Principal, hereinafter called the Principal, and     _____________________________________________, 
            
a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of  , 
 
as Surety, hereinafter called the Surety, holding a certificate of authority to transact surety business in this State 
issued by the Director of the Department of Insurance, are held and firmly bound unto Gila County as Obligee, 
hereinafter called the Obligee, in the sum of ten percent (10%) of the amount bid, submitted by Principal to Gila 
County for the work described below, for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, the said Principal 
and the said Surety bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns, jointly and 
severally, firmly by these presents. 
 
WHEREAS, the Principal is herewith submitting its proposal for: 
 
BID NO. 080211-1, GILA COUNTY PWD COMPLEX ROADYARD SHOP AREA PAVING PHASE, 
GLOBE 
 
NOW THEREFORE, if the Obligee, acting by and through its Public Works Director, accepts the proposal of the 
Principal and the Principal shall enter into contract with the Obligee in accordance with the terms of such proposal, 
and give such bonds and certificates of insurance as may be specified in the contract documents with good and 
sufficient surety for the faithful performance of such contract and for the prompt payment of labor and material 
furnished in the prosecution thereof, or in the event of the failure of the Principal to enter into such contract and give 
such bonds and certificates of insurance, if the Principal shall pay to the Obligee the difference not to exceed the 
penalty of the bond between the amount specified in the proposal and such larger amount for which the Obligee may 
in good faith contract with another party to perform the work covered by the proposal then this obligation is void.  
Otherwise, it remains in full force and effect provided, however, that this bond is executed pursuant to the provisions 
of ARS '34-201, and all liabilities on this bond shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of the section 
to the extent as if it were copied at length herein. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we hereunto set our hands and seals: 
 
 

 
Principal Surety 
 

 
By By Attorney-in-Fact 
 

 
Title Address, Attorney-in-Fact 

Subscribed and sworn to before me 
this ____ day of __________, 20____ 

 
My commission expires: __________ 

 
 

Notary Public 
 



 

QC - 1 
 

GILA COUNTY 
QUALIFICATION AND CERTIFICATION FORMS 

 
 
Purpose 
 
This  exhibit  shall  serve  as  a  requirement  to  enable  the  evaluation  team  to  assess  the 
qualifications of Contractors under consideration for final award. 
 
The information may or may not be a determining factor in award. 
 
 
Contract  Number  080211‐1  GILA  COUNTY  PWD  COMPLEX  ROADYARD  SHOP  AREA  PAVING 
PHASE 
 
The applicant submitting this Bid warrants the following: 
 
1.  Name, Address, and Telephone Number of Principal Contractor: 
  _________________________________________________________________________ 

  _________________________________________________________________________ 

  _________________________________________________________________________ 
 
2.  Had  Contractor  (under  its  present  or  any  previous  name)  ever  failed  to  complete  a 

contract? 
________Yes       ________No.      If  “Yes,  give details,  including  the date,  the  contracting 
agency,  and  the  reasons  Contractor  failed  to  perform  in  the  narrative  part  of  this 
Contract. 

 
3.  Has  Contractor  (under  its  present  or  any  previous  name)  ever  been  disbarred  or 

prohibited  from competing  for a contract?   ________Yes     ________No.      If “Yes”, give 
details,  including  the  date,  the  contracting  agency,  the  reasons  for  the  Contractors 
disqualification, and whether this disqualification remains in effect in the narrative part of 
this Contract. 

 
4.  Has  a  contracting  agency ever  terminated  a  contract with Contractor prior  to  contract 

expiration date?   ________Yes     ________No.      If “Yes”, give details  including  the date, 
the contracting agency, and the reasons Contractor was terminated in the narrative part 
of this Contract.  

 
5.  Contractor must also provide at least the following information:   

a. A brief history of the Contractors Firm. 
b. A Cost Proposal shall be submitted on the Price Sheet, attached hereon and made 

a full part of this contract by this reference. 
c. A list of previous and current customers, which are considered identical or similar 

to the Scope of Work described herein; shall be submitted on the Reference List, 
attached hereon and made a full part of this contract by this reference. 



 

QC - 2 
 

d. List  of  any  subcontractors  (if  applicable)  to  be  used  in  performing  the  service  must 
accompany  the Proposal.   The  subcontractors Arizona ROC, contact name and phone # 
must be included. 

e. List  the  specific  qualifications  the  Contractor  has  in  supplying  the  specified 
services. 

f. Gila County reserves the right to request additional information. 
 
6.   Contractor Experience Modifier (e‐mod) Rating in Arizona: ________________________ 

A method  the National  Council  on  Compensation  Insurance  (NCCI)  uses  to measure  a 
business’  computed  loss  ratio  and  determine  a  factor,  which  when  multiplied  by 
premium, can reward policyholders with lower losses.  E‐mod rate may be a determining 
factor in bid award. 
 

7.  Current Arizona Contractor License Number:  __________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

___________________________________________ 
            Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
 
            _______________________________________________ 
            Printed Name 
 
 

          _______________________________________________ 
            Title 
 



 

RL - 1 

GILA COUNTY 
REFERENCE LIST 

 
These references are required to enable the evaluation team to assess the qualifications of the Contractor 
under consideration for final award.  The information may be a determining factor in award. 
 
References 
Please list a minimum of four (4) references for projects of similar size and scope as this Invitation for Bids 
during the past twelve (12) months, in or as close to Gila County as possible. 
 
 

1. Company:  ________________________________________________ 

Contact:  ___________________________________________________ 

Phone:  ___________________________________________________ 

Address:  ___________________________________________________ 
 

2. Company:  ________________________________________________ 

Contact:  ___________________________________________________ 

Phone:  ___________________________________________________ 

Address:  ___________________________________________________ 
 

3. Company:  ________________________________________________ 

Contact:  ___________________________________________________ 

Phone:  ___________________________________________________ 

Address:  ___________________________________________________ 
 

4. Company:  ________________________________________________ 

Contact:  ___________________________________________________ 

Phone:  ___________________________________________________ 

Address:  ___________________________________________________ 

 
 

________________________________________ 
                  Name of Business 
 

________________________________________ 
                  Signature of Authorized Representative 
 

________________________________________ 
                  Title 



 

ANC - 1 

AFFIDAVIT BY CONTRACTOR 
CERTIFYING THAT THERE WAS NO COLLUSION 

IN BIDDING FOR CONTRACT 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA    ) 

)ss 
COUNTY OF:      ) 
 
____________________________________________________________________________________                                 
(Name of Individual) 
being first duly sworn, deposes and says: 
 
That he is ____________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                     (Title)  
of_______________________________________________________________________________  and 
                                             (Name of Business) 
 
That  he  is  properly  prequalified  by Gila  County  for  bidding  on BID NO.  080211‐1 GILA  COUNTY  PWD 
COMPLEX ROADYARD SHOP AREA PAVING PHASE, GLOBE and, 
 

That pursuant to Section 112 (C) of Title 23 USC, he certifies as follows: 
 

That neither he nor anyone associated with the said ___________________________________  
 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                   (Name of Business) 
 
has, directly or indirectly entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion or otherwise taken any 
action in restraint of free competitive bidding in connection with the above mentioned project. 
 
 
 
             ____________________________________________ 

Name of Business 
 

____________________________________________  
By 

 
____________________________________________ 
Title 

 
 
 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me this ___________ day of ________________________, 20_______. 
 
______________________________________               My Commission expires: 
Notary Public 

      



 

SC - 1 

GILA COUNTY 
CERTIFICATION:  INTENTIONS CONCERNING SUBCONTRACTING 

 
 
At  the  time  of  the  submission  of  Request  for  Proposals  No.  080211‐1  GILA  COUNTY  PWD 
COMPLEX ROADYARD  SHOP AREA  PAVING PHASE, my  intention  concerning  subcontracting  a 
portion of the work is as indicated below.   
 
In  indicating that  it  is my  intention to subcontract a portion of the work, this will acknowledge 
that  such  subcontractors will  be  identified  and  approved  by  the  County  prior  to  award  of 
contract;  and  that  documentation,  such  as  copies  of  letters,  requests  for  quotations,  etc., 
substantiating  the actions  taken and  the  responses  to  such actions  is on  file and available  for 
review. 
 
Any subcontractor not listed with the bid must be approved by the County prior to providing any 
work pursuant to this contract.  Further, contractor warrants that all subcontractors will comply 
with all  terms and conditions of  this contract.  The County  reserves  the  right  to  terminate  the 
contract if the contractor fails to comply with the provisions of this certification. 
 

 

  Yes      it is my intention to subcontract a portion of the work. 
 

  No        it is not my intention to subcontract a portion of the work. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

_________________________________________ 
              Name of Business 
 

_________________________________________ 
              Signature of Authorized Representative 
 

_________________________________________ 
              Title 
 

 



 

CK - 1 

BIDDERS CHECKLIST 
 
NOTICE  IS  HEREBY  GIVEN  that  all  Bid  Documents  shall  be  completed  and/or  executed  and 
submitted  with  this  bid.  If  bidder  fails  to  complete  and/or  execute  any  portion  of  the  Bid 
Documents, this bid will be determined to be "non‐responsive" and rejected. 
 
    CHECKLIST: 
 

REQUIRED DOCUMENT  COMPLETED/EXECUTED 

   Proposal  ____________ 

   Bidding Schedule  ____________ 

   Surety (Bid) Bond  ____________   

   Qualification & Certification Form  ____________ 

   Reference List  ____________ 

   Affidavit of Non‐Collusion  ____________ 

   Subcontractor Certification  ____________ 

   Contract  ____________ 

   Bidders Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment  ____________     
           

‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 
    ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF ADDENDA: 
 

               #1     #2     #3     #4     #5   
          Initials/ 
                  Date                                     
 
 
          Signed and dated this ____________ day of____________________, 2011. 
 

                                           
___________________________________________ 

                                           CONTRACTOR: 
                                           
___________________________________________ 

                                           BY: 
 
Each proposal shall be sealed  in an envelope addressed to Gila County Engineering Services and bearing 
the  following  statement  on  the  outside  of  the  envelope:  Proposal  to  Construct:  GILA  COUNTY  PWD 
COMPLEX ROADYARD SHOP AREA PAVING PHASE, Gila County Arizona, Bid No. 080211‐1. All proposals 
shall be filed at Gila County Procurement, 1400 East Ash St., Globe, AZ 85501, on or before 11:00 A.M. 
Arizona time, Monday, September 19th, 2011. 

 



 

C - 1 

GILA COUNTY 
CONTRACT NO. 080211‐1 

 
 

THIS  AGREEMENT, made  and  entered  into  this  _______  day  of  _________________, 
2011, by and between Gila County, a political subdivision of the State of Arizona, party of the first 
part,  hereinafter  designated  the  OWNER,  and  ______________________  of  the  City  of 
________________, County of _________________, State of Arizona, party of the second part, 
hereinafter designated the CONTRACTOR.   
 
 

WITNESSETH:   That the said Contractor,  for and  in consideration of the sum to be paid 
him by  the said Owner,  in  the manner and at  the  time hereinafter provided, and of  the other 
covenants  and  agreements  herein  contained,  and  under  the  penalties  expressed  in  the  bond 
hereto attached, hereby agrees, for himself, his heirs, administrators, successors, and assigns as 
follows: 
 
 

ARTICLE  I  ‐ SCOPE OF WORK:   The Contractor shall  furnish any and all plant materials, 
labor, construction equipment, and  services,  required  for performing all work  for construction 
for Bid No.  080211‐1 GILA COUNTY PWD COMPLEX ROADYARD  SHOP AREA PAVING PHASE, 
GLOBE  in  accordance with  the  plans  and  these  specifications,  and  to  completely  and  totally 
construct the same and install the material herein for the Owner, in a good and workmanlike and 
substantial manner and  to  the  satisfaction of  the Owner  through  its Engineers and under  the 
direction and supervision of the Engineer, or his properly authorized agents and strictly pursuant 
to and in conformity with the Specifications prepared by the Engineers for the Owner, and with 
such modifications of the same and other documents that may be made by the Owner through 
the  Engineer,  or  his  properly  authorized  agents,  as  provided  herein.  Once  the  Bid  has  been 
awarded the bid number 032204‐1 will become the Contract Number. 
 
 

ARTICLE  II  ‐  CONTRACT  DOCUMENTS:  The  attached  “Call  for  Bids”,  “Technical 
Specifications”, “General Provisions”, “Special Provisions”, “Proposal”, “Bidding Schedule”, “Bid 
Bond”,  “Qualification  &  Certification  Forms”,  “Reference  List”,  “Affidavit  of  Non‐Collusion”, 
“Subcontractor  Certification”,  “Employment  Laws  Acknowledgment”,  “Checklist  &  Addenda 
Acknowledgment”,  “Performance  Bond”,  “Labor  and Materials  Bond”,  “Contract  Performance 
Bond”, and Plans thereto, if any, are by this reference made a part of this Contract to the same 
extent  as  if  set  forth  herein  in  full.    In  the  event  of  any  conflict  or  any  inconsistency  in  the 
documents,  controlling  weight  shall  be  assigned  in  the  following  order:  the  Contract;  the 
Technical  Specifications;  the  Special  Provisions;  the  General  Provisions;  all  other  documents.  
Contract is considered invalid unless signed by the Gila County Board of Supervisors. 

 
 
ARTICLE  III  –  SAFETY  AND  LOSS  CONTROL:   The  Gila  County  Safety  and  Loss  Control 

booklet must be read and signed by all working at the job site.   
 



 

C - 2 

During  the  pre‐construction  meeting  a  time  will  be  set  for  the  Gila  County  QA/QC  Safety 
Compliance Officer for a safety meeting.  For every safety meeting the Contractor shall invite the 
QA/QC Safety Compliance Officer and shall give at least a twenty‐four (24) hour notice. 
 
 

ARTICLE  IV –  INDEMNIFICATION CLAUSE:   The Contractor agrees to  indemnify and save 
harmless  the County of Gila,  its officers, agents and employees, and any  jurisdiction or agency 
issuing  permits  for  any  work  included  in  the  project,  their  officers,  agents  and  employees, 
hereinafter referred to as indemnitee, from all suits and claims, including attorney's fees and cost 
of litigation, actions, loss, damage, expense, cost or claims of any character or any nature arising 
out of the work done in fulfillment of the terms of this Contract or on account of any act, claim or 
amount arising or recovered under workers' compensation law or arising out of the failure of the 
Contractor to conform to any statutes, ordinances, regulation, law or court decree.  It is agreed 
that  the  Contractor will  be  responsible  for  primary  loss  investigation,  defense  and  judgment 
costs where  this contract of  indemnity applies.    In consideration of  the award of this contract, 
the Contractor agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against the County, its officers, officials, 
agents  and  employees  for  losses  arising  from  the work  performed  by  the  Contractor  for  the 
County. 

 
 
ARTICLE V –  INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: Contractor and  subcontractors  shall procure 

and maintain until all of their obligations have been discharged,  including any warranty periods 
under  this Contract  are  satisfied,  insurance  against  claims  for  injury  to persons or damage  to 
property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by 
the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors.   
 
The  insurance requirements herein are minimum requirements for this Contract and  in no way 
limit the indemnity covenants contained in this Contract. 
 
The  County  in  no  way  warrants  that  the minimum  limits  contained  herein  are  sufficient  to 
protect the Contractor from liabilities that might arise out of the performance of the work under 
this  Contract  by  the  Contractor,  his  agents,  representatives,  employees,  or  subcontractors.  
Contractor is free to purchase such additional insurance as may be determined necessary. 

 
A.  MINIMUM  SCOPE AND  LIMITS OF  INSURANCE  ‐  Contractor  shall  provide  coverage with 

limits of liability not less than those stated below: 
 

  1.  Commercial General Liability – Occurrence Form 
Policy shall include bodily injury, property damage, broad form contractual liability and 
XCU coverage. 
• General Aggregate  $2,000,000 
• Products – Completed Operations Aggregate  $1,000,000 
• Personal and Advertising Injury  $1,000,000 
• Each Occurrence  $1,000,000 

a.  The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured language: 
"The  County  of Gila  shall  be  named  as  an  additional  insured with  respect  to 



 

C - 3 

liability  arising  out  of  the  activities  performed  by,  or  on  behalf  of  the 
Contractor". 

 
2.  Automobile Liability 

    Bodily injury and property damage for any owned, hired, and non‐owned vehicles used 
in the performance of this Contract. 

    Combined Single Limit (CSL)  $1,000,000 

a. The policy shall be endorsed  to  include  the  following additional  insured  language: 
"The  County  of  Gila  shall  be  named  as  an  additional  insured  with  respect  to 
liability arising out of the activities performed by, or on behalf of the Contractor, 
including automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the Contractor". 

 
3.  Worker's Compensation and Employers' Liability 

  Workers' Compensation  Statutory 
  Employers' Liability   

  Each Accident  $100,000 
  Disease – Each Employee  $100,000 
  Disease – Policy Limit  $500,000 

a.  Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the County of Gila. 
 
B.  ADDITIONAL  INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:   The policies  shall  include, or be endorsed  to 

include, the following provisions: 

1.  On  insurance policies where the County of Gila  is named as an additional  insured, the 
County of Gila shall be an additional  insured to the  full  limits of  liability purchased by 
the Contractor even  if  those  limits of  liability  are  in excess of  those  required by  this 
Contract. 

2.  The Contractor's  insurance coverage  shall be primary  insurance and non‐contributory 
with respect to all other available sources. 

3.  Coverage provided by the Contractor shall not be limited to the liability assumed under 
the indemnification provisions of this Contract. 

 
C.  NOTICE OF CANCELLATION:  Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of 

this  Contract  shall  provide  the  required  coverage  and  shall  not  be  suspended,  voided, 
canceled, reduced in coverage or endorsed to lower limits except after thirty (30) days prior 
written notice has been given  to  the County.   Such notice shall be sent directly  to Birdie 
DeNiro, Risk Management, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ 85501 and shall be sent by certified 
mail, return receipt requested. 

 
D.  ACCEPTABILITY OF  INSURERS:    Insurance  is  to  be  placed with  insurers  duly  licensed  or 

approved unlicensed companies  in the state of Arizona and with an “A.M. Best” rating of 
not  less  than B+ VI.    The County  in  no way warrants  that  the  above‐required minimum 
insurer rating is sufficient to protect the Contractor from potential insurer insolvency. 

 
E.  VERIFICATION  OF  COVERAGE:    Contractor  shall  furnish  the  County  with  certificates  of 

insurance (ACORD form or equivalent approved by the County) as required by this Contract.  



 

C - 4 

The certificates for each  insurance policy are to be signed by a person authorized by that 
insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. 

 
  All certificates and endorsements are  to be  received and approved by  the County before 

work commences.   Each  insurance policy required by this Contract must be  in effect at or 
prior to commencement of work under this Contract and remain in effect for the duration 
of the project.  Failure to maintain the insurance policies as required by this Contract or to 
provide evidence of renewal is a material breach of contract. 

 
  All  certificates  required  by  this  Contract  shall  be  sent  directly  to  Birdie  DeNiro,  Risk 

Management, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ 85501.  The County project/contract number and 
project description shall be noted on the certificate of insurance.  The County reserves the 
right to require complete, certified copies of all insurance policies required by this Contract 
at any time.  

 
F.  SUBCONTRACTORS:  Contractors’ certificate(s) shall include all subcontractors as additional 

insureds under  its policies or Contractor  shall  furnish  to  the County  separate  certificates 
and  endorsements  for  each  subcontractor.    All  coverage’s  for  subcontractors  shall  be 
subject to the minimum requirements identified above. 

 
G.  APPROVAL:  Any modification or variation from the insurance requirements in this Contract 

shall be made by the County Attorney, whose decision shall be final.   Such action will not 
require a formal Contract amendment, but may be made by administrative action. 
 
 
ARTICLE VI ‐ TIME OF COMPLETION:  The Contractor further covenants and agrees, at his 

own  proper  cost  and  expense,  to  do  all  work  and  furnish  all materials,  labor,  construction 
equipment, and  services  for performing all of  the work  for construction of  said  improvements 
and  to  completely  construct  the  same  and  install  the material  therein,  as  called  for  by  this 
agreement free and clear of all claims, liens, and charges whatsoever, in the manner and under 
the conditions specified within the time, or times, stated in the Proposal. 
 
Work on this project shall start within no later than ten (10) Days of the Notice To Proceed, and 
shall be completed within the following limits: 
 

SCHEDULE: 

For construction  in  the contract documents,  the project shall be completed within Ninety  (90) 
Days of the Notice To Proceed. 
 
It is expressly understood and agreed that in case of failure on the part of the Contractor, for any 
reason, except with the written consent of the Engineer, to complete the work to the satisfaction 
of  the Engineer and within  the aforesaid  time  limits,  the Owner may deduct  from any money 
due, or which may become due the Contractor, as liquidated damages, an amount as fixed by the 
following schedule: 
 



 

C - 5 

  WORK ITEM                    DAILY CHARGE PER CALENDAR DAY 

All work not complete within the                              $490.00 
above specified time after start of 
work. 
 

If  no money  shall  be  due  the  Contractor,  the Owner  shall  have  a  cause  of  action  to  recover 
against the Contractor  in a court of competent  jurisdiction,  liquidated damages as  fixed by the 
above schedule; said deduction to be made, or said sum to be recovered, not as a penalty, but as 
liquidated damages; provided, however, that upon receipt of written notice from the Contractor, 
of  the existence of causes, as herein provided, over which  said Contractor has no control and 
which must delay  the completion of  the said work or any delay occasioned by  the Owner,  the 
Engineer  may  extend  the  period  hereinafter  specified  for  the  completion  of  said  work  in 
accordance with the specifications and  in such case, the Contractor shall become  liable for said 
liquidated damages for delays commencing from date said extension period shall expire.   
 
 

ARTICLE  VII  ‐  CANCELLATION:    This  agreement  is  subject  to  cancellation  pursuant  to 
A.R.S. §38‐511 and GENERAL PROVISION 80‐09 DEFAULT AND TERMINATION OF CONTRACT. 
 
 

ARTICLE VIII ‐ PAYMENTS:  The Contractor shall make an estimate of the work performed 
during  the preceding month and  submit  the  same  to  the Engineer  for checking.  On or before 
thirty (30) days after the certified and approved estimate of the work is received by the Owner, 
the Owner shall pay to the Contractor ninety percent (90%) of the value of said work in place, as 
approved by the Engineer.  The balance of ten percent (10%) of the estimate shall be retained by 
the  Owner  until  the  time  of  final  payment  and  acceptance  of  said work,  as  per  A.R.S.  §34‐
221(A)(2). 
 
 
  ARTICLE IX – LAWS AND ORDINANCES:  This agreement shall be enforced under the laws 
of  the State of Arizona.  The Contractor  shall maintain  in current  status all Federal, State, and 
Local  licenses  and  permits  required  for  the  operation  of  the  business  conducted  by  the 
Contractor.   
 
The Contractor shall comply with the applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act 
(Public Law 101‐336, 42 U.S.C. 12101‐12213) and applicable Federal regulations under the Act. 
 
 

ARTICLE X –  LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE:  Contractor hereby warrants 
that it will at all times during the term of this Contract  comply with all federal immigration laws 
applicable to Contractor’s employment of  its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 
23‐214 (A) (together the “State and Federal Immigration Laws”).  Contractor shall further ensure 
that  each  subcontractor who  performs  any work  for  Contractor  under  this  contract  likewise 
complies with the State and Federal Immigration Laws. 
  



 

C - 6 

County shall have the right at any time to  inspect the books and records of Contractor and any 
subcontractor in order to verify such party’s compliance with the State and Federal Immigration 
Laws.   
  
Any breach of Contractor’s or any  subcontractor’s warranty of  compliance with  the  State and 
Federal  Immigration  Laws, or of  any other provision  of  this  section,  shall be deemed  to be  a 
material  breach  of  this  Contract  subjecting  Contractor  to  penalties  up  to  and  including 
suspension  or  termination  of  this  Contract.  If  the  breach  is  by  a  subcontractor,  and  the 
subcontract  is  suspended or  terminated as a  result, Contractor  shall be  required  to  take  such 
steps as may be necessary  to either  self‐perform  the  services  that would have been provided 
under  the subcontract or  retain a replacement subcontractor, as soon as possible so as not  to 
delay project completion.   
  
Contractor  shall  advise  each  subcontractor  of  County’s  rights,  and  the  subcontractor’s 
obligations, under  this Article by  including a provision  in each  subcontract  substantially  in  the 
following form: 
  
“Subcontractor hereby warrants that  it will at all times during the term of this contract comply 
with  all  federal  immigration  laws  applicable  to  Subcontractor’s  employees,  and  with  the 
requirements of A.R.S. §23‐214  (A). Subcontractor  further agrees  that County may  inspect  the 
Subcontractor’s  books  and  records  to  insure  that  Subcontractor  is  in  compliance with  these 
requirements.  Any breach of this paragraph by Subcontractor will be deemed to be a material 
breach of this contract subjecting Subcontractor to penalties up to and  including suspension or 
termination of this contract.”  
  
Any additional costs attributable directly or  indirectly to remedial action under this Article shall 
be the responsibility of Contractor.  In the event that remedial action under this Article results in 
delay to one or more tasks on the critical path of Contractor’s approved construction or critical 
milestones schedule, such period of delay shall be deemed excusable delay for which Contractor 
shall be entitled to an extension of time, but not costs. 
 
 

ANTI‐TERRORISM WARRANTY:   Pursuant  to A.R.S. §35‐397  the Supplier certifies  that  it 
does not have scrutinized business operations  in Iran or Sudan and that they are  in compliance 
with the Export Administration Act and not on the Excluded Parties List. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

C - 7 

  IN WITNESS WHEREOF,  three  (3)  identical  counterparts of  this  contract, each of which 
shall  for  all purposes be deemed  an original  thereof, have been duly executed by  the parties 
hereinabove named, on the date and year first above written.  
 
In return for the performance of this Contract by the Contractor, the Owner agrees to pay the 
amount of _$______________________ INCLUDING ALL APPLICABLE TAXES through a payment 
schedule  as  described  in  the  Contract  documents  and  as may  be modified  and  executed  by 
change orders and by final quantities. 

The Contractor agrees that this contract, as awarded, is for the following work, and understands 
that payment for the total work will be made on the basis of the  indicated amount(s), as bid  in 
the Proposal and attached Bidding Schedule for:  
 
 
  GILA COUNTY PWD COMPLEX ROADYARD SHOP AREA PAVING PHASE 
  BID NO. 080211‐1 
 
OWNER:    CONTRACTOR: 
 
GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
__________________________________________           _______________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman, Board of Supervisors            Contractor Signature 
 
       _______________________________________ 
         Print Name 

                           
ATTEST:                                                                                           ______________________________________ 
                                                                                Witness (If Contractor is Individual) 
 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board  
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Bryan B. Chambers, Chief Deputy County Attorney 
for Daisy Flores, County Attorney 

 



 

 
 

CPB - 1 
 

 
STATUTORY PERFORMANCE BOND 

PURSUANT TO TITLE 34, CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE 2 OF 
THE ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES 

(PENALTY OF THIS BOND MUST BE 100% OF CONTRACT AMOUNT) 
 
 
 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 
 
That, ___________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________,  (hereinafter called the Principal), as Principal,  
  
and ______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
(hereinafter called Surety), a corporation duly organized and existing the laws of the State of  
 
_____________________________________________ with its principal office in the city of ___________________________ 
holding a certificate of authority to transact surety business in Arizona issued by the Director of the Department of Insurance, as 
Surety, are held and firmly bound unto Gila County (hereinafter called the Obligee) in the amount of (100% OF CONTRACT 
AMOUNT)____________________________________________ dollars ($_________________), for the payment whereof, the said 
Principal and Surety bind themselves, and their heirs, administrator, executors, successors, and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by 
these presents. 
 

WHEREAS, the Principal has agreed to enter into a certain contract with the Obligee for: GILA COUNTY PWD 
COMPLEX ROADYARD SHOP AREA PAVING PHASE, GLOBE, which contract is hereby referred to and made a part hereof 
as fully and to the same extent as if copied at length herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that if the said Principal shall faithfully 
perform and fulfill all the undertakings, covenants, terms, conditions and agreements of said contract during the original term of said 
contract and any extension thereof, with or without notice to the Surety, and during the life of any guaranty required under the 
contract, and shall also perform and fulfill all the undertakings, covenants, terms, conditions, and agreements of any and all duly 
authorized modifications of said contract that may hereafter be made, notice of which modifications to the Surety being hereby 
waived; then the above obligation shall be void, otherwise to remain in full force and effect; 

PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that this bond is executed pursuant to the provisions of Title 34, Chapter 2, Article 2, of the 
Arizona Revised Statutes, and all liabilities on this bond shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of said Title, Chapter 
and Article, so the extent as if they were copied at length herein. 

The prevailing party in a suit on this bond shall recover as a part of the judgment such reasonable attorneys' fees as may be 
fixed by a judge of the court. 
 

Witness our hands this __________ day of _____________, 20 ______. 
 
______________________________________________________________ 
Principal                                    Seal   

______________________________________________________________ 
Surety                                       Seal 

______________________________________________________________ 
Agency of Record 

______________________________________________________________ 
Arizona Countersignature 

______________________________________________________________ 
Address 

_________________________________ 
Phone Number 
 

 
 
 
___________________________________ 
By: 

___________________________________ 
By: 

___________________________________ 
Agency Address 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 
LMB - 1 

 

 
 

STATUTORY LABOR AND MATERIALS BOND 
PURSANT TO TITLE 34, CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE 2 OF 

THE ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES 
(PENALTY OF THIS BOND MUST BE 100% OF CONTRACT AMOUNT) 

 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 
 
That, 
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________,  (hereinafter called the Principal), as Principal,  
 and 
______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
(hereinafter called Surety), a corporation duly organized and existing the laws of the State of  
 
_____________________________________________ with its principal office in the city of 
___________________________ holding a certificate of authority to transact surety business in Arizona issued by the 
Director of the Department of Insurance, as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto Gila County (hereinafter called the 
Obligee) in the amount of (100% of Contract Amount)______________________________________ dollars 
($_________________), for the payment whereof, the said Principal and Surety bind themselves, and their heirs, 
administrator, executors, successors, and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 

WHEREAS, the Principal has agreed to enter into a certain contract with the Obligee for: GILA COUNTY 
PWD COMPLEX ROADYARD SHOP AREA PAVING PHASE, GLOBE, which contract is hereby referred to 
and made a part hereof as fully and to the same extent as if copied at length herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that if the said Principal 
shall faithfully perform and fulfill all the undertakings, covenants, terms, conditions and agreements of said contract 
during the original term of said contract and any extension thereof, with or without notice to the Surety, and during the 
life of any guaranty required under the contract, and shall also perform and fulfill all the undertakings, covenants, 
terms, conditions, and agreements of any and all duly authorized modifications of said contract that may hereafter be 
made, notice of which modifications to the Surety being hereby waived; then the above obligation shall be void, 
otherwise to remain in full force and effect; 

PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that this bond is executed pursuant to the provisions of Title 34, Chapter 2, 
Article 2, of the Arizona Revised Statutes, and all liabilities on this bond shall be determined in accordance with the 
provisions of said Title, Chapter and Article, so the extent as if they were copied at length herein. 

The prevailing party in a suit on this bond shall recover as a part of the judgment such reasonable attorneys' 
fees as may be fixed by a judge of the court. 
 

Witness our hands this __________ day of _____________, 20 ______ 
 
_____________________________________________________________ 
Principal                                    Seal   

_____________________________________________________________ 
Surety                                       Seal 

______________________________________________________________ 
Agency of Record 

______________________________________________________________ 
Arizona Countersignature 

__________________________
By: 
__________________________ 
By: 

__________________________
Agency Address 

_____________________________________________________________ 
Address 
 
_____________________________________________________________ 
Phone Number 



 

 

CPW - 1 
 

GILA COUNTY 
  CONTRACT PERFORMANCE WARRANTY 
 
 
 
 
I, _______________________________________________________, representing 
 
_____________________________________________________ (company name) 
 
do hereby warranty the work performed for the:  
 
 
 
GILA COUNTY PWD COMPLEX ROADYARD SHOP AREA PAVING PHASE, GLOBE,  
 
for a period of two (2) years from completion of said work.   
 
Said work shall be free from defects which would cause the work not to perform in 
it's intended manner. 
 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
(Officer, Partner, Owner)                          Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
       



INSTRUCTIONS TO PRINTERS
FORM W-9, PAGE 1 of 4
MARGINS: TOP 13mm (1⁄ 2 "), CENTER SIDES. PRINTS: HEAD to HEAD
PAPER: WHITE WRITING, SUB. 20. INK: BLACK
FLAT SIZE: 216mm (81⁄ 2 ") 3 279mm (11")
PERFORATE: (NONE)
 

Give form to the
requester. Do not
send to the IRS.
 

Form W-9 Request for Taxpayer
Identification Number and Certification
 

(Rev. October 2007) 
Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service
 Name (as shown on your income tax return)

 

List account number(s) here (optional) 

Address (number, street, and apt. or suite no.) 

City, state, and ZIP code 

P
ri

nt
 o

r 
ty

p
e

S
ee

 S
p

ec
ifi

c 
In

st
ru

ct
io

ns
 o

n 
p

ag
e 

2.
 

Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN) 

Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on Line 1 to avoid
backup withholding. For individuals, this is your social security number (SSN). However, for a resident
alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the Part I instructions on page 3. For other entities, it is
your employer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number, see How to get a TIN on page 3.

 

Social security number 

or 

Requester’s name and address (optional) 

Employer identification number Note. If the account is in more than one name, see the chart on page 4 for guidelines on whose
number to enter.
 Certification 

1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am waiting for a number to be issued to me), and
 I am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal
Revenue Service (IRS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has
notified me that I am no longer subject to backup withholding, and
 

2. 

Certification instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup
withholding because you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply.
For mortgage interest paid, acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retirement
arrangement (IRA), and generally, payments other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the Certification, but you must
provide your correct TIN. See the instructions on page 4.
 
Sign
Here
 

Signature of
U.S. person ©

 
Date © 

General Instructions
 

Form W-9 (Rev. 10-2007) 

Part I
 

Part II
 

Business name, if different from above
 

Cat. No. 10231X

 

Check appropriate box:
 

Under penalties of perjury, I certify that:
 

13 
I.R.S. SPECIFICATIONS TO BE REMOVED BEFORE PRINTING 

DO NOT PRINT — DO NOT PRINT — DO NOT PRINT — DO NOT PRINT 

TLS, have you
transmitted all R 
text files for this 
cycle update?
 

Date
 

Action
 

Revised proofs
requested
 

Date
 

Signature
 

O.K. to print
 

Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person (including a
resident alien), to provide your correct TIN to the person
requesting it (the requester) and, when applicable, to:
 1. Certify that the TIN you are giving is correct (or you are
waiting for a number to be issued),
 2. Certify that you are not subject to backup withholding, or

 3. Claim exemption from backup withholding if you are a U.S.
exempt payee. If applicable, you are also certifying that as a
U.S. person, your allocable share of any partnership income from
a U.S. trade or business is not subject to the withholding tax on
foreign partners’ share of effectively connected income.
 

3. I am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below).
 

A person who is required to file an information return with the
IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer identification number (TIN)
to report, for example, income paid to you, real estate
transactions, mortgage interest you paid, acquisition or
abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, or
contributions you made to an IRA.
 

Individual/Sole proprietor
 

Corporation
 

Partnership
 

Other (see instructions) ©  

 

Note. If a requester gives you a form other than Form W-9 to
request your TIN, you must use the requester’s form if it is
substantially similar to this Form W-9.
 

 

● An individual who is a U.S. citizen or U.S. resident alien,
 ● A partnership, corporation, company, or association created or

organized in the United States or under the laws of the United
States,
 ● An estate (other than a foreign estate), or

 

Definition of a U.S. person. For federal tax purposes, you are
considered a U.S. person if you are:
 

Special rules for partnerships. Partnerships that conduct a
trade or business in the United States are generally required to
pay a withholding tax on any foreign partners’ share of income
from such business. Further, in certain cases where a Form W-9
has not been received, a partnership is required to presume that
a partner is a foreign person, and pay the withholding tax.
Therefore, if you are a U.S. person that is a partner in a
partnership conducting a trade or business in the United States,
provide Form W-9 to the partnership to establish your U.S.
status and avoid withholding on your share of partnership
income.
 The person who gives Form W-9 to the partnership for
purposes of establishing its U.S. status and avoiding withholding
on its allocable share of net income from the partnership
conducting a trade or business in the United States is in the
following cases:
 
● The U.S. owner of a disregarded entity and not the entity,

 

Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless
otherwise noted.
 

● A domestic trust (as defined in Regulations section
301.7701-7).
 

Limited liability company. Enter the tax classification (D=disregarded entity, C=corporation, P=partnership) © 

 

Exempt 
payee
 

Purpose of Form
 



 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SECTION VI 
 

NOTED STANDARD DETAIL DRAWINGS 
 
 
 
 
 
 





















TYPE 1 BARBED WIRE (BW) (4 WIRE)

TYPE 2 BARBED WIRE (BW) (5 WIRE)

BARBED WIRE GAME FENCE (GF)

 

 

C-12.10

Sheet 2 of 5

TYPICAL BARBED WIRE FENCE INSTALLATION-TYPE 2 BW SHOWN

GENERAL NOTES

PNB 7/94

1 FENCE

BARBED WIRE

REVISED GENERAL NOTE 1 RLF

2

7/05

Corner Post Assembly

Detail D

Sheet 5 of 5

12’-0" Maximum at Corner 16’-0" Maximum (5 Wire) (Typ)

25’-0" Maximum (4 Wire) (Typ)

Line Post

Detail A

Sheet 5 of 5

Intermediate Post Assembly

Detail B

Sheet 5 of 5

1’-0"x1’-0"x1’-6"

Concrete Footing (Typ)

10" Diameter x 3’-0"

Concrete Footing (Typ)

6
"

T
y

p

16’-0" Maximum (5 Wire) (Typ)

25’-0" Maximum (4 Wire) (Typ)

Latch/End Post Assembly

Detail C

Sheet 5 of 5

Gate/End Post Assembly

Detail C

Sheet 5 of 5

1
’
-
0
"

1
’
-
0
"

1
0
"

3 - 3’-0" Stays

Per Panel (Typ)

6
"

1
’
-
2

"

1
’
-
0
"

7
"

7
"

2
’
-
6
"

4
’
-
6
"

7
’
-
0
"

2
’
-
6
"

4
’
-
0
"

6
’
-
6
"

6
"

1
’
-
4

"

3 - 2’-8" Stays

Per Panel (Typ)

3 - 3’-4" Stays

Per Panel (Typ)

6
"

1
0
"

9
 1

/2
 "

9
 1

/2
 "

9
 1

/2
 "

9
 1

/2
 "

7
’
-
0
"

4
’
-
6
"

2
’
-
6
"

1.

2.

3.

Intermediate Post Assemblies shall be located

as shown and at intervals not to exceed 650’,

or midway between all braced posts.

For game fence the bottom wire shall be barbless.

The stays on game fence shall have their ends

turned up to prevent injuries to game.

REISSUED STD DWG

NO

3

2

1

4

REV.

DRAWING NO.

STATE OF ARIZONA

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

DESCRIPTION OF REVISIONS MADE BY DATE

 

        

   

   

   

     

     

     

                                                         

                                                         

                                                         

                                                         

       

ROADWAY STANDARD DRAWINGS

                                    

APPROVED FOR DISTRIBUTION

APPROVED FOR DESIGN

5/07





ARF-722     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  2- L     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 08/15/2011  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Public Works Division Deputy Director
Submitted By: Steve Sanders, Public Works Division
Department: Public Works Division Division: Engineering
Presenter's Name: Steve Sanders 

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution No. 11-08-04 deeding a portion of Evalinda Drive in the King Addition Subdivision to John D.
Cotterill.

Background Information
During the regular scheduled meeting of the Gila County Board of Supervisors (BOS) on June 7, 2011,
the BOS accepted a bid in the amount of $100 from John D. Cotterill for the purchase of a portion of
Evalinda Drive in the King Addition Subdivision.

Evaluation
Mr. Cotterill has met all of the requirements of the roadway abandonment process. A map showing the
abandonment has been recorded with the Gila County Recorder.

Conclusion
The next and final step in the process is for the Chairman of the Board to sign a quit claim deed that
deeds the abandoned roadway to Mr. Cotterill.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Public Works Division Deputy Director that the Board of Supervisors
adopt Resolution No. 11-08-04 and authorize the Chairman of the Board of Supervisors sign the quit
claim deed.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 11-08-04 approving the disposal of an
unnecessary public roadway being a portion of Evalinda Drive, King Addition Subdivision, official map
no. 196, and to authorize the Chairman to execute and deliver in the name and under the seal of the
County of Gila, a quit claim deed conveying the abandoned roadway to John D. Cotterill. (Steve
Sanders)

Attachments
Link: Resolution No. 11-08-04
Link: QCD Gila County to Cotterill



 
 
 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 11-08-04 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE DISPOSAL OF AN 
UNNECESSARY PUBLIC ROADWAY BEING A PORTION OF 
EVALINDA DRIVE, KING ADDITION SUBDIVISION, OFFICIAL 
MAP NO. 196 AND MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AND 
SHOWN AS THE SHADED AREA ON RECORD OF SURVEY MAP 
NUMBER 3969, GILA COUNTY RECORDS, GILA COUNTY, 
ARIZONA 

 
WHEREAS, JOHN D. COTTERILL, owner of the land adjoining that parcel of land 

hereinbefore described; and 
 
 
WHEREAS, it has been determined that the disposal of the unnecessary public roadway 

will not leave any property without access to public roads and streets of Gila County, and is no 
longer necessary for public use, and the same should be granted; and 

 
 
WHEREAS, JOHN D. COTTERILL, agrees that in consideration of the disposal of the 

said parcel of land and the conveyance of the ground so vacated to him as the adjoining owner, 
to release and discharge the COUNTY OF GILA from any and all damages, claims and demands 
of every kind and nature arising out of the conveyance of the same to him as the adjoining 
property owner; and 

 
 
WHEREAS, it is to the best interest of the COUNTY OF GILA to be relieved of the 

obligation to maintain said parcel of land; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Resolution No. 11-08-04 Page 1 
 
 



Resolution No. 11-08-04 Page 2 
 
 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Gila County Board of Supervisors: 

 
Section 1: That the portion of land described herein and constituting that portion of Evalinda 
Drive, King Addition Subdivision, Official Map No. 196 and more particularly described and 
shown as the shaded area on Record of Survey Map Number 3969, Gila County Records, Gila 
County, Arizona, is hereby, vacated and abandoned, subject, however, to all existing water, gas 
and utility easements now existing on said parcel of land. 
 
Section 2:   That the Chairman of the said Board of Supervisors, be, and he is hereby authorized, 
empowered and directed to make, execute and deliver in the name and under the seal of the 
COUNTY OF GILA, a quit claim deed conveying John D. Cotterill, as owner of the adjacent 
property, that parcel of land hereinbefore described, and to cause said Deed to be attested and the 
seal of the said COUNTY OF GILA to be affixed thereto by the Clerk of the said Supervisors. 
 
 

The above described quit claim deed and legal description are 
attached for informational purposes only and will be recorded as 
a separate document 

 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of August 2011, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona 
 
 
Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Marian Sheppard    Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Bryan Chambers 
Chief Deputy County Attorney 
 

 
 
 
 







ARF-725     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  2- M     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 08/15/2011  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Public Works Division Deputy Director
Submitted By: Steve Sanders, Public Works Division
Department: Public Works Division Division: Engineering
Presenter's Name: Steve Sanders 

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution No. 11-08-05 deeding a portion of Christopher Creek Loop to Lynnie Raichert; Edwin G. and
Mary C. Schuck; and George and Ruth A. Deming.

Background Information
During the regular scheduled meeting of the Gila County Board of Supervisors (BOS) on July 7, 2009,
the BOS accepted a bid in the amount of $100 from Lynnie Raichert for the purchase of a portion of
Christopher Creek Loop.

Evaluation
Ms. Raichert has met all of the requirements of the roadway abandonment process.  A map showing the
abandonment has been recorded with the Gila County Recorder.

Conclusion
The next and final step in the process is for the Chairman of the Board to sign the quit claim deeds that
deed the abandoned roadway to Lynnie Raichert; Edwin G. and Mary C. Schuck; and George and Ruth
Deming.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Public Works Division Deputy Director that the Board of Supervisors
adopt Resolution No. 11-08-05 and authorize the Chairman of the Board of Supervisors sign the quit
claim deeds.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 11-08-05 approving the disposal of an
unnecessary public roadway shown as a portion of Christopher Creek Loop, and authorizing the
Chairman to execute and deliver in the name and under the seal of the County of Gila, 3 separate quit
claim deeds conveying the abandoned roadway to Lynnie Raichert; Edwin G. and Mary C. Schuck; and
George and Ruth Deming. (Steve Sanders)

Attachments
Link: Resolution No. 11-08-05
Link: QCD Gila County to Raichert
Link: QCD Gila County to Schuck
Link: QCD Gila County to Deming



 
 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 11-08-05 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE DISPOSAL OF AN 
UNNECESSARY PUBLIC ROADWAY BEING A PORTION OF 
CHRISTOPHER CREEK LOOP, AND MORE PARTICULARLY 
DESCRIBED AND SHOWN ON RECORD OF SURVEY MAP 
NUMBER 3779, GILA COUNTY RECORDS, GILA COUNTY, 
ARIZONA 
 

 
WHEREAS, LYNNIE A. RAICHERT, EDWIN G. AND MARY C. SCHUCK, 

GEORGE AND RUTH A. DEMING, owners of the land adjoining that parcel of land 
hereinbefore described; and 

 
 
WHEREAS, it has been determined that the disposal of the unnecessary public roadway 

will not leave any property without access to public roads and streets of Gila County, and is no 
longer necessary for public use, and the same should be granted; and 

 
 
WHEREAS, LYNNIE A. RAICHERT, EDWIN G. AND MARY C. SCHUCK, 

GEORGE AND RUTH A. DEMING, agree that in consideration of the disposal of the said 
parcel of land and the conveyance of the ground so vacated to them as the adjoining owners, to 
release and discharge the COUNTY OF GILA from any and all damages, claims and demands of 
every kind and nature arising out of the conveyance of the same to him as the adjoining property 
owner; and 

 
 
WHEREAS, it is to the best interest of the COUNTY OF GILA to be relieved of the 

obligation to maintain said parcel of land; 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Resolution No. 11-08-05 Page 1 
 
 



Resolution No. 11-08-05 Page 2 
 
 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Gila County Board of Supervisors: 

 
 
Section 1: That the portion of land described herein and constituting that portion of 
Christopher Creek Loop and more particularly described and shown on Record of Survey Map 
Number 3779, Gila County Records, Gila County, Arizona, is hereby, vacated and abandoned, 
subject, however, to all existing water, gas and utility easements now existing on said parcel of 
land. 
 
Section 2:   That the Chairman of the said Board of Supervisors, be, and he is hereby authorized, 
empowered and directed to make, execute and deliver in the name and under the seal of the 
COUNTY OF GILA, a quit claim deed conveying Lynnie A. Raichert, Edwin G. and Mary C. 
Schuck, George and Ruth A. Deming, as owners of the adjacent property, that parcel of land 
hereinbefore described, and to cause said Deed to be attested and the seal of the said COUNTY 
OF GILA to be affixed thereto by the Clerk of the said Supervisors. 
 
 

The above described quit claim deeds and legal descriptions are 
attached for informational purposes only and will be recorded as 
separate documents 

 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of August 2011, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona 
 
 
Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Marian Sheppard    Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Bryan Chambers 
Chief Deputy County Attorney 
 

 



When recorded return to: 
Gila County Engineering Services 
1400 East Ash Street 
Globe, Arizona 85501 
 
 
 

QUIT CLAIM DEED 
 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: for the consideration of Ten Dollars ($10.00), and 
other valuable considerations, GILA COUNTY, a BODY POLITIC, does hereby release, 
remise, and forever quitclaim unto LYNNIE RAICHERT, the Releasee, with all rights, title and 
interest in that certain Real Property situated in Gila County, State of Arizona, and legally 
described as follows: 
 
 

See Exhibit “A” attached and made part hereof 
 

 
Exempt per A. R. S. section 11-1134 A-3 

 
 
 

Dated this ________ day of _________________ 2011 
 
 
Approved:                           Attest: 
 
 
_________________________________                         ________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman    Marian Sheppard, 
Gila County Board of Supervisors   Chief Deputy Clerk 
 
 
STATE OF (ARIZONA) 
                                       ) ss. 
COUNTY OF (GILA) 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 

On this _____ day of _______________, 2011, before me, the undersigned Notary Public, 
personally appeared Michael A. Pastor, Chairman of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, and 
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk, known to me to be the individuals who executed the 
foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same to be their free act and deed. 
 
 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
                                                                                   _____________________________________ 
My Commission Expires:                                          Notary Public 
 
 



 
EXHIBIT “A” 

 
 
Gila County Public Works                                                       July 21, 2011 
Job No. GC2009-07                                                                       Page 1 of 1 
 
 
A portion of Lot 1 of Record of Survey No. 3899; more particularly 

described as that portion of abandoned Christopher Creek Loop right-

of-way as shown on Record of Survey No. 3779 that is included within 

Lot 1 of Record of Survey No. 3899. 

 
 
 
SUBJECT TO: Arizona Revised Statute § 28-7210 all Rights of way or 
easements of existing sewer, gas, water, or similar pipelines and 
appurtenances and for canals, laterals or ditches and appurtenances, 
and for electric, telephone, and similar lines and appurtenances shall 
continue as they existed prior to the disposal or vacation thereof. 
 



When recorded return to: 
Gila County Engineering Services 
1400 East Ash Street 
Globe, Arizona 85501 
 
 
 

QUIT CLAIM DEED 
 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: for the consideration of Ten Dollars ($10.00), and 
other valuable considerations, GILA COUNTY, a BODY POLITIC, does hereby release, 
remise, and forever quitclaim unto EDWIN G. SCHUCK and MARY C. SCHUCK, Husband 
and Wife, the Releasee, with all rights, title and interest in that certain Real Property situated in 
Gila County, State of Arizona, and legally described as follows: 
 
 

See Exhibit “C” attached and made part hereof 
 

 
Exempt per A. R. S. section 11-1134 A-3 

 
 
 

Dated this ________ day of _________________ 2011 
 
 
Approved:                           Attest: 
 
 
_________________________________                         ________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman    Marian Sheppard, 
Gila County Board of Supervisors   Chief Deputy Clerk 
 
 
STATE OF (ARIZONA) 
                                       ) ss. 
COUNTY OF (GILA) 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 

On this _____ day of _______________, 2011, before me, the undersigned Notary Public, 
personally appeared Michael A. Pastor, Chairman of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, and 
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk, known to me to be the individuals who executed the 
foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same to be their free act and deed. 
 
 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
                                                                                   _____________________________________ 
My Commission Expires:                                          Notary Public 
 
 



 
EXHIBIT “C” 

 
 
Gila County Public Works                                                       July 21, 2011 
Job No. GC2009-07                                                                       Page 1 of 1 
 
 
A portion of Lot 3 of Record of Survey No. 3899; more particularly 

described as that portion of abandoned Christopher Creek Loop right-

of-way as shown on Record of Survey No. 3779 that is included within 

Lot 3 of Record of Survey No. 3899. 

 
 
 
SUBJECT TO: Arizona Revised Statute § 28-7210 all Rights of way or 
easements of existing sewer, gas, water, or similar pipelines and 
appurtenances and for canals, laterals or ditches and appurtenances, 
and for electric, telephone, and similar lines and appurtenances shall 
continue as they existed prior to the disposal or vacation thereof. 
 



When recorded return to: 
Gila County Engineering Services 
1400 East Ash Street 
Globe, Arizona 85501 
 
 
 

QUIT CLAIM DEED 
 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: for the consideration of Ten Dollars ($10.00), and 
other valuable considerations, GILA COUNTY, a BODY POLITIC, does hereby release, 
remise, and forever quitclaim unto GEORGE DEMING and RUTH A. DEMING, Husband 
and Wife, the Releasee, with all rights, title and interest in that certain Real Property situated in 
Gila County, State of Arizona, and legally described as follows: 
 
 

See Exhibit “B” attached and made part hereof 
 

 
Exempt per A. R. S. section 11-1134 A-3 

 
 
 

Dated this ________ day of _________________ 2011 
 
 
Approved:                           Attest: 
 
 
_________________________________                         ________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman    Marian Sheppard, 
Gila County Board of Supervisors   Chief Deputy Clerk 
 
 
STATE OF (ARIZONA) 
                                       ) ss. 
COUNTY OF (GILA) 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 

On this _____ day of _______________, 2011, before me, the undersigned Notary Public, 
personally appeared Michael A. Pastor, Chairman of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, and 
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk, known to me to be the individuals who executed the 
foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same to be their free act and deed. 
 
 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
                                                                                   _____________________________________ 
My Commission Expires:                                          Notary Public 
 
 



 
EXHIBIT “B” 

 
 
Gila County Public Works                                                       July 21, 2011 
Job No. GC2009-07                                                                       Page 1 of 1 
 
 
A portion of Lot 2 of Record of Survey No. 3899; more particularly 

described as that portion of abandoned Christopher Creek Loop right-

of-way as shown on Record of Survey No. 3779 that is included within 

Lot 2 of Record of Survey No. 3899. 

 
 
 
SUBJECT TO: Arizona Revised Statute § 28-7210 all Rights of way or 
easements of existing sewer, gas, water, or similar pipelines and 
appurtenances and for canals, laterals or ditches and appurtenances, 
and for electric, telephone, and similar lines and appurtenances shall 
continue as they existed prior to the disposal or vacation thereof. 
 



ARF-724     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  2- N     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 08/15/2011  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Public Works Division Deputy Director
Submitted By: Steve Sanders, Public Works Division
Department: Public Works Division Division: Engineering
Presenter's Name: Steve Sanders 

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution No. 11-08-06 deeding a portion of Christopher Creek Loop to Manuel Gene Bettencourt.

Background Information
During the regular scheduled meeting of the Gila County Board of Supervisors (BOS)  on July 7, 2009,
the BOS accepted a bid in the amount of $10 from Howee Holdings LLC., (Manuel Gene Bettencourt is
the principal of Howee Holdings) for the purchase of a portion of Christopher Creek Loop.

Evaluation
Mr. Bettencourt has met all of the requirements of the roadway abandonment process. A map showing
the abandonment has been recorded with the Gila County Recorder.

Conclusion
The next and final step in the process is for the Chairman of the Board to sign a quit claim deed that
deeds the abandoned roadway to Mr. Bettencourt.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Public Works Deputy Director that the Board of Supervisors adopt
Resolution No. 11-08-06 and authorize the Chairman of the Board of Supervisors sign the quit claim
deed.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 11-08-06 approving the disposal of an
unnecessary public roadway shown as a portion of Christopher Creek Loop, and authorizing the
Chairman to execute and deliver in the name and under the seal of the County of Gila, a quit claim
deed conveying the abandoned roadway to Manuel Gene Bettencourt.  (Steve Sanders)

Attachments
Link: Resolution No. 11-08-06
Link: QCD Gila County to Bettencourt



 
 
 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 11-08-06 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE DISPOSAL OF AN 
UNNECESSARY PUBLIC ROADWAY BEING A PORTION OF 
CHRISTOPHER CREEK LOOP, AND MORE PARTICULARLY 
DESCRIBED AND SHOWN AS AREA 2 AND AREA 3 ON RECORD 
OF SURVEY MAP NUMBER 3975, GILA COUNTY RECORDS, 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 
 

 
WHEREAS, MANUEL GENE BETTENCOURT, owner of the land adjoining that 

parcel of land hereinbefore described; and 
 
 
WHEREAS, it has been determined that the disposal of the unnecessary public roadway 

will not leave any property without access to public roads and streets of Gila County, and is no 
longer necessary for public use, and the same should be granted; and 

 
 
WHEREAS, MANUEL GENE BETTENCOURT, agrees that in consideration of the 

disposal of the said parcel of land and the conveyance of the ground so vacated to him as the 
adjoining owner, to release and discharge the COUNTY OF GILA from any and all damages, 
claims and demands of every kind and nature arising out of the conveyance of the same to him as 
the adjoining property owner; and 

 
 
WHEREAS, it is to the best interest of the COUNTY OF GILA to be relieved of the 

obligation to maintain said parcel of land; 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution No. 11-08-06 Page 1 
 
 



Resolution No. 11-08-06 Page 2 
 
 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Gila County Board of Supervisors: 

 
 
Section 1: That the portion of land described herein and constituting that portion of 
Christopher Creek Loop and more particularly described and shown as Area 2 and Area 3 on 
Record of Survey Map Number 3975, Gila County Records, Gila County, Arizona, is hereby, 
vacated and abandoned, subject, however, to all existing water, gas and utility easements now 
existing on said parcel of land. 
 
Section 2:   That the Chairman of the said Board of Supervisors, be, and he is hereby authorized, 
empowered and directed to make, execute and deliver in the name and under the seal of the 
COUNTY OF GILA, a quit claim deed conveying Manuel Gene Bettencourt, as owner of the 
adjacent property, that parcel of land hereinbefore described, and to cause said Deed to be 
attested and the seal of the said COUNTY OF GILA to be affixed thereto by the Clerk of the said 
Supervisors. 
 
 

The above described quit claim deed and legal description are 
attached for informational purposes only and will be recorded as 
a separate document 

 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of August 2011, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona. 
 
 
Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Marian Sheppard    Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Bryan Chambers 
Chief Deputy County Attorney 
 

 











ARF-711     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  2- O     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 08/15/2011  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Public Works Division Deputy Director
Submitted By: Steve Sanders, Public Works Division
Department: Public Works Division Division: Engineering
Presenter's Name: Steve Sanders 

Information
Request/Subject
Smelter Street Roadway Vacation of Right-Of-Way

Background Information
The current Gila County policy on the abandonment of roadways in Gila County lets staff initiate
abandonment proceedings with approval from the Board of Supervisors. This request is to begin the
process to abandon Smelter Street from Coplan to Silicate between blocks 16 and 17 as shown on the
Plat of Arlington Heights, Gila County Recorded Map 31.

The Gila County Surveyor has been surveying in the Arlington Heights Subdivision and has identified
numerous roads in the subdivision that exist only on paper and cannot be built for numerous reasons.
Some reasons are inadequate right-of-way widths and steepness of the terrain.

Evaluation
Public Works staff has identified Smelter Street as one of the roads existing only on paper and no
possibility of being built on the ground.  Staff has contacted owners along the road and asked them
if they would be interested in purchasing the road and the response was favorable. 

Conclusion
The Public Works Division Deputy Director feels it would be in the best interest of all involved to move
forward with the abandonment of Smelter Street from Coplan to Silicate between blocks 16 and 17 as
shown on the Plat of Arlington Heights, Gila County Recorded Map 31.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Public Works Division Deputy Director to begin the process of
abandoning a portion of Smelter Street from Coplan to Silicate between blocks 16 and 17 as shown on
the Plat of Arlington Heights, Gila County Recorded Map 31.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to direct staff to begin the process to abandon a portion of Smelter
Street from Coplan to Silicate between blocks 16 and 17 as shown on the Plat of Arlington Heights, Gila
County Recorded Map 31.  (Steve Sanders)



ARF-715     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  2- P     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 08/15/2011  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Public Works Division Deputy Director
Submitted By: Steve Sanders, Public Works Division
Department: Public Works Division Division: Engineering
Presenter's Name: Steve Sanders 

Information
Request/Subject
Upper Pinal Creek Road Vacation of Right-of-Way

Background Information
The current Gila County policy on the abandonment of roadways in Gila County lets staff initiate
abandonment proceedings with approval from the Board of Supervisors. This request is to begin the
process to abandon a portion of Upper Pinal Creek Road as shown on Gila County Record of Survey
Map 3841A-C.

In 2010, Gila County acquired a right of way to Upper Pinal Creek Road from various individuals along
the road and from the City of Globe. Shortly after the acquisition, a septic holding tank was found by
County staff within the portion of the right-of-way acquired from the City of Globe.

Evaluation
County staff contacted the adjacent land owner of the holding tank to find out some history about this
tank. It was discovered that this tank and its features were inadvertently placed on the City of Globe’s
property at some point in the past.  This septic system serves several rental units located on parcel
number 205-20-016G.  In discussion with said land owner, it was agreed by both parties that it would
be not feasible to relocate the septic system.  The option of abandoning this portion of the right-of-way
was discussed and determined to be the best solution for all parties involved.  Said land owner agreed
to hire a contractor to locate the limits of the holding tank and lines within the new right-of-way. This
location revealed that a portion of the lines installed were not only adjacent to said land owners
property but also the neighboring parcel (205-20-016B).  The owner of the neighboring parcel was
contacted and informed of the situation.  This land owner was agreeable to acquiring the new
right-of-way adjacent to his property and then quit claiming this back to the owner of the septic
holding tank.

Conclusion
In conclusion, it would be in the best interest of all parties involved to allow the portion of Upper Pinal
Creek road that contains the septic holding tank and lines to be abandoned. This will relieve the
County of the burden of having this septic system within the right of way and allow the owner of the
septic system the opportunity to have the whole system on property that he legally owns.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Public Works Division Deputy Director that the County abandon the
portion of Upper Pinal Creek Road where the septic holding tank and associated features reside.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to direct staff to begin the process to abandon a portion of Upper Pinal
Creek Road as shown on Gila County Record of Survey Map 3841A-C.  (Steve Sanders)



ARF-734     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  3- A     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 08/15/2011  
Submitted For: David Caddell, GEST

Program Manager
Submitted By: David Caddell, Community Services

Division
Department: Community Services Division Division: GEST Program

Fiscal Year: 2010 to 2014 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

11/17/2009 to 9/30/2014 

Grant?: Yes
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Replacement

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. DE106003-008 with Arizona Department of Economic Security, Rehabilitation
Services Administration

Background Information
Due to changes in G.E.S.T. staffing, this amendment will replace the current Attachment 1, RSA Fee Schedule
Application with the revised Attachment 1, RSA Fee Schedule Application dated June 23, 2011 to Contract No.
DE106003-008 (Rehabilitations Instructional Services).

Evaluation
This amendment updates the locations and changes to G.E.S.T. staff, Pursuant to the Uniform Terms and
Conditions, section 5,"Contract Changes," Paragraph 5.1 with contract DE106003-008 (Rehabilitations
Instructional Services).

Conclusion
This amendment will replace the current Attachment 1, RSA Fee Schedule Application with the revised Attachment
1. RSA Fee Schedule Application dated June 23, 2011, to Contract No. DE106003-008 (Rehabilitations Instructional
Services).

Recommendation
The G.E.S.T. Program Manager recommends Board approval on Amendment 1 to Contract No. DE106003-008
(Rehabilitations Instructional Services) which will replace the current Attachment 1, RSA Fee Schedule Application
with the revised Attachment 1, RSA Fee Schedule Application dated June 23, 2011.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. DE106003-008 between Gila County d/b/a Gila Employment and
Special Training Program, and the Arizona Department of Economic Security, Rehabilitation Services
Administration, to replace the current Attachment 1, RSA Fee Schedule, with the revised Attachment 1, RSA Fee
Schedule Application dated June 23, 2011. 

Attachments
Link: Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. DE106003-008
Link: Original Contract No. DE106003-008



















































































































ARF-740     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  3- B     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 08/15/2011  
Submitted For: David Caddell, GEST

Program Manager
Submitted By: David Caddell, Community Services

Division
Department: Community Services Division Division: GEST Program

Fiscal Year: 2010 to 2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

9/29/2010 to 6/30/2015 

Grant?: Yes
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Replacement

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 1 to IGA (Intergovernmental Agreement) No. DE111093-001 with Arizona Department of Economic
Security, Rehabilitation Services Administration

Background Information
Due to changes in Gila Employment and Special Training (G.E.S.T.) staffing, this amendment will will replace the
current Attachment 1, RSA Fee Schedule Application with the revised Attachment 6 dated June 23, 2011, to
IGA Contract No. DE111093-001 (Career Exploration/Supported Education).

Evaluation
This amendment updates the locations and changes to G.E.S.T. staff, Pursuant to the Uniform Terms and
Conditions, section 4, Amendments or Modifications, replaces the current Attachment 6, Facility Location and
Staffing Chart to IGA Contract No. DE111093-001 (Career Exploration/Supported Education).

Conclusion
This amendment will replace the current Attachment 6, RSA Fee Schedule Application with the revised Attachment
6 dated June 23, 2011 to IGA contract DE111093-001 (Career Exploration/Supported Education).

Recommendation
The G.E.S.T. Program Manager recommends Board approval of Amendment 1 to an Intergovernmental Agreement
(Contract No. DE111093-001)  (Career Exploration/Supported Education) which will replace the current
Attachment 6, RSA Fee Scheduled Application with the revised Attachment 6 dated June 23, 2011.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 1 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. DE111093-001), Career
Exploration/Supported Education, between Gila County d/b/a Gila Employment and Special Training and the
Arizona Department of Economic Security, Rehabilitation Services Administration, to replace the current
Attachment 6, Facility Location and Staffing Chart-Gila County, with the revised Attachment 6, Facility Location
and Staffing Chart dated June 23, 2011.

Attachments
Link: Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. DE111093-001
Link: Original IGA No. DE111093-001































































ARF-697     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  3- C     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 08/15/2011  
Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, CAP/Housing Services Manager
Submitted By: Christine Lopez, Community Services Division
Department: Community Services Division
Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.

Fiscal Year: 2011 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

03/24/2009 to 04/15/2011 

Grant?: Yes
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Replacement

Presenter's Name: Malissa Buzan 

Information
Request/Subject
CDBG Contract No. 150-09 Close-Out Report

Background Information
This is the Close-Out Report for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Contract No. 150-09.   This contract
originated on March 24, 2009, and ended on April 15, 2011.   During the contract period we were able to perform
housing rehabilitation services on 4 homes belonging to low-income Gila County residents.  The total contract
award was $136,646.59.    

The Close-Out Report reflects that we expended the total contract award of $136,646.59, and, in addition, we
leveraged $28,750.94 in other funding on these homes.   

Evaluation
By the Gila County Board of Supervisors signing this CDBG Contract No. 150-09 Close-Out Report it will
enable Gila County Community Action/Housing Services to finalize the contractual obligations to the Arizona
Department of Housing for this grant. 

Conclusion
It is important that the Gila County Board of Supervisors approve and sign the CDBG Contract No. 150-09
Close-Out Report in order for all contractual requirements to be met and finalization of the contract be performed. 
Once Contract No. 150-09 Close-Out Report has been successfully executed, the fund source for this contract will
no longer be available.  

Recommendation
The Community Action Housing Services Manager recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the
CDBG Contract No. 150-09 Close-Out Report.

Suggested Motion
Approval of CDBG (Community Development Block Grant) Contract No. 150-09 Close-Out Report to finalize the
contract between the Arizona Department of Housing and Gila County Community Action/Housing Services,
which will successfully end the contract and enable Gila County Community Action/Housing Services to be in
compliance with all requirements for the CDBG contract. 

Attachments
Link: C:\Documents and Settings\clopez\My Documents\HOUSING SERVICES\CDBG\Closeout 150-09.pdf
Link: C:\Documents and Settings\clopez\My Documents\HOUSING SERVICES\CDBG\CDBG 150-09 Original.pdf
Link: :\Documents and Settings\clopez\My Documents\HOUSING SERVICES\CDBG\CDBG 150-09 Letter.pdf















































































ARF-727     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  3- D     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 08/15/2011  
Submitted For: Daisy Flores,

County Attorney
Submitted By: Liz Fetterman, County Attorney

Department: County Attorney

Fiscal Year: 2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

July 1, 2011 - June 30, 2012 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
FY 2012 Victims' Rights Program Award Agreement No. AG# 2012-004 with Office of the
Attorney General.

Background Information
Monies are distributed and received by the Attorney General pursuant to A.R.S. 41-2401 and
A.R.S. 8-418 and constitute a continuing appropriation. These monies are also subject to
legislative appropriation. The allocated funding received from the Attorney General's Office
provides for salary and employee-related expenses of a full-time Victim Advocate /Notification
clerk within the Gila County Attorney's Office. FY 2012 award in the amount of $33,350 has
no financial impact on Gila County and requires no matched funds from the County.

Evaluation
The award of $33,350 is used to cover existing employee salaries and employee related
expenses commencing July 1, 2011, and terminating on June 30, 2012. The funding
agreement is used to support costs of implementing victims' rights laws mandated by the
provisions of Arizona Revised Statutes Title 13, Crime Victims' Rights, and Title 8, Victims'
Rights for Juvenile Offenses.

Conclusion
The intent of the program funds is two-fold - one, to provide financial support to the Gila
County Attorney's Office charged with performing the duties under A.R.S. Title 13 and A.R.S.
Title 8, and two, to encourage efficient and effective use of resources to meet statutory
requirements aimed at ensuring victims' rights and access to justice. Mandated services
provided to victims include, but are not limited to, notification of all court hearings, court
escorts, victim compensation, provide emotional support, assist in transportation, scheduling
interviews with prosecutor and to assist with any other social service needs. These funds are
essential to carrying out these duties.

Recommendation
It is recommended by the Gila County Attorney that the Board accept and approve the
FY2012 Victims' Rights Program Award Agreement No. AG#2012-004 in the amount of
$33,350 for the salary/benefits of a full-time Victim Advocate in the County Attorney's office.

Suggested Motion
Approval of FY 2012 Victims' Rights Program Award Agreement No. AG# 2012-004 between



Approval of FY 2012 Victims' Rights Program Award Agreement No. AG# 2012-004 between
the Gila County Attorney's Office and the Arizona Attorney General's Office in the amount of
$33,350 to cover the existing salary and employee-related expenses for a full-time advocate,
with no cash match funds required, and for the period July 1, 2011, through June 30, 2012.

Attachments
Link: VRP Award Agreement







ARF-717     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  3- E     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 08/15/2011  
Submitted For: Shane Stuler, Environmental Health Manager
Submitted By: Shane Stuler, Health & Emergency Services Division
Department: Health & Emergency Services Division Division: Health Services

Fiscal Year: 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

7/1/11-6/30/12 

Grant?: Yes
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Contract No. HG752219 with Arizona Department of Health Services to continue funding for Prop 201 Smoke Free
AZ

Background Information
This contract started in May 2007 with the passing of Prop 201 that made smoking in public buildings,
restaurants, bars and places of employment illegal. This is an annual contract based on a tobacco tax that was part
of Proposition 201 to fund its enforcement.

Evaluation
Approval of the continuation of the contract will allow the Gila County Division of Health and Emergency Services to
continue to educate the public on the Smoke Free AZ rules and to investigate complaints of possible infractions of
the Smoke free AZ rules.

Conclusion
To comply with County policies and procedures the continuation of the Smoke Free AZ contract is being presented
to the Board of Supervisors for approval.

Recommendation
The Health and Emergency Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the
continuation of the contract with the Arizona Department of Health Services to provide education and complaint
investigations of Propostion 201 Smoke Free AZ.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Contract No. HG752219 between the Gila County Division of Health & Emergency Services, Health
Department, and the Arizona Department of Health Services in the amount of $51,160 to continue the funding of
the Prop 201 Smoke Free AZ Contract for the period July 1, 2011, through June 30, 2012. 

Attachments
Link: Contract No. HG752219 with Arizona Department of Health Services
Link: Prop 201 Terms and Conditions and background information





















ARF-765     Item #:  3- F     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 08/15/2011  
Reporting Period: December 7, 2010, BOS Meeting Minutes
Submitted For: Marilyn Brewer,

Deputy Clerk, BOS
Submitted By: Marilyn Brewer,

Clerk of the Board of
Supervisors

Information
Subject
December 7, 2010, BOS Meeting Minutes

Suggested Motion
Approval of the December 7, 2010, BOS meeting minutes.

Attachments
Link: BOS 12-07-10 Meeting Minutes



1 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  December 7, 2010 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR      JOHN F. NELSON 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN      By: Marilyn Brewer 
Vice-Chairman             Deputy Clerk 
 
SHIRLEY L. DAWSON      Gila County Courthouse 
Member        Globe, Arizona 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman; 
Shirley L. Dawson, Supervisor (via phone conference); Don McDaniel, Jr., 
County Manager; Marilyn Brewer, Deputy Clerk; and Bryan Chambers, Chief 
Deputy County Attorney. 
 
Item 1 – Call to Order – Pledge of Allegiance 
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a work session at 10:00 a.m. this 
date in the Board of Supervisors hearing room.  Tommie Martin led the Pledge 
of Allegiance. 
 
Item 2 - Presentation/Discussion regarding Redistricting of Gila County 
and Proceeding with an Application to the Department of Justice to 
Bailout from Section 5 Obligations Pursuant to the Voting Rights Act of 
1965.   
 
Linda Eastlick, Elections Director, introduced Tony Sissons, President/Owner 
of Research Advisory Services, Inc., Phoenix, Arizona, and Bruce Adelson, 
Attorney at Law/CEO of Federal Contract Compliance in Potomac, Maryland.  
Ms. Eastlick stated that both of these gentlemen worked with Gila County on 
the redistricting process in 2000, although at the time Mr. Sissons was working 
for the County on the submissions side and Mr. Adelson was working for the 
U.S. Department of Justice on the review side; however, Mr. Adelson now has 
his own private company.  These 2 consultants will serve as legal and process 
consultants for the current Gila County Redistricting process.  Mr. Sissons 
began a PowerPoint presentation entitled “Redistricting of Supervisor Districts.” 
Mr. Sissons provided a brief background on himself and Mr. Adelson and what 
the role of each would be during Gila County’s redistricting process.  He 
explained that Gila County has to redistrict for the following 2 reasons:  1) the 
U.S. Constitution, under the principle of “one person, one vote” requires that 
the districts from which we elect representatives be equal in population, and 2) 



2 

the County must redistrict after every decennial census and whenever there is 
a change in the number of districts.  The official estimate of Gila County 
population in 2009 was 57,204, which shows an increase of 11.4% since 2000.  
If that population figure turns out to be close to the official Census count, each 
supervisorial district’s ideal size would be estimated to be 19,068, which 
includes all people, regardless of age, eligibility to vote, or citizenship.  
Chairman Pastor stated that since there has been a challenge as to the legality 
of the citizenship of a resident, he wanted to know the reason Mr. Sissons was 
stating that citizenship has no basis in the Census.  Mr. Sissons explained that 
every decade there are many challenges to the way the Census Bureau 
administers its responsibilities of counting population for representation.  If 
there are people that are in this country without a legal right to be here, the 
greatest likelihood is that they never answered the Census in the first place.  
The Census Bureau has done studies on this to look at the self-exclusion and 
the reasons for same and the Census Bureau has never lost a court case to 
date.  Chairman Pastor also inquired about part-time residency.  Mr. Sisson 
replied that the instructions the Census Bureau gives to its enumerators is 
that it is up to the respondent to decide where they live, but the guidance that 
the enumerator will give is how many nights out of the year does the resident 
spend in one place versus the other place and whatever that predominance is, 
the Bureau will then consider that to be the residence of that person.  Mr. 
Sissons continued with his presentation by stating that in the past, district 
populations could vary as much as 10% without having to give an explanation; 
however, in 2004, a Federal court decision in a Georgia case reduced the 
allowable variance.  Block-level redistricting allows flexibility to achieve a small 
variance.  To comply with the Federal Voting Rights Act, Gila County must 
draw new districts that have “neither the purpose, nor the effect, of diluting the 
voting strength of racial, origin or language minority populations.”  To avoid 
“retrogression” in minority voting strength, it must be understood what 
“benchmark” minority proportions are that the U.S. Department of Justice 
(DOJ) will be using.  The DOJ looks at the minority populations that exist 
today (2010 Census) in the most recently pre-cleared districts, not at the 
proportions that existed when the districts were drawn.  Those proportions 
won’t be known until the 2010 Census data arrives in March 2011.  Mr. 
Sissons stated that in 2000, the voting-age minority populations in Gila County 
were as follows:  District 1 - 5.94%; District 2 – 28.48%; and District 3 – 
47.70%.  None of the districts were “minority-majority,” but District 3 was 
close.  The 2010 Census will provide information as to whether population 
shifts during the decade will now require drawing a minority-majority district.  
In regard to redistricting principles, Mr. Sissons stated that as a result of laws 
and court cases, certain common “district design” rules have evolved.  In some 
circumstances, these rules can conflict with each other.  It will be up to the 
Board of Supervisors to prioritize how it wants the districting principles 
applied.  The discussion and adoption of those priorities should be held in a 
public session.  He then explained both the common and less common 
redistricting principles.  The courts and the DOJ want the redistricting process 



3 

to be an assertively public process and the public record should clearly 
demonstrate that Gila County paid attention to its residents and did not just 
“give lip service” to public input.  He stated that the preliminary studies will 
include examining, mapping and documenting the physical and demographic 
makeup of Gila County; examining County and DOJ records to get a complete 
picture of the County’s preclearance history; and then catalog recent state, 
county and city election results at the precinct level.  When the Census data 
arrives, the population, race and ethnicity values in the current districts will 
have to be determined along with the size of population shifts necessary to 
equalize districts.  The minority race proportions in each current district will 
also have to be determined as well as the permissible population movements 
necessary to equalize district populations without diminishing minority voting 
strength.  Finally, the magnitude and extent of any racially-polarized voting will 
have to be examined.  Mr. Sissons stated that there will have to be a major 
outreach to all of the community leaders to explain the process, determine 
their expectations, and encourage their participation and leadership.  Also, a 
contact list of people and organizations will have to be developed as suggested 
by key leaders.  Public information will be prepared to include maps illustrating 
topics examined in the preliminary studies; information handouts/booklets 
describing the various aspects of the redistricting process; as well as citizen 
redistricting kits, which will include a printed booklet of instructions, data and 
foldout base maps along with a redistricting map on the County’s website.  
Initial meetings will be held with the Board and elected officials in the form of a 
work session to go into more detail on the process, legal setting, roles and 
responsibilities; to discuss districting principles; and to obtain Supervisors’ 
direction on priority ranking of districting principles.  This will be followed by 
individual meetings with Board members and staff to obtain input on possible 
or preferred configuration of districts.  The first round of resident 30-minute 
public hearings/workshops will include 3 meetings, one in each of the current 
districts.  The meetings will include viewing exhibits, a short presentation on 
scope, purposes, process, timelines and legal issues; stressing that no maps 
have been drawn yet and that the request for input in genuine; and invite 
citizens to try their hand at drawing their perceptions of ‘communities of 
interest’ important to them on tracing paper laid over County maps.  This will 
be followed by the County analyzing the plans and community-of interest maps 
submitted by citizens, preparation of 3-4 alternate plans and then have the 
proposed alternate plans published.  A second round of resident 30-minute 
public hearings/workshops will again include 3 meetings, one in each of the 
current districts and will include a short formal presentation that describes the 
features of each plan; stresses the extent to which plans incorporate ideas 
gathered in various public-input meetings; and describe ways for citizens to 
register their views or choices of plans or plan features and, in this case, that 
would be with the redistricting committee.  The consultants and County staff 
will be present to answer questions.  After all the meetings are held, then the 
consultants will prepare final versions of 2-3 plans for consideration by the 
Board.  The plans will be displayed on the County’s website and in the 



4 

newspapers.  The public will be invited to send in comments and to attend the 
plan adoption meeting.  At a regular meeting of the Board, the redistricting 
committee along with the consultants and staff will present plans to the Board 
at a meeting held specifically for that purpose.  The consultant team’s 
preclearance expert will examine the adopted plan for compliance with the new 
DOJ Section 5 regulations.  In conclusion, Mr. Sissons stated that the 
consultants will prepare the preclearance application files and exhibits 
requested by the County Attorney because the submission on the County’s 
behalf has to be prepared by the County Attorney.  Daisy Flores, County 
Attorney, inquired about the time frame and when she should expect a final 
decision.  Mr. Sissons stated that the supervisorial plan should be adopted in 
early December 2011.  Chairman Pastor stated that Mr. Sissons mentioned 
providing technical and legal assistance to the Gila County staff and 
redistricting committee, if one is formed, and inquired if it is required to have a 
redistricting committee or if that was just a recommendation.  Mr. Sissons 
replied that to his knowledge it is not a requirement, but a committee was used 
for the 2000 Census.  Upon inquiry by Vice-Chairman Martin as to when the 
Census data will arrive, Mr. Sissons stated that it should arrive any time after 
March 15, 2011, because the Census Bureau is required to have all of the data 
to all the states where it then gets passed down to the jurisdictions and that 
deadline is April 1, 2011.  Vice-Chairman Martin stated that the only other 
special district in Gila County that is population based is the Gila County 
Community College District (GCCCD); the other districts such as fire and water 
are land based.  She inquired if the GCCCD would be included.  Mr. Sissons 
stated that even judicial districts are not required to balance their populations, 
but any changes to those districts are still subject to the DOJ preclearance.  
The GCCCD will be included; however, 10 years ago when the County did the 
supervisorial districts, the GCCCD had not come into existence.  When the 
map was drawn by staff with the College’s 5 districts, he was asked to review it 
and it was done on the basis of whole precincts.  He stated it will be a matter of 
whether the County and the GCCCD can come to an agreement as to which 
entity will actually manage the process of drawing those districts.  Mr. Sissons 
stated that because GCCCD’s maps were drawn so recently, they probably 
won’t need to be redistricted because the populations would be approximately 
the same.  His advice would be, and he will check, that they will need to be 
redistricted because it is highly unlikely that they will still be in population 
balance.  Vice-Chairman Martin stated that she would like to have that 
information.  Mr. Sissons stated that it was not part of his contract at this 
point and the issues that arise out of whether or not the Board gives the 
redistricting advisory committee the responsibility to do those and should they 
run a parallel process or do one after the other are decisions that will need to 
be made internally.  Vice-Chairman Martin inquired whether there would be a 
different committee for that or whether the same committee would be used.  
Mr. Sissons replied that a separate committee could be created and he was 
thinking in terms of not so much the DOJ view of things, but possible court 
challenges.  He stated that redistricting is one of those processes in which 



5 

some people can feel like they have been really aggrieved by the outcome and 
decide to take it to court, so it has to be looked at by how the process would be 
viewed by the court, which he would refer to the County Attorney.  Vice-
Chairman Martin inquired if Mr. Sissons would recommend that the County 
look at the judicial district.  Mr. Sissons replied that by looking at a map, he 
could sort of plot and analyze them, but they really are sized and proportioned 
to administrative activity within the district.  The matter of representation is 
not a constitutional matter; it’s simply a decision by the U.S. Supreme Court 
many years ago that judicial districts of any sort would not have to comply with 
‘one person, one vote.’   Supervisor Dawson stated that the County is 
embarking on a very complicated process.  She was reviewing the guidelines of 
forming the redistricting committee, which she knows will be a challenging 
process.  Supervisor Dawson stated that she believes the Board is going to ask 
for people to submit their names if they are interested in serving on this 
committee.  She inquired how often the redistricting committee would have to 
meet during this 6-8 month process.  Mr. Sissons stated that they would 
probably need to meet approximately 8 times because they would be the ears 
and eyes of the process for each of the 6 public meetings and would probably 
be involved in a couple of meetings before those 6 meetings.  The committee 
would also be involved in presenting the plan to the Board.  Supervisor Dawson 
stated that because of the way the County is divided with isolated small 
populations of Native Americans on either side of the Salt River Canyon, in 
Canyon Day, Cedar Creek, Carrizo Creek and Cibecue, she inquired if they 
should be represented on this committee also.  Mr. Sissons stated that in 
reading the rules that staff have come up with that parallel the state rules on 
selecting a committee, he believes one of the requirements is that there be 3 
members from each of the 3 supervisorial districts.  In terms of appearance, it 
would probably be a very good idea to make sure that each of the racial 
minorities within the County are accounted for in the composition of the 
committee to the extent that is possible.  Bill Rapport, Mayor of the Town of 
Star Valley, questioned, “Will you be able to select people from each individual 
area, town, etc. in each district to be represented on this committee and who 
would make the final decision?”  Mr. Sissons stated that as he understands it, 
people generally will be invited to put in an application to be on the committee 
and the final decision will be the prerogative of the Board of Supervisors.  
Chairman Pastor stated that in regard to having the committee represent the 
entire County, he believes that further on in the work session and through the 
discussions this morning, “We will be able to figure out some kind of process 
that we want to develop in order to recruit folks from all over the County.”  
Chairman Pastor stated that there has been some mention of a radio campaign 
to see if people want to volunteer and in his community meetings, he’s going to 
encourage those people to submit a letter requesting the opportunity to serve.  
Ms. Eastlick stated that this is just the kickoff meeting and there will be 
further discussions with the Board on recommendations on the appointments.  
She has some preliminary guidelines as to how the committee should be 
developed.  Mr. Rapport wanted to ensure that he is kept informed of the 



6 

process.  Vice-Chairman Martin stated that even though there will be a formal 
committee, nothing precludes the communities from coming together and 
providing input into the process.  Mr. Sissons stated that the committee will be 
a very visible conduit for the opinions of the residents and during the last 
redistricting process there were several groups that drew complete County-wide 
plans so he does expect that to happen.  Mr. Adelson then addressed the Board 
and explained that his role will be to manage all of the consultants that 
manage the process working with the County and the County Attorney’s Office 
to ensure that everything is done properly so the County doesn’t get in trouble.  
He then explained the reason the County has to deal with the DOJ in getting 
preclearance before any changes can be implemented.  Mr. Adelson stated that 
redistricting is thought to be the highest priority for the DOJ to review.  Having 
reviewed all of the County submissions during the last round as the team 
leader for the DOJ’s review of the state-wide legislative and congressional 
plans, Mr. Adelson knows that mistakes were made and he wants to avoid 
those same mistakes to ensure that the DOJ does not enter an objection.  If the 
DOJ objects to a redistricting plan, then the County is legally prohibited from 
using it.  If the DOJ requests additional information in writing, then that 
delays the possible implementation of the plan.  The DOJ is the boss of the 
process and nothing can happen until the DOJ approves the plan.  He assured 
the Board that in working through the process, those mistakes will not be 
made.  Mr. Adelson also stated that this process will take approximately 1 year 
as the data will not be available for another 4 months.  It will take months to 
develop a plan, and it will take a significant amount of time to prepare the plan 
for submittal to the DOJ and then the DOJ has to preclear the plan.  He stated 
that the ideal situation is that the plan is precleared and everything is all set a 
year from now because then the County has to have its candidate qualifying 
dates that have to be met the following year.  He explained that the State of 
Arizona, because of the delays in getting  information requested by the DOJ, 
caused a delay in the plan process and the candidate qualifying dates were all 
missed.  Jesse Bryant, a reporter for KQSS Radio, inquired, “Are candidates 
and elections pretty much up in the air until this process is finalized?  What is 
the expectation of a candidate that might be on the fringe of a district now that 
could potentially be excluded when the process is done?”  Mr. Adelson replied, 
“I think the expectation is that all the lines will likely change.  How they change 
and where they change, we can’t predict.  So if someone is in a particular 
district now, that person may or may not be in that district when the data 
comes out and we do all of our analyses.  The redistricting requirement applies 
to every jurisdiction in the state that elects by district.”  He stated that this is a 
decennial process that involves millions of people across the United States 
every 10 years; it is a very complex and complicated process with a high level of 
analysis.  If there is a bump in the process from the DOJ or a lawsuit, then 
that’s problematic and everything else could be delayed; elections could be 
delayed; candidate qualifying could be delayed and the County or any 
jurisdiction could find itself in a great deal of difficulty.  Chairman Pastor 
inquired that with boundary lines possibly changing and if a person is in a 



7 

position or an office with a term that extends past 2012, will that person serve 
out his/her term and then the change is made for the new district or after the 
term is expired?  Chairman Pastor stated that he was inquiring because there 
are some overlapping terms at the Gila County Community College District that 
go beyond 2012.  Mr. Adelson stated that all of those things are a part of the 
calculation that goes into redistricting, which is a very complex process.  He 
stressed that by federal law all entities that redistrict have the burden of 
showing that they are not violating federal law and that they are not 
discriminating.  He stated, “You have to prove that.  DOJ doesn’t have to prove 
it or disprove it.  You do.  And if you don’t prove it, you lose.”  He also 
emphasized that DOJ decisions are final and not appealable.  The only 
alternative is to go to court and ask the court to grant permission to use an 
interim plan temporarily, but the court cannot overturn the DOJ objection.  
Mr. Adelson then explained in more detail about the provision in the Voting 
Rights Act, Section 5, which deals with the bailout process or becoming exempt 
from preclearance.  He explained that every jurisdiction in Arizona that is 
covered by Section 5 has the legal right to apply to bailout; however, cities, 
school districts and other sub-jurisdictions below the County level can bail out 
without being tied to the County.  In order to bail out successfully, the County 
must have a clean record for 10 years of Section 5 preclearances by the DOJ 
including all sub-jurisdictions within the County.  The County cannot bail out 
on its own.  The DOJ also does not have a problem with retroactive 
preclearance.  However, if there is any discrimination in the past that hurt the 
rights of minority voters, then the County could not bail out and the process 
stops.  He then explained the process that the DOJ goes through to approve a 
bailout.  Once the bailout has been approved by the DOJ, then the County and 
the DOJ file a joint lawsuit with the federal court in Washington.  It’s a consent 
lawsuit, so it’s non-adversarial.  The court then signs an Order, which allows 
the County to bail out and once the County is out from under Section 5, it is 
out forever unless it should do something blatantly discriminatory, which has 
never happened before.  Vice-Chairman Martin inquired about sub-
jurisdictions such as fire districts and water districts that are bound by land 
barriers and not population barriers and whether they have to opt out.  Mr. 
Adelson stated that any district that holds its own elections is covered by the 
Section 5 requirements.   Vice-Chairman Martin inquired who would help these 
sub-jurisdictions through the bailout process because they wouldn’t have any 
idea how to do same?  Mr. Adelson stated that in his experience, the smaller 
the jurisdiction, the less experience they have with the intricacies of Section 5 
and his part in working with the County on bailout will be to help these 
jurisdictions to understand what federal law says and what needs to be done in 
order to move forward with the bailout.  Ms. Eastlick advised that tonight at 
6:30 p.m. a meeting will be held in the Globe Board of Supervisors’ hearing 
room and also by ITV in Payson in which all special districts, school districts, 
cities and towns have been invited to attend and learn about the whole bailout 
process and she hopes that at least 1 member from each district will be 
participating.  In order to proceed with the bailout, these districts’ assistance 



8 

will be needed to provide information to put together the retroactive 
submissions.  Ms. Eastlick also encouraged the Board to attend.  Chairman 
Pastor thanked Mr. Sissons and Mr. Adelson for their presentation.   No action 
was taken by the Board. 
 
Item 3 - Presentation/Discussion regarding a report of recently completed 
Secure Rural Schools Title II Grant, and an analysis and evaluation of 
potential projects for Secure Rural Schools Title II Special Projects 
application for 2011 Title II  grant funds that will become available in 
2011 in the estimated amount of $432,000 for projects in Gila County.  
 
Jacque Griffin, Assistant County Manager/Librarian, explained that the Secure 
Rural Schools (SRS) Program for 2008-2011 includes provisions for Title II 
Special Projects on federal lands.  This Act authorizes the use of area Resource 
Advisory Committees (RAC) as a mechanism for local community collaboration 
with federal land managers in recommending Title II special projects on federal 
lands.  There are 5 eastern counties in Arizona (Apache, Gila, Graham, 
Greenlee and Navajo) that make up the geographical area for the Eastern 
Arizona RAC, which consists of 15 members, 3 from each county.  The SRS 
Title II Special Project requests for proposals from these 5 counties are handled 
by Apache-Sitgreaves Forest Service staff and presented to the Eastern Arizona 
RAC for its review and recommendations.  These projects are then approved 
through the Secretary of Agriculture or its designee such as a Forest 
Supervisor or District Ranger and funded through the U.S. Forest Service 
federal process.  Ms. Griffin provided a handout to the Board, which showed 
that these projects may include, but are not limited to the following:  road, trail 
and infrastructure maintenance or obliteration; soil productivity improvement; 
improvements in forest ecosystem health; watershed restoration and 
maintenance; restoration, maintenance and improvement of wildlife and fish 
habitat; control of noxious and exotic weeds; and reestablishment of native 
species.  The Board, Ms. Griffin and Steve Stratton, Public Works Division 
Director, discussed the difference in this funding and the Secure Rural Schools 
funding for Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILT), which is in conjunction with the 
County School Superintendent’s Office where 5% of those federal funds go to 
roads and the remainder to education.  Ms. Griffin explained that in the past, 
the SRS Title II was not fully funded, so Gila County’s portion was much 
smaller; however, when the SRS Program of 2008 through 2011 was enacted 
by Congress as fully funded or more fully funded, that’s when the County was 
entitled to receive these large amounts of money.  This set of funding is only for 
the years 2008-2011 and the amount currently being applied is for 2010 
because the federal government lags a year behind.  There will be one more 
year of funding in this process and each year it is 15% less than what was 
awarded the year before.  Last year’s funds were $500,000, so this year it is 
believed the funds will be in the amount of $432,000.  Before 2008, the funding 
was approximately $30,000 for the 5 counties.  Vice-Chairman Martin 
explained how this program was first funded in Oregon and Washington to take 



9 

the place of timber sales receipts that were going into a variety of rural counties 
and the original percentage breakup was to counties that had the higher 
timber sales and receipts.  That was then broadened to all the rural counties.   
Ms. Griffin stated that last year she came before the Board requesting 
permission to apply for this money to the RAC and even though it’s for the 
benefit of the geographical area of Gila County, the money does not come to 
Gila County government unless the County applies for it.  In past years, Gila 
County’s portion had gone to a stewardship project on the Apache Sitgreaves 
National Forest and it is the Apache Sitgreaves Forest District office that 
administers these grants.  Last year there were approximately 10-12 grant 
applications that were either partially or totally included for the Gila County 
geographical area; however, the RAC only recommended 2 projects—one for 3 
miles of paving of the 512 Road in Young and a small portion for the Tonto 
Natural Resources Education Center to do some education for the fourth 
graders.  There were other projects that were mostly applied for by the U.S. 
Forest Service entities and one by the Arizona Game and Fish Department.  Mr. 
Stratton presented a more thorough review of the newly paved 3-miles of the 
512 road.  The County worked with Jacobs Engineering on the design and it 
was administered by the Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT).  There 
was a combination of funds earmarked for this project by former Congressman 
Renzi along with the RAC money designated for this project.  ADOT estimated 
the cost to be approximately $1.45 million.  The successful contractor, 
Intermountain West from Payson, bid the project at $1.13 million.  In order to 
get the project done prior to snow season and around dealing with the critical 
habitat, the County had to front approximately $1.45 million to ADOT to do the 
project.  Mr. Stratton then gave a photo presentation of this road, which leads 
north out of Young and ties into Highway 260.  This actual piece of road lies in 
Coconino County; however, Gila County has an intergovernmental agreement 
with Coconino County for the maintenance of this portion of the road, as Gila 
County had already been maintaining it for many years.  He stated that ADOT 
is currently in the process of a 45-day waiting period after reseeding and then 
it will declare the project finished and reimburse the County for the upfront 
money.  This project will help with the County’s maintenance efforts and will 
also help with the travel for the citizens of Young.  There still remains 
approximately 13 miles of this road that is unpaved.  Mr. Stratton stated that 
he, Steve Sanders, Public Works Division Deputy Director and Ms. Griffin in 
consultation with the Road Department Superintendent have come up with 8 
projects for the 2010 funding.  Mr. Sanders has also reviewed how those 
projects intertwine with the Small Area Transportation Study that was done 4-
5 years ago in which Mr. Sanders was the delegate for Gila County.   Mr. 
Sanders then reviewed the 8 projects with the Board.  All projects meet the 
criteria and follow the Small Area Transportation Study as much as possible 
and are projects on forest roads that deal with pavement maintenance and 1 is 
regarding a bridge.  He stated that 4 of the viable projects are probably not the 
best projects to apply for with this money.  Those projects include the 
following:  1) construction of a bridge across Oak Creek in Tonto Basin to 



10 

provide connectivity to the citizens on the east side, however, the cost of the 
bridge does not make it feasible as a RAC project; 2) the extension of some 
paving on the Control Road in Payson, however, it was determined not to be 
feasible due to a project by the Central Federal Lands Division of the Federal 
Highway Administration, which is due to begin in April 2011 and finish in 
December 2011; 3) Vented Ford Crossing on Forest Road 199 (the Houston 
Mesa Road) at 2nd Crossing, however, it was determined not to be feasible due 
to an anticipated increase in traffic and no alternate routes available because 
of the Control Road Bridge Replacement project; and 4) extending the paving of 
Forest Road 512, however, since this Road benefitted from the last SRS Title II 
project the County was awarded, it was felt that another project in another 
area would be more favorably received by the RAC.  Mr. Sanders advised that 
there are 4 other viable projects in no particular order that are identified in the 
Small Area Transportation Plan, with one exception, for the Board to review.  
 
These 4 projects are as follows:   
1) Double Chip Seal Forest Road 424, corrected to be Road 423, (Cline 
Boulevard) located on the east side of Tonto Basin, which would consist of a 
double-chip seal on the unpaved portion (approximately 5 miles) of Cline 
Boulevard.  The existing paved portion of the road (approximately 2.8 miles) 
would receive a chip overlay.  The entire length of the road would be striped 
and NEPA (National Environmental Policy Act) would be done at an estimated 
cost of the project to be $400,474.  
2) Double Chip Seal Forest Road 55 (Russell Road to Kellner Canyon Road) 
south of Globe, which would consist of a double chip seal on the unpaved 
portion of the road (approximately 3.6 miles on U.S. Forest land), NEPA would 
need to be done, and there are areas of the road that should be realigned to 
improve geometry and sight distance at an estimated cost of the project to be 
$423,600.  
3) Double Chip Seal Forest Road 291 (Colcord Road), which would extend the 
paving through a double chip seal to the end of Colcord Road; however, this 
road is not in the Small Area Transportation Study possibly because it is 
designated historic in nature and the surface could not be altered until a 
cultural study and an Historic American Engineering Record (HAER) could be 
recorded for the road.  The cultural study has been completed and the County 
is moving forward with the HAER document.  There are also some areas that 
would need to be realigned to improve geometry and sight distance.  The entire 
project is estimated to cost $417,021.   
4)  Mill and Replace Paving on Forest Road 417 (Gisela Road) starting at the 
intersection of State Route 87 or the forest boundary and going east towards 
the community of Gisela about 2 miles.  While the long-range ultimate goal 
would be to relocate the road away from the current location and move it away 
from the wash, at this time it isn’t economically feasible.  The current 
pavement of 2 miles is distressed and cracked and it needs to be milled and 
replaced with new asphalt, but at this time it is hard to determine a cost 
estimate without knowing the depth of the existing pavement and base material 



11 

as it would reduce the cost if there is sufficient base/asphalt.  The approximate 
cost would be $402,212.   
 
Ms. Griffin requested that the Board review these potential projects as she will 
address the Board on January 4, 2011, at which time she will ask the Board 
for its priorities on these projects in order to move forward with the grant 
application.  She advised that a Request for Proposals will be issued in mid-
January 2011 with a request that the grant applications be submitted by the 
end of February 2011.  The RAC will meet in March 2011 to review the 
applications.  It is definitely a competitive grant process and it is unknown 
what the other entities will be requesting.  Mr. Stratton stated that the Board 
could also suggest other projects to review and that’s the reason for this work 
session.  In the event the Board has other projects, it would allow sufficient 
time to conduct the research that would be necessary for other projects.  Ms. 
Griffin stated that the group also discussed the idea of submitting 4 projects 
costing approximately $100,000 each; however, the concern was that each 
project as it is submitted would be competing with every other project 
submitted by other entities for the same area and they felt that the RAC would 
have more opportunity to pick and choose projects that were not necessarily 
submitted by the County.  The best strategic plan was to look for larger 
projects costing approximately $400,000 that met the criteria and would 
provide the County with a better chance of being awarded the grant.  Chairman 
Pastor inquired if the other 4 counties in the consortium would be competing 
for the same money.  Mr. Griffin replied that each county has within its 
geographical area an identified amount of money for that area and of those 5 
counties, Gila County’s amount of money is the largest; however, the RAC is 
not bound by law to spend the geographical Gila County money within Gila 
County.  Historically, the RAC has spent the money within the geographic 
areas.  Vice-Chairman Martin stated that she appreciated the time, effort and 
thought that went into selecting these projects.  Vice-Chairman Martin stated 
that she agreed with the first 4 projects that were not selected based on the 
reasons given; however, she also felt that the Colcord Road project could also 
be put off for an additional year because the County is currently working with 
ADOT on a right-hand turn lane at that location.  She would also like to see the 
paving on Cline Boulevard finished and/or the Gisela Road started although it 
seems to be a bigger project and the County might want to do more than redo 
the 2 miles.  She also agreed that the Russell Road project was a good project.  
Chairman Pastor questioned in regard to the Cline Boulevard project in Tonto 
Basin if the NEPA required would be costly and burdensome.   Mr. Sanders 
stated that he thought the County could get the U.S. Forest Service to do the 
NEPA because it’s on an existing road and not in any undisturbed areas, and it 
could be done in less than 6-8 months.  Chairman Pastor stated that if that 
entire road was completed, it would give the County some relief because it has 
been a very labor intensive road to maintain in the past.  Mr. Sanders stated 
that any time the County can put down oil or pave a road and reduce the 
maintenance, staff can move forward and work on other areas.  Don McDaniel, 



12 

County Manager, inquired if the lack of NEPA would slow down the Kellner 
Canyon/ Russell Road project.  Mr. Sanders replied that he did not believe it 
would slow down the process simply because it is also in an already disturbed 
area.  He stated that the Forest Service could be contacted tomorrow on all 4 of 
these projects to see if there are any potential problems.  Mr. Stratton stated 
that in the past because Russell Road is on a maintenance agreement, the 
previous Forest Engineer had actually attempted to start allocating money on a 
yearly basis to pave that road, so he does not believe there would be any 
environmental problems.  He also advised that the District Ranger for the Tonto 
National Forest has been working with the County and he believes the Cline 
Boulevard project could be cleared to start as well.  Mr. Stratton also noted 
that when reviewing these projects, the roads that were maintenance problems 
for the County’s road crew were taken into consideration so any of these 
projects would eliminate a lot of road work.  Mr. Stratton also agreed with Vice-
Chairman Martin that the Gisela road poses too many unknowns and more 
research needs to be done.  No action was taken by the Board. 
 
At 11:45 a.m., Chairman Pastor called for a 5-minute recess.  At 11:55 a.m. 
Chairman Pastor reconvened the meeting. 
 

 Item 4 - Presentation/Discussion regarding the Boards, Commissions, and 
Committees Report and an analysis and evaluation of each BC&C’s 
current status of compliance with applicable statutes, laws, policies and 
procedures.   

 
Mr. McDaniel stated that each Board member was provided with a binder that 
contains all of the information that has been gathered on each one of the 
identified Boards, Commissions and Committees (BC&Cs) for which the Board 
of Supervisors is responsible.  He reiterated that the Board has a fiduciary as 
well as a legal responsibility for each of these groups in some fashion.  What 
has been provided is a base report and Mr. McDaniel advised that he would 
like to review each one with the Board at work sessions over the next few 
months and include a compliance checklist of critical items that should be 
tended to by each BC&C.  He advised that the Board of Supervisors serves as 
the Board of Deposit.  Mr. McDaniel provided a compliance checklist, which he 
reviewed with the Board, as follows:   
1)  Name:  Board of Deposit 
2)  Gila County Staff Liaison:  County Treasurer, Chief Deputy Clerk of the 
BOS 
3)  Legal basis for establishment:  Statutory A.R.S. §35-325 

• Date of creation:  N/A 
• Bylaws:  N/A 
• Charter:  N/A 
• Legal counsel:  County Attorney 

4)  Assigned areas of responsibility:  Selects servicing bank for County funds 



13 

5)  Membership:  Board of Supervisors (BOS) 
• Terms of office:  Same as BOS 
• Appointing authority:  Elected – statute 

6)  Meeting schedule – As needed 
• Location:  BOS Hearing Room, Globe Courthouse 

7)  Meeting legal posting and advertising:  Yes, Clerk of the BOS Department 
8)  Meeting agendas:  Yes, Clerk of the BOS Department 
9)  Meeting minutes:  Yes, Clerk of the BOS Department 
10) Funding sources:  N/A 

• Amounts:  N/A 
11) Significant actions and accomplishments:  Select servicing bank every 3 
years 
12)  Notes:  -- 
Mr. McDaniel stated that every 3 years or so the Board selects a bank to be the 
County servicing bank.  The Bank is currently JPMorgan Chase, N.A. and is up 
for consideration in June 2012.  Supervisor Dawson inquired if there is a 
branch of this bank in Payson.  Vice-Chairman Martin advised that there is a 
branch in Payson.  Vice-Chairman Martin suggested that the date the servicing 
bank is up for consideration should be added to this information.  Supervisor 
Dawson inquired about the number of County bank accounts and if that would 
be under the umbrella of the Board of Deposit.  Mr. McDaniel stated that would 
not be an issue the Board of Deposit would address as it simply establishes the 
servicing bank for the County.  The matter of the number of accounts remains 
an issue for the County, and the Finance Director has discussed that issue 
with the County Manager.  There are some bank accounts, and most notable is 
one bank account in which it is uncertain of the person who has authority over 
it.  Work continues on reviewing these accounts and eliminating those with 
zero balances.   
 
Mr. McDaniel stated that the Board of Supervisors serves as the Board of 
Equalization.  Another compliance checklist was provided by Mr. McDaniel and 
reviewed with the Board as follows: 
1)  Name:  Board of Equalization 
2)  Gila County Staff Liaison:  County Assessor, Chief Deputy Clerk of the BOS 
3)  Legal basis for establishment:  Statutory A.R.S. §42-16102 

• Date of creation:  N/A 
• Bylaws:  N/A 
• Charter:  N/A 
• Legal counsel:  County Attorney 

4)  Assigned areas of responsibility:  Hear appeals to property valuations 
5)  Membership:  Board of Supervisors (BOS) 

• Terms of office:  Same as BOS 
• Appointing authority:  Elected – statute 

6)  Meeting schedule – As needed 
• Location:  BOS Hearing Room, Globe Courthouse 



14 

7)  Meeting legal posting and advertising:  Yes, Clerk of the BOS Department 
8)  Meeting agendas:  Yes, Clerk of the BOS Department 
9)  Meeting minutes:  Yes, Clerk of the BOS Department 
10) Funding sources:  N/A 

• Amounts:  N/A 
11) Significant actions and accomplishments:  Resolve valuation disputes 
12)  Notes:  -- 
Mr. McDaniel noted that there was a page attached that describes in greater 
detail the areas of responsibility for the Board of Equalization, which includes 
the primary hearing appeals of property valuations.  Supervisor Dawson, who 
was out of town and calling in by phone, advised that her phone may go out at 
any time, but she appreciated all of the work by staff involved in putting these 
reports together and she hopes that members of the public will volunteer to 
serve on some of these committees.   
 
Mr. McDaniel stated that the Board of Supervisors serves as the Flood Control 
District Board of Directors.  Another compliance checklist was provided by Mr. 
McDaniel and reviewed with the Board as follows: 
1)  Name:  Flood Control District Board of Directors 
2)  Gila County Staff Liaison:  Community Development Division Director  
Corrected to:  Gila County Public Works Division, Engineering Department, 
Chief Engineer of the Flood Control District 
3)  Legal basis for establishment:  Statutory A.R.S. §48-3602 

• Date of creation:  N/A 
• Bylaws:  N/A 
• Charter:  N/A 
• Legal counsel:  County Attorney 

4)  Assigned areas of responsibility:  Adopt floodplain regulations and 
administration 
5)  Membership:  Board of Supervisors (BOS) 

• Terms of office:  Same as BOS 
• Appointing authority:  Elected – statute 

6)  Meeting schedule – As needed 
• Location:  BOS Hearing Room, Globe Courthouse 

7)  Meeting legal posting and advertising:  Yes, Clerk of the BOS Department 
8)  Meeting agendas:  Yes, Clerk of the BOS Department 
9)  Meeting minutes:  Yes, Clerk of the BOS Department 
10) Funding sources:  Taxing authority 

• Amounts:  N/A 
11) Significant actions and accomplishments:  Maintain and administer 
regulations 
12)  Notes:  -- 
Mr. McDaniel advised that there was also a 2-page list of items that include the 
powers and duties of the Flood Control District Board of Directors, which 
primarily includes adopting floodplain regulations and administering them.  



15 

This Board also hears appeals for variances.  Vice-Chairman Martin inquired if 
this Board has to abide by the bailout.  Mr. McDaniel replied in the affirmative.  
Bryan Chambers, Chief Deputy County Attorney, stated that one of the things 
that may be confusing is redistricting with the bailout process.  “Certainly with 
redistricting there are only a few districts.  I think the Board of Supervisors has 
its districts, the City of Globe has districts that need to be redistricted and 
there’s also the Gila County Community College District.  As far as the bailout 
process, any district that has elections will be a district that has to be 
considered for the bailout process.  Since the Flood Control District has the 
Board of Supervisors as its Board of Directors, the only way the Flood Control 
District becomes involved is because the Directors are involved as the Board of 
Supervisors.  There isn’t any separate Flood Control District election or Library 
Districts, as far as that goes.”  Chairman Pastor inquired as to the County 
taxes for the Flood Control District.  Mr. McDaniel stated that the Flood 
Control District does not tax; however, it could.  Mr. Stratton stated that the 
way it is set up right now is that the whole County is one district and there can 
be specific instances if someone wished to form a Flood Control District.  It 
could be certain areas such as Tonto Basin, but it would be the same as road 
districts, sanitary districts and those that are by parcel.  Vice-Chairman Martin 
inquired if road districts have elected boards.  Mr. Stratton stated that they do 
not have elected boards, but they internally appoint a person as chairman or 
administrator.    
 
Vice-Chairman Martin noted that Mr. Chambers did not receive this BC&C 
report and she requested that one be provided for him.   
  
Mr. McDaniel stated that the Board of Supervisors serves as the Gila County 
Jail District Board of Directors.  He stated that statutorily the Board of 
Supervisors can establish a jail district, but only with voter approval of a 
property tax or an excise tax.  The Board of Supervisors established the Gila 
County Jail District by Resolution No. 07-06-07 on June 26, 2007, and then 
held an election on November 6, 2007.  The vote to approve the property tax or 
excise tax failed and consequently the Board, even though it adopted a 
resolution establishing the Gila County Jail District, by the voters not adopting 
it, there is not really a Gila County Jail District in existence; however, it is 
listed in the BC&C binder for the record.   
 
Mr. McDaniel stated that the Board of Supervisors serves as the Library 
District Board of Directors.  He included a sheet from the Arizona Revised 
Statutes pertaining to Library Districts’ powers and duties.  Another 
compliance checklist was provided by Mr. McDaniel and reviewed with the 
Board as follows: 
1)  Name:  Library District Board of Directors 
2)  Gila County Staff Liaison:  Gila County District Librarian 
3)  Legal basis for establishment:  Statutory A.R.S. §48-3901 



16 

• Date of creation:  N/A 
• Bylaws:  N/A 
• Charter:  N/A 
• Legal counsel:  County Attorney 

4)  Assigned areas of responsibility:  Coordinates city, town & reservation 
libraries within Gila County and promotes County-wide literacy 
5)  Membership:  Board of Supervisors (BOS) 

• Terms of office:  Same as BOS 
• Appointing authority:  Elected – statute 

6)  Meeting schedule – As needed 
• Location:  BOS Hearing Room, Globe Courthouse 

7)  Meeting legal posting and advertising:  Yes, Clerk of the BOS Department 
8)  Meeting agendas:  Yes, Clerk of the BOS Department 
9)  Meeting minutes:  Yes, Clerk of the BOS Department 
10) Funding sources:  Arizona State Library, Archives & Public Records and 
general funds & tax funding ** (See Clarification below) 

• Amounts:  $1.3 million 
11) Significant actions and accomplishments:  -- 
12)  Notes:  -- 
** Ms. Griffin corrected the record in regard to the funding sources stating that 
the Board of Supervisors sets the Library District tax rate and the taxes that 
are collected at $.20/$100 of valuation and it’s been that rate for a long time; 
prior to that it was $.22.  The Library District taxes are collected just like 
County taxes and used for the benefit of library services.  In addition to that, 
the Library District receives $23,000/year from the Arizona State Library, 
Archives & Public Records--State-Grants-In-Aid.  Ms. Griffin added that there 
are 8 public libraries in Gila County and 5 are city or tribal and 3 are local 
community-operated libraries.  She stated that 3 of the libraries—Pine, Young 
and Tonto Basin--are organized as private, non-profit corporations with a 
501(C)(3) status.  The communities select those members to the individual 
boards and it’s encouraged to be an open process.  The Gila County Library 
District can’t call an election because if it was an election, the libraries would 
expect the Gila County Elections Department to handle the election.  The 
members of the community serve on those boards of directors of the non-profit 
organizations and then do the actual operating of the libraries in those 
communities.  The Gila County Library District has a Library Service 
Agreement with each library, which serves as a legal document to help ensure 
that meetings are in compliance with the Open Meeting Law; that each library 
agrees to comply with sharing, being free lenders and borrowers; and it states 
that the Library District will provide access to the automation system.  The 
Board discussed with Bryan Chambers, Chief Deputy County Attorney, the 
various library issues, such as how the Library District was established, 
meeting and minutes requirements, liability insurance, unemployment 
insurance, facility ownership, Globe Tool Lending Library and the possibility of 



17 

revising the current Library Service Agreements.  No action was taken by the 
Board. 
 
There was some discussion about future BC&C meetings and whether to invite 
the various Board members to the meetings or hold the work sessions first and 
if further information is necessary, then the various board members could be 
invited.  Mr. Chambers advised the Board that its meetings are public and the 
various board members could attend them anyway, according to the Open 
Meeting Law.   
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 12:39 p.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
________________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk 
 



ARF-726     Item #:  3- G     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 08/15/2011  
Reporting Period: Clerk of the Superior Court Monthly Report for June 2011
Submitted For: Vicki Aguilar, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Superior Court
Submitted By: Vicki Aguilar, Clerk of the Superior Court

Information
Subject
Clerk of the Superior Court Monthly Report for June 2011

Suggested Motion
Approval of the June 2011 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the Clerk of the Superior Court.

Attachments
Link: Clerk of Court Report for the Month of June 2011



















ARF-728     Item #:  3- H     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 08/15/2011  
Reporting Period: Human Resources reports for the weeks of 08/09/11 and 08/15/11
Submitted For: Berthan DeNero, Human Resources Director
Submitted By: Erica Raymond, Human Resources

Information
Subject
Human Resources reports for the weeks of August 9, 2011, and August 15, 2011.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the Human Resources reports for the weeks of August 9, 2011, and August 15,
2011.

Attachments
Link: 08/09/11 Human Resources Agenda
Link: 08/15/11 Human Resources Agenda



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
AUGUST 9, 2011 

REVISED 
 
 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. Cory Riley – Public Works – Temporary Solid Waste Operations Worker – 
08/17/11 – Solid Waste Fund 

 
TEMPORARY TO REGULAR STATUS: 
 

2. Ginger Horta – Administrative Services – Administrative Clerk – 08/16/11 – 
General Fund 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

3. Judith Moss – Globe Regional Justice Court – From Justice Court Clerk Associate 
– To Court Clerk – 07/29/11 – General Fund  

4. Ruben A. Mancha – Globe Regional Justice Court – From Collections Officer – 
To Justice Court Clerk Associate – From working 40 hours per week – To 
working 20 hours per week – 07/29/11 – General Fund  

 
POSITION REVIEW: 
 

5. David Fletcher – Community Services – Director of Community Services – 
07/01/11 – Change in fund codes  

6. Cecilia Bejarano – Community Services – Executive Administrative Assistant – 
07/01/11 – Change in fund codes 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
AUGUST 15, 2011 

 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. Casey Bramlet - Public Works – Road Maintenance/Equipment Operator – 
08/11/2011 – Public Works Fund – DOH 01/24/2011 – Resignation 

2. Joshua Gosnell – County Attorney – Temporary Administration Clerk – 
07/11/2011 – General Fund – DOH 06/20/2011 – Personal reasons 

3. Michael Moore – Public Works – Road Maintenance/Equipment Operator – 
08/11/2011 – Public Works Fund – DOH 11/02/2005 – Resignation 

4. Jeremy Thurman – Finance – Accountant Senior – 08/17/2011 – General Fund – 
DOH 12/08/2010 - Resignation 

 
HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. Cheryl Hale – Recorder – Recorder’s Clerk – 08/16/2011 – General Fund – 
Replacing Melva Warbington 

2. Nora Mata-Vega – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 08/16/2011 – 
General Fund – Replacing Deloris Rascon 

 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. Chuck DeClay – Board of Supervisors – Laborer – 08-09-2011 - Constituent 
Services III Fund 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

1. Yvonne House - From Recorders – To Payson Regional Constable’s Office – 
From Recorder Clerk Senior – Constable Clerk – 08/16/2011 – General Fund 
 

END OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

1. Kathy Coker – Probation – Juvenile Detention Facility Manager – 07/31/2011 – 
General Fund  

 
POSITION REVIEW: 
 

1. Rebecca Baeza – Globe JP Court – Collections Officer – 08/01/2011 – General 
Fund – Decrease in pay 

2. Denice Bondurant – Probation – Probation Administrative Specialist – 
08/15/2011 – General Fund 70% - Diversion Intake Fund 30% - From Non-
exempt - To Exempt 

3. Cheryl Wellington – Assessor – From Property Appraiser I – To Property 
Appraiser II – 07/06/2011 – General Fund 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
AUGUST 8, 2011 
PAGE 2 
 

SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 
 
 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1.  Robert Benne – Sheriff’s Office – Emergency Response – 06/06/2011 – General 
Fund 

2. Jerry Coddington – Sheriff’s Office – Emergency Response – 06/06/2011 – 
General Fund 

3. Thomas Ray Naylor – Sheriff’s Office – Emergency Response – 06/06/2011 – 
General Fund 

4. Melvin M. Palmer – Sheriff’s Office – Emergency Response – 06/06/2011 – 
General Fund 

5. Guy Peterson – Sheriff’s Office – Emergency Response – 06/06/2011 – General 
Fund 

6. Steve Kingdon Sessions – Sheriff’s Office – Emergency Response – 06/06/2011 – 
General Fund 
 

END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

1. Anjanette Bolinger – Sheriff’s Office – Registered Nurse – 07/19/2011 – General 
Fund 
 
 

 
 
 
 


	Agenda
	Item2.A.  Gila County Supervisorial and Community College Redistricting Mapping Alternatives
	Item2.A._Att1_Supervisorial Mapping Alternatives 
	Item2.A._Att2_Community College Mapping Alternatives 
	Item2.A._Att3_Report to the Board 
	Item2.B.  Arizona Public Service Landlord Tenant Rider between Gila County and Gila Community College
	Item2.B._Att1_APS Landlord-Tenant Rider for College
	Item2.B._Att2_Disclosure of Dual Representation-GC and College
	Item2.C.  Agreement with Creative Empire, LLC. d_b_a Mango Languages to provide access to online subscription for Gila County libraries
	Item2.C._Att1_Mango Languages Agreement 2011-2014
	Item2.D.  Resolution No. 11-08-10 providing for the collection of taxes for all jurisdictions for FY 2011-2012
	Item2.D._Att1_Resolution No. 11-08-10
	Item2.D._Att2_Tax Levies and Rates Comparison Sheet
	Item2.E.  Rural Housing Preservation Grant Preapplication
	Item2.E._Att1_Application SF424
	Form 424
	Instructions

	Item2.E._Att2_Equal Opportunity Agreement
	Item2.E._Att3_Property Identification
	Item2.E._Att4_Request for Environmental Information
	Item2.E._Att5_Certification-Primary Covered Transactions
	Item2.E._Att6_Certification - lower tier covered transactions
	Item2.E._Att7_Drugfree Workplace
	Item2.F.  Subscription Service Agreement with CAPLUCK, Inc.
	Item2.F._Att1_Subscription Service Agreement with CAPLUCK, Inc.
	Item2.G.  Amendment No. 1 to Ground Lease and Use Agreement-Central Heights Complex with MUSD
	Item2.G._Att1_MUSD - APS Landlord_Tenant Rider
	Item2.G._Att2_Amendment No. 1 to Ground Lease and Use Agreement-Central Heights Complex
	Item2.G._Att3_Original Lease
	Item2.G._Att4_Dual Representation Form - GC and MUSD
	Item2.H.  Request for Proposals No. 070111-1 for County Facilities Janitorial Service Globe, Arizona
	Item2.H._Att1_Request to Advertise RFP 070111-1
	Item2.H._Att2_Request for Proposals No. 070111-1 Janitorial Service
	Item2.I.  Adopt Resolution No. 11-08-09 for Erik and Cheryl Long Roadway Exchange & sign Quit Claim Deed
	Item2.I._Att1_Resolution No. 11-08-09
	Item2.I._Att2_Resolution No. 11-08-09 Record of Survey
	Item2.J.  Request to Advertise Invitation for Bids No. 071911-1 New SUV Special Service Vehicle and New 6_7 Passenger Minivan
	Item2.J._Att1_Request to Advertise for Bids
	Item2.J._Att2_Invitation for Bids No. 071911-1
	Item2.K.  Request to Advertise Bid No. 080211-1 Roadyard Shop Area Paving Project 
	Item2.K._Att1_Request to Advertise
	Item2.K._Att2_Bid 080211-1 Roadyard Shop Area Paving Project
	Item2.L.  Resolution No. 11-08-04 deeding a portion of Evalinda Drive in the King Addition Subdivision to John D. Cotterill
	Item2.L._Att1_Resolution No. 11-08-04
	Item2.L._Att2_QCD Gila County to Cotterill
	Item2.M.  Resolution No.11-08-05 deeding a portion of Christopher Creek Loop to Lynnie Raichert, Edwin G. and Mary C. Schuck, and George and Ruth A. Deming.
	Item2.M._Att1_Resolution No. 11-08-05
	Item2.M._Att2_QCD Gila County to Raichert
	QUIT CLAIM DEED
	See Exhibit “A” attached and made part hereof
	Exempt per A. R. S. section 11-1134 A-3

	ACKNOWLEDGMENT


	Item2.M._Att3_QCD Gila County to Schuck
	QUIT CLAIM DEED
	See Exhibit “C” attached and made part hereof
	Exempt per A. R. S. section 11-1134 A-3

	ACKNOWLEDGMENT


	Item2.M._Att4_QCD Gila County to Deming
	QUIT CLAIM DEED
	See Exhibit “B” attached and made part hereof
	Exempt per A. R. S. section 11-1134 A-3

	ACKNOWLEDGMENT


	Item2.N.  Resolution No. 11-08-06 deeding a portion of Christopher Creek Loop to Manuel Gene Bettencourt
	Item2.N._Att1_Resolution No. 11-08-06
	Item2.N._Att2_QCD Gila County to Bettencourt
	Item2.O.  Smelter Street Roadway Vacation of Right-Of-Way
	Item2.P.  Upper Pinal Creek Road Vacation of Right-of-Way
	Item3.A.  Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. DE106003-008 with Arizona Department of Economic Security, Rehabilitation Services Administration
	Item3.A._Att1_Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. DE106003-008
	Item3.A._Att2_Original Contract No. DE106003-008
	Item3.B.  Amendment No. 1 to IGA No. DE111093-001 with Arizona Department of Economic Security, Rehabilitation Services Administration
	Item3.B._Att1_Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. DE111093-001
	Item3.B._Att2_Original IGA No. DE111093-001
	Item3.C.  Community Development Block Grant Contract No.150-09 Close-Out Report
	Item3.C._Att1_C__Documents and Settings_clopez_My Documents_HOUSING SERVICES_CDBG_Closeout 150-09.pdf
	Item3.C._Att2_C__Documents and Settings_clopez_My Documents_HOUSING SERVICES_CDBG_CDBG 150-09 Original.pdf
	Item3.C._Att3___Documents and Settings_clopez_My Documents_HOUSING SERVICES_CDBG_CDBG 150-09 Letter.pdf
	Item3.D.  FY 2012 Victims' Rights Program Award Agreement No. AG_ 2012-004 with Office of the Attorney General
	Item3.D._Att1_VRP Award Agreement
	Item3.E.  Contract No. HG752219 with Arizona Department of Health Services to continue funding for Prop 201 Smoke Free AZ
	Item3.E._Att1_Contract No. HG752219 with Arizona Department of Health Services
	Item3.E._Att2_Prop 201 Terms and Conditions and background information
	Item3.F.  December 7, 2010, BOS Meeting Minutes
	Item3.F._Att1_BOS 12-07-10 Meeting Minutes
	Item3.G.  Clerk of the Superior Court Monthly Report for June 2011
	Item3.G._Att1_Clerk of Court Report for the Month of June 2011
	Item3.H.  Human Resources reports for the weeks of 08_09_11 and 08_15_11
	Item3.H._Att1_08_09_11 Human Resources Agenda
	Item3.H._Att2_08_15_11 Human Resources Agenda

	Today: 08/11/2011
	2I: 
	SI: 
	1C: Off
	1C2: construction
	5N: Gila County 
	5O: Community Services Division, CAP/Housing
	5A: 5515 S. Apache Avenue, Suite 200Globe, Arizona 85501
	5PI: Malissa Buzan
	5Phone: 928-402-8693
	EIN1: 
	EIN2: 
	EIN3: 
	EIN4: 
	EIN5: 
	EIN6: 
	EIN7: 
	EIN8: 
	EIN9: 
	7: 
	7N: 
	Type: New
	RType1: 
	RType2: 
	RType3: 
	Agency: 
	CFDA1: 1
	CFDA2: 0
	CFDA3: 4
	CFDA4: 3
	CFDA5: 3
	CFDATitle: Rural Housing Preservation Grants
	Areas: Gila County, Arizona
	Start: 11/1/11
	End: 9/30/12
	District_Applicant: AZ-001
	District_Project: AZ-001
	Federal: 100000
	Applicant: 
	State: 
	Local: 
	Other: 33000
	Program_Income: 
	Total: 133000
	16a: 
	dEBT: Yes
	EO: not
	Representative: Michael A. Pastor
	Rep_Title: Chairman, Board of Supervisors
	Rep_Phone: 928-425-3231
	signed: 
	agreement: 08/15/2011
	dated: 
	receiver: 
	recipient: 
	corporate: Michael A. Pastor, Chairman, Board of Supervisors
	president: 
	Nme_Proj: Gila County Rural Housing Pres
	Loc: Gila County, Arizona
	1a_Yes: 
	1a_No: Off
	copy_Box1: Off
	Item_2: Yes
	a: 
	Industrial: Off
	Commercial: Off
	Residential: Yes
	Agricultural: Off
	Grazing: Off
	MiningQuarrying: Off
	Forests: Off
	Recreational: Off
	Transportation: Off
	Parks: Off
	Hospital: Off
	Schools: Off
	Openspaces: Off
	Aquifer_Recharge_Area: Off
	Steep_Slopes: Off
	Wildlife_Refuge: Off
	Shoreline: Off
	Beaches: Off
	Dunes: Off
	Estuary: Off
	Wetlands: Off
	Floodplain: Off
	Wilderness: Off
	Wild_or_Scenic_River: Off
	Historic_Archeologic_Site: Off
	Critical_Habitats: Off
	Wildlife: Off
	Air_Quality: Off
	Solid_Waste_Management: Off
	Energy_Supplies: Off
	Natural_Landmark: Off
	Costal_Barrier_Res_System: Off
	Item_4: No
	b: 
	Title: Gila County Rural Housing Preservation Project
	Button1: 
	Button2: 
	Button3: 
	Button4: 
	Button5: 
	Button6: 
	Button7: 
	Button8: 
	Button9: 
	Button10: 
	confNbrLbl: Conf Nbr:
	confNbrData: 
	custNameLbl: Name:
	custNameData: 
	dateLbl: Submitted:
	dateData: 
	orgname: Gila County Community Services Division
	awardno: Gila County Housing Preservation Project
	name: Michael A. Pastor, Chairman, Board of Supervisors
	date: 
	clearform: 
	txt_PlaceOfPerformance_1: 5515 S. Apache Avenue, Suite 200
	txt_PlaceOfPerformace_2: Globe, Arizona 85501
	txt_PlaceOfPerformance_3: 
	chk_Workplaces: Off
	txt_OrganizationName: Gila County Community Services Division
	txt_AwardNoOrProjectName: Gila County Housing Preservation Project
	txt_AuthorizedRep_NameAndTitle: Michael A. Pastor, Chairman, Board of Supervisors
	Text9: 
	f1_01(0): 
	f1_02(0): 
	c1_01(0): Off
	c1_02(0): Off
	c1_03(0): Off
	c1_05(0): Off
	f1_18(0): 
	c1_04(0): Off
	f1_03(0): 
	c1_06(0): Off
	f1_04(0): 
	f1_05(0): 
	f1_06(0): 
	f1_07(0): 
	f1_08(0): 
	f1_11(0): 
	f1_13(0): 
	f1_17(0): 
	f1_19(0): 


